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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS PROCES-VERBAL

TUESDAY, JULY 22, 1975 LE MARDI 22 JUILLET 1975

(1) (1)

[Text) [Traduction]

The Sub-committee on International Development of the
Standing Committee on External Affairs and National
Defence met this day at 3:40 o’clock p.m. for the purpose of
organization.

Members of the Sub-committee present: Miss Bégin,
Messrs. Brewin, Dupras, Francis, Lapointe, Laprise, Mac-
quarrie, McKenzie, Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich), Pelletier
(Sherbrooke), Roche, Stanbury and Wagner.

Other Members present: Messrs. Bussiéres, Douglas
(Bruce-Grey), Fairweather, Philbrook and Ritchie.

Appearing: Mr. Herb Breau, Parliamentary Secretary to
the Secretary of State for External Affairs.

Witnesses: Mr. Michel Dupuy, Assistant Under-Secretary
of State for External Affairs; Mr. Bruce M. Williams,
Executive Vice-President, Canadian International De-
velopment Agency.

The Clerk of the Committee presided over the election of
the Chairman.

Mr. Stanbury, seconded by Mr. Pelletier (Sherbrooke),
moved that Mr. Dupras do take the Chair of this Sub-com-
mittee as Chairman.

The question being put on the said motion, it was agreed
to and Mr. Dupras took the Chair.

Mr. Dupras thanked the members of the Sub-committee
for the honour bestowed upon him.

On motion of Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich),

Resolved,—That the Sub-committee print 1500 copies
of its Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence, and, as a
supplementary issue, an Index prepared by the Library
of Parliament.

On motion of Mr. Stanbury,

Resolved,—That the Chairman be authorized to hold
meetings to receive and authorize the printing of evidence
when a quorum is not present.

The Sub-committee proceeded to consider its Order of
Reference dated Thursday, July 3, 1975, relating to interna-
tional development, which is as follows:

That the Sub-committee on International Development
be empowered to examine and report upon the full range
of policies in the field of international development with
particular reference to the economic relations between
developed and developing countries.

Mr. Roche moved,—That this Committee invite the
Research Branch of the Parliamentary Library to prepare a
short background paper on the events leading up to the
Seventh Special Session of the United Nations, for infor-
mation purposes only.

After debate, the motion was allowed to stand, pending a
recommendation from the Sub-committee on Agenda and
Procedure.

Le sous-comité sur le développement international du
Comité permanent des affaires extérieures et de la défense
nationale se réunit aujourd’hui a 15 h 40 pour s’organiser.

Membres du sous-comité présents: M Bégin, MM. Brewin,
Dupras, Fruncis, Lapointe, Laprise, Macquarrie, McKenzie,
Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich), Pelletier (Sherbrooke), Roche,
Stanbury et Wagner.

Autres députeés présents: MM. Bussiéres, Douglas (Bruce-
Grey), Fairweather, Philbrook et Ritchie.

Comparait: M. Herb Breau, secrétaire parlementaire du
secrétaire d’Etat aux affaires extérieures.

Témoins: M. Michel Dupuy, sous-secrétaire d’Etat adjoint
aux affaires extérieures; M. Bruce M. Williams, vice-prési-
dent exécutif, Agence canadienne de développement
international.

Le greffier du Comité préside a I'élection du président
du Comité.

M. Stanbury, appuyé par M. Pelletier (Sherbrooke), pro-
pose que M. Dupras soit nommé président du sous-comité.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée et M. Dupras est
invité a occuper le fauteuil.

M. Dupras remercie les membres du sous-comité de
I’honneur qu'ils lui ont fait.

Sur motion de M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich) ,

Il est décide,—Que le sous-comité imprimera 1,500 exem-
plaires de ses procés-verbaux et témoignages, et, a titre de
fascicule supplémentaire, un index préparé par la Biblio-
théque du Parlement.

Sur motion de M. Stanbury,

Il est décidé,—Que le président sera autorisé a tenir des
audiences, a entendre des témoignages et a en autoriser la
publication, en 'absence de quorum.

Le sous-comité entreprend I'étude de son ordre de renvoi
du jeudi 3 juillet 1975 concernant le développement inter-
national, qui se lit comme suit:

Que le sous-comité du développement international
soit autorisé a étudier et a faire rapport sur 'ensemble
des politiques ayant trait au développement internatio-
nal, et en particulier, aux relations économiques entre les
pays développés et ceux qui sont en voie de
développement.

M. Roche propose,—Que le Comité invite le Service de
recherches de la Bibliothéque du Parlement a préparer a
titre d'information seulement, un bref document sur les
événements qui ont conduit a la Septiéme session spéciale
des Nations Unies.

Apres débat, la motion est réservée, dans l'attente d'une
recommandation du sous-comité du programme et de la
procédure.
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EVIDENCE

(Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)
Tuesday, July 22, 1975

® 1542
[Texte]

The Chairman: I think you have received a document
outlining and perhaps suggesting a way of approaching
this for discussion pruposes. Have you all received such a
document? While this document is being circulated, I
should perhaps inform you of a suggestion I have received
from our colleague, Mr. Roche. Even though this is an
organization meeting, we may as well complete this while
we are waiting for Mr. Breau. Mr. Breau is going to replace
the Minister who has been detained at a Cabinet meeting
and, unfortunately, cannot be with us this afternoon. Is
this document in the hands of everyone now?

An hon. Member: Yes it is.

Le président: Tout le monde a un document. Y a-t-il
des commentaires? Are they any comments on this docu-
ment? Mr. Brewin.

Mr. Brewin: During the course of the agenda, rather
than our considering the very full suggestions that are
made here, I wonder whether we could give consideration
to the immediate tasks ahead of us? For example, I under-
stand it is still the plan of the Committee that some
members of it will be going to the special session of the
United Nations in September and I believe there are
groups of people, including some sort of interdepartmental
task force who expect to have a report available which is
usually presented to the government before the conference.
I think would be useful for us to take a look at this report
which would necessitate possibly some meetings towards
the end of August or the very beginning of September.
Also the Commonwealth Conference in Jamaica appointed
some committee of wise men. It seems to be a familiar
project in these international things, but presumably they
expect to report in the not-too-distant future. I am wonder-
ing if it would be a good idea—I am not speaking against
these suggestions—immediately, at the first meeting or so,
to concentrate on the subject of this special session.

® 1545

The other point I wanted to make is that this does not go

into any detail as to witnesses, but I would hope that we

manage to fit in quite a few witnesses, if we can lay our

hands on them, from some of the developing countries so
that we get at first hand their views on these subjects.

It may be mentioned in this document. I am not sure it
is, though. We could get CIDA experts and outside experts,
government and CIDA. I would like to see mixed in with
that quite a few. There is opposite item G, CIDA and
outside witnesses, international, question-mark. I think we
should take away those question-marks and make sure we
get a few people from the developing countries. Those are
the only comments [ have to make.

TEMOIGNAGES

(Enregistrement électronique)

Le mardi 22 juillet 1975

[Interprétation]

Le président: Vous avez sans doute recu un document
indiquant les principales questions proposées pour la dis-
cussion. En avez-vous bien tous re¢u un exemplaire? Pen-
dant que 'on distribue ce document, je voudrais vous faire
part d’une suggestion de notre collégue, M. Roche. Il ne
s’agit que d’'une réunion d'organisation mais nous pour-
rions aussi bien régler cette question en attendant M.
Breau. En effet, ce dernier va remplacer le Ministre qui est
retenu a une réunion du Cabinet, ce qui I'empéche donc,
malheureusement, d’étre avec nous cet apres-midi. Avez-
vous bien tous un exemplaire, maintenant?

Une voix: Oui.

The Chairman: Have everybody got a copy of the docu-
ment? Are there any comment?Avez- vous des commentai-
res a faire? Monsieur Brewin.

M. Brewin: Plutét que d’étudier toutes les suggestions
présentées dans l'ordre du jour, serait-il possible d’exami-
ner tout d’abord la tiche immédiate qui se présente a nous?
Par exemple, le Comité a 'intention d’envoyer certains de
ses membres-a la session spéciale des Nations unies qui se
déroulera en septembre; or, certains groupes, y compris des
groupes d’étude interministériels, doivent recevoir un rap-
port, actuellement étudié par le Gouvernement, d’ici la
date de cette Conférence. Je pense qu'il serait trés utile
que nous puissions également étudier ce rapport. Nous
pourrions peut-étre y consacrer quelques séances fin aout
ou début septembre. Par ailleurs, la conférence du Com-
monwealth, qui s’est déroulée en Jamaique, a nommé un
comité de sages. Cela semble constituer un projet assez
familier, dans le cadre de ces problémes internationaux,
mais il est prévu qu’'un rapport sera déposé dans un avenir
assez proche. Je ne veux pas m’opposer ici a certaines
suggestions, mais je me demande s’il serait bon, dés cette
premiére réunion, de s'intéresser aux problémes particu-
liers de cette session spéciale.

Je voulais également faire remarquer que nous n’avons
certainement pas assez de témoins pour analyser ces ques-
tions en détail et j'espére que nous pourrons en trouver
d’autres, originaires de certains de ces pays en voie de
développement, afin que nous puissions avoir connaissance
de leur avis sur ces problémes.

Cette question est peut-étre déja soulevée dans ce docu-
ment mais je n'en suis pas sar. Il me semble que nous
pourrions trouver des experts de I'ACDI, des experts au
gouvernement et des experts extérieurs. Cela me parait
trés positif. Finalement, je vois qu'un point d’interrogation
a été apposé en face du chapitre G, c'est-a-dire des témoins
de I'ACDI et des témoins internationaux. Je pense que
nous devrions supprimer ce point d’'interrogation et faire
tout ce qui est nécessaire pour obtenir des témoins des
pays en voie de développement. Ce sont la les seules
remarques que je voulais faire.
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[Text)
The Chairman: Mr. McKenzie.

Mr. McKenzie: I would certainly like to support Mr.
Brewin on having outside witnesses, and expecially some
of the project officers from around the country. I would
like to suggest to the Committee that we consider having
somebody available from the Auditor General's depart-
ment to do any special investigating we might desire, such
as banking procedures and any monetary aspects for
CIDA. I hope the Committee will consider that as we go
on.

I would like to ask one question. Item J on the second
page refers to Gardner. Is that a man’s name?

The Chairman: I am informed that Mr. Gardner is the
rapporteur of the U.N. Secretary General's office on this
subject of international aid programs.

Mlle Bégin: Ce n’est pas écrit, Gardner.
Une voix: Oui, c’est écrit au paragraphe «J»
Mlle Bégin: D'accord, merci beaucoup.

An hon. Member: That is fine.

Le président: Est-ce qu’il y a d’autres questions sur ce
sujet? Monsieur Pelletier.

M. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): Je ne suis pas tellement d’ac-
cord avec M. Brewin et 'autre monsieur, je pense méme
que l'on devrait peut-étre arréter certains noms de person-
nes sur lesquelles nous pourrions peut-étre nous entendre
des maintenant. Si ce sont des experts sur les problemes
des pays en voie de développement, il faudrait les prévenir
assez longtemps a l'avance, de sorte que si un voyage au
Canada est prévu, nous puissions les entendre.

Cing noms me viennent a l'esprit, je pense qu'il serait
peut-étre intéressant de les considérer. I1 y a Josue de
Castro, qui est reconnu comme l'un des grands experts des
problémes des pays en voie de développement; il y a Don
Helder Camara, ils viennent tous les deux du méme pays,
peut-étre pourrions-nous en choisir un; il y a Pierre Vellas
des pays francophones, c’est sirement 1'un des plus cotés; il
y a Maurice Strong, un Canadien qui a énormément d’ex-
périence, non seulement sur notre programme canadien,
mais également, sur ce qui se passe sur la scéne internatio-
nale; il y a René Dumont, qui est peut-étre un peu plus
farfelu, mais qui pourrait peut-étre aussi nous apporter
énormément de son expérience personnelle dans les pays
d'Afrique, il a beaucoup écrit. Il y a beaucoup d’autres
noms que nous pourrions suggérer deés maintenant et
essayer de les avoir devant le Comité.

Merci Pelletier. Monsieur

Le president: monsieur

Wagner.

M. Wagner: Oui, je peux dire juste un mot, je pense qu'il
est sage que l'on puisse envisager un mandat trés large qui
nous permette d'interroger toutes les personnes compéten-
tes capables de nous fournir les renseignements.

Mais je pense qu'il faudrait également que le sous-comité
ait autorité de se transporter ailleurs et d'aller a certains
endroits se rendre compte par lui-méme de ce qui se passe
et peut-étre que vous voudrez dans le mandat inclure de
facon précise I'autorisation a cet effet.

[Interpretation]
Le président: Monsieur McKenaie.

a

M. McKenzie: Je suis tout a fait d’accord avec M.
Brewin, au sujet de ces témoins extérieurs, et surtout au
sujet de certains des responsables de projets envoyés dans
divers pays. Je pense également qu'il serait bon d’inviter
un représentant du Bureau de I’Auditeur général, qui pour-
rait faire des enquétes spéciales, s'il y a lieu, portant, par
exemple, sur les procédures bancaires wt les problémes
financiers de I'ACDI. J'espére que le Comité accordera a
cette suggestion toute 'attention qu’elle mérite.

J'aimerais maintenant poser une autre question, portant
sur le chapitre J, de la seconde page. Pourrait-on me dire
que signifie le mot «Gardner»? S’agit-il d'un nom?

Le président: On m’'informe que M. Gardner est le rap-
porteur du Bureau du Secrétaire général a 'ONU sur les
questions d’aide internationale.

Miss Bégin: Nothing is written about him.
An hon. Member: Yes, it is on item “J".
Miss Bégin: All right, thank you very much.
Une voix: Treés bien.

The Chairman: Any more questions on this matter?

Mr. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): I am in full agreement with
Mr. Brewin and I believe we might immediately accept the
names of the people whom we might agree on. Indeed, if
they are experts on the problems of developing countries I
believe they should be informed well in advance, if they
are to be invited to Canada.

For myself, I can already think of five people whom it
might be interesting to have as witnesses, first of all, there
is Mr. Josue de Castro, who is one of the main experts on
these matters; there is Don Helder Camara, they are both
from the same country, we might choose either one of
them. I can also think of Pierre Vellas, who may be one of
the most famous; there is also Mr. Maurice Strong, who is
very experienced, not only on our Canadian programs, but
on international matters; finally, there is Mr. René
Dumont, who may sometimes have strange ideas on these
matters, but who has enormous personal experience on the
problems of African countries. Obviously, there are also
many more people who might be invited.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Pelletier. Mr. Wagner.

Mr. Wagner: I shall be very brief. I believe it might be
wise to try and get some rather wide terms of reference, in
order to be able to ask questions to all the very talented
people who might give us information.

But I think that the subcommittee should also be autho-
rized to travel to certain places in order to learn first hand
what is happening and you may want to specifically
include in the terms of reference authorization to that
effect.
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[Texte]

Le président: Merci monsieur Wagner. Mademoiselle
Bégin.

Mille Bégin: Monsieur le président, sur un autre point
complémentaire a celui de mes préopinants. J'aimerais que
d'une facon générale, mais je ne suis pas capable d’en
donner les détails concrets, nous ayons le plus souvent
possible et non pas uniquement sur 'un ou deux des sujets
tels qu'ils sont indiqués, des représentants des ministeres
conflictuels, . .. Industry, Trade and Commerce as well as
the viewpoint of opposite—in terms of interest—depart-
ments, such as External Affairs and, whenever necessary,
even Finance and, of course, CIDA. At the same time, I
would very much like to see the NOG's, the non-govern-
mental organizations, not restrict us to only one sub-item,
such as (i) on page two. Their viewpoint should be, and
they have asked us more than once, I think, that they do
not really have a voice in this Committee; they are a
vehicle, a channel of work, and they represent maybe a
little more than others, starting by the bureaucrats and by
us, the public opinion of Canada, an enlightened one. They
should have a voice, I think, almost everywhere, as much
as possible.

Le président: Merci mademoiselle Bégin.

Mr. Roche: I think, when we consider the witnesses,
there will be many that we will want to call, but T would
like to suggest we begin with Mr. Robinson, the Chairman
of the Interdepartmental Committee on Relations with
External Countries. That is a special committee that was
set up by the government to bring into one room at one
time all the experts throughout the government on the
subject of international development, and that committee
has been charged with preparing the basis of the policy
paper for a comprehensive statement by Canada at the
special session of the U.N. General Assembly. I should like
to ask Mr. Robinson when he appears if he would tell us
who are the specific people in the Canadian government
who are in the best position to give information, and that
will doubtless lead to a wider range of witnesses. I do not
think I would want to have to duplicate the work the
Robinson committee has done by starting from scratch,
when in fact they do have a comprehensive statement
ready.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Roche. Anyone else? We
have heard many very excellent suggestions as to the way
we should approach our term of reference. I think at this
time I should read again our specific term of reference,
which is:

That the Subcommittee on International Development
be empowered to examine and report upon the full
range of policies in the field of international develop-
ment, with particular reference to the economic rela-
tions between developed and developing countries.

This is our term of reference and this is more or less what
we will have to deal with. Maybe someone has a suggestion
to make. Perhaps we should examine the wisdom of strik-
ing a steering committee of this subcommittee in order to
ascertain the way we should approach this. Many sugges-
tions have been made so far. We will consider the sugges-
tions. Of course, we have been recorded and, in view of the
suggestions made, perhaps that steering committee could
outline and submit to the members sort of an agenda or a
schedule of meetings for the first 10 or 15 meetings. Do you
agree on this?

[Interprétation]
The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Wagner. Miss Bégin.

Miss Bégin: Mr. Chairman, the point I wish to discuss
relates to one that was brought up by the preceding spea-
kers. I wish that in general, but I am incapable to give you
concrete details, we have access as often as possible, and
not only regarding one or two subjects as they are indica-
ted, to representatives of the conflicting departments... le
ministére de 'Industrie et du Commerce ainsi qu’a l'opi-
nion des ministéres ayant des intéréts opposés comme le
ministére des Affaires extérieures et si nécessaire le minis-
tére des Finances et, évidemment, 'ACDI. De plus, je
souhaite que les organismes non-gouvernementaux ne
nous limitent pas 4 un seul sous-alinéa comme le sous-ali-
néa (i) a la page 2. Ils nous ont fait valoir a plusieurs
reprises, je crois, qu’ils n'ont pas réellement voie au chapi-
tre en Comité. Ils sont un instrument de travail, et ils
représentent un peu mieux que d’autres, a commencer par
les fonctionnaires et nous-mémes, 'opinion publique, et
une opinion éclairée. Ils devraient avoir voie au chapitre,
presque partout et chaque fois que possible.

The Chairman: Thank you, Miss Bégin.

M. Roche: Nous voudrons faire appel a de nombreux
témoins, mais j’aimerais que nous invitions d’abord M.
Robinson, président du comité inter-ministériel des Rela-
tions avec les pays étrangers. Il s’agit d'un comité spécial
créé par le gouvernement en vue de rassembler tous les
experts gouvernementaux en matiére de développement
international et ce comité a été chargé de préparer 'énoncé
de politique qui formera le fondement de la déclaration du
Canada au cours d’une séance spéciale de I'assemblée géné-
rale des Nations unies. J'aimerais demander a M. Robinson,
lorsqu’il comparaitra, quels sont les fonctionnaires cana-
diens qui sont le mieux en mesure de nous donner des
renseignements, ce qui accroitra stirement le nombre de
nos témoins. Je ne voudrais pas reprendre du début le
travail de la Commission Robinson qui a déja rédigé une
déclaration générale.

Le président: Je vous remercie, monsieur Roche. Y a-t-il
d’autres orateurs? Nous avons entendu des suggestions
excellentes sur l'interprétation de notre mandat. Je crois
que nous devrions maintenant relire notre mandat:

Que le sous-comité du Développement international
soit autorisé a étudier et a faire rapport sur 'ensemble
des politiques du Canada ayant trait au développe-
ment international, et en particulier aux relations éco-
nomiques entre les pays développés et ceux qui sont en
voie de développement.

Voila notre mandat; il résume plus ou moins nos objectifs.
Avez-vous des suggestions a faire? Devrions-nous créer un
comité directeur qui serait chargé d'interpréter ce mandat?
Plusieurs députés ont fait des suggestions. Nous les étudie-
rons. Evidemment, nos propos seront portés au compte
rendu et a la lumiére des suggestions qui ont été faites, le
comité directeur pourrait peut-étre exposer et soumettre a
I'approbation des membres de ce comité un projet d'ordre
du jour ou de calendrier des réunions pour les dix ou
quinze premiéres réunions. Etes-vous d'accord?
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Some hon. Members: Agreed.

The Chairman: Thank you. I should perhaps inform you
of a letter that I received from our colleague, Mr. Roche, in
which he says:

In order to facilitate the work of the Subcommittee
on International Development, I would like to propose
that a short paper giving the background to the Sev-
enth Special Session of the United Nations General
Assembly be prepared for us by the Research Branch
of the Library of Parliament.

He goes on further:

Further I would suggest that in making this request
we specify that Mr. Bob Miller write the paper for us.
The reason I am naming Mr. Miller is because he has
specialized in international development for the Par-
liamentary Library and has previously written
research papers on this subject.

I know that the Parliamentary Centre for Foreign
Affairs and Foreign Trade has been of continuing
assistance to the Committee and I expect this will
continue. But the wider the range of research we have
coming into the Committee, the better, and I believe
that a background paper by Mr. Miller at this stage
would be beneficial.

® 1555

Perhaps you could write directly to Mr. Philip

Laundy, Director, Research Branch, Library of Parlia-
ment, to make this request.

I will look forward to seeing you at our meeting
Tuesday.

Now, I have never met Mr. Miller. I do not know him, so
perhaps Mr. Roche would like to say a few words about
him.

Mr. Roche: The reason I put forth Mr. Miller’s name is
that last year, Mr. Chairman, the parliamentary Library
Research Branch published and distributed a paper to the
members of Parliament called An Approach to the Crisis of
International Development. I found this paper to be of very
high quality and great use. It simply occurred to me that
the author of tha tpaper, Mr. Miller, might be of assistance
to the Committee in drawing together some of the back-
ground material that we need.

In that reference we have received from the government
the document called the New Economic Order which con-
sists of selected documents but only those issued as of last
March. Of course, when Mr. Breau comes we will be ad-
dressing some questions to him on this. But useful as that
is I think the wider of range of input into the Committee,
the better and I know that the Library is prepared to have
Mr. Miller contribute to the Committee in the form of
writing a paper, attending the special session, or in any
way that he can of service. So, it is simply a matter of all
the members of the Committee taking advantage of the
Library Research.

The Chairman: Mr. Pelletier.

M. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): Si je comprends bien c’est
une personne qui travaille a plein temps a la Bibliothéque.

[Interpretation]
Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: Je vous remercie. Je devrais peut-étre vous
faire part d'une lettre que j’ai re¢ue de notre collégue, M.
Roche, dont voici un extrait:

En vue de faciliter le travail du sous-comité du
Développement international, j'aimerais proposer
qu'un exposé des antécédents de la septiéme séance
spéciale de I'assemblée générale des Nations unies soit
préparée a notre intention par la direction de la recher-
che de la Bibliothéque parlementaire.

I1 poursuit en disant:

J’aimerais de plus proposer que nous précisions dans
cette demande que M. Bob Miller rédige 'exposé pour
nous. Je propose le nom de M. Miller parce qu'il est
spécialiste en matiére de développement international
pour la Bibliothéque parlementaire et qu'il a déja
rédigé des documents de recherche a ce sujet.

Je sais que le Centre parlementaire des affaires et
du commerce extérieurs a continuellement aidé le
Comité, et je m'attends a ce que cette assistance se
poursuive. Mais étant donné la variété de plus en plus
grande des sujets de recherche soumis au Comité, je
crois que la rédaction d'un document de base par M.
Miller nous serait trés utile en ce moment.

Vous pourriez écrire directement au directeur de la
recherche de la Bibliothéque du Parlement, M. Philip
Landry.

J'attends avec plaisir notre réunion mardi prochain.

Je n’ai jamais rencontré M. Miller. Je ne le connais pas.
M. Roche pourra peut-étre nous parler de lui.

M. Roche: Si j'ai proposé le nom de M. Miller, c’est que la
direction de la recherche de la Bibliothéque du Parlement
a publié 'année derniére un document intitulé Un essai sur
la crise du développement international. C'est un document
excellent et trés utile. J'ai pensé que M. Miller, son auteur,

pourrait aider le Comité a rassembler les documents de
travail nécessaires.

Le gouvernement nous a fait parvenir un recueil intitulé
le Nouvel Ordre économique qui ne contient, toutefois, que
des articles publiés aprés le mois de mars dernier. Lorsque
M. Breau viendra, nous allons évidemment le questionner a
ce sujet. Le fait d’avoir des renseignements ou des idées
provenant de différentes sources et compétences qui écri-
vent sur le sujet, ne peut que nous éclairer davantage. Je
sais que la Bibliothéque est d’accord pour permettre a M.
Miller de rédiger un document a l'intention du Comite,
d'assister a la session spéciale, bref, de nous étre utile.
C’est donc aux membres du Comité de profiter des services
de recherche de la Bibliothéque.

Le président: Monsieur Pelletier.

Mr. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): Does he work full-time for
the library?
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Une voix: Oui.

M. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): C'est ¢a?

Une voix: Oui.

M. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): Il travaille a plein temps?

Le président: Oui.

M. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): Je ne suis pas certain de cela.
Mr. Roche: But he works full-time with Research.

Mr. Pelletier: Oh, he works full-time with Research.

Une voix: Oui.

M. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): Est-ce qu'actuellement il tra-
vaille pour la Bibliothéque seulement?

I would like to know if that is true.
Mr. Roche: Yes.
Mr. Pelletier: He is not working for anybody else?

Mr. Roche: No, no. He is not affiliated with any party; he
works for the Library as one of the 37 research officiers of
the parliamentary Library.

Le président: Monsieur Pelletier.

M. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): Pour ma part, je n’y vois pas
d’'objections; le fait d’avoir des renseignements ou des idées
provenant de différentes sources et compétences qui écri-
vent sur le sujet ne peut que nous éclairer davantage.

Toutefois, nous avons déja une compétence reconnue qui
est le Centre parlementaire qui nous a fait depuis plusieurs
années d'excellents documents qui pourraient peut-étre
inclure celui du monsieur en question. Mais je pense qu'on
ne doit pas commencer a disperser les sources de prove-
nance, parce qu'a un moment donné, certains feront réfé-
rence a certaines sources qu'ils considéreront comme une
bible et pour un autre ce sera une autre source; finalement,
nous ne nous entendrons plus. Jusqu'a preuve du contraire,
il faudra peut-étre s'en tenir au Centre parlementaire qui a
toujours fait un excellent travail. Cela n'empéche pas ce
Centre de faire appel a d'autres compétences.

Le président: Monsieur Roche.
Mr. Roche: Yes. I would like to respond to that.

Certainly this is a very complex subject, as Mr. Pelletier
knows, and the wider the input of material for consider-
ation by this Committee, the better. So I would not want to
allow any group exclusive input into this Committee. The
parliamentary committee presenter, which you mentioned,
is a valuable instrument, and, as I said in my letter, I
would want to see it continue. In the same vein I would
like to see the material from the interdepartmental com-
mittee continue and also the work of the parliamentary
Research Branch, which has demonstrated a capacity in
this paper, which was available to all members of Parlia-
ment, called An Approach to the Crisis of International
Development. We should simply give them an invitation to
prepare material for the Committee without any obligation
by the Committee to commit itself to its use. It is simply
for informational purposes.
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[Interprétation]
An hon. Member: Yes.

Mr. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): Yes?

An hon. Member: Yes.

Mr. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): He works full-time?
The Chairman: Yes.

Mr. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): I am not so sure.

M. Roche: 11 travaille a plein temps pour le service de la
Recherche.

M. Pelletier: Ah, il travaille a plein temps pour la
recherche.

An hon. Member: Yes.

Mr. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): Does he actually work
exclusively for the Library?

J’aimerais savoir si c’est vrai.
M. Roche: Oui.
M. Pelletier: Il ne travaille pour personne d’autre?

M. Roche: Non. Il n’est affilié a aucun parti. Il est un des
37 assistants de recherche de la Bibliotheque du Parlement.

The Chairman: Mr. Pelletier.

Mr. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): Personally, I do not have any
objection. The wider the range of research we have coming
to the Committee, the better.

There already is one competent source, the parliamen-
tary centre which for several years already has been pro-
viding us with excellent documents including maybe the
one you alluded to. We nevertheless should try not to call
on too many sources because we would end up with too
many different references and run the risk of not being
able to agree on them. Maybe we should limit ourselves to
the parliamentary centre which has always done an excel-
lent job. This does not preclude the possibility for the
centre of calling upon other competences.

The Chairman: Mr. Roche.
M. Roche: Oui. Permettez-moi d’y répondre.

C’est évident un sujet trés complexe comme I'a déja dit
M. Pelletier et plus le Comité aura de documents, mieux
cela vaudra. Il ne serait pas bon que le Comité ne fasse
appel qu'a une seule source. Le Centre parlementaire est
un instrument valable comme je I'ai déja dit dans ma lettre
et je voudrais qu'il continue son travail. Je voudrais égale-
ment que le Comité interministériel continue le sien tout
comme le service de recherche du Parlement qui a démon-
tré ce dont il est capable dans le document intitulé Un essai
sur la crise du développement international dont tous les
députés ont pu prendre connaissance. Nous devrions sim-
plement les inviter a rédiger des documents a l'intention
du Comité sans que celui-ci s'engage a les utiliser. Il s’agira
simplement de documents de référence.
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Le président: Monsieur Pelletier.

M. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): Une derniére question, mon-
sieur le président.

Si jamais on commandait une étude sur tel ou tel aspect
du probléme des pays en voie de développement, est-ce
qu'il faudrait payer la personne ou serait-elle payée par la
Bibliotheque?

The Chairman: Yes. I understand that he is paid by the
Library.

® 1600
At the same time if he has produced other papers, they
could be delivered or circulated within a couple of days.

Mr. Roche: That is what I would like.

The Chairman: It is your suggestion then that Mr.
Miller produce papers that we will have in the next few
days?

Mr. Roche: But that he also be requested to prepare a
background paper to the Seventh Special Session since he
has made a professional study of the events leading up to
the Seventh Special Session.

The Chairman: This is a little more specific now.

M. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): Je m'opposerais, monsieur le
président. Si on veut connaitre ce qu’a écrit M. Miller dans
le passé sur certains de ces problémes d’accord! Toutefois,
on est en train de préparer une conférence internationale,
et j'imagine que certains d’entre nous vont assister a cette
conférence-la. La proposition ou I'étude qui sera faite par
M. Miller ne sera pas nécessairement ce qui sera étudié
la-bas et ne reflétera pas nécessairement la position cana-
dienne. Alors ceux qui seront d’accord avec l'un des deux
diront: C’est vraiment ¢a qu’on aurait du faire» et l'autre
dira: «Mais non, c'est la position canadienne». Alors, je
pense que nous nous enliserons dans des discussions inuti-
les si jamais nous faisons faire par M. Miller une étude qui
portera sur le New Economic Order avec une étude par le
Comité des documents qu'il nous produira. Ce serait son
idée a lui.

Alors, dans un tel cas, je m'opposerais fermement. Parce
que je pense que pour ce qui est de la Conférence sur le
nouvel ordre économique international, il est beaucoup
plus important de considérer des écrits, si vous voulez, qui
nous viennent du département, qui sont plus susceptibles
d’étre acceptés que ceux que certains messieurs, si compé-
tents soient-ils, pourraient écrire sur ce probléme-1a.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Pelletier. Mademoiselle
Bégin.

Miss Bégin: Thanks, Mr. Chairman. I would like to
speak along the lines started by Irénée Pelletier. What
struck me, and I think I will call a spade a spade, is that in
the last two months I have heard colleagues on all sides of
the House discuss the growing need for M.P.s to help
research. Translated into concrete steps, this means the
possibility of reinforcing the various bureaus, the possibili-
ty of changing the library staff and the effects on the
parliamentary centre.

It is not my problem. We have enough problems. I know
the Speaker is looking into that matter, also the Commis-
sioners of Internal Economy and the parliamentary leaders
of the various parties. So I prefer not to be put in the
position of having, by a precedent to make, to influence
that decision because I have not studied the question.

[Interpretation]
The Chairman: Mr. Pelletier.

Mr. Pelletier (Sherbrooke):
Chairman.

A last question, Mr.

If ever we were to order a study on a particular aspect of
the problem of the developing countries, would we have to
pay for it, or would it be up to the Library?

Le président: Oui. Apparemment, ce sera payé par la
Bibliotheque.

Par ailleurs, s'il a rédigé d’autres documents, on pourra
les distribuer avant la fin de la semaine.

M. Roche: Ce serait souhaitable.

Le président: Vous proposez donc que M. Miller nous
donne des documents dans quelques jours?

M. Roche: Et je voudrais qu'on lui demande de rédiger
un document de fond concernant la Septiéme assemblée
extraordinaire puisqu’il a déja fait une étude des événe-
ments qui l'ont provoquées.

Le président: Bon, c’est plus précis.

Mr. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): I object, Mr. Chairman. If
we want to find out what Mr. Miller has written in the past
about these problems, that is fine! However, we are prepar-
ing for an international conference and I imagine that a
few of us will be present. The proposition or the study
prepared by Mr. Miller will not necessarily be what will be
studied at the conference and will not necessarily reflect
the government line. So those sharing one view, will
oppose others who think they are following government
policy. And I think we would get into useless debate over
that if we asked Mr. Miller to produce a report on the new
economic order or if the Committee studies the documents
that he will send us. We would be studying his opinions.

In this case, I am certainly opposed to that idea. It is far
more important to study documents sent to us by the
department for this conference on the new economic order
which will be more readily acceptable than any documents
sent to us by the department for the conference on the new
economic order which will be more readily acceptable than
anything produced by another person, competent though
they may be.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Pelletier. Miss Begin.

Mlle Bégin: Merci, monsieur le président. Je voudrais
ajouter quelques commentaires a ce que disait Irénée Pel-
letier. Sans ambages, j’ai souvent fait remarquer au cours
des deux derniers mois que mes collégues, des deux cotés
de la Chambre, réclamaient plus de documentalistes. En
termes concrets, cela veut dire augmenter l'effectif des
divers bureaux, changer le personnel de la bibliothéque
sans compter les effets que cela aura sur le centre
parlementaire.

Ce n’est pas un probléme personnel. Nous avons assez de
problémes. L'Orateur de la Chambre étudie la question,
ainsi que les commissaires de la Régie interne et les chefs
des partis. Par conséquent, je préfére ne pas créer de
précédents ou influencer une décision sur une question que
je n’ai pas étudiée.
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I think a researcher belonging to the library is available
to us anyway. In this particular instance I personally have
been quite impressed. I think I could be more critical, but I
am quite impressed by the work of the parliamentary
centre that we have had in the past few years it has been in
operation.

It is not a question of one researcher for whom we would
like a special mandate, with the money consequences it is
going to have by the way, it is a question also of an
established network of relationship with people in various
pressure groups in Canada or groups interested in external
affairs and aid and with people within the departments
concerned. This is already done by the centre.

If a particular person in the library is very good at that,
the centre can compete and go and get that person but it is
not a question of one person alone. Although it has been of
good assistance to us, the library has not specialized in a
network of relationship and in getting information other
than from books. I am sorry, it is not its work either, by the
way it is doing its work very well. My first impression
would be to move that we retain the parliamentary centre
and if anothe person in particular is good, through the
usual channels we would know the person is there and we
could benefit from his or her services.

® 1605
Le président: Merci beaucoup, mademoiselle Bégin.
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Lloyd Francis, please. Mr. Francis.

Mr. Francis: Mr. Chairman, I am not sure that I know all
that is involved here. It seems to be very difficult to
resolve it in this kind of a committee. I hope the steering
committee has discussions with Mr. Peter Dobell and the
parliamentarian librarian and comes back to the main
Committee with a recommendation.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Francis.
Mr. Fairweather.

Mr. Fairweather: I do not think my colleague’s motion
was to exclude the Parliamentary Center in any way. It
was an available source of information through the
Research Branch. Many of us have had occasion to learn of
Mr. Miller through the research papers he has done. I did
not think Mr. Miller’s paper would in any way inhibit the
obvious work of the Parliamentary Centre which as Made-
moiselle Bégin says has connections across the country. I
do not know why we do not receive both. Obviously the
Parliamentary Centre goes on being our staff person and
we have before us a piece of paper prepared by the
Research Branch. Presumably Mr. Bobell's shop will have a
copy of it too.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Fairweather. I would
like to thank everyone who has contributed in this debate.

No, it is not a motion from Mr. Roche. He sent only a
personal suggestion, one for which I thank him very much.
Of course, the Parliamentary Centre has for some time
now been engaged in supplying background papers on
other issues to the Committee. It is not a question of
trading or going to other sources of informatiwn. But if Mr.
Miller has produced papers on the subject, I can not see
why he would deprive the Subcommittee of this informa-
tion. If he wants to send us this information we would be
delighted. Before we make a decision on the commission-
ing of Mr. Miller or someone else to prepare any other

[Interprétation]

Je crois qu'un documentaliste de la bibliothéque est a
notre disposition. En ce cas, bien que je pourrais étre plus
sévere, je suis trés impressionnée par le travail accompli
par le centre parlementaire au cours des derniéres années.

Il ne s’agit pas de confier une tache spéciale a un docu-
mentaliste en particulier, avec toutes les implications
financiéres que cela entraine; il s’agit plutét d'établir la
liaison entre les divers groupes de pression au Canada ou
les groupes intéressés par les affaires extérieures et I'aide
au développement, ainsi que les personnes a 'intérieur des
ministéres. Le centre accomplit déja ce travail.

S’il se trouve une personne avec ces compétences parti-
culiéres, le centre pourrait lui offrir un poste, mais il n’est
pas question d’engager une seule personne. Bien que la
bibliothéque nous ait été utile, elle n'a pas les contacts
humains nécessaires pour recueillir des renseignements.
D’ailleurs, je regrette que cela ne soit pas son travail, bien
qu'elle accomplisse parfaitement sa tache. Ma premiére
réaction serait de proposer que l'on se serve du centre
parlementaire et si I'on recommande une autre personne,
nous pourrions profiter de ses compétences en suivant les
procédures ordinaires.

The Chairman: Thank you very much, Miss Bégin.

Lloyd Francis, s'il vous plait. Monsieur Francis.

M. Francis: Monsieur le président, je ne suis pas certain
de savoir exactement de quoi il retourne. Cela me semble
étre treés difficile & résoudre dans ce genre de comité.
J'espere que le comité directeur en discutera avec M. Peter
Dobell et avec le bibliothécaire parlementaire et nous

reviendra avec une recommandation.
Le président: Je vous remercie, monsieur Francis.
Monsieur Fairweather.

M. Fairweather: Je ne pense pas que la motion de mon
collégue vise en aucune maniére a exclure le Centre parle-
mentaire. C’est une source de renseignements mise a notre
disposition par 'intermédiaire de la Division de la recher-
che. Beaucoup d’entre nous ont appris a connaitre M.
Miller grace aux recherches qu'il a faites. Je n’ai pas pensé
gue le document de M. Miller inhiberait en aucune maniére
le travail évident du Centre parlementaire qui, comme M"*
Bégin l'a dit, a des ramifications dans tout le pays. Je ne
vois pas pourquoi nous ne recevons pas les deux. Il est
évident que le Centre parlementaire continue a travailler
pour nous et nous sommes saisis d'un document préparé
par la Division de la recherche. Je suppose que le service
de M. Dobell en aura également un exemplaire.

Le president: Je vous remercie, monsieur Fairweather.
J'aimerais remercier tous ceux qui ont participé a ce débat.

Non, il ne s'agit pas d'une motion proposée par M. Roche.
Il ne nous a fait parvenir qu'une suggestion a titre person-
nel, suggestion dont je le remercie infiniment. Bien
entendu, le Centre parlementaire fournit depuis quelque
temps maintenant des documents d’ordre général portant
sur les problémes étudiés par le Comité. Il ne s’agit pas
d'un changement de source de renseignements. Mais si M.
Miller a publié des documents a ce sujet, je ne vois pas
pourquoi il devrait priver le sous-comité de ces renseigne-
ments. S'il veut nous envoyer ces renseignements, nous en
serons enchantés. Avant que nous ne prenions une décision
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documents, I think the Subcommittee should consider Mr.
Francis’ suggestion.

Mr. Pelletier and Mr. Roche.

M. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): Monsieur le président, je
trouve qu’il faut faire attention a ce genre de précédent.
Si M. Miller peut en faire un, moi je peux vous trouver
cinq experts canadiens qui sont préts a écrire n’importe
quand et j’estime qu’ils seraient tout aussi bien que M.
Miller ou que n’importe qui d’autre. Je ne remets pas en
question la valeur du document de M. Miller, que je n’ai
pas vu d’ailleurs, mais si nous commencons a prendre
quelqu’un en particulier pour orienter ou pour donner
au comité, si vous voulez, ce genre de chose-13, je ne suis
pas d’accord. Je peux vous trouver cinq experts canadiens
qui pourraient écrire une tonne de documentation sur
n’importe quel aspect des problémes que nous voulons
étudier.

Alors, si nous le faisons pour M. Miller, il faudra accepter
que cela pourra, éventuellement, étre fait par d’autres
personnes. J'ai I'impression que si nous nous lancons dans
ce champ-la, & un moment donné, tout le monde voudra
écrire sur tout et nous aurons étudié une tonne de docu-
ments qui n’auront pas la valeur que nous voudrions bien
leur donner.

Le président: Merci. Monsieur Roche.

Mr. Roche: I appreciate, Mr. Chairman, what Mr. Pelle-
tier is saying but I think my idea has been escalated
beyond what I had intended. I do not want to have the
Parliamentary Centre replaced or diffused in its direct
connection with this Committee. I was not suggesting that
any individual in the Parliamentary Library be taken on
by this Committee. But I want to point out in the interests
of the complete co-operation of all the members of this
Committee that when I set out to research the background
to the seventh special session which, you will admit, is
coming very quickly, I did not go to the Progressive Con-
servative Research and say, “Give me a paper”. I am saying
to the Chairman of our Committee that we should just
issue an invitation to the Parliamentary Research Branch
of the Library which has specialized in this work and have
someone—I do not care if it is Miller or someone else—in
the Research Branch simply prepare a paper for us. We are
not committed to its use. It does not lock us in; it does not
exclude anyone.

It is merely a general indication to the Research Branch
to give us a background paper because of the shortness of
time. I would like to put that before you as a motion, Mr.
Chairman, that we simply issue this general invitation for
such a paper without any commitment as to its use.

Le président: Monsieur Laprise et M. McKenzie.

M. Laprise: Monsieur le président, j'ai accueilli avec
satisfaction la proposition de M. Roche. Je serais particu-
lierement heureux d’avoir un travail fait par M. Miller,
méme s'il était différent de celui du Centre parlementaire,
parce que je crains d'avoir a étudier un sujet qui nous
viendrait d’'un seul coté. Le programme que nous nous
proposons d'étudier est trés complexe et tres large. Il fau-
drait faire bien attention de n'avoir qu'un «évangile» dans
ce programme-la. Alors méme si M. Miller, que je crois un

[Interpretation]

quant a une commande de travaux a M. Miller ou a toute
autre personne, le sous-comité devrait étudier la sugges-
tion de M. Francis.

Monsieur Pelletier et monsieur Roche.

Mr. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): Mr. Chairman, I think we
must be very careful about that kind of precedent. If Mr.
Miller can produce a paper, I, for one, can find five Canadi-
an experts who are ready to write something any time and
to me their papers would be as good as Mr. Miller's or
anybody else. I do not question the value of Mr. Miller's
paper, that I have not seen by the way, but if we start
commissioning somebody in particularly to direct the
Committee or if you want to prepare that kind of docu-
ment, I do not agree. I can find you five Canadian experts
who could write a ton of material on any one aspect of the
problems that we want to study.

So, if we do it for Mr. Miller, we will have to accept in
the end anybody who will want to do it. I feel that if we
follow that route somehow everybody will want to write
something about everything and we will end up having
studied a ton of material which will not have the value
that we wanted to give it.

The Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Roche.

M. Roche: Je comprends trés bien le point de vue de M.
Pelletier, monsieur le président, mais je pense qu'on préte
a4 mon idée des intentions qu’elle ne revétait pas. Je ne
cherche pas un éclatement du Centre parlementaire dans
ses rapports directs avec ce Comité. Je n'ai pas suggéré
qu’'un membre du personnel de la Bibliothéque soit détaché
aupreés de ce Comité. Mais je veux simplement signaler
que, dans l'intérét d’'une coopération pleine et entiére de
tous les députés a ce Comité, lorsque je fais des recherches
concernant la septiéme session spéciale, qui vous l'admet-
trez, aura lieu trés bientot, je ne m’adresse pas au service
de recherche du parti conservateur en lui disant: «Faites-
moi un memo». Je dis au président de notre Comité que
nous devrions simplement transmettre une invitation a la
Division de la recherche parlementaire de la Bibliothéque
qui s’est spécialisée dans ce travail et que quelqu'un,—que
ce soit M. Miller ou quelqu’un d’autre—de la Division de la
recherche, nous prépare simplement un document.

Rien ne nous oblige a l'utiliser. Il ne s'agit pas d'une
exclusive. Il s'agit simplement d'une demande d'ordre
général adressée a la Division de la recherche pour qu’elle
nous fournisse un document, étant donné le peu de temps
que nous avons. J'aimerais simplement vous proposer sous
forme de motion, monsieur le président, que nous trans-
mettions simplement cette invitation de caractére général
a rédiger un tel document sans aucun engagement quant a
son utilisation.

The Chairman: Mr. Laprise and Mr. McKenzie.

Mr. Laprise: Mr. Chairman, I heartily welcome Mr.
Roche's suggestion. I would be especially happy to have the
work done by Mr. Miller, even though this document may
be different than that produced by the parliamentary
center, because I would be hesitant to consider an issue
from one point of view only. The issue which we are about
to study is very complex and encompasses a wide range of
questions, and we must be very careful to avoid using only
one “Bible”. Therefore, if Mr. Miller, whom I believe to be



22-7-1975

Développement international

[Texte]

type qualifié et trés impartial, est capable de nous présen-
ter un travail qui peut étre important pour notre Comité, je
pense que nous pouvons tenter d'avoir ce travail-la pour
I'étudier, méme s'il nous apporte quelque chose de con-
traire a ce que le Centre parlementaire peut nous trouver
et qu'il nous dirige dans une direction que nous ne vou-
drions pas prendre. Alors je pense que la proposition de M.
Roche est acceptable et je 'approuve.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Laprise.

Mr. McKenzie: Mr. Chairman, so far we have discussed
the philosophical aspects of international aid, and we are
going to have experts prepare research for us in Canada. I
would like to ask you and other members of the Committee
what you intend to do about having research done on the
written charges of gross mismanagement of these projects
in countries like Kenya. That was a prime subject of
discussion in our Committee meetings. Mr. Gérin-Lajoie
admitted that that has ended up in total chaos and he has
had to send an expert over there.

Are we going to be able to get some experts to go and
review some of these projects in countries like Kenya, or is
this Committee going to go over there to examine a project
of that size, which involves millions of dollars? Also, the
project officers are complaining about lack of communica-
tion between the project officers sitting out in the middle
of Africa and CIDA headquarters in Ottawa. These are the
things we want to examine too: the mismanagement, and
lack of communication; not just a philosophical examina-
tion of aid to other countries.

The Chairman: Before I recognize Mr. Wagner, I would
like to remind Mr. McKenzie that I have difficulty in
seeing that this falls within our terms of reference that is,
searching the operations of CIDA. I read the terms of
reference carefully and I fail to see where it makes refer-
ence to checking into the operations of CIDA. Perhaps I
should read it again. I have a copy here. Perhaps we should
have a copy circulated to the members. Maybe we are not
all as familar as we should be with the terms of reference.

Mr. McKenzie: I am quite familiar with it. It is just a
“motherhood"” motion. That is all it is.

The Chairman: Mr. McKenzie, I will read it again in
French to see if the French text differs from the English,
which I have already read.

Que le Comité permanent des affaires extérieures et de
la défence nationale soit autorisé a étudier et faire
rapport sur I'ensemble des politiques du Canada ayant
trait au développemant international, et en particulier
aux relations économiques entre les pays développés et
ceux qui sont en voie de développement.

Again, Mr. McKenzie, I fail to see where it makes reference
to our examination of the operations of CIDA.

Mr. McKenazie: | agree with you entirely. Unfortunately,
I did not have an opportunity to speak in the House the
night it was presented. I certainly would have expressed
my feelings at that time. But time ran out and I could not
get recognized to speak against it, and this is the first
opportunity I have had. It is nothing but a «motherhood»
motion.

[Interprétation]

very impartial and a highly qualified person, is capable
with presenting us with a document which could be of use
to our Committee, I think that we should try to obtain that
work in order to consider it, even if it presents a picture
which is contrary to that presented by the parliamentary
center and even if it points in a direction which we are not
presently prepared to follow. I think that Mr. Roche’s
suggestion is acceptable and I approve it.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Laprise.

M. McKenzie: Monsieur le président, & présent on a
discuté des principes de l'aide internationale, et on va
demander aux experts de nous préparer, au Canada, des
documents. Avez-vous l'intention de faire une enquéte a la
suite des accusations de mauvaise gestion de certains pro-
jets dans certains pays comme le Kenya. C’est une ques-
tion importante dont on a souvent discuté en comité. M.
Gérin-Lajoie a avoué que ces programmes ont abouti au
chaos total et il a envoyé un expert dans ce pays pour faire
enquéte.

Serait-il possible d’envoyer certains spécialistes dans ce
pays pour étudier les projets, notamment au Kenya, ou
est-ce que ce comité ira examiner un projet de cette taille,
qui coute des millions de dollars? Par ailleurs, les direc-
teurs de projets se plaignent du manque de communication
entre les agents qui sont en Afrique, et le siege social de
I’ACDI, a Ottawa. Ce sont des choses qu’'on aimerait exa-
miner: a savoir cette mauvaise gestion, et le manque de
communication; et non pas seulement les principes mémes
de 'aide aux pays étrangers.

Le président: Avant de donner la parole a M. Wagner,
j'aimerais dire a M. McKenzie que je vois difficilement
comment ces questions relévent de notre mandat, je veux
dire I'examen des activités de 'ACDI. J'ai lu soigneuse-
ment 'ordre de renvoi et je ne vois nulle part qu’'on nous
demande de vérifier et de surveiller les activités de 'ACDI.
Peut-étre devrais-je le relire. J'’en ai un exemplaire. Peut-
étre devrais-je en distribuer un exemplaire a tous les mem-
bres. Peut-étre qu’on ne connait pas aussi bien 'ordre de
renvoi qu'on le devrait.

M. McKenzie: Je le connais trés bien. C’est une déclara-
tion raisonnable et ambitieuse, mais c'est tout.

Le président: Monsieur McKenzie, je vais le relire encore
une fois en francais afin de voir si le texte francais est le
méme que le texte anglais que j'ai déja lu.

That the Standing Committee on External Affairs and
National Defence be empowered to examine and report
upon the full range of policies in the field of interna-
tional development with particular reference to the
economic relations between developed and developing
countries.

Encore une fois, monsieur McKenzie, je ne vois pas ou on
nous demande d'examiner les activités de 'ACDI.

M. McKenzie: Je suis entiérement d’accord avec vous.
Malheureusement, je n'ai pas eu 'occasion de m’adresser a
la Chambre des communes lorsqu'on a présenté cet ordre
de renvoi. J'aurais alors certainement exprimé mon opi-
nion. Malheureusement, le temps s’est écoulé et je n'ai pas
eu l'occasion de m'y opposer, et aujourd’hui c’est la pre-
miére occasion qui m'est donnée de le faire. Cette motion
est tout a fait inutile.
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The Chairman: Mr. Wagner.

Mr. Wagner: Mr. Chairman, I would like to address
myself to the motion that has been introduced by our
colleague, Mr. Roche. With all due respect—and probably
speaking just for myself—I would say we should not feel
that we are that enlightened and that capable intellec-
tually that we should dismiss out of hand such an offer of
services on the part of the researcher who in now working
in Parliament. It seems to me that there is nothing wrong
in acepting a report which this gentleman would prepare
for our Committee and which would probably help us in
our thinking on the eve of this important meeting in
September and no slight will occur because of the work
being done through other research in the Commons and so
on. I think that we should not feel that intellectually
superior that we reject and dismiss out of hand such an
offer. Therefore I support the motion that has been
introduced.

The Chairman: Mr. Pelletier.

® 1615
M. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): Monsieur le président, on m’a
dit que la politique c’était 'art de prévoir. Je pense que
tout le monde est d’accord a ce sujet. Il n’y a personne qui
peut remettre en question le fait de demander a un expert
comme M. Miller de nous apporter un document qu’il a
écrit sur un probléme donné, je pense que personne ne peut
s'y opposer. Mais qu'arrivera-t-il si d’autres, éventuelle-
ment, veulent se faire entendre de la méme facon? Pour le
moment, nous aurons des documents présentés par M.
Miller, nous sommes d’accord la-dessus, nous nous enten-
dons sur le principe. Mais nous aurons une tonne de docu-
ments de gens a travers le pays qui voudront se faire
entendre. Si c’est cela que nous voulon, d’accord. Mais, je
prévois qu’a certaines occasions, des gens voudront se faire
entendre et nous leur dirons: «Bien écoutez, nous n'avons
vraiment pas le temps, il faut passer a travers le document
de M. «X» aujourd’hui, vous étes le trentiéme sur la liste.»
Alors ils ne viendront jamais devant nous et je crois que
nous faisons une certaine discrimination en ce faisant.
Tenons-nous en a la structure que nous avons a l'’heure
actuelle. C’est 1a mon humble opinion.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Pelletier... Mr. Munro,
and then Mr. Stanbury.

M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): La distinction que j'ai-
merais faire ici, c’est que nous sollicitons l'aide, 'expertise
de la Bibliothéque, ce ne sont pas les expert qui sollicitent
de se présenter devant nous, c’'est une suggestion seule-
ment de M. Roche, de profiter d’'une étude qui existe déja,
parait-il, et c'est de la distribuer, de la lire ou de ne pas la
lire d’apres 'attitude ou si . . .

Mlle Bégin: Non, non, non, il y a anguille sous roche. ..

M. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): Si nous faisons appel a des
experts, prenons des experts connus.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Munro.

Before I recognize Mr. Stanbury, may I say that I was
given to understand that this is a prepared text or prepared
work and that we should be able to have it within the next
few days. It is not a question of commissioning Mr. Miller
or anyone else to do future work for the sub-committee. It
is something that has been done before and we should
perhaps have a look at it. I see no objection in this.

[Interpretation]
Le président: Monsieur Wagner.

M. Wagner: Monsieur le président, j'aimerais parler de
la motion proposée par notre collégue, M. Roche. Je ne
parle ici que pour moi-méme, mais on ne devrait pas se
croire tellement capables et tellement sages au point de
rejeter si carrément 'offre du documentaliste qui travaille
actuellement a la Bibliothéque parlementaire. Il me semble
qu’il n’y a rien de mal a accepter un rapport présenté par ce
monsieur pour notre Comité, un rapport qui nous aiderait
probablement a la veille de cette réunion importante du
mois de septembre; et il n’y aura aucune difficulté a ce que
le travail se fasse en méme temps par l'entremise des
experts de la Chambre des communes. Nous ne devrions
pas nous sentir supérieurs du point de vue intellectuel au
point de rejeter telle motion sans I'examiner. J’appuie donc
la motion.

Le président: Monsieur Pelletier.

Mr. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): Mr. Chairman, I have been
told that politics was the art of seeing into the future. I
think everyone would agree with such a definition. No one
could object to a specialist like Mr. Miller presenting us
with a document he himself has prepared dealing with a
specific question. But what if other witnesses want to
follow his example? So far, Mr. Miller is the only one who
has presented us with a prepared presentation, and we
respect his right to do so. But we will end up with a ton of
documents if people all over Canada decide to follow his
example. If this is what the Committee wants, all right.
But there might come a time when we will have so many
written briefs to study that we will not have time to hear
witnesses. This would exclude some people from appearing
before us, and this would be a kind of discrimination. I feel
we should stick to our present way of proceeding.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Pelletier. M. Munro a la
parole, suivi par M. Stanbury.

Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): It must be pointed
out that we are trying to exploit the resources of the
Library. It is not a matter of experts asking to be heard by
us. Mr. Roche is simply suggesting that we examine a
study which has already been made, and to distribute it to
the members of the Committee.

Miss Begin: I do not agree. There is something suspi-
cious here.

Mr. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): If we are going to consult
specialists, let us consult people known in their fields.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Munro.

Avant de céder la parole a M. Stanbury, je dois vous dire
qu'on m'a laissé entendre qu'il s'agissait d'un document
déja préparé et qu’il serait a notre disposition d’ici quel-
ques jours. Il ne s'agit pas de demander a M. Miller ou a un
autre d'entreprendre des travaux pour le sous-comité dans
l'avenir. L'étude a déja été faite, et nous devrions peut-étre
y jeter un coup d’'oeil. Je ne m'y oppose pas.
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Mr. Munro. Monsieur Munro, vous avez la parole.

Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): There is something
else I want to add, that this depends on the request from
this Committee; because if this study was made, let us say,
at the suggestion of Mr. Roche, in the first instance, then it
cannot be released to anybody else without Mr. Roche’s
permission. This is the rule of the research staff in Parlia-
ment, as we all know. If Mademoiselle Bégin commissions
a study, no one else can have it unless Mademoiselle Bégin
permits this. Really, all that Mr. Roche is doing is having it
made available, because he has found it profitable; and we
may have other ones from him, we may not.

M. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): Nous n’avons pas besoin
d'une motion a ce moment-1a, qu'il en fasse faire quarante
exemplaires, qu'il en distribue a tout le monde, si c’est un
projet qui est valable, nous n'avons pas besoin d’avoir une
recommandation sur cela. ..

Le président: Monsieur Pelletier, a I'orde s'il vous plait.
Monsieur Stanbury s'il vous plait.

Mr. Stanbury: Mr. Chairman, I hope this Committee
will not spend too much time wrangling over matters like
this. I think those of us who pressed for the establishment
of this subcommittee had in mind not a completely philo-
sophical discussion but certainly a very fundamental
examination of the principles and programs, which will
take up all our time without spending too much time on
procedural matters like this or pursuing the kind of affairs
that are more properly those of the Public Accounts
Committee.

I wonder if your suggestion is not the proper one to
follow, that the steering committee of the sub-committee
will ensure that the Committee members receive all rele-
vant material.
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We do have a parliamentary centre which has tradition-
ally gathered this material for the Committee. If we ask it
to ensure that we receive such material and seek the
co-operation we know is available from the parliamentary
Library, perhaps this will ensure that we get all the ma-
terial that is appropriate for the Committee through the
usual channels.

I hope we can get on to hear the statement from the
Minister or the Minister's Parliamentary Secretary. I
appeal to my colleagues to put the Committee on the
atmospheric basis that I think we intended it to be, that is,
that it was a co-operative examination of fundamental
principles and programs in this field. Let us not get dis-
tracted for too long on procedural questions.

Particularly, as much as I deplore any lengthy distrac-
tion on procedural questions, I deplore any effort to take
this Committee into the field of the Public Accounts Com-
mittee. I think Mr. McKenzie's suggestion would take us
far afield from the mandate of the Committee. He may feel
that the mandate is motherhood, but it is a mandate which
was proposed by Mr. Roche and by me and by others with a
different purpose in mind. There is a very proper purpose
that Mr. McKenzie has in mind, but I do not think it is the
purpose for which this subcommittee was established.

I would support his right to pursue those questions, but
this Committee does not have unlimited time at its dispos-
al. Even if it sits for the rest of this Parliament, it will have
a very full program of trying to follow the outline which
has been presented to us today as a proposed program. I

M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Tout dépend de la
facon dont on fait la demande. Si I'étude a été faite a la
demande de M. Roche, il nous faut sa permission afin de
I'obtenir. Nous savons tous que c’est un réglement auquel
nous sommes soumis par le personnel de recherche de la
Bibliothéque. Si M" Bégin leur demande de faire une
étude, personne d’autre ne peut y avoir accés sans sa
permission. M. Roche ne fait que mettre a notre disposition
cette étude, parce qu’il I'a trouvée utile lui-méme. Cela ne
veut pas dire qu’il y en aura d’autres, bien que cette
possibilité existe.

Mr. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): We do not have to make a
motion to this effect. Forty copies of the report can be
made and distributed to everyone, if the document is really
worthy of attention.

The Chairman: Order, please, Mr. Pelletier. Mr. Stan-
bury has the floor.

M. Stanbury: J'espére que nous n’allons pas gaspiller
trop de temps a discuter de telles questions. Ceux parmi
nous qui ont insisté pour que ce Comité soit établi, songez
a autre chose que la discussion purement théorique des
problémes dont nous sommes saisis. Nous aimerions étu-
dier en profondeur les principes et les programmes qui
nous intéressent sans consacrer trop de temps aux ques-
tions de procédure ou aux problémes qui devraient étre
réglés par le Comité des comptes publics.

Vous avez peut-étre bien fait de proposer que le Comité
directeur du sous-comité veille a ce que les membres du
Comité regoivent tous les documents pertinents.

Le Centre parlementaire, d’habitude, réunit ce genre de
documents pour le Comité. Si nous demandons a recevoir
ces documents et si nous faisons appel a la Bibliotheque
parlementaire, nous pourrons tous recevoir les documents
requis par le biais des intermédiaires prévus.

J’aimerais que nous écoutions la déclaration du Ministre
ou du Secrétaire parlementaire du Ministre. J'exhorte mes
collégues a recréer le contexte que nous avions prévu a
I'origine, a savoir que nous faisons un examen commun des
principes fondamentaux et des programmes en cours dans
le domaine. Que les questions de procédure ne nous éloi-
gnent pas trop longtemps de notre sujet.

En passant, méme si je n'aime pas m’étendre sur des
questions de procédure, je regrette que l'on tente d’entrai-
ner le Comité a traiter des affaires du Comité des comptes
publics. Je crois que la proposition de M. McKenzie nous
amenerait en dehors du mandat du Comité. Il se peut qu’on
trouve le mandat un peu paternaliste mais c'est M. Roche,
moi-méme et d’autres membres du Comité, tous avec un
but différent en téte, qui I'avons proposé. M. McKenzie a
quelque chose de trés précis en téte mais j'estime que ce
n'est pas la la raison pour laquelle on a formé le
sous-comité.

C’est son droit de vouloir examiner ces questions, j'en
conviens, mais le Comité ne dispose pas de tout le temps
voulu. Méme si nous siégeons jusqu’a la fin de la session, il
serait difficile de s’en tenir a ce programme bien rempli
qu'on nous présente aujourd’hui. Il est a souhaiter que
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hope we will try to make a contribution to a long-term
policy thrust of the Canadian government and not get
bogged down in procedural questions or in partisan hunt-
ing down of administrative details, which is more properly
the prerogative of some other committee.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Stanbury.

Before I put the motion, I would like to repeat again that
what Mr. Roche is suggesting, if I understand correctly, is
that papers already prepared by the Minister be supplied
and circulated to the members of the subcommittee. Is that
if?

Mr. Roche: The material that has been gathered—you
have to put it together into a short document.

The Chairman: Can we have it in the next few days?
That is three days, four days, before we leave, if we
adjourn towards the end of the week.

Mr. Roche: We would have to invite the Library to meet
our deadline, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: If this work is ready, why can we not
have it in the next few days?

Mr. Roche: Mr. Chairman, the Library is waiting for an
invitation. They do not have a mandate to come to the
Committee. They are waiting for the Committee to say,
“Would you give us this paper?” That is why I have the
motion, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Again I repeat the proposition made by
Mr. Francis that the steering committee or the subcommit-
tee should perhaps consider this proposal and come out
with a suggestion next Thursday, in two days. Would you
agree with this, Mr. Roche?

Some hon. Members: Agreed.
The Chairman: Thank you.

In the unfortunate absence of the Secretary of State for
External Affairs, Mr. MacEachen, we have the pleasure of
welcoming again his Parliamentary Secretary, Mr. Herb
Breau. I think Mr. Breau, whom I am inviting to join us,
will answer your questions as fully as he is authorized to
do. I am sure that you have questions on this document
that was circulated to the members of the subcommittee,
the New Economic Order, Selected Document.

Perhaps you would have some opening remarks to make,
Mr. Breau?

Monsieur le secrétaire parlementaire, M. Pelletier.

Mr. Herb Breau (Parliamentary Secretary to the Secre-
tary of State for External Affairs): I suppose, in your
congressional attitude, you would like me to file it.

M. Pelletier: J'aimerais poser une question avant que le
représentant du ministre ne fasse sa déclaration . .. est-ce
que le Comité sera invité a participer a la conférence
spéciale des Nations Unies a New York du 2 au 14 septem-
bre prochain?

Le président: C'est une excellente question. Nous
essayons d'obtenir la permission d'envoyer la majorité des
membres du Sous-comité qui seraient préts a aller suivre
cette session speéciale du 2 au 16 ou au 15 septembre
prochain.

[Interpretation]

nous intervenions dans la direction de la politique a long
terme du gouvernement canadien et que nous ne nous
laissions pas arréter par des questions de procédure ou par
des détails administratifs que souléveraient des partisans
cherchant la petite béte, laissant les questions de cet ordre
a d’autres comites.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Stanbury.

Avant de mettre la motion aux voix, j'aimerais répéter ce
que M. Roche propose: M. Roche voudrait que les docu-
ments déja préparés par le Ministre soient mis a la disposi-
tion des membres du sous-comité, n’est-ce pas?

M. Roche: Ce qu’on a déja réunit—car il faut colliger le
tout en un bref document.

Le président: Pourrions-nous l'obtenir d'ici quelques
jours? D’ici trois ou quatre jours, avant de partir, si nous
ajournons a la fin de cette semaine.

M. Roche: Il faudrait que la Bibliothéque se plie a notre
délai, monsieur le président.

Le président: Si ces documents sont préts, pourquoi ne
pourrions-nous pas les obtenir d’ici quelques jours?

M. Roche: Monsieur le président, la Bibliothéque attend
que nous lui fassions signe. Ce n’est pas aux responsables
de la Biblithéque a venir a nous. Ils attendent que les
membres du Comité leur disent: «Voudriez-vous nous
donner ce document?» Voila pourquoi je présente cette
motion, monsieur le président.

Le président: Je vais répéter de nouveau la proposition
faite par M. Francis, que le Comité directeur ou le sous-
comité examine cette proposition et apporte une suggestion
jeudi prochain, dans deux jours. Etes-vous d’accord, mon-
sieur Roche.

Des voix: D’accord.
Le président: Merci.

En I'absence du Secrétaire d’Etat aux Affaires extérieu-
res, M. MacEachen, nous avons le plaisir d’accueillir ici son
Secrétaire parlementaire, M. Herb Breau. M. Breau, que-
j’'invite a se joindre a nous, répondra a vos questions dans
les limites de ses responsabilités. Vous avez certainement
des questions au sujet de ce document que nous avons
disbribué aux membres du sous-comité qui s'intitule:
Recueil, le nouvel ordre économique.

Monsieur, avez-vous une déclaration préliminaire a

faire?
Mr. Parliamentary Secretary, Mr. Pelletier.

M. Herb Breau (secrétaire parlementaire du Secrétaire
d'Etat aux Affaires extérieures): Je suppose, que vous
voudriez que je la dépose ici.

Mr. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): I would like to ask a ques-
tion before the minister representative makes his state-
ment. Will the Committee be invited to take part in the
United Nations special conference which will be held in
New York next September 2-14?

The Chairman: Excellent question. We are trying to get
permission to send the majority of the members of the
subcommittee which have agreed to follow that special
session from September 2 to the 16th or 15th.
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On m'a parlé d’'un minimum de six personnes et je pense
qu'il sera possible que tous ceux qui sont disposés ou
disponibles a y assister, pourront le faire. As soon as we
have some definite word on the possibility we will let you
know, and we hope it will be before the end of the week.

Monsieur Pelletier.

M. Pelletier: Monsieur le président doit-on comprendre
que nous serons six ou sept dont les dépenses seront évi-
demment payées par le Gouvernement? Avant de nous
présenter a la Conférence, pourrons-nous nous réunir afin
d'étudier les documents car il va y en avoir a étudier des
documents, et il nous faudra étre beaucoup mieux préparés
qu’on ne l'est actuellement!

The Chairman: This is also being considered, and we
hope the steering committee of the subcommittee will be in
a position to make a decision and announce its decision
possibly next Thursday.

Those of you who are able to go to the U.N. from Septem-
ber 2 to 14, would you let us have your names, please—I
understand some of us will not be able to go—so we can
make a list of members.

Le président: Monsieur Breau, nous sommes heureux de
vous accueillir & nouveau dans ce sous-comité.

M. Herb Breau (secrétaire parlementaire du secrétaire
d'Etat aux Affaires extérieures): Merci, monsieur le prési-
dent. Peut-étre que je pourrais commencer par présenter
les fonctionnaires ici présents. Tout de suite a ma droite,
M. Michel Dupuy, sous-secrétaire d’Etat adjoin au minis-
tére des Affaires Extérieures, puis M. Bruce Williams,
vice-président exécutif de 'ACDI et M. Richard McKin-
non, directeur de 1'Aide et le Développement au ministére
des Affaires extérieures.

Mr. Chairman, I regret, first of all, that I do not have a
copy of the statement to give to members or to send to
them in advance. On short notice I had to have a statement
prepared to come here and a statement was prepared for
the Minister, but I had to scrupulously look at it before I
authorized it, so there was no time to distribute it.

Mr. MacEachen regrets very much, Mr. Chairman, that
he is not able to appear bafore this subcommittee this
afternoon as he had planned to do. A lengthy Cabinet
session was convened at a rather late date, and conse-
quently he asked me to deliver the statement he prepared
for this occasion.

...comme vous le savez, le Secrétaire d’Etat aux Affaires
extérieures attache une trés grande importance a 1'évolu-
tion de nos rapports avec les pays en voie de développe-
ment et, plus généralement, aux problemes politiques et
economiques que posent avec plus d'acuité depuis quelque
temps les relations entre le monde industrialisé et ce Tiers
monde qui cherche a accélérer son développement et a
rendre plus équitable le fonctionnement du systéme écono-
mique international. C'est pourquoi M. MacEachen a
accueilli avec enthousiasme le désir exprimé par le comité
permanent des Affaires extérieures et de la Défense natio-
nale de procéder a l'examen de tout I'éventail des positions
canadiennes sur ces problémes.

[Interprétation]

I have been told we could have a minimum of six people,
so I believe that all of you who would be interested, could
take aprt in this session. Cependant, dés que nous aurons
eu des renseignements définitifs a cet égard, et j'espére
que cela sera avant la fin de semaine, nous vous les
transmettrons.

Mr. Pelletier.

Mr. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): Mr. Chairman, am I to
understand that six or seven of us will have their expenses
covered by the government? Furthermore, before taking
part in this conference, will we have an opportunity to
meet and study the documents, since there will be a lot of
them and since we should be better prepared than we
presently are?

Le président: Cette question est également examinée et
nous espérons que le comité directeur du sous-comité sera
en mesure de prendre une décision a cet égard et de
I'annoncer d’ici jeudi prochain.

Ceux d’entre vous qui seront en mesure de se rendre a
I'ONU, du 2 au 14 septembre, devront nous donner leur
nom, afin que nous puissions en établir une liste, car je
pense que certains d’entre nous ne seront pas disponibles.

The Chairman: Mr. Breau, we are very pleased to wel-
come you again.

Mr. Herb Breau (Parliamentary Secretary to the Secre-
tary of State for External Affairs): Thank you, Mr. Chair-
man. Perhaps I could begin by introducing the witnesses
accompanying me. On my right is Mr. Michel Dupuy,
Assistant Under Secretary of State for External Affairs,
next Mr. Bruce Williams, Executive Vice-President of
CIDA, and then Mr. Richard McKinnon, Director of Aid
and Development Division, Department of External
Affairs.

Monsieur le président, je commencerais par vous deman-
der de nous excuser de ne pas avoir pu vous envoyer a
I'avance d'exemplaires de notre déclaration. En effet, nous
n'avons pas eu suffisamment de temps pour cela, depuis
votre invitation; une déclaration avait été préparée pour le
ministre, mais j’ai dG I'examiner en détail avant de 'auto-
riser, ce qui nous a empéchés de vous la distribuer.

M. MacEachen regrette beaucoup de ne pas pouvoir
assister a cette séance, comme il avait prévu de le faire. En
effet, une réunion du cabinet a été organisée assez brus-
quement et c’est pourquoi il m’a demandé de vous lire la
déclaration qu'il avait préparée.

As you know, the Secretary of State for External Affairs
attaches great significance to the evolution of our relation-
ships with the developing countries and, more generally, to
the political and economic problems which have lately
been aggravated between the industrialized world and that
Third World which tries to accelerate its development and
produce a more equitable international economic system.
This is why Mr. MacEachen was very enthusiastic about
the wish expressed by the Standing Committee on Exter-
nal Affairs and National Defence to consider the Canadian
position on these matters.
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En consultant les documents qui ont été préparés pour
vous, vous aurez constaté que les enjeux et les défi posés
par ce grand débat sont de toute premiére importance pour
le Canada comme pour toute la planéte. Le Gouvernement
se devait de réagir suite aux initiatives récentes du bloc
des non-alignés qui regroupe presque tous les pays en voie
de développement, lesquels ont maintenu jusqu'ici une
solidarité remarquable méme si leurs intéréts économiques
ne sont pas toujours identiques, ne serait-ce que parce
qu'ils ont atteint des stades différents de développement.
De l'avis de tous les observateurs éclairés, la session spé-
ciale d'automne de I’Assemblée générale de 'ONU sur le
développement et la coopération économique internatio-
nale constituera une étape capitale dans ce grand dialogue:
et je souligne que, de I'avis du Gouvernement, c’est bien de
dialogue plutot que d'affrontement qu’il doit s’agir. C'est
pourquoi le dernier discours du trone annongait déja que le
Gouvernement entendait apporter une attention accrue
aux problémes du Tiers monde et aux modalités du partage
des richesses et des ressources canadiennes avec les pays
en voie de développement.

Pursuant to this intensified interest, the Interdepart-
mental Committee on Economic Relations with Developing
Countries was established under the chairmanship of Mr.
MacEachen’s under-secretary. This interdepartmental
committee has been reviewing the full range of Canada’s
relations with the Third World. It should be apparent to all
of us that the problems of developing countries cannot be
resolved, nor disparities in wealth among nations be
reduced, through the adoption of paper resolutions or
through rhetorical constructions.

® 1630
Mr. MacEachen has asked me to emphasize two points
which are essential to our approach to these problems.
First, only through rational dialogue, detailed discussions,
and co-operation between developed and developing coun-
tries can progress be made. Confrontation and coercion
will not provide the answers quite legitimately posed by
the developing world. Secondly, the process will be lengthy
and immensely complex. Each specific measure by devel-
oped countries, if it is to bring significant benefit to the
Third World, will inevitably entail domestic costs and
readjustments to be borne by that population, in our case
by the Canadian people. Such specific steps, then, must be
carefully assessed, both in terms of the practical benefits
to be derived from them, and their probable impact on the
welfare of people in the Third World, particularly the
poorest countries, and the willingness of the public in
Canada and other developed countries to support them and
bear the burdens involved.

The process of strengthening relations between Canada
and the Third World will be a continuing one. I draw
attention to some recent or forthcoming focal points in this
process: the Commonwealth heads of government meeting
in Jamaica, the meeting of Commonwealth ministers in

[Interpretation]

If you have a look at the documents which have been
prepared for you, you may have noticed that the stakes and
challenges of this great debate are of primary importance
for Canada as well as for the whole world. Indeed, the
government had to react to the recent initiatives of the
bloc of non-aligned countries, which is made up of nearly
all the developing countries, which, up to now, have been
able to maintain a remarkable solidarity, even if their
economic interests are not always identical, were it only
because such countries have not reached the same levels of
development. According to all informed observers, the spe-
cial fall session of the general assembly of the United
Nations, on development and international economic co-
operation, will constitute a capital step within this great
debate; furthermore, I think it is important to underline
that, for the government, this is more a matter of dialogue
than confrontation. This is why the last Throne Speech
already was announcing that the government intended to
give more consideration to the Third World problems and
to the ways and means by which Canadian riches and
resources could be shared with developing countries.

Suite a l'intensification de nos intéréts dans ce domaine
a été créé le comité interministériel sur les rapports écono-
miques avec les pays en voie de développement, présidé par
le sous-secrétaire d’Etat aux Affaires extérieures. Ce
comité a procédé a une analyse détaillée des rapports du
Canada avec le Tiers monde. Nous devrons cependant tous
comprendre que les problémes des pays en voie de dévelop-
pement ne pourront étre résolus, ni les disparités entre les
nations réduites par la simple adoption de résolutions ou
par des théories purement spéculatives.

M. MacEachen m’a demandé de mettre 'accent sur deux
points qui nous paraissent absolument essentiels. Premié-
rement, des progrés ne peuvent étre réalisés que s'il y a
dialogue national, discussions souteneurs et coopération
entre les pays en voie de développement et les pays indus-
trialisés. Ce ne sont pas la confrontation et la coercition
qui apporteront les réponses aux questions posées d'une
maniére tout a fait légitime par les pays en voie de déve-
loppement. Deuxiémement, le processus sera long et
immensément complexe. Chaque mesure précise prise par
les pays en voie de développement, si l'on veut que le
bénéfice soit d'importance pour le Tiers monde, entrainera
inévitablement des dépenses et des ajustements devant
étre supportés par la population, par la population cana-
dienne. De telles mesures doivent donc étre mirement
réfléchies a la fois au niveau des bénéfices pratiques
devant en découler et au niveau de leur incidence probable
sur le bien-étre de la population du Tiers monde, en parti-
culier pour les pays les plus démunis, et compte tenu de la
volonté de la population canadienne et de celle des autres
pays industrialisés d'assumer le fardeau qu’elles
représentent.

Ce processus de renforcement des ralations entre le
Canada et le Tiers monde sera continue. J'attire l'attention
sur certains des points récents ou des points a venir impor-
tants dans ce processus: le Sommet des chefs de gouverne-
ment du Commonwealth a la Jamaique, la réunion des
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Guyana in August, and the Seventh Special Session of the
United Nations General Assembly in September. But the
problems are too complex and too vast to be solved at any
one meeting or in any one forum. More important is the
willingness of countries such as Canada to make a sincere
effort in finding ways to improve the well-being of the
peoples of developing countries, and thereafter to take the
necessary action.

Let me turn to the major demands which have been put
forward by the Third World in the past two years,
demands which have reflected the increasing insistence of
developing countries that they should no longer be depend-
ent on the voluntary generosity of traditional donors, but
should rather enter into a new relationship with them
within the world economic system. The Third World
insists that the parameters of the international trade and
payments system should be such that poor countries are
able to help themselves through the development of their
own resources and their own economic structures.

Vous n'ignorez pas, monsieur le président, que les pays
en voie de développement attachent une importance toute
particuliére, je serais méme tenté de dire prioritaire, aux
problémes que pose pour eux le commerce international
des matiéres premiéres et des produits de base. Ces pays
cherchent a instaurer un systéme commercial tel que leurs
exportations puissent leur procurer des revenus plus consi-
dérables, ce qui leur permettrait de financer des importa-
tions, notamment les importations d’outillage, et d’équipe-
ment industriels qu'exigera l'accélération de leur
développement économique.

C’est ainsi que le Tiers monde réclame de nouvelles
mesures de libéralisation commerciale et en particulier un
acces préférentiel au marché intérieur des pays industriali-
sés pour leurs exportations. Je signale a cet égard certains
problémes précis, sur lesquels M. MacEachen souhaiterait
avoir l'avis du Sous-comité, comme I'indexation des prix de
matiéres premiéres, le régime de stabilisation de ces
mémes prix, la possibilité d’ouvrir davantage nos marchés
aux importations venant du Tiers monde et le role des
cartels de pays producteurs ou consommateurs.

Les pays en voie de développement réclament aussi une
réforme du systéme monétaire international, lequel, & leur
avis, devrait tenir compte bien davantage dans son fonc-
tionnement des énormes difficultés financiéres avec les-
quelles ils sont aux prises. Ils cherchent naturellement a
accroitre le volume des ressources financiéres disponibles
pour le développement international et a améliorer les
termes et conditions qui leur sont associés. Le Tiers monde
réclame aussi des programmes d'assistance plus étoffés
pour l'agriculture et le développement rural, afin que la
production de denrées alimentaires s'accroisse chex eux et
qu'ils puissent réduire leur dépendance a I'endroit de l'aide
alimentaire.

Vous n'ignorez pas non plus que le Canada a pris ces
derniers temps toute une série de mesures pour répondre
aux attentes du Tiers monde dans ces domaines. Notre
programme d'aide au développement international attein-
dra presque cette année le milliard de dollars et nous
entendons accorder la priorité aux besoins des pays les
moins développés et aux secteurs agricole et rural. La
révision de la politique du gouvernement sur la coopéra-

[Interprétation]

ministres du Commonwealth en Guyane en aout, et la
septiéme session spéciale de I’Assemblée générale des
Nations Unies en septembre. Mais les probléemes seront
trop complexes et trop vastes pour qu'on les résolve en une
réunion ou dans le cadre d'une seule tribune. Ce qui
importe plus, c'est la volonté de pays tels que le Canada de
faire un effort sincére pour trouver les moyens d'améliorer
le bien-étre des populations des pays en voie de développe-
ment et de prendre les mesures nécessaires en
conséquence.

Permettez-moi de passer aux principales demandes avan-
cées par le Tiers monde au cours des 2 derniéres années,
demandes qui ont été le reflet de I'insistance croissante des
pays en voie de développement pour ne plus dépendre de la
générosité volontaire des donateurs traditionnels, mais
plutét pour que se créent de nouveaux rapports dans le
cadre du systéme économique mondial. Le Tiers monde
insiste pour que les paramétres du systéme d’échanges et
de paiements internationaux soient tels que les pays pau-
vres puissent améliorer leur propre situation en dévelop-
pant leurs propres ressources et leurs propres structures
économiques.

You must know, Mr. Chairman, that the developing
countries give very special importance, I might even say a
very special priority, to the problems they are facing in
terms of the international trade of raw materials and basic
products. These countries are seeking a commercial system
in which their exports might provide them with higher
revenues which would in turn enable them to finance
imports, particularly imports of industrial equipment and
machinery made necessary by the acceleration of their
economic development.

For example the Third World hopes for new measures of
commercial liberalization and in particular for preferential
access to the domestic market of the developed countries
for exports. In this respect I draw attention to some speci-
fic problems on which Mr. MacEachen would like to be
advised by the subcommittee, such as the indexing of the
prices of raw materials, the system of stabilization of these
prices, the possibility to open wider our markets to imports
from the Third World and the role of the producing or
consuming countries’ cartels.

The developping countries call also for reform of the
international monetary system which, they think, should
take much more into account, in its operation, of the
enormous financial difficulties that they face. Indeed, they
seek to increase the volume of the available financial
resources for international development and to improve
the terms and conditions associated with them. The Third
World calls also for assistance programs with more teeth
for agricultural and rural development, so that the produc-
tion of food products may increase at home and enable
them to be less dependent on food assistance.

You must also know that Canada has taken recently a
whole series of steps to meet the expectations of the Third
World in those fields. Our international development
assistance program will nearly topple this year $1 billion
and we intend to give priority to the needs of the less
developed countries and to the agricultural and rural
fields. The review of the government policy on co-opera-
tion and development is nearly completed and Mr. Mac-
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tion et le développement est presque terminée et M.
MacEachen croit pouvoir en dévoiler les conclusions
bientot.
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The Third World is seeking new ways of dealing with
the problems of industrialization and transfer of technolo-
gy, of maintaining sovereignty over the national resources
and of dealing with trans-national corporations. These
corporations may bring much needed investment capital
but their activities may carry with them a dimunition of
control by the host country over its own economy.

This is an area where we can examine new forms of
co-operation between the public and private sectors in the
development of developing countries.

You are aware of Mr. MacEachen’s conviction that we
must increasingly look beyond the pure aid mechanism in
our relations with developing countries and devise effec-
tive measures in other areas of economic co-operation. New
approaches to commodity agreements may be one of the
most important of these areas. Industrial co-operation is
another such area which the Prime Minister singled out at
the Commonwealth heads of government meeting in
Kingston. This is being investigated further by the Com-
monwealth’s experts now meeting in Ottawa.

If I may be permitted to add a personal note, I am very
pleased, as a member of the Standing Committee, that we
are participating in the formulation of a comprehensive
and co-ordinated response by Canada to the problems of
the Third World. I stress that we, like the Government, are
engaged in a lengthy and complex process which over time
will require an increasing effort by the Committee
members.

It is quite clear, for example, that the seven special
sessions of the United Nations General Assembly will not
provide all the answer and this Committee will have to
assess its outcome most carefully. Yet I suggest that we
must look upon our meetings as opportunities for advanc-
ing new ideas which may have a positive impact on the
people of the Third World and which, in the context of a
free and democratic society, will be acceptable to the
Canadian people. I am hopeful that individual Canadians
and various non-governmental organizations will continue
to show a very positive interest in the problems of develop-
ing countries. The role of this Committee in examining the
alternative courses open to Canada, in its relations with
the Third World, can be quite important.

Let us not miss our chance as parliamentarians to con-
tribute to policy development in this vital field. The
Department of External Affairs has provided a compendi-
um of documents on the new economic order and is ready
to put its expertise at the disposal of our Committee, as is
CIDA

Vous comprendrez surement qu'il n'est pas coutumier
que le secrétaire parlementaire d’'un ministre prenne l'ini-
tiative d’énoncer les orientations de la politique gouverne-
mentale. Cette réserve étant faite, je suis disposé a répon-
dre a vos questions. Le sous-sécretaire d'Etat adjoint, M.

[Interpretation]

Eachen believes that he will be able to unveil its conclu-
sions shortly.

Le Tiers monde tente de trouver des solutions aux prob-
lemes de I'industrialisation, du transfert de la technologie,
et des rapports avec les sociétés multinationales du mainti-
en de la souveraineté sur les ressources nationales. Il se
peut que les sociétés multinationales fournissent du capital
d’investissement mais leurs activités diminueront peut-
étre le controle du pays bénéficiaire sur sa propre
économie.

C’est un domaine qui nous permettra d’étudier de nou-
velles formes de collaboration entre les secteurs public et
privé en vue de développer les pays en voie d’expansion.

Vous étes au courant que M. MacEachen est convaincu
que nous devons de plus en plus passer outre a la simple
assistance relativement & nos relations avec les pays en
voie de développement et élaborer des mesures efficaces
dans les autres domaines de la collaboration économique.
De nouvelles facons d’aborder les ententes sur les produits
sont peut-étre I'un des éléments les plus importants de ces
domaines. La collaboration industrielle est un autre
domaine que le premier ministre a signalé lors de la réun-
ion des chefs gouvernementaux du Commonwealth a
Kingston. Cette question fait l'objet d'une étude sub-
séquente des experts du Commonwealth que se réunissent
actuellement a Ottawa.

Permettez-moi d’ajouter une observation personnelle. Il
me fait plaisir, en tant que membre du comité permanent,
de noter que nous participons a I’élaboration d’une réaction
canadienne globale et coordonnée aux problémes du Tiers
monde. Je souligne que nous, a l'instar du gouvernement,
sommes engagés dans un procédé long et complexe qui
exigera a l'avenir un effort croissant de la part des mem-
bres du comité.

Il est clair, par exemple, que les sept sessions spéciales
de I’Assemblée générale des Nations Unies ne fourniront
pas toutes les réponses et que notre comité devra évaluer
ses résultats trés soigneusement. Je propose que nous con-
sidérions nos réunions comme étant des arénes dans les-
quelles nous proposerons de nouvelles idées qui auront
peut-étre un effet positif sur les gens du Tiers monde et
qui, dans le contexte d'une société libre et démocratique,
seront acceptables au peuple canadien. J'espére que les
Canadiens eux-mémes et que les divers organismes gou-
vernementaux continueront a s'intéresser de facon positive
aux problémes des pays en voie de développement. Notre
comité a un role trés important, qui est d'étudier les voies
qui s’offrent aux Canada par rapport a ses relations avec le
Tiers monde.

Ne perdons pas l'occasion que nous avons, en tant que
parlementaires, de contribuer a I'élaboration d'une poli-
tique dans ce domaine vital. Le ministére des Affaires
extérieures nous a fourni un jeu de documents sur le
nouvel ordre économique et il est disposé, tout comme l'est
I'ACDI, 4 mettre ses experts a la disposition de notre
comité.

You will surely understand that it is not customary for
the parliamentary secretary of a Minister to undertake
himself to formulate the orientation of governmental
policy. With this reserve, I am ready to answer your ques-
tions. The Assistant Under-Secretary of State, Mr. Michel
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Michel Dupuy, m'accompagne, de méme que le vice-prési-
dent exécutif de 'ACDI, M. Bruce Williams. Ce sont la
deux des conseillers les mieux informés de M. MacEachen
sur la question qui nous intéresse. Ils pourront donc four-
nir au Comité des précisions de nature technique sur I'ob-
jet de nos travaux.

Le président: Merci, monsieur le secrétaire parlemen-
taire. Je donne tout d'abord la parole a M. Roche.

M. Wagner: J'invoque le Réglement, monsieur le
président.

Le président: M. Wagner fait un rappel au Réglement.

M. Wagner: J'ai un rappel au Réglement avant que mes
collégues commencent. Est-ce que nous pouvons compter
que le ministre sera disponible pour répondre aux ques-
tions que nous désirons lui poser? Questions qui évidem-
ment découlent de la déclaration du ministre, lue de fagon
fort experte par son adjoint parlementaire.

Le président: Merci. Pour répondre, il faudrait savoir si
nous serons ici la semaine prochaine. De toute fagon, nous
allons prévoir des séances pour les mardis et jeudis, jus-
qu'au jour ou nous ajournerons. Alors, il est probable qu'au
cours des prochains jours, le ministre pourra. . .

M. Breau: M. MacEachen est certainement prét a rencon-
trer le Comité. La raison pour laquelle il n’est pas ici
aujourd’hui, c’est une question de temps, ce n'est pas parce
qu'il a décidé de ne pas venir.

M. Wagner: Non, non.
M. Pelletier: Monsieur le président.

Le president: Monsieur Pelletier, sur un rappel au
Réglement.

M. Pelletier: Oui, je regrette beaucoup, mais je constate
encore une fois qu'on n'a pas daigné nous donner un
exemplaire du texte. Je ne comprends pas, tout le monde
I'avait, 1a, a la table, et nous, nous ne l'avions pas. Il faut
une demi-heure au maximum pour faire les photocopies et
les distribuer aux membres du Comité. C'est la quatriéme
fois en l'espace de deux mois que nous avons une expé-
rience semblable avec le Secrétariat d'Etat aux Affaires
extérieures; je trouve que c'est trop fort! j'aimerais qu'on
leur dise.

M. Breau: J'ai expliqué, monsieur le président . . .
Le president: Oui, monsieur Breau.

M. Breau: ... au début, qu'une déclaration avait été
préparée pour le ministre, et que c'est ce matin seulement
que le conflit de temps est arrivé et . ..

M. Pelletier: Par conséquent il avait six heures pour le
faire.

M. Breau: Oui, mais moi je n'avais pas six heures néces-
sairement pour publier . . .

M. Pelletier: Non, non, il n'est pas question du ministre,
en ce moment, mais plutdt du Secrétariat d'Etat aux Affai-
res extérieures. Les fonctionnaires savent quand le minis-
tre doit parler et c'est a eux de se préparer en conséquence.

g ® 1640
Le president: Merci, monsieur Pelletier.

[Interprétation]

Dupuy, as well as the Executive Vice-President of CIDA,
Mr. Bruce Williams, are both with me. They are among Mr.
MacEachen’s most informed experts on the question under
study. They will therefore be able to provide the Commit-
tee with technical details regarding our work.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Parliamentary Secre-
tary, Mr. Roche has the floor.

Mr. Wagner: Point of order, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Mr. Wagner, on a point of order.

Mr. Wagner: I wish to make a point of order before my
colleagues take the floor. Will the Minister be available to
answer the questions we wish to ask him? These questions
will obviously stem from the Minister’s declaration that
was expertly read by his parliamentary secretary.

The Chairman: Thank you. Before I answer you, I
should know if we will be here next week. In any case, we
will schedule meetings each Tuesday and Thursday, until
we adjourn. Consequently, probably during the next few
days the Minister will be able to . ..

Mr. Breau: Mr. MacEachen is certainly ready to meet the
Committee. He is not here today because of a time conflict
and not because he has decided not to come.

Mr. Wagner: No, no.
Mr. Pelletier: Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Mr. Pelletier, on a point of order.

Mr. Pelletier: Yes, I am very sorry but I notice once more
that we did not receive a copy of the text. I do not
understand, since everybody had it, there, at the table, that
we do not have it. It takes half an hour at the most to make
photocopies and to distribute them to the members of the
Committee. It is the fourth time in two months that we
have had a similar experience with the Department of the
Secretary of State for External Affairs; I think it is too
much! We should tell them.

Mr. Breau: I explained, Mr. Chairman . ..
The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Breau.

Mr. Breau: ... at the beginning, that a declaration had
been prepared for the Minister and that it is this morning
only that a time conflict occurred and . . .

Mr. Pelletier: Consequently, they had six hours in which
to prepare themselves.

Mr. Breau: Yes, but I did not necessarily have six hours
to publish . ..

Mr. Pelletier: No, no. It is not the Minister that was
responsible in that case but rather the Department of the
Secretary of State for External Affairs. The government
employees know when the Minister is to speak and it is up
to them to prepare themselves in consequence.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Pelletier.
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Mr. Roche: Mr. Chairman, my first question was going
to be whether or not this Committee could meet on Thurs-
day of this week to ask the Secretary of State for External
Affairs specific questions. Is there a possibility of meeting
on Thursday?

The Chairman: Perhaps I could answer the first part of
your question. We have scheduled a meeting for Thursday,
and if the Minister is free, I hope that he will accept our
invitation.

Mr. Roche: Exactly. Again, because of the short time
between now and the special session, and the need for as
much study as we can give this matter, I think it would be
useful to invite him.

Speaking to the remarks made by the Parliamentary
Secretary, I thank him for the paper but I think he would
probably be the first to agree that while it is an excellent
statement, it does not go beyond what had previously been
given as the position of the government, particularly the
speech made by Mr. MacEachen to the Canadian Institute
of International Affairs.

There is one sentence in that that I want to ask the
Parliamentary Secretary to comment on. It is where Mr.
MacEachen says:

I challenge anyone to show that the new international
economic order, which I have projected into the future,
is not entirely feasible—technically and economical-
ly—given time, a lot of hard work, and the will to
bring it about.
That comes at the conclusion of his remarks where he is
giving a very strong thrust to the change of the Canadian
position regarding international development away from
reliance on foreign aid, as such, over to more reliance on
supporting the structural changes advocated by the United
Nations as we see them coming into specifics in the new
economic order.

At the same time, the government has announced the $30
million cut in the CIDA budget for this year without really
any elaboration as to where those cuts will be made, even
though I asked a question in the House specifically on the
$30 million; that the government is cutting back on $30
million without much explanation, which might give the
superficial impression that we are downgrading our for-
eign assistance. But when you couple the $30 million cut
with the statements made by Mr. MacEachen on more than
one occasion, that we are going to give strong support to
the United Nations’ call for an economic order and, pre-
sumably, go into the special session with a strong state-
ment, then it is my contention that Canada may very well
end up doing a lot more for the cause of international
development than would appear to be the case.

I would like to ask the Parliamentary Secretary if he
will, one, give us some detail on the $30 million cut of the
CIDA budget and, two, give his opinion as to whether or
not the Canadian statement can be specific enough in
forwarding the economic order that it will more than
compensate for the $30 million cut.

Mr. Breau: First of all, I do not have the details on the
$30 million. Just a quick calculation, though, shows that it
is a reduction of about 3 per cent of the budget, which is
hardly drastic in the context of trying to bring some
moderation to government expenditures, which I know the
honourable member and his party are concerned about.

[Interpretation]

M. Roche: Monsieur le président, je voudrais savoir si le
Comité va se réunir jeudi prochain, afin que nous puis-
sions poser certaines questions au secrétaire d’Etat aux
Affaires extérieures. Est-il possible que nous ayons une
réunion jeudi prochain?

Le président: Je vais répondre a la premiére partie de
votre question. Nous avions prévu une réunion pour jeudi
et, si le ministre est libre, j'espére qu'il acceptera notre
invitation.

M. Roche: Bien. Je pense qu'il convient en effet que nous
I'invitions, car nous avons beaucoup de travail devant
nous, mais bien peu de temps.

Je voudrais maintenant remercier le secrétaire parle-
mentaire de son exposé, mais il conviendra sans doute avec
moi que, méme s'il s’agit d’'un exposé excellent, il n'ajoute
rien au discours prononcé par M. MacEachen devant I'Ins-
titut canadien des affaires internationales au sujet de la
politique du gouvernement.

Je voudrais plus particuliérement attirer l'attention
du secrétaire parlementaire sur une phrase de ce dis-
cours. M. MacEachen déclare en effet:

Je défie quiconque de prouver que le Nouvel ordre
économique mondial que j’ai projeté pour 'avenir n'est
pas entiérement réalisable sur le plan technique et
économique, compte tenu bien sir du temps, de la
bonne volonté, des efforts qui seront nécessaires.
Cette phrase vient a la fin de ses remarques ou il insiste
particuliérement sur 1'évolution de l'attitude canadienne
vis-a-vis du développement international; en effet, cette
attitude, qui donnait autrefois une grande importance a
l'aide étrangeére, en accorde maintenant davantage aux
changements structuraux préconisés par les Nations Unies,
changements qui s’inscriront dans le Nouvel ordre écono-
mique mondial.

Simultanément, le gouvernement a annoncé une réduc-
tion de 30 millions de dollars au budget de I'ACDI de cette
année mais n'a cependant pas précisé dans quel secteur
cette réduction sera opérée. J'ai méme posé une question
en Chambre a propos de cette réduction de 30 millions de
dollars sur laquelle le gouvernement ne donne aucune
explication et qui peut porter certaines personnes a croire
que nous diminuons notre aide étrangére. D'une part, vous
avez donc cette réduction de 30 millions de dollars et,
d’autre part, les nombreux discours de M. MacEachen indi-
quant que nous allons appuyer fortement 1'Ordre économi-
que mondial préconisé par les Nations Unies; je prétends
donc que le Canada pourrait fort bien se trouver beaucoup
plus engagé pour la cause du développement international
qu’il ne le paraitrait.

J'aimerais que le secrétaire parlementaire nous donne,
s'il le peut, quelques détails sur la réduction de 30 millions
de dollars du budget de 'ACDI et, en second lieu, son
opinion sur la question de savoir si les déclarations faites
par le gouvernement canadien en faveur de cet Ordre
économique mondial compenseront cette réduction de 30
millions de dollars.

M. Breau: Tout d'abord, je n'ai pas de détail quant a
cette réduction de 30 millions de dollars. Un rapide calcul
vous indique cependant que cela représente une réduction
d’environ 3 p. 100 du budget, ce qui n'est pas dramatique si
on replace cette question dans le contexte du programme
de réduction des dépenses gouvernementales, programme
dont le député et son parti sont certainement au courant.
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On the question of some of the policies, I believe that in
the first part of your question you were referring to some
of the areas where Canada had already acted in the context
of UN resolutions. There are two that come to my mind,
and Mr. Dupuy can probably add to them after.

One is, our efforts within GATT for a preferential
system of tariffs, which we not only agreed to but actively
supported. Another one is that in commodity agreements,
Canada has said publicly that we agreed with a new
concept, at least. We have not necessarily accepted all the
proposals for commodity agreements but we have agreed,
for example, with the concept of buffer stocks to stabilize
inventories, thereby stabilizing prices.

On these questions, I will ask Mr. Dupuy to elaborate;
and I will ask Mr. Williams if he has details on the 3 per
cent cut in the CIDA budget—if it is a cut at all, and not
only just a delay of cash flow.

The Chairman: Mr. Dupuy.
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Mr. M. Dupuy (Assistant Under-Secretary, Depart-
ment of External Affairs): Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Perhaps I could add two other fields, since we are looking
backward at what Canada has already done rather than
forward. We have certainly been in the vanguard in inter-
national food aid assistance and in efforts to focus atten-
tion on the problems of rural development, these being
large aspects of world underdevelopment. Also the Prime
Minister, in the course of the Commonwealth heads of
government meeting at Kingston, proferred the idea that
another area where action is needed is that of industrial
co-operation. This is a somewhat new concept.

I would simply add at this point that the new world
economic order is a very large and ambitious approach,
which touches policies, institutions, new ways of doing
business. This will only evolve over time, it covers from
food to energy, and technology, and monetary affairs. It
will take time before specific proposals develop on each of
these areas of economic relationship.

The developing countries themselves, although they
have presented a general bill, a general indication of their
wishes, are far from having articulated all their demands.
On the side of the industrialized countries the same thing
is true. So at the present time we can only give illustra-
tions of things that are going to be done, or that we are
looking at, rather than present a total and comprehensive
picture.

On the CIDA budget, perhaps Mr. . ..

The Chairman: Mr. Williams.

Mr. Bruce M. Williams (Executive Vice-President,
Canadian International Development Agency): Mr.
Chairman, in reply to the question on the cut in the
budget: as Mr. Breau has pointed out, it is about a 3 per
cent reduction. Naturally this does cause us to look at some

[Interprétation]

Sur le plan politique, vous avez parlé des secteurs dans
lesquels le Canada est déja intervenu dans le contexte des
résolutions adoptées par les Nations Unies. Deux de ces
secteurs me viennent a l'esprit et M. Dupuy pourra sans
doute vous en citer d’autres.

Tout d’abord, nous avons non seulement adhéré, mais
accordé un appui massif au systéme des tarifs préférentiels
dans le cadre du GATT. Un autre secteur est celui des
accords sur les denrées, et le Canada a déclaré publique-
ment que nous avions accepté ce nouveau concept. Certes,
nous n'avons pas nécessairement accepté toutes les propo-
sitions inscrites dans ces accords sur les denrées, mais nous
avons accepté, par exemple, le concept des réserves-tam-
pons, afin de stabiliser les stocks et, par la méme, de
stabiliser les prix.

Je vais maintenant laisser la parole a M. Dupuy, qui
pourra sans doute vous donner davantage de détails; je
vais également demander a M. Williams s’il peut vous
donner des précisions sur cette réduction de 3 p. 100 du
budget de 'ACDI, s'il s’agit vraiment d’'une réduction et
non pas simplement d'un retard du crédit disponible.

Le président: Monsieur Dupuy.

M. M. Dupuy (sous-secrétaire d’Etat adjoint, ministére
des Affaires extérieures): Merci, monsieur le président.
Peut-étre pourrais-je apporter quelques précisions, puisque
nous jetons maintenant un regard sur le passé plustot que
sur l'avenir. Dans ce contexte, il est évident que nous
avons été a l'avant-garde de l'aide alimentaire internatio-
nale et des efforts qoi ont été faits par la collectivité
internationale, pour attirer I'attention sur les problémes de
dévelopment rural, c’est-a-dire, sur un plan plus général,
sur les aspects les plus importants du sous-développement.
En outre, au cours de la conférence des chefs du gouverne-
ment du Commonwealth, tenue a Kingston, le premier
ministre a avancé l'idée qu'il serait peut-étre nécessaire
d’étendre notre action a la collaboration industrielle, ce qui
représente une idée relativement nouvelle.

J'aimerais également ajouter que le nouvel ordre écono-
mique mondial dont nous parlons tous constitue un projet
trés important et trés ambitieux, concernant les politiques
générales, les institutions, les méthodes commerciales,
etc—C’est un projet qui ne pourra se mettre en place
qu'aprés une longue période d’évolution, portant sur les
probléemes alimentaires, énergétiques, technologiques et
monétaires. I1 faudra donc attendre pas mal de temps avant
que des propositions particuliéeres ne soient faites aux
différents pays concernés dans chacun de ces domaines.

Evidemment, les pays en voie de développement eux-
mémes, méme s'ils ont présenté une sorte de programme
général, comportant sans doute leurs désirs fondamentaux,
sont loin d'avoir articulé toutes leurs demandes. Ceci est
également vrai de la part des pays industrialisés. Pour le
moment, nous devons donc nous contenter de tenter d'il-
lustrer certaines des mesures qu'il conviendra de prendre
plutét qu'un projet global définitif.

En ce qui concerne le budget de I'ACDI, peut-étre
monsieur

Le président: Monsieur Williams.

M. Bruce M. Williams (Vice-président exécutif de
I'Agence canadienne du développement international):
En réponse a la question posée au sujet du budget, M.
Breau a signalé que la réduction en était d’environ 3 p. 100.
Evidemment, ceci nous oblige a réexaminer certains de nos
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of our programs. At present we are in the process of seeing
where the impact of the reduction will be; at the moment,
we have not made any final decision as to how we will
readjust programs—either bilaterally, multilaterally,
where we have almost no freedom of action whatsoever, or
in special programs.

Mr. Roche: Can you give an assurance that the aid to
nongovernmental organizations will not be affected by this
cut?

Mr. Williams: I would like to give you that assurance,
Mr. Roche, but it is still clearly very early down the road in
looking at our budgetary procedure. I think we are aware
of the general concern about the role of the N.G.O.s and the
contribution they make.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Williams Mr. Pelletier.

M. Pelletier: Ma question concernait l'invocation du
reglement faite tantot. Je n’ai pas de question a. . .

Le président: Est-ce qu’il y a d’autres questions.
Mr. Stanbury.

Mr. Stanbury: Mr. Chairman, I join those who hope that
the Minister will be with us as soon as possible, because 1
think it is important for us to be able to question him and
for him to hear some thoughts from us before the final
preparations of the government for the special session.

I wonder if those who are here could answer one ques-
tion for me? There are targets for aid that Canada has not
yet achieved, we have adopted in principle these UN tar-
gets. Realizing that aid is only a part of the question we
have under consideration, but an important part, and real-
izing that these targets are at least of considerable psycho-
logical importance in these discussions, does the govern-
ment still hold to those targets? Is there a particular time
frame in which we are expecting to achieve them? And can
we demonstrate that we are making progress toward them
rather than falling back from them?

The Chairman: Mr. Dupuy.
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Mr. Dupuy: There has been no change in government
policy. As I understand it, the position of the Canadian
government now is that it subscribes to the target estab-
lished by the United Nations, which is 0.7 per cent of GNP
in the form of official development assistance. The Canadi-
an government has not adopted a specific date for fulfil-
ment of this target, but there has been and continues to be
progress towards that target. If the progress continues at
the current rate, which of course, is not a firm commitment
of the Canadian government but simply a matter of fact
and record over the past few years, the rate of progress, it
should bring us to the target towards the end of this
decade.

At the present time we are one of the few countries still
progressing in terms of aids. A number of traditional aid
donors, largely reflecting economic conditions or energy
problems, with effects on their balance of payments and
their financial situation, have tended to fall back rather
than progress. As I said, the Canadian government is still
progressing towards the aid target.

[Interpretation]

programmes. Pour l'instant, nous n’avons pas pris de déci-
sion finale et tentons simplement de voir dans quel
domaine cette réduction sera la plus importante, ce qui
nous amenera a réajuster certains programmes, soit bilaté-
raux, soit multilatéraux, soit spéciaux. Il convient toutefois
de remarquer que nous n'avons quasiment aucune latitude
d’action pour les programmes bilatéraux ou multilatéraux.

M. Roche: Pouvez-vous nous affirmer que l'aide accor-
dée aux organismes non gouvernementaux ne sera pas
affectée par cette réduction de budget?

M. Williams: J'aimerais le faire, monsieur Roche, mais il
est encore beaucoup trop tét pour cela. En effet, nous en
sommes simplement a I'examen de nos procédures budgé-
taires mais nous sommes parfaitement conscients du role
spécial que jouent les organismes non gouvernementaux et
de leur contribution a la solution de nos problémes.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Williams. Monsieur
Pelletier.

Mr. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): My question related to the
previous point of order. I do not have anything . ..

The Chairman: Does anybody else have any questions?
Monsieur Stanbury,

M. Stanbury: Monsieur le président, j'espére également
que le ministre sera parmi nous le plus tot possible, car je
pense qu'il est fondamental que nous puissions lui poser
certaines questions et lui demander quelles sont les princi-
pales lignes d’action du gouvernement en préparation de
cette session spéciale.

En attendant, j'aimerais poser une question particuliére.
Certains objectifs d’aide fixés par le Canada et adoptés a
partir des objectifs de 'TONU n’ont pas été atteints. Etant
donné que l'aide ne constitue que l'un des aspects, sans
doute trés important, des questions que nous devons exa-
miner, et étant donné que ces objectifs ont tout au moins
une importance psychologique considérable dans le cadre
de ces discussions, le gouvernement a-t-il I'intention de s'y
tenir? En outre, nous sommes-nous fixés un calendrier
quelconque pour les atteindre? Sommes-nous en mesure de
prouver que nous faisons certains progrés et que nous ne
faisons pas marche arriére?

Le président: Monsieur Dupuy.

M. Dupuy: La politique gouvernementale n’a pas changé.
Si je comprends bien, le Gouvernement canadien se con-
forme présentement a I'objectif fixé par les Nations Unies,
et 0.7 p. 100 de notre produit national brut est affecté
officiellement a I'aide aux payx en voie de développement.
Le Gouvernement canadien n’a pas fixé de date précise
pour réaliser cet objectif mais les progrés sont constants.
Si 'on maintient la cadence actuelle, et sans un engage-
ment ferme de la part du Gouvernement canadien, il n'en
demeure pas moins qu'au cours des quelques dernieres
années les faits indiquent une certaine progression, et nous
devrions atteindre notre objectif d’ici la fin de la décennie.

Pour l'instant, nous faisons partie des quelques pays qui
accusent une augmentation au niveau de l'aide internatio-
nale. Il se trouve un certain nombre de pays donneurs qui
ont régressé sur ce plan-la, a la suite de la conjoncture
économique et des problémes énergétiques, lesquels affec-
taient leur balance de paiements et leur situation finan-
ciére. Comme je l'ai dit, le Gouvernement canadien main-
tient la cadence dans la poursuite de son objectif au niveau
de l'aide internationale.
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Mr. Stanbury: This is despite the announced restraint
for this year's budget.

Mr. Dupuy: I think so, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Mr. Williams.

Mr. Williams: I think if one looks at the graph of the
progression in development assistance, one will find there
is a very strong thrust towards the target. I would have
thought that, as Mr. Dupuy has mentioned, by 1980 perhaps
we will be well ahead of the 0.7 per cent figure.

Mr. Stanbury: Perhaps the witnesses could assist me
with the arithmetic but if you cut 3 per cent from the aid
budget, and the GNP presumably has some slight growth
this year, that hardly seems like progress.

Mr. Williams: I think, Mr. Chairman, in reply to Mr.
Stanbury's question, from the point of view of the govern-
ment, there is no time frame in which we would reach this
level. However, if you take the total funds available to the
agency last year that will be available to us for this fiscal
year, even given the reduction there is still a plus.

Mr. Roche: In other words, it is a bookkeeping item.

Mr. Stanbury: I am not sure I understand the answers.
Is the answer that we will continue to make progress at the
same rate we have been in recent years toward the aid
target despite the announced cut in expenditure for aid?

The Chairman: Mr. Dupuy.

Mr. Dupuy: Mr. Chairman, if my recollection is right,
and I just checked with Mr. McKinnon, the rate of increase
of aids year over year over the past few years has been of
the order of about 20 per cent. Now, even with a GNP
roughly staying on the level without increase, and a 3 per
cent cut in the CIDA budget, there would still be progress
towards the target. In other words, a 20 per cent increase
projected, less 3 per cent even over a stagnant GNP, still
gives you some progress.

Mr. Stanbury: There would be no significant slackening
in this progress toward the target.

Mr. Dupuy: Mr. Chairman, I hope it will be appreciated
that what I have done is project the past. I cannot speak
for the future policy of the Canadian government, but this
is what has been happening. What the government has
made clear is that it intends to continue to move to the
target.
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Mr. Stanbury: I am trying to ask questions that can be
properly answered by those who are here and I appreciate
the way they are being answered. Perhaps the Minister can
reassure those of us who feel that there should be con-
tinued progress or even more rapid progress. You might
correct me if I am wrong but I thought the government had
set a tardet date for the achievement of the .7 per cent
target some time in the past. As a matter of fact I thought
we had adopted a target date for the achievement of this
millennium in the days of Prime Minister Pearson. The
target date seems to be continually receding into the
future, if that is possible. Has a target date not been set in
the past by the government? There may not be a current
target date but I thought we had a target date earlier.

[Interprétation]

M. Stanbury: Et ceci malgré les restrictions annoncées
dans le Budget de cette année?

M. Dupuy: Je crois que oui, monsieur le président.

Le président: Monsieur Williams.

M. Williams: L’examen du diagramme de la progression
de l'aide au développement permet de constater une ascen-
sion constante vers l'objectif. Comme l'a dit M. Dupuy,
d’ici 1980, nous aurons largement dépassé le chiffre de 0.7
p- 100.

M. Stanbury: Le témoin pourrait-il m’éclairer car
d’aprés moi, si nous diminuons le budget de 3 p. 100, et si le
produit national brut augmente légérement cette année, le
progres sera trés mince.

M. Williams: Monsieur le président, pour répondre a M.
Stanbury, du point de vue du Gouvernement, il n'y a pas
de délai fixé pour atteindre ce niveau. D’autre part, la
somme totale des fonds a la disposition de ’Agence 'année
derniére est a sa disposition pour le présent exercice finan-
cier, et malgré la réduction, nous progressons quand méme.

M. Roche: En d’autres termes, c’est une question de
comptabilité. .

M. Stanbury: Je n'ai pas trés bien saisi la réponse.
Avez-vous dit que nous continuerions de progresser au
méme rythme que nous l'avons fait au cours des derniéres
années malgré la diminution annoncée au niveau de l'aide
au développement?

Le président: Monsieur Dupuy.

M. Dupuy: Monsieur le président, si ma mémoire est
bonne et je viens de consulter M. McKinnon, le taux de
croissance de l'aide d'une année a l'autre au cours des
quelques derniéres années est de 'ordre d’environ 20 p. 100.
Voila donc pourquoi, méme si le produit national brut se
maintient tel qu’il est, et méme si le budget de 'ACDI est
réduit de 3 p. 100, il y aura quand méme une progression en
direction de la réalisation de l'objectif. En d’autres termes,
si I'on projette une augmentation de 20 p. 100 et si l'on
soustrait 3 p. 100, en dépit d'un produit national brut
stagnant, nous aurons quand méme un certain progrés au
bout du compte.

M. Stanbury: Le progrés en direction de l'objectif ne
serait donc pas stoppé de facon significative.

M. Dupuy: Monsieur le président, j'espere qu'on com-
prend bien que nous avons fait ici une projection. Je ne
peux pas parler de la politique future du gouvernement
canadien mais tels sont les faits. Le gouvernement a cepen-
dant bien fait comprendre qu’il a 'intention de continuer a
viser cet objectif.

M. Stanbury: J'essaie de poser des questions auxquelles
on peut me donner des réponses, et je suis sensible au fait
que vous me donnez de bonnes réponses. Peut-étre le
ministre pourrait-il rassurer quelque peu ceux parmi nous
qui sont d’avis qu'il faut continuer a avancer, et méme qu'il
faut avancer plus rapidement. Il se peut que je me trompe,
mais il me semble que le gouvernement a déja déclaré par
le passé que son objectif était de 7 p. 100. De fait, je croyais
qu’'on avait choisi lors de I'époque de M. Pearson un objec-
tif qu'on allait réaliser d'ici la fin du siécle. Mais notre
objectif s'éloigne au fur et a mesure qu'on avance. N'est-il
pas vrai que le gouvernement ait choisi il y a des années
déja une date-cible? Il se peut qu’il n’y ait pas de date-cible
a I'heure actuelle, mais j'ai pensé que nous en avions déja
choisi une.
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Mr. Dupuy: Mr. Chairman, not, no. The targetry began
early in the decade, largely as pat of the United Nations
planning for the development decade. The Canadian gov-
ernment, while supporting the idea of a target, has never
committed itself to any specific timing for achieving it, so
there has been no change in policy.

Mr. Stanbury: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Le président: Merci. Monsieur Pelletier.

Avant de vous laisser poser votre premiére question,
monsieur Pelletier, je pense que c’est I'intention du Comité
d'ajourner a 17h. 00 ou peu aprés 17h. 00. ..

M. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): Je n’ai qu'une question.
Le président: Monsieur Pelletier.

M. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): Un commentaire et une ques-
tion, monsieur le président. En consultant les chiffres
qu'on nous donne, on s’y perd facilement. Au début de la
décennie du développement, au début des années 1960, le
Nations Unies avaient fixé comme objectif 1 p. 100 du
produit national brut, on est rendu a 0.7. On devait com-
mencer la deuxiéme décennie du développement en ayant
comme objectif 2 p. 100 du produit national brut et la
maintenant on est rendu a 0.7. Alors je ne comprends pas
qu’'on nous dise qu’on est en train de faire des progres, je
ne sais pas sur quel critére on se base.

La question que je voulais poser a trait a la Conférence
de Rome, les pays étaient venus y discuter essentiellement
du probléme de la faim et de I'alimentation dans la monde,
mais on a remarqué qu'a trois des quatre ateliers, on
revenait toujours avec la fameuse question que les pays en
voie de développement posaient: «Trade not Aid». Prochai-
nement, une conférence sur le nouvel ordre économique
mondial aura lieu. Comme I’a si bien dit M. Dupuys tout a
I’heure, on va traiter d’a peu pres tout sous les étoiles,
depuis la nourriture jusqu’aux concessions que certains
pays développés devront faire aux pays en voie de dévelop-
pement, une nouvelle approche au monde des affaires,
enfin on va traiter d'un tas de choses. J'aimerais savoir si
le CAnada, dans cette perspective, va essayer de limiter un
peu le débat sur une question aussi importante que celle-13a,
c'est-a-dire de ne pas vraiment partir en tangente et de
discuter de tout, alors qu'on essaie justement de faire en
sorte que l'aide qui peut étre apportée aux pays en voie de
développement soit plus efficace et pas dispersée comme
elle I'est actuellement.

Le président: Monsieur Breau.

M. Breau: Tout d'abord, je dois dire que l'objectif n’a pas
été diminué, le 0.7 que M. Dupuy a mentionné, c'est de
I'aide officielle directe, cela ne comprend pas l'aide des
organismes non gouvernementaux, 1 p. 100 comprenait les
deux. Alors 0.7 comme objectif c'est 0.7 GNP en aide offi-
cielle directe du ou des gouvernements. Mais l'objectif de 1
p. 100 n’était pas l'aide officielle directe, c’était de 'aide
d'un pays qui comprend des organismes non gouvernemen-
taux.

M. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): Oui, le 1 p. 100 comprenait
tout, ce qui vient d’'un pays normalement, aide publique,
aide privée, bilatérale, multilatérale, tout était tout com-
pris dans cela, mais on voit que la plupart des pays dimi-
nuent en pourcentage l'aide qu'ils accordent annuellement,
alors qu'a la fin de la décennie du développement, en 1969,
la plupart des pays qui avaient souscrit en 1960, a partir de
la Conférence de Punta del Este, avaient souscrit aux

[Interpretation]

M. Dupuy: Ce n’est pas le cas. On a commencé a fixer des
dates-cibles au commencement de cette décennie surtout
dans le cadre du programme de planification visant toutes
les décennies établies par les Nations Unies. Le gouverne-
ment canadien a toujours appuyé le concept d'une date-
cible, mais nous ne nous sommes jamais engagés d'en
respecter une, et notre politique n’a pas changé.

M. Stanbury: Merci, monsieur le président.

The Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Pelletier, you have the
floor.

Before you start your questioning, I should point out to
you that we expect to adjourn at 5 o'clock or shortly
thereafter.

Mr. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): I only have one question.
The Chairman: You have the floor, Mr. Pelletier.

Mr. Pelletier: I have a remark to make and a question to
ask. It is easy to lose one’s way in the tables of figures we
have before us. In the early nineteen sixties, at the begin-
ning of the development decade, the United Nations said
that their goal was one per cent of the gross national
product. We have reached a figure of 0.7 per cent. Our goal
in the second development decade was to be 2 per cent of
the GNP, but we are still at the 0.7 per cent level. Since
that is the case, how can anyone say we are making
progress?

My question concerns the Rome Conference. Representa-
tives from countries all over the world came to Rome to
discuss the world food situation and the fate of the world’s
hungry. But in at least three of the four discussion groups,
developing countries kept coming back to the same theme:
“Trade not Aid”. A conference on the new world economic
order will be taking place soon, and as Mr. Dupuy pointed
out so well earlier, almost everything under the sun will be
discussed at that conference, from the world food situation
to the concessions certain industrialized nations will have
to make to developing countries and the working out of an
entirely new business ethic. Will Canada be trying to
direct the conference towards a more complete and serious
consideration of our aid programs, with a view to making
them more efficient than they are now, so that the repre-
sentatives of the many countries at the conference will not
dissipate their energies in discussing a hose of other
matters?

The Chairman: Mr. Breau.

Mr. Breau: I must first of all point out to you that the
U.N. objective has not changed. The 0.7 per cent figure
quoted by Mr. Dupuy represents official direct aid, which
does not include non-government organizations. When we
speak of 0.7 per cent of the GNP, we are referring to direct
official government aid, whereas the one per cent figure
also includes non-government organization aid.

Mr. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): I understand that the one
per cent figure includes all kinds of aid offered by a
country, meaning public, private, bilateral and multilateral
sources. Most of the countries which took part in the Punta
del Este Conference in 1960 supported the U.N. objective of
putting aside one per cent of their GNP for foreign aid, a
formula also put forward by President Kennedy. But, in
1969, at the end of the development decade, most of the
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objectifs des Nations Unies et proposé également par le
président Kennedy, de réaliser 1 p. 100 du produit national
brut. Cela devait étre atteint en 1969. Nous sommes en 1975
et nous sommes rendus a 0.7 p. 100, c’est pour cela que je
dis: quand on commence a jouer avec les chiffres, ce n’est
pas du tout ce qui se passe au plan international.
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M. Breau: Monsieur, votre question est bien particuliére,

je vais demander a M. Dupuy d’y répondre. J'aimerais tout

simplement souligner, M. Dupuy me le confirmait tantot,
qu'en 1974, le Canada était un des rares pays. ..

Une voix: Oui.

M. Breau: ... dont le budget, compte tenu de l'inflation,
ne montre pas de diminution de son aide envers les pays en
voie de développement.

Une voix: D’accord.
M. Breau: C'est un des rares pays.
Le président: Monsieur Dupuy.

M. Dupuy: Monsieur le président, j'ajouterais dans le
méme ordre d'idées, que non seulement notre aide n'a pas
diminué a cause de I'inflation, encore nous sommes un des
rares pays a ne pas exiger de remboursement de la part des
pays en voie de développement. Beaucoup de pays euro-
péens, par exemple, leur ont fait des préts qu'ils doivent
rembourser. Et si 'on compare alors 'aide réelle a l'aide
officielle qui apparait dans les versements faits, on s’aper-
¢oit bien souvent qu'elle est trés inférieure a ce qu'elle
semblait étre. Ce n'est pas la fagon d'agir du Canada.

Je ne peux que confirmer, hélas, vos remarques a propos
des objectifs que certains gouvernements s'étaient fixés et
qu'ils n'ont pas atteints. Le Canada ne s'était pas engagé a
atteindre d'objectifs et pourtant, il est en voie d'en attein-
dre. C'est une question de réflexion sur ce qui est sage et ce
qui n'était pas sage de faire.

Pour ce qui est de votre autre commentaire, je crois
également que vous avez parfaitement raison. Il est vrai
que créer un nouvel ordre économique, est une entreprise
gigantesque. Et lorsque le gouvernement canadien a eu
I'occasion de se prononcer au cours des derniers mois sur
ce sujet, il a exprimé son inquiétude dans le sens que vous
avez indiqué, a savoir: “qui trop embrasse mal étreint”. Il
est impossible de tout faire en méme temps. On ne peut pas
changer l'ordre économique du monde du jour au len-
demain. C'est une fagon de faire qui, a cause de son ambi-
tion excessive, tend 4 mener a des confrontations. C'est
une approche qui finalement devient hautement politisée
et améne, en somme, a une impasse. Or, I'impasse, c'est
P'arrét du progrés. Il n'y a plus de progrés possible. C'est
précisément ce dont les pays en voie de développement ne
veulent pas: & savoir I'immabilisme. Dans cette conception
globale, impérative et immédiate, il y a en puissance 1'im-
mobilisme, a cause de la confrontation politique. Ce que le
gouvernement canadien a exprimé, et je crois qu'il con-
tinuera de le faire, c'est qu'il faut progresser pas a pas la ou
précisément le progrés est possible; ce qui demande une
volonté de progresser, ce qui demande une acceptation
d'une responsabilité plus grande de la part des pays indus-
trialisés, c'est-a-dire qu'ils doivent accepter de transférer
certaines richesses, de transférer certaines responsabilités
vers les pays en voie de développement. Mais tout cela doit

[Interprétation]

same countries were decreasing the amount of aid being
extended to Third World countries on an annual basis. We
were supposed to reach the one per cent objective in 1969,
but here it is 1975 and only seven per cent of our GNP is
being spent on foreign aid. That is why I say fooling
around with figures does not necessarily mean you are
really accomplishing anything.

Mr. Breau: Because of the special nature of your ques-
tion, I shall ask Mr. Dupuy to answer it, but I would like to
point out to you—and Mr. Dupuy will back me up on this—
that Canada was one of the very few countries in 1974 . ..

An hon. Member: That is correct.

Mr. Breau: ...whose aid program budget did not
decrease, in spite of inflation.

An Hon. Member: Right.
Mr. Breau: One of the very few countries.
The Chairman: Mr. Dupuy.

Mr. Dupuy: To continue in the same vein, I would like to
point out that, not only were our aid programs not cut back
because of inflation, but Canad was one of the very few
countries not to require repayments from developing coun-
tries. For example, many European countries have lent
money to developing countries, and these loans have to be
paid back. In this way, if you compare the actual aid to the
official aid, which shows up in the amount of money being
paid out by the donating country, you will see that these
countries do not give out as much aid to Third World
countries as one might think at first glance. This has not
been Canada’s policy.

Unfortunately, I must agree with what you say about
certain countries not respecting the goals they set them-
selves. Canada did not commit itself to reaching a certain
goal, but we are nonetheless attaining an objective. It boils
down to a matter to deciding what is good policy and what
is not.

The second argument you put forth is also quite correct.
It is true that the creation of a new world economic order
is a tremendous undertaking. When representatives of the
Canadian Government spoke about this very matter in
recent months, it expressed the self-same opinion, namely
that the conference might be biting off more than it could
chew. We cannot do everything at once. The entire world
economic order cannot be changed overnight. Such an
apprach creates conflicts because it tries to accomplish too
much. It is an over-politicized approach which ultimately
leads to a dead end, which means that economic progress
will come to a halt. This is exactly what developing coun-
tries are trying to avoid. But a global, pressing and tenta-
tive approach only breeds political confrontation which
ultimately results in an economic deadlock. The Canadian
Government has said, and will continue to say, that we
must go forward one step at a time. This is the only way
any real progress will be made. It means we must have the
will to go forward and that industrialized nations must
accept their fair share of the responsibility in such a
scheme. They must agree to the transfer of certain
resources and responsibilities to developing countries. But
this must be done in a constructive fashion.
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se faire d'une fag¢on qui
destructive.

Maintenant, a partir du moment ou 'on accepte ce con-
cept d'une évolution, d'un changement progressif et prag-
matique, le travail d’analyse et le travail en profondeur
devient extrémement important et c'est précisément ce que
le gouvernement a demandé aux fonctionnaires d'accom-
plir. Ce comité interministériel, auquel M. Breau a fait
allusion, s’occupant des relations avec le monde en voie de
développement, a précisément pour mandat d’identifier de
facon tres précise les domaines ol un progres semble possi-
ble de facon & ce que nous puissions nous concentrer sur
ces domaines, encourager la communauté internationale a
se concentrer sur ces domaines, puis a faire le bilan au
point de vue prix, que les pays développés comme le
Canada devront payer.

M. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): Monsieur le président . . .
Le président: Monsieur Pelletier.

M. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): ...un seul commentaire. Je
suis bien fier de constater que c’est cela le mandat confié
aux fonctionnaires du gouvernement: préparer un
mémoire, qui étudié par le cabinet aiderait ce dernier a
prendre une décision. Parce que dans la plupart des confér-
ences internationales auxquelles j'ai assisté on réalise en
fin de compte que 'on veut régler les problémes du monde
d’un seul coup.

soit constructive et non pas
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Qu’il y ait au moins quelques pays, industrialisés, je
souhaiterais qu'il y ait aussi certains pays en voie de
développement, qui se présentent avec des propositions
bien conconcr tes pour un changement dans ce nouvel
ordre économique international mondial, cela portera des
fruits. Parce que franchement, si a l'occasion de cette
conférence qui doit se tenir a l'automne, il n'y a pas de
progres substantiel en ce qui a trait, non seulement a I'aide,
mais encore a ce nouvel ordre économique mondial, j'ai
bien peur que plus tard ces conférences-la seront deés le
départ vouées a I'échec. Il nous faut constater que les cing
derniéres conférences internationales sont toutes arrivées
a une impasse parce qu'on a discuté d'une infinité d’autres
questions qui n'avaient rien a voir avec le sujet qui était a
leur ordre du jour. Et je suis fier de savoir que nous aurons
probablement des propositions concrétes a faire a cette
conférence-la.

Le president: Merci, monsieur Pelletier.
Mr. Brewin.

Mr. Brewin: Mr. Chairman, I just have one very brief
observation, or one footnote. I do not know if it is even a
question. I was very surprised to hear Mr. Williams say
that the target date to reach the 0.7 per cent had now
become sort of open ended and there was not even a time
frame. I think that was his language. We also heard that by
the end of the decade there was some chance we might be
up to there if certain things happened.

I may be wrong but have a clear recollection of Mr.
Sharp's telling this Committee that the government did
have a target. I think the target date originally mentioned
by Mr. Sharp was either 1975 or 1977. Therefore, there does
seem to me to be some merit in the suggestion made by Mr.
Stanbury that perhaps though with good reasons, there has
been some receding on the pace of advance that was
envisaged, if not by this government, by its predecessor.

[Interpretation]

As soon as an evolutionary and progressive approach is
accepted, detailed in-depth analysis becomes very impor-
tant, and this is what the Canadian government has asked
its officals to do. The interdepartmental committee on
Canada—Third World relations which Mr. Breau men-
tioned, has the responsibility of identifying with precision
those fields in which it appears some progress can be made,
so that we can concentrate our efforts and energies in
these fields and encourage the international community to
do likewise. There would then remain the task of seeing
how much such a program would cost industrialized
nations such as Canada.

Mr. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): Mr. Chairman, . ..
The Chairman: Mr. Pelletier.

Mr. Pelletier (Sherbrooke): ... I have one remark to
make. I am proud to see the order of reference this govern-
ment committee has been given. It must prepare a brief
which will help the cabinet in reaching a decision. Most
international conferences I have been to set out to settle all
the world’s problems at one fell swoop.

I would hope that a few industrialized countries, and
also some developing countries present concrete proposals
in order to bring about changes in the new international
economic order. Frankly, if at this conference which is to
be held in the fall, there is no substantial progress made in
the area of aid to developing countries and also of this new
economic order, I am very much afraid that any later
conferences will be doomed to failure from the start. One
has to take into consideration that the last five interna-
tional conferences had all reached impasses because a
variety of tangential questions were discussed which had
nothing to do with the agenda. However, I am happy to
state that we will probably be making concrete proposals
at the coming conference.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Pelletier.
Monsieur Brewin.

M. Brewin: Monsieur le président, je voudrais faire une
bréve observation. Je suis étonné d'apprendre de M. Wil-
liams que la date fixée pour atteindre le taux de contribu-
tion de 0.7 p. 100 n’existait plus, et qu'il n'y avait plus de
calendrier. Je crois qu'il a dit cela. Par contre, on nous a dit
qu'il y aurait des possibilités de l'atteindre si certains
éléments se produisaient.

Peut-étre que je me trompe, mais je suis certain que M.
Sharp nous avait dit que le gouvernement avait fixé une
date et qu'il s’agissait soit de 1975, soit de 1977. Par consé-
quent, je crois que M. Stanbury a raison d’affirmer qu'il y a
eu un certain recul a I'égard du programme que le gouver-
nement actuel ou son prédécesseur avait envisagé.
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Le président: Monsieur Dupuy, est-ce que vous voudriez
répondre a ces observations?

Mr. Dupuy: Mr. Chairman, if my recollection is right the
target of 1 per cent totally, 0.7 per cent officially, was to be
met at the end of the seventies, which was the second
decade of development of the United Nations. So we are
not quite to the fatal dates, even for those who committed
themselves. It is indeed true that Mr. Pearson, in his
reports dating 1969, if my memory is correct, or 1968, talked
about a target in 10 years’ time, which would place the
target date in 1978 or 1979. But, in fact, the discussion in
the United Nations took place in 1970 so we still have a few
years ahead of us before the full target.

Perhaps I should mention in passing, for the information
of the Committee, that even though the 0.7 per cent target
has not yet been reached by all the traditional donors,
there are suggestions coming from the developing coun-
tries that this target should be raised to 1 per cent official
development assistance. But these are only preliminary
indications and we may be in the targetry diplomacy for a

little while longer. :

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Dupuy.

Mr. Brewin: I do not know whether you or Mr. Williams
have had the opportunity of reading earlier Minutes of this
Committee, but my recollection, which as I say may be
erroneous, is that Mr. Sharp told this Committee about
these targets pretty definitely, but perhaps I am wrong
about that. Do you recall anything of that sort?

The Chairman: Mr. Breau.
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Mr. Breau: Well we will check everything Mr. Sharp has
said and . ..

Mr. Stanbury: Will you stand by it?

Mr. Breau: I did not say that. At least we will provide
explanations if there is a conflict. But I am aware that
policies usually have to do with timing.

The Chairman: Mr. Stanbury, did you have a question?

Mr. Stanbury: Mr. Chairman, I was just going to ask for
clarification of the program of this Committee, as it has
been suggested. I presume that as long as the House is
sitting this Committee will try to meet as frequently as
possible.

The Chairman: Every Tuesday and Thursday. Mr.
Breau.

Mr. Breau: Mr. Chairman, just on the question of invit-
ing the Minister. Of course that is up to the subcommittee,
but I discussed this with the Minister and he indicated that
he wanted to open the debate. As Mr. Roche has said,
unfortunately there is not much to say that is new. This is
beyond the control of the Minister. The government geared
its study of this problem and the review process of its
policies to try to have some resolution of them for the
special general session. This does not mean that on every
aspect and on every subject the government will have a
fixed policy.

[Interprétation]
The Chairman: Mr. Dupuy, would you care to comment?

M. Dupuy: Monsieur le président, si ma mémoire est
fidele, 'objectif de un pour cent du PNB global ou le taux "
officiel de 0.7 p. 100 devrait étre atteint vers la fin des
années 1970, a savoir de la deuxiéme décennie du dévelop-
pement établi par les Nations Unies. Vous pouvez constater
que nous n’en sommes pas a cette date finale, méme pour
ceux qui s'étaient déja engagés. D’ailleurs, il est vrai que
M. Pearson dans ses rapports datant de 1969 ou de 1968
avait parlé d'une date limite de 10 ans, ce qui fixerait la
date a 1978 ou 1979. Cependant, les débats a ce sujet ont eu
lieu aux Nations Unies en 1970 et il nous reste encore
quelques années pour atteindre nos objectifs.

A titre de renseignement, méme si 'objectif de 0.7 p. 100
n’a pas été atteint par tous les participants traditionnels,
les pays en voie de développement voudraient actuelle-
ment que l'objectif pour 'aide au développement soit porté
au taux officiel de un pour cent. Mais ce ne sont que des
suggestions et nous pouvons étre certains de poursuivre
des négociations pendant encore quelque temps.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Dupuy.

M. Brewin: Je ne sais pas si M. Williams ou vous-méme
avez eu l'occasion de lire des procés-verbaux du Comité,
mais il me semble que M. Sharp nous avait dit que la date
avait été fixée, mais je n'en suis pas tout a fait certain.
Etes-vous au courant?

Le président: Monsieur Breau.

M. Breau: Nous allons vérifier tout ce qu'a dit M. Sharp
- S

M. Stanbury: Allez-vous vous y tenir?

M. Breau: Je n’ai pas dit cela, mais nous allons fournir
des explications si jamais il y avait des problémes. Je sais
qu’il faut toujours tenir compte du facteur temps dans la
politique.

Le président: Avez-vous une question, monsieur

Stanbury?

M. Stanbury: J'allais simplement demander des préci-
sions au sujet du programme qui a été suggéré pour ce
Comité. J'imagine que nous allons essayer de nous réunir
aussi fréequemment que possible pendant que la Chambre
siége encore.

Le président: Tous les mardis et jeudis. Monsieur Breau.

M. Breau: A propos d’'inviter le ministre, monsieur le
président. Evidemment, cela dépend du sous-comité, mais
j'en ai discuté avec le ministre, qui a indiqué le désir
d'ouvrir le débat. Comme 1'a dit M. Roche, il n'y a malheu-
reusement pas grand-chose de nouveau. Le ministre n'y
peut rien. Le gouvernement a lancé une étude a ce sujet et
va passer en revue la politique afin de préparer des résolu-
tions en vue de la session extraordinaire générale. Cela ne
signifie pas pour autant que le gouvernement va avoir des
vues fermes sur tous les aspects et sur tous les sujets.
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The special session itself is kind of an evolving entity. It
will be part of a debate and there will be many regional
meetings at the UN and there will be many meetings of
commissions of the UN. Now, apart from giving the docu-
ments that were given to the Committee, and of pointing
out what the different areas of discussions have been in
the international forums, what can the Minister say before
the government has come to a position on the different
aspects?

Of course, if your idea of having him is to tell him what
you think the policy should be, that is a positive input. But
I do not think you can expect more of the Minister than an
explanation of what the options are and you have that with
the document. If you need more explanation the officials
are ready to meet you at any time. But the Minister will
not be able to give you more, at this time, than those
explanations which the officials can give you.

The Chairman: Mr. Roche.

Mr. Roche: I do not anticipate, Mr. Chairman, that we
will have much opportunity for many more meetings. We
are now back to the question that we discussed earlier,
namely, whether this Committee could be of any assist-
ance to the government in the formulation of the Canadian
policy for the UN special session, or whether the Minister
would inform us of the decision of the government and we
would carry on from there.

I simply want to make the point that I think it is within
the possibility of this Committee—because we are not
exactly naive on this subject—to make a representation to
the Minister at the earliest opportunity. I think many of us
do have things we wish to communicate to the Minister on
the strength of the Canadian statement at the special
session. So I would like to reiterate what was said earlier;
that we invite the Minister to come to our meeting on
Thursday of this week to elaborate on the statement he
made today. He should also attend in order to hear the
representations that various Committee members may
wish to make on what the Canadian position ought to be,
especially since it is now somewhat clouded as a result of
the $30 million cut in the CIDA budget.

I am not going to pursue this argument now, because I
want to make it before the Minister. But I would feel very
badly if Canada gave the impression, internationally, that
we are going to join those developed nations that are on a
downward spiral of foreign assistance, rather then escalat-
ing our aid to meet our previous commitments to get to .7
per cent and then to 1 per cent in total aid. So I summarize
by asking the Chairman and yourself, Mr. Breau, to invite
the Minister to come.

The Chairman: Mr. Breau.

Mr. Breau: If I may, I indicated that it is not up to me to
decide what the Secretary wants to do, neither is it up to
me to answer for the Minister. It is precisely because you
are not naive on the subject that I say it is possible for the
subcommittee to present an interim report before the UN
General Assembly. But I am simply making the point that
from my understanding of the way we will proceed that
the only effective thing that the Minister could do at this
time is present these documents and explain to the sub-
committee what the options are. Maybe it is the timing
from the point of view of international meetings, and that
sort of thing, because a lot of these things have to do with
the timing with which other international institutions like

[Interpretation]

La session extraordinaire est en elle-méme une chose
mobile. Elle fera partie du débat et il y aura beaucoup de
réunions \régionales dans le cadre des travaux des Nations
Unies. Les commissions vont également siéger trés sou-
vent. Qu'est-ce que le ministre peut nous dire pour expli-
quer la prise de position du gouvernement, mise a part la
question des documents fournis au Comité et du compte
rendu des discussions qui ont été menées au niveau
international.

Si vous avez l'intention de lui expliquer votre idée de la
politique future, ce serait une chose positive. Je pense
néanmoins que vous ne pouvez obtenir du ministre que
I'explication des options qui sont d’ailleurs énumérées
dans le document. Pour plus de renseignements, vous pour-
rez vous adresser aux fonctionnaires, qui sont toujours a
votre disposition. Le ministre ne pourra vous en dire plus
pour le moment que ces explications que les fonctionnaires
peuvent vous fournir.

Le président: Monsieur Roche.

M. Roche: Je ne pense pas que nous allons avoir 'occa-
sion de nous revoir encore trés souvent. Nous voila de
retour a la question dont nous avons discuté tantét, a
savoir si le Comité peut aider le gouvernement a définir la
politique que défendra le Canada lors de la session spéciale
des Nations Unies ou si le ministre va nous informer de la
décision du gouvernement et que nous poursuivrons a
partir de la.

Je tiens simplement a dire que je pense que le Comité a
tout a fait la possibilité de présenter ses vues au ministre
dés qu’il en aura le temps, car nous ne sommes pas tout a
fait ignorants. Nombreux sont ceux parmi nous qui ont des
choses a dire au ministre sur la teneur de l'intervention du
Canada au cours de cette session spéciale. Pour cette
raison, je tiens a répéter que nous devrions inviter le
ministre a notre réunion de jeudi pour qu'il nous donne
davantage d’'explications au sujet de la déclaration qu'il a
faite aujourd’hui. Sa présence est par ailleurs désirable
afin qu'il puisse entendre les vues des membres du Comité
au sujet de la position que devrait adopter le Canada,
surtout en vue du fait qu’'elle s’est quelque peu affaiblie a
cause de la réduction de 30 millions de dollars du budget de
I'ACDI.

Je m’abstiendrai d’en parler maintenant puisque je veux
en discuter avec le ministre. Je serais néanmoins extréme-
ment embarrassé si le Canada devait donner l'impression
au monde qu'il va se joindre au groupe des pays développés
qui, au lieu d’augmenter l'aide aux pays étrangers afin de
tenir la promesse des 0.7 et 1 p. 100, la coupent progressive-
ment. A cause de tout cela je vous demande, monsieur le
président, et vous-méme, monsieur Breau, de bien vouloir
inviter le ministre.

Le président: Monsieur Breau.

M. Breau: Je vous ai déja dit que ce n'est pas a moi de
décider de ce que va faire le secrétaire d’Etat ni de répon-
dre au nom du ministre. C'est justement parce que vous
n'étes pas sans connaitre le sujet que j'ai dit qu'il est
possible pour le sous-comité de présenter un rapport intéri-
maire avant I'Assemblée générale des Nations Unies. Je dis
simplement que si j'ai bien compris la procédure proposée,
la seule chose positive que le ministre peut faire pour le
moment est de présenter ces documents et d’expliquer les
options au sous-comité. Le sous-comité doit également
tenir compte du calendrier des réunions internationales
notamment car beaucoup de ces choses dépendent de I'or-
dre dans lequel d'autres institutions internationales
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GATT, IMF, and all of them, will deal with these problems.
So, that is important to the subcommittee. In other words,
that the subcommittee study the same subjects just about
at the same time that international discussions go on.

I just make the point that apart from explaining what
the options are, the Minister cannot come before the sub-
committee at this time and say, “This is what the govern-
ment thinks”. All he can do is say, “Please tell me what
you think.” I do not think it is necessary to have the
Minister here to tell us that. There are other processes by
which we can go.

The Chairman: Yes. On the other hand, it would be very
difficult for us to advise the Minister on subjects because
our proposed schedule deals with about 24 to 26 meetings. I
doubt very much if we will be in a position to present an
interim report before, perhaps, the very end of October. So,
it will be difficult to make any valuable suggestions before
the special session. I doubt it very much.

Mr. Roche: Mr. Chairman, I did not have in mind
making an interim report before the special session. I do
not think we are in a position to do that. But I would not
want to accept Mr. Breau's statement without the reserva-
tion that it is just enough to send the Minister a communi-
cation. I rather think there is some value in having him
appear for an hour or an hour and a half before us to have
an exchange of views from all sides of the House as we
find them in the Committee. I think there is something to
be gained from that, without escalating beyond the possi-
bility of just doing that.

The Chairman: On your behalf, gentlemen and Miss
Bégin, I would like to thank Mr. Dupuy, Mr. Williams and
Mr. Breau for coming to our Committee meeting.

This Committee stands adjourned to the call of the
Chair.

[Interprétation]
comme le GATT, le FMI et les autres traiteront ces proble-
mes. Autrement dit, le sous-comité devrait étudier ces

sujets a peu prés au méme moment qu'auront lieu les
discussions internationales.

Mis a part I'explication des options, le ministre ne peut
pas faire grand chose d’autre. Il ne peut pas venir devant le
sous-comité pour dire: «Voila ce que pense le gouverne-
ment». Tout ce qu’il peut faire c’est de dire: «S’il vous plait,
dites-moi ce que vous en pensez». Je ne pense pas que ce
soit nécessaire. Nous avons d’autres possibilités pour cela.

Le président: Oui. D'un autre co6té, il me serait trés
difficile de conseiller le ministre puisque nous avons prévu
environ 24 a 26 réunions. Je doute que nous soyons en
mesure de présenter un rapport provisoire avant la fin du
mois d’octobre. Par conséquent, je ne pense pas que nous
allons pouvoir faire des suggestions valables avant la ses-
sion spéciale.

M. Roche: Je n’ai pas compté avec la possibilité de
présenter un rapport provisoire avant la session spéciale,
monsieur le président. Je ne pense pas que nous soyons en
mesure de le faire. Je ne peux néanmoins accepter l'inter-
vention de M. Breau sans dire qu’il ne suffit pas d’envoyer
une note au ministre. Je pense qu’il serait bon qu’il vienne
pour une heure ou une heure et demie pour avoir le point
de vue de tous les cotés de la Chambre que refléte le
Comité. Je pense que ce serait trés positif et que cela
n’irait pas plus loin.

Le preésident: Permettez-moi, mademoiselle, messieurs,
de remercier en votre nom, MM. Dupuis, Williams et Breau
d'étre venus.

La séance est levée jusqu’a nouvelle convocation.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS PROCES-VERBAL

THURSDAY, JULY 24, 1975 LE JEUDI 24 JUILLET 1975

2) (2)

[Text) [Traduction]

The Sub-committee on International Development of the
Standing Committee on External Affairs and National
Defence met this day at 3:15 o’clock p.m., the Chairman,
Mr. Dupras, presiding.

Members of the Sub-committee present: Mr. Anderson,
Miss Bégin, Messrs. Dupras, Francis, Lapointe, Laprise,
McKenzie, Roche and Stanbury.

Other Members present: Messrs. Breau, Duclos, Gendron,
MacDonald (Egmont), Patterson and Philbrook.

Witness: Mr. Alister McIntyre, Secretary-General of the
Caribbean Community and Chairman of the Group of
Experts.

The Sub-committee resumed consideration of its Order
of Reference dated July 3, 1975 (See Minutes of Proceedings,
Tuesday, July 22, 1975, Issue No. 1).

The witness made an opening statement and answered
questions.

The Sub-committee resumed debate on the motion of Mr.
Roche,—

That this Committee invite the Research Branch of the
Parliamentary Library to prepare a short background
paper on the events leading up to the Seventh Special
Session of the United Nations, for information pur-
poses only.

After debate, the said motion was, by unanimous con-
sent, withdrawn.

On motion of Mr. Lapointe,

Resolved.—That the Chairman, and 5 Members chosen by
the Chairman after the usual consultations, do compose
the Sub-committee on Agenda and Procedure.

At 4:15 o'clock p.m., the Sub-committee adjourned to the
call of the Chair.

Le sous-comité sur le développement international du
Comité permanent des affaires extérieures et de la défense
nationale se réunit aujourd’hui a 15 h 15 sous la présidence
de M. Dupras, (président).

Membres du sous-comité présents: M. Anderson, M
Bégin, MM. Dupras, Francis, Lapointe, Laprise, McKenzie,
Roche et Stanbury.

Autres députés présents: MM.. Breau, Duclos, Gendron,
MacDonald (Egmont), Patterson et Philbrook.

Témoin: M. Alister McIntyre, secrétaire général de la
communauté des Caraibes et président du groupe
d’experts.

Le sous-comité poursuit I’étude de son ordre de renvoi
du 3 juillet 1975 (Voir proces-verbal du mardi 22 juillet 1975,
fascicule n° 1).

Le témoin fait une déclaration préliminaire et répond
aux questions.

Le sous-comité reprend le débat sur la motion de M.
Roche,—

Que le Comité invite le Service de recherches de la
Bibliothéque du Parlement a rédiger un bref document
d’information portant sur les événements qui ont
amené la Septiéme session spéciale des Nations Unies,
et ce, a des fins d’information uniquement.

Aprés débat, ladite motion est retirée, du consentement
unanime.

Sur motion de M. Lapointe,

Il est décidé,—Que le président, ainsi que 5 membres qu’il
aura lui-méme choisis aprés les consultations habituelles,
forment le sous-comité du programme et de la procédure.

A 16 h 15, le sous-comité suspend ses travaux jusqu’a
nouvelle convocation du président.

Le greffier du sous-comité
Hugh R. Stewart
Clerk of the Sub-committee
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[Text]

Le président: A 'ordre, s'il vous plait. With your permis-
sion, I think we should begin by welcoming the person to
my right, Mr. Alister McIntyre, who has agreed to come
and meet with the members of the Committee.

In this endeavour, we chose to send notice to all mem-
bers of the Committee so more people would have a chance
to meet and hear Mr. McIntyre.

As you know, our guest is chairman of a group of experts
established by the Commonwealth Heads of Governments
in May 1975. He is a native of Grenada. He studied at the
London School of Economic where he graduated with a
Bachelor of Science in Economics, first class honours. He
also attended and graduated from Nuffield College,
Oxford, with a Bachelor of Literature. In 1964, he was
appointed senior lecturer in economics at the Unisersity of
West Indies. He later became Chairman of the Division of
Social Sciences. In 1967, he was appointed Director of the
Institute of Social and Economic Research at the universi-
ty. Mr. McIntyre has published several works on economic
development in the Caribbean. He took up his present post
as Secretary-General of the Caribbean Community on July
1, 1974.

Mr. McIntyre, I understand that you have a brief open-
ing statement to make and then you will submit yourself
to questions from the members.

Mr. McIntyre.

Mr. Alister McIntyre (Secretary-General of the Carib-
bean Community): Yes, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman, may I say how very pleased I am that I
have been afforded the opportunity of meeting with your-
self and members of the Committee in order to have an
exchange of views on the very important subject of the
relations between developed and developing countries.

I am sure you will appreciate that I am voicing personal
views this afternoon although these views must, in the
nature of the case, be influenced by the two weeks of work
which I have just completed with my colleagues in Ottawa.
I am sure, also, that it is not necessary for me to venture an
explanation as to why, at this stage, I cannot make any
direct reference to the recommendations of the Committee
because the report that we have just completed is just on
its way to governments and it will be for them to decide in
what form and at what time these recommendations
should be made available to a wider audience.

But, I would like, if I may, to spend a few brief moments
making some remarks of an essentially general nature
which I hope will form the basis for a more specific
exchange of views between us.

I think it is fair to say that any dispassionate examina-
tion of the world economy leads to the conclusion that the
present international economic system is not serving the
world very well. Any system which has yielded prosperity
for a few, only limited advance for others and relative
stagnation for many must be subject to critical appraisal
with a view to improving its efficiency. It is against this
background that the Commonwealth heads of government
set up our group of experts, recognizing that there was
need for a just and equitable new international economic
order, and asked us specifically to draw up a comprehen-

EVIDENCE

(Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)
Thursday, July 24, 1975

[Interpretation]

The Chairman: Order, please. Avec votre permission, je
crois que nous devrions commencer par souhaiter la bien-
venue a M. Alister McIntyre, ici 4 ma droite, qui a accepté
de venir rencontrer les membres du Comité.

En l'occurrence, nous avons envoyé avis a tous les mem-
bres du Comité afin que le plus grand nombre possible de
membres puissent rencontrer et entendre M. McIntyre.

Comme vous le savez, notre invité préside un groupe
d’experts établi par les chefs d’Etat du Commonwealth au
mois de mai 1975. Il est natif de Grenade et a étudié a la
London School of Economics qui lui a discerné un baccalau-
réat és Sciences, option économie, summa cum laude. Il a
également étudié et re¢u un baccalauréat és Arts, littéra-
ture, du collége Nuffield, (Oxford). En 1964, il était nommé
professeur d’économie a 1'University of West Indies. Par la
suite, il devenait chef de la division des sciences sociales.
En 1967, il fut nommé directeur de 'Institut de recherches
sociales et économiques a cette méme université. M. McIn-
tyre a publié plusieurs ouvrages sur le développement
économique dans les Antilles. I1 a assumé ses fonctions
actuelles de secrétaire général de la Communauté des
Antilles le 1+ juillet 1974.

Si j'ai bien compris, M. McIntyre souhaite d’abord nous
adresser la parole et répondra ensuite aux questions des
membres du Comité.

Monsieur McIntyre.

M. Alister McIntyre (secrétaire général de la Commu-
nauté des Antilles): Oui, monsieur le président.

Monsieur le président, j'aimerais vous dire a quel point
je suis heureux de l'occasion qui m’est offerte de vous
rencontrer, vous, et les membres du présent Comité, afin
que nous puissions échanger des opinions sur le sujet trés
important des relations entre pays évolués et pays en voie
de développement.

J'espére que vous voudrez bien vous rappeler que j'ex-
prime des opinions personnelles cet aprés-midi, bien que
celles-ci soient, de par leur nature, influencées par les deux
semaines de travail que je viens d’effectuer, en compagnie
de mes collégues, ici a Ottawa. Je n’ai pas a vous expliquer
non plus pourquoi en ce moment, que je ne peux pas
divulguer les recommandations du Comité, puisque le rap-
port vient tout juste d’étre terminé et expédié aux gouver-
nements qui décideront sous quelle forme et a quel
moment faire connaitre ces recommandations a un public
plus vaste.

Néanmoins, si vous le permettez, j'aimerais pendant
quelques minutes formuler des commentaires d’ordre géné-
ral qui, je 'espére, seront le point de départ d’'un échange
d’opinions précises.

Je crois que l'on peut dire sans erreur que tout examen
impartial de I'économie mondiale force a conclure que le
systéme économique international actuel ne remplit pas
trés bien son réle. Le systéme qui entraine la prospérité
pour quelques-uns, une évolution limitée pour d’autres et
une stagnation presque totale pour beaucoup, doit étre
soumis a un examen critique dans l'espoir d’améliorer son
fonctionnement. Conscients de cette réalité, les chefs
d’Etats du Commonwealth ont réuni notre groupe d'ex-
perts, car ils se rendaient compte qu’il était nécessaire
d’établir un nouvel ordre économique international juste et
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[Texte]
sive program of practical measures which could be imple-
mented early and effectively.

® 1515
The heads of government went further to indicate those
areas which they themselves considered a priority and
among those were: commodities, trade liberalization and
access to market, food production and rural development,
industrial co-operation and the transfer of technology, and
economic aid. We have just completed our examination of
the questions and issues which the heads have asked us to
deal with and we have, I am happy to say, reached a broad
consensus on proposals in this field which in our collective
judgment represents a practical way ahead for the interna-
tional community.

As I have said earlier, I would like to confine myself to
some general conclusions which seem to emerge from a
more detailed and specific examination of the issue of a
new international economic order.

I think the most important conclusion to emerge from
our work was that the time for semantic controversies is
over. There is a need to get down to specifics, and in
particular to develop pastures that would facilitate the
early commencement of concrete discussions and negotia-
tions of improvements to the economic system.

As an extension of this, it certainly has impressed itself
upon us that there is great value in both developed and
developing countries approaching these new tasks in a
spirit of wide pragmatism, recognizing that there are many
lessons to be learned from different social and economic
systems. Some are good; some are bad. The whole purpose
of the United States society is to try to avoid the mistakes
of the past and, where possible, extend the successes that
have so far been achieved.

There is a particular urgency to this work. Our Commit-
tee felt it existed particularly in the field of commodities.
All the evidence before us indicates that if concrete
negotiations do not begin within the next six to nine
months, valuable time might be lost in getting more satis-
factory arrangements in this field started. This observation
is of particular relevance to the proposals which the Secre-
tary General of UNCTAD has made for a comprehensive
program involving a wide variety of arrangmeents to be
applicable to individual commodities.

On the whole, our collective feeling has been that the
time is right to begin discussions on a new order whatever
the immediate difficulties might be in the way of practical
implementation. The formulation of our recommendations
has been made in this spirit.

We have been particularly impressed in reviewing the
past and projecting the future with the limitations of the
case by case approach and of the value which should be
attached to adopting a comprehensive and inter-related
approach which recognizes the obvious linkages between
certain fields.

I do not have to explain to you, for example, what the
inter-relationships are between commodities, industrial
development, economic aid, to name only three of the areas
which have concerned us.

[Interprétation]

équitable. Ils nous ont demandé plus particuliérement
d’établir un programme poussé de mesures pratiques appli-
cables immédiatement et efficacement.

Les chefs d’Etats sont méme allés jusqu’a préciser les
domaines qu’ils jugeaient prioritaires, entre autres, les
biens de consommation, la libéralisation du commerce et
I'accés au marché, la production alimentaire et le dévelop-
pement rural, la coopération industrielle et I'échange de
connaissances techniques et l'aide économique. Nous
venons tout juste de terminer notre étude de ces questions
que les chefs d’Etats nous avaient recommandées et nous
avons, je suis heureux de le dire, réalisé 'unanimité sur les
propositions a faire dans ce domaine qui, de notre avis a
tous, représentent un pas de I'avant pour la communauté
internationale.

Comme je 'ai dit précédemment, j’aimerais me limiter a
quelques conclusions d’ordre général qui semblent ressor-
tir de 'examen plus détaillé et précis des questions relati-
ves a un nouvel ordre économique international.

A mon avis, la conclusion la plus importante tirée de
notre travail, c’est que I’époque des controverses sémanti-
ques est passée. Il faut s’attaquer a des cas précis, particu-
lierement a élaborer un climat qui faciliterait le début de
discussions concrétes, de négociations en vue d’améliorer
le systéme économique.

Pour ce faire, nous nous sommes rendu compte avec
certitude qu'il est trés important que les pays développés
et en voie de développement abordent ces nouvelles taches
dans un esprit de pragmatisme reconnaissant qu’il y a de
nombreuses lecons a tirer des différents systémes sociaux
et économiques. Certains sont bons; certains sont mauvais.
Le but premier de la société américaine est d’essayer d’évi-
ter les erreurs du passé et lorsque possible, exploiter les
succes.

La tache est urgente, surtout, de I'avis de Comité, dans le
domaine des biens de consommation. Toutes les preuves
que nous avons recueillies démontrent que si des négocia-
tions concrétes ne commencent pas au cours des siXx ou
neuf prochains mois, un temps précieux sera perdu pour ce
qui est de la conclusion d’arrangements satisfaisants dans
ce domaine. Cette conclusion est particuliérement perti-
nente vu les propositions que le Secrétaire général de la
CNUCED a déposées visant un programme poussé de dis-
positions trés variées applicables a certains biens de
consommation.

Dans l'ensemble, nous pensons que le moment est bien
choisi pour commencer des discussions sur un nouvel ordre
quelles que soient les difficultés qu’entrainerait son appli-
cation pratique dans I'immédiat. Nous avons formulé nos
recommandations dans cet esprit.

Dans notre étude du passé et notre prévision de l'avenir,
nous avons été particuliérement impressionnés par les
limites imposées par 'approche dispersée et la valeur qu’'on
devrait donner a une approche poussée et interreliée qui
admet les liens évidents entre certains domaines.

Il est inutile que je vous explique, par exemple, les
relations qui existent entre les biens de consommation, le
développement industriel, l'aide économique—pour ne
nommer que ces trois domaines auxquels nous nous
sommes intéressés.
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This however, is not to say that simultaneous advance is
necessary, or feasible and is not to suggest that the first
phase of effort could not be concentrated on a somewhat
more limited area than would seem to be required from the
task at hand. Our thoughts have been very much directed
towards the first phase, while recognizing that any phasing
in of a new international effort is best approached within a
comprehensive framework.

In particular, in examining the experiences of the past,
we have been impressed also, as an extension of my earlier
point about the value of pragmatism, by the need for new
relationships between the developed and developing coun-
tries, particularly in areas where it would be desirable to
retain and in some cases perhaps even extend the involve-
ment of the private sector.
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The problems that have arisen from the operation of
transnational corporations, as they are now called, are well
known and need no repetition on my part. Nor should it be
thought that there is anything particularly to be gained by
an entirely negative attitude to the matter. We, however,
felt that an examination of the situation could show pos-
sibilities for new creative relationships tha might avoid
some of the worst mistakes of the past, and it is for this
reason that I see particular value in an extension of the
dialogue beyond governments to incorporate important
sectors of opinion both in the developed and developing
countries. So, one sees this new effort not merely as a
strengthening of intergovernmental links, but really as a
strengthening of the bonds of interdependence that must
form the basis of a true international community.

Having said all this, may I conclude with a reference
again back to commodities. It is my personal view, and I
believe it is shared by others, that there is a great deal to
be said for making commodity policy the first step in a
new relationship. The arguments for this centre around the
present unsatisfactory state of commodity markets and the
widespread dissatisfaction which exists both among pro-
ducing and consuming interests. They also centre around
the fact that primary commodities are of special signifi-
cance to some of the poorest and least developed countries,
and increasingly the international community must con-
centrate its efforts in those directions. They centre around,
indeed, our basic belief that instead of talking about clos-
ing gaps and doing this and doing that, that essentially the
first step in the new effort should involve the attempt to
establish certain minimum standards of living in the world
at large in fields such as nutrition, clothing, shelter, educa-
tion, public health, and so on. If this becomes the cen-
trepiece of the new effort, then it would follow from this
that the emphasis in it must be directed towards the worst
off in the world, and it is from that particular standpoint
that I personally see an urgency towards making commodi-
ty policy an example of what the new effort in internation-
al co-operation can mean for the international community.
Mr. Chairman, I thank you.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. McIntyre. Before I
recognize the first questioner, I would like to introduce the
lady sitting next to Mr. McIntyre, Miss Pamela McDougall,
Director-General Economic and Science Affairs. And, of
course, to her right a very well-know person, Mr. Neil
Overend, Vice-President of CIDA, Bilateral Program. Wel-
come, Miss McDougall and Mr. Overend.

[Interpretation]

Néanmoins, il ne faut pas conclure que des progrés
simultanés sont essentiels au possible pas plus qu'il ne faut
conclure que dans une premiére étape les efforts ne puis-
sent étre concentrés sur un domaine plus limité que celui
de 'ensemble de la tache qu’il faut accomplir. Nos pensées
ont porté dans une grande mesure sur la premiére étape,
bien que nous admettions que toute mise en ceuvre d'un
nouvel effort international s’insérerait mieux dans un
cadre étendu.

Dans notre étude des expériences passées, nous avons
également été particuliérement impressionnés, pour reve-
nir & un point que j’ai souligné plus tot, se rapportant a
I'importance du pragmatisme, par la nécessité de créer de
nouvelles relations entre les pays développés et les pays en
voie de développement, surtout dans des domaines cu il
serait souhaitable de garder et, dans certains cas, de favori-
ser, la participation du secteur privé.

Les problémes posés par les sociétés transnationales,
comme on les appelle aujourd’hui, sont bien connus, je n’en
parlerai donc pas. Nous ne devons pas penser maintenant
qu’il y ait quelque chose a gagner a envisager les choses de
facon négative. Pourtant, nous avons estimé qu'un examen
de la situation pourrait révéler la possibilité de nouvelles
relations qui éviteraient les erreurs les plus graves commi-
ses dans le passé et, pour cette raison, il serait particuliére-
ment utile d’étendre le dialogue aux secteurs privés les
plus importants, a la fois dans les pays développés et dans
les pays en voie de développement. Il ne s’agit donc pas
uniquement d'un renforcement des liens intergouverne-
mentaux mais également d’'un renforcement des liens d’in-
terdépendance qui sont a la base d’'une communauté inter-
nationale véritable.

Ceci étant dit, en guise de conclusion, je reviendrai a la
question des matiéres premiéres. J'estime, je crois n'étre
pas le seul, qu'il y a beaucoup a dire en faveur d'une
politique sur les matiéres premiéres qui constituerait un
premier pas dans la voie de nouvelles relations. Cela est
démontré par l'existence actuelle d’'un marché des matiéres
premiéres insatisfaisant et par 'insatisfaction générale qui
va de la production a la consommation. Cela est démontré
également par le fait que les matiéres premiéres ont une
importance toute particuliére pour les pays les plus pau-
vres et les moins développés; de plus en plus, la commu-
nauté internationale va devoir orienter ses efforts dans
cette direction. Nous sommes convaincus qu’avant de com-
bler les lacunes, avant de prendre telle et telle mesure,
nous devons nous efforcer d’atteindre certaines normes a
I'échelle internationale dans des domaines tels que la
nutrition, les vétements, 'habitat, I'’éducation, la santé
publiqgue, etc. Si nous orientons nos efforts vers ces probleé-
mes, nous nous assurerons d’atteindre les plus défavorisés
et c’est ce qui me fait penser qu’il est urgent d’adopter une
politique sur les produits de base qui démontre a quel
point de nouveaux efforts dans le domaine de la coopéra-
tion internationale sont importants pour la communauté
internationale. Monsieur le président, je vous remercie.

Le président: Merci, monsieur McIntyre. Avant de vous
donner la parole, je désire vous présenter la dame qui est
assise a coté de M. MclIntyre, c'est M"™ Pamela McDougall,
Directeur général des Affaires économiques et scientifi-
ques. A sa droite, une personne que nous connaissons tous,
M. Neil Overend, vice-président de I'’ACDI chargé des pro-
grammes bilatéraux. Nous souhaitons la bienvenue a M™
McDougall et a M. Overend.
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I think we should use the usual 10 minutes, and those
who can be a bit briefer than this will be welcome. Mr.
Roche.

Mr. Roche: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. McIntyre, if I
am to be the first to speak . ..

Mr. Breau: On a point of order.

The Chairman: Mr. Breau on a point of order.

Mr. Breau: I think it would be fair to indicate to mem-
bers before we start that Mr. McIntyre has a very tight
schedule. He has to catch a plane.

The Chairman: Yes. It should be made known that Mr.
Mclntyre has to leave by 4 o’clock this afternoon to catch a
plane home.

Mr. Roche: Being the first to speak, may I tell Mr.
McIntyre how pleased I am, as I am sure all members of
the Committee are, to give him a very warm welcome. This
is extemely important work that you and your associates
are involved in and, recognizing the limitations of your
time, I will not go into a lot of questions. I would also not
want you to feel uncomfortable if, by trying to field the
specific questions that are very much on our minds, but
staying in the general area and having regard for the
initial comments that you made, which I thought were
extemely helpful in raising our optimism with respect to
the Seventh Special Session, I did take note of what you
said, sir, with reference to the 69 months valuable time lost
if we do not have the comprehensive program which is
hoped to be introduced into the Special Session begun to be
acted on. Valuable time will be lost.
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Indeed, that was the point raised by a distinguished
Canadian, Mr. Maurice Strong, who came before the Com-
mittee a few months ago and sat just where you are. He
made the point that there must be a sense of urgency with
respect to the implementation of at least some of the ideas
within the new economic order.

You have highlighted commodities in your initial com-
ment. [ wanted to ask you, before you might wish to speak,
in which commodities in your own view you have some
hope there can be some changes made. On the question of
urgency, do you think that the developed nations, going
into the seventh special session, have yet perceived the
urgency of implementation of some structural changes in
order to avoid coming out of the seventh special session
with a reiteration of the idea that, well, if we just increase
our foreign aid, that is going to take care of the problem?

If I understand it correctly—correct me if I am wrong—
the basic problem is that we have to move from a reliance
on foreign aid as an expression of our humanitarian assist-
ance over to recognition of the reality of the structural
changes called for by the new economic order.

I just throw that out as an initial question and observa-
tion, whether or not you feel that the developed nations are
yet ready to take on this urgency.

Mr. Mclntyre: I can simply say I hope they are. There
has after all been a great deal of study going on in several
parts of the developed world of the possibilities for a new
order. The OECD has its own group working on commodi-
ties and on other subjects, transfers of resources and so on.
The European Community has for some time been working
on these issues in the particular context of the Lomé
Convention, but obviously they must have been viewing
them in a wider setting, and they are at present as I
understand it viewing them in a wider setting.

[Interprétation]

Comme d’habitude, nous disposerons chacun de dix
minutes et si nous nous contentons de moins, ce n’en sera
que mieux. Monsieur Roche.

M. Roche: Merci, monsieur le président. Monsieur McIn-
tyre, puisque je suis le premier a prendre la parole. ..

M. Breau: J'en appelle au Réglement.

Le président: M. Breau en appelle au Réglement.

M. Breau: Il faudrait peut-étre prévenir les membres du
Comité que M. MclIntyre est trés pressé, il doit prendre un
avion.

Le président: Oui, M. McIntyre doit nous quitter au plus
tard a 4 h; il rentre chez lui en avion.

M. Roche: Puisque je suis le premier a prendre la parole,
je me permets de dire & M. McIntyre a quel point nous
sommes enchantés de le recevoir a ce Comité; nous lui
souhaitons tous la bienvenue. Vos collégues et vous-méme
avez entrepris un travail particuliérement important et,
sachant que vous étes pressé par le temps, je vais limiter
mes questions. Je ne voudrais pas non plus vous embarras-
ser en essayant d’aborder certains problémes précis qui
nous préoccupent tous et j'essaierai de m’en tenir aux
généralités. Vous avez fait des observations qui relévent
notre optimise face a la septiéme séance spéciale; j’ai noté
ce que vous avez dit a propos des 69 mois trés précieux que
nous risquons de perdre si nous ne réussissons pas a conve-
nir d’'un programme trés compréhensif au cours de la
séance spéciale.

C’est d’ailleurs un point qui nous a été exposé par un
Canadien particuliérement distingué, M. Maurice Strong; il
est venu devant ce Comité il y a quelques mois et était
assis précisément ou vous étes assis. Il a insisté sur I'im-
portance d'une certaine motion d'urgence dans l'applica-
tion d’'une partie au moins des idées qui constituent le
nouvel ordre économique.

Vous avez accordé une grande importance aux produits
de base et je commencerai par vous demander quels sont
les produits de base pour lesquels, a votre sens, on peut
espérer changer quelque chose. A propos de cette notion
d'urgence, pensez-vous que les pays développés qui assiste-
ront a la septiéme séance spéciale ont déja reconnu l'ur-
gence de certains changements structuraux qui permet-
traient d’éviter a la septiéme séance spéciale I'idée selon
laquelle une augmentation de I'aide a I’étranger suffirait a
résoudre les problémes.

Si j'ai bien compris, reprenez-moi si je me trompe, le
probléme fondamental est que nous devons cesser d’expri-
mer nos sentiments d’humanité sous forme d’aide a I’étran-
ger pour reconnaitre la réalité de changements structuraux
dans le cadre d'un nouvel ordre économique.

C’est une premiére question que je vous pose; pensez-
vous que les nations développées soient prétes a assumer
cette notion d'urgence.

M. McIntyre: Je peux simplement dire que je l'espeére.
Apreés tout, plusieurs régions du monde développé étudient
activement les possibilités d’'un nouvel ordre. L'OCDE a
mis sur pied un groupe de travail qui étudie les produits de
base et autres questions comme le transfert des ressources,
etc. La Communauté européenne travaille depuis un cer-
tain temps a ces problémes dans le cadre de la Convention
de Lomé mais, de toute évidence, elle a dii le faire dans une
optique beaucoup plus large.
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Underveloped countries have participated in all of the
discussions that have been going on at the level of the
United Nations on all of these issues. So one would hope
that at this stage the developed countries are in a position
to consider seriously the extent to which they can support
the sort of structural change that is being called for in the
new economic order.

Let me say that your proposition about the shift from aid
to other mechanisms for the distribution of world
resources is right only in terms of emphasis. I want to
leave with you the thought that certainly over the next
five to ten years, and perhaps even longer, there will be a
need to work with both mechanisms. We are dealing with a
situation where countries are at different levels of de-
velopment and have different resource endowments and so
on. Even with the best commodity policy one can envisage,
there would still remain a hard core of countries that will
remain virtually in a disadvantaged position because they
do not have the natural resources to take advantage of new
commodity arrangements.

In these situations one would hope that their resources
could be transferred through other mechanisms of which,
obviously, aid is an important one. So I would not like to
leave you with the impression that in making proposals for
the future we are de-emphasizing the aid mechanism. Our
heads of government have asked us to deal with practical
measures for early and effective implementation, and our
time frame very much recognizes this problem of imbal-
ance between the developing countries.

Mr. Roche: Thank you. I have many more questions but
I know my colleagues want to have a chance to talk to you
also.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Roche. Miss Bégin.

Miss Bégin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I will speak
English if it will go faster. I hope I will not make many
mistakes.

® 1530
Mr. Mclntyre, thank you for giving us your time. I would
like to ask your viewpoint on one thing as an expert and
the other as a person who is working to get the good
politicians, but you are not a politician yourself, in active
politics in the sense of being an elective representative. I
think we have a role to play in the making and in the
influencing of political opinion. You referred to it. The
concept of a new economic order is still very mysterious, if
at all known, to Canadians—to refer to our own country.
From your personal observation, what are the pockets of
resistance you would identify as a priority for us, as
members of Parliament, to work on here? You referred to
working on commodities and there are many other steps
enumerated in the declaration and in the implementation
of the new economic order. Are there any particular points
you would like to single out?

Second, I would like you to tell us when you personally
think we will be able to assess the real benefits of the
convention. It was well received but it cannot be analyzed
yet. When do you personally think we will be in that
position, “we” being the world community.

[Interpretation]

Les pays en voie de développement ont participé a toutes
les discussions de ces questions aux Nations Unies. On
peut donc espérer que les pays développés soient & méme
d’envisager sérieusement aujourd'hui dans quelles mesures
ils peuvent soutenir les changements structuraux rendus
nécessaires par ce nouvel ordre économique.

Votre proposition a propos d’'un passage de l'aide a d’au-
tres mécanismes de distribution des ressources mondiales
est juste uniquement par l'orientation qu’elle suppose. Je
suis certain que d’ici cinq ou dix ans et peut-étre méme
plus, nous devrons entretenir les deux mécanismes. Nous
faisons face a une situation ou chaque pays a un niveau de
développement et des réserves naturelles différentes.
Méme avec la meilleure politique possible sur les produits
de base, il restera toujours un certain nombre de pays
virtuellement défavorisés parce que leurs ressources natu-
relles ne leur permettront pas de profiter des nouvelles
politiques sur les produits de base.

Pour faire face a cette réalité, il faut espérer que les
ressources pourront étre transférées par d’autres mécanis-
mes dont I'aide a I’étranger est bien slr un rouage impor-
tant. Je ne voudrais donc pas que vous gardiez I'impression
que nous avons 'intention a 'avenir de négliger les méca-
nismes d’aide. Nos chefs de gouvernement nous ont
demandé de trouver des mesures qui soient applicables
rapidement et notre liste de priorités tient un compte
important de ce probléme de déséquilibre entre les pays en
voie de développement.

M. Roche: Merci. J'avais encore beaucoup de questions a
vous poser, mais je sais que mes colléegues en ont
également.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Roche. Mademoiselle
Bégin.
Mlle Bégin: Merci, monsieur le président. Je parlerai

anglais si cela nous permet d’aller plus vite; j’espére ne pas
me tromper. Merci beaucoup.

Monsieur MclIntyre, je vous remercie de nous consacrer
votre temps. J’aimerais connaitre votre avis d’expert sur
un point, et sur un autre point, votre avis personnel en tant
que quelqu’un qui cherche a ramener les bons hommes
politiques a...—mais vous n’étes pas un homme politique
vous-méme, vous n’étes pas dans la politique active comme
’est un représentant élu. Je pense que nous avons un role a
jouer dans la formation et l'orientation de I'opinion publi-
que. Vous en avez parlé. La notion d'un nouvel ordre
économique reste trés mystérieuse aux yeux des Cana-
diens, pour ne parler que de notre pays. D’aprés vos pro-
pres observations, quels sont les poches de résistance aux-
quels nous, les députés, devons nous attaquer en premier
lieu. Vous avez parlé de I'échange des matiéres premiéres
et il y a beaucoup d’autres choses qui sont énumérées dans
la déclaration et dans la mise en place d'un nouvel ordre
économique. Y a-t-il des points particuliers sur lesquels
vous aimeriez insister?

Ensuite, quand pensez-vous étre en mesure d’évaluer les
avantages réels de la convention. Elle a été bien regue,
mais elle ne peut encore étre analysée. Quand pensez-vous
que nous serons en mesure de le faire, et par «nous»
j’entends la communauté mondiale.
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Mr. McIntyre: If I may deal with some of the more
interesting points that you have raised, the first most
effective way of influencing public opinion, in my own
view, is to try to get people all over the world—sometimes
even the developing countries themselves—to understand
the nature of the development problem. A great deal of
misunderstanding exists as to what one essentially is
trying to achieve in the developing countries. Second, what
are the necessary and sufficient conditions for achieving
these objectives?

When the international development effort began about
2% decades ago on a systematic basis, it was thought that
the provision of capital and technical assistance within,
say, a narrow range of policy would, in time produce the
desired results. We now know better.

We know, for example, that rapid economic growth does
not necessarily mean corresponding improvements in
employment opportunities; nor does it necessarily mean a
better distribution of income internally. Nor can we pursue
growth purely on the basis of industrial advance at the
comparative neglect of the rural sector, nor merely agricul-
tural but the rural sector generally. We now understand
the multidynamic, dimensional nature of the development
problem but I do not think the public understands and
therefore they tend to lose patience with the development
effort. People naturally ask: When is this going to end? Is
there an end to all this? How long must we make the
effort? Five, ten, fifteen years, and so on?

Therefore there is a great selling job to be done in
explaining all over the world because it affects expecta-
tions of developing countries themselves and what they
demand from their governments as to what the develop-
ment problem is all about, the complexity of the problem,
and how one can best work within a context of interna-
tional co-operation towards some solution. I think this is
where the starting point of the job is.

As far as the commodities part of the question is con-
cerned, I think it is fair to say that we are in a better
position to deal with some commodities as opposed to
others, (a) because a lot of the preparatory technical work
on commodity arrangements has been done—for some but
not for others; (b) because in some situations it is possible
to envisage intergovernmental agreement on a commodity
arrangement which can stick, but in others it cannot; (c¢)
because in some commodity situations you have genuine
commodity markets, and in others you do not.

For example, I come from an area which produces baux-
ite. Bauxite is not traded in the world, aluminium is, so it
is very difficult to work out international agreements
based upon assumed prices for bauxite because there are
really no prices in bauxite. This is just an indication that
you have to find arrangements to suit the particular char-
acteristics of each commodity.
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The general urgency has to do with the fact that one of
the by-products of the recession in the developed countries
has been the downturn in commodity markets, but inter-
estingly enough this is precisely the time that one should
start things like buffer stocks because one can then buy up
stocks and in that process advance the recovery. Let us
remember that the minute we begin advancing recovery in
commodity prices, we begin to advance a general recovery

[Interprétation]

M. MclIntyre: Pour commencer par le point le plus inté-
ressant que vous avez soulevé, la facon la plus efficace
d’influencer 'opinion publique, a mon avis, est d’amener la
population de tous les pays, y compris des pays en voie de
développement, eux-mémes, a comprendre la nature du
probléme du développement. Il subsiste beaucoup de
malentendus quant a ce que l'on cherche a faire dans les
pays en voie de développement. Ensuite, quelles sont les
conditions nécessaires et suffisantes pour atteindre ces
objectifs?

Lorsque l'effort de développement international a com-
mencé il y a quelque 25 ans de fagon systématique, on
pensait que la fourniture de capitaux et d’aide technique
suffiraient & produire les résultats voulus, au bout de
quelque temps. Nous nous sommes aujourd’hui apergus de
notre erreur.

Nous savons, par exemple, que la croissance économique
rapide n’entraine pas automatiquement 'augmentation du
nombre des emplois, ni ne signifie nécessairement une
meilleure distribution des revenus dans le pays en ques-
tion. Nous ne pouvons pas non plus promouvoir la crois-
sance uniquement industrielle, en négligeant pratiquement
le secteur rural, et je ne parle pas seulement du secteur
agricole mais du secteur rural en général. Nous compre-
nons aujourd’hui la nature multidimensionnelle et multi-
dynamique du probléme du développement mais je ne
pense pas que le public lui, 'ait compris, et par conséquent,
il tend a perdre patience. Les gens se demandent naturelle-
ment: quand cela va-t-il prendre fin? Y a-t-il une fin en
vue? Pendant combien de temps devons-nous faire de tels
efforts? Cing, dix, quinze ans ou plus?

I1 faut, par conséquent, lancer une vaste campagne d’in-
formation dans le monde car cette attitude du public
affecte les exigences de la population des pays sous-déve-
loppés eux-mémes. Il faut donc leur expliquer en quoi
consiste le probléme, leur montrer sa complexité et la
meilleure facon de travailler dans un contexte de coopéra-
tion internationale. C’est 1a le point de départ, a mon avis.

En ce qui concerne maintenant les matiéres premiéres,
nous sommes en meilleure position dans le cas de certaines
d’entre elles que dans d’autres parce que, a) beaucoup de
travaux techniques préparatoires ont déja été accomplis
dans certains cas et b) parce que dans certains cas, on peut
envisager un accord intergouvernemental sur les matiéres
premiéres qui soit réalisable, alors que dans d’autres cas,
non; enfin, ¢) parce que dans le cas de certaines matiéres
premieéres, il existe un véritable marché, alors que dans
d’autres ce n’est pas le cas.

Par exemple, je viens d'une région qui produit de la
bauxite. La bauxite n'est pas échangée dans le monde, mais
I'aluminium 'est, si bien qu'il est trés difficile de conclure
des accords internationaux basés sur le prix hypothétique
de la bauxite, parce que la bauxite n’a pas vraiment de
prix. Cela montre qu’il faut trouver des solutions particu-
liéres pour chaque matiére premiére.

L'urgence de ce probléme est que l'un des sous-produits
de la récession dans les pays développés est la chute des
cours des matiéres premiéres. Il est intéressant de noter
que c'est précisément le moment ou il faut commencer a
constituer les stocks tampons, car en constituant de tels
stocks, on fera remonter les cours. N'oublions pas qu'a la
minute méme ol les cours des matiéres premiéres remonte-
ront, le monde commencera a sortir de la crise économique
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in the world economy at large because the capacity to
import of the developing countries will correspondingly be
improved.

So we see this period, the next six to nine months, as
quite critical in removing some of the more unsatisfactory
features of commodity arrangements so far, in dealing
with the recession as it is affecting the developing coun-
tries and in making a contribution to general world
recovery.

As far as the Lomé Convention is concerned, I agree
with you that it is at the moment just still a bit of paper. I
am one of those who are very anxious to see the results of
it all but I would hope that by the middle of 1976 we would
have been able to see results in two important areas which
are new to the Convention. The first is the Stabex Scheme
for commodities; if the treaty is ratified, 1976 would be the
first year in which the Stabex Scheme would be operating
to full effect. And secondly, 1976 would be the first opera-
tional year for the new regime on financial and technical
co-operation, which is an euphemism for aid, which has a
lot of new features to it, not the least of which is the very
interesting feature that a specific sum of money has been
set aside for projects that involve co-operation among
developing countries. It will be interesting to see whether
the new spirit of the Convention is reflected in the opera-
tions of the regime as it gets into motion next year.

Apart from this, of course, there are individual commodi-
ties of interest to some people:sugar, rum and so on. One
would be looking to see what the results of their aims are
but by the middle of 1976 we should be able to get an idea.

Miss Bégin: Thank you. I note that it was with great
elegance that our guest has given us an example for
Canada with bauxite.

The Chairman: Thank you, Miss Bégin. Mr. MacDonald.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): Mr. Chairman, I have two
brief questions.

First of all, I am somewhat interested to know what the
structure or other relationships will be between the work
that is currently going on with respect to the Group of 10
for the Commonwealth and the upcoming meetings in
September of the special session dealing with the new
economic order. Is it contemplated that any of the work
that you are now doing will be a part of the input either in
an organized way as a block of Commonwealth countries
or through the individual members or will there be any
relationship whatsoever between the work that you are
doing and the special session in September?

Mr. McIntyre: Let me say that the heads of governments
decided that all reports should go to the meeting of all the
Ministers of Finance which is scheduled for the last week
of August in Guyana, in Georgetown, and it would be for
them to decide whether they wish to take the report for-
ward in any form to the Seventh Special Session and to
other forums. There are all sorts of possibilities. There is a
possibility that there might be an informal Commonwealth
relationship at the session. There is a possibility simply
that each government would act in the light of its own
relationships but bearing in mind the conclusions reached
by this Commonwealth effort. We really will not know; it
is for the Ministers to decide how to handle the matter.

[Interpretation]

car la reprise dépend étroitement de la capacité des pays en
voie de développement a importer.

Nous considérons donc qu'il est indispensable, dans les 6
a 9 mois a venir, d’éliminer les éléments les plus catastro-
phiques du marché des matiéres premiéres, de facon a
lutter se faisant contre la récession qui affecte le pays en
voie de développement et contribuer ainsi a la reprise

économique mondiale.

En ce qui concerne la convention de Lomé, je suis d’ac-
cord lorsque vous dites qu’elle n’est encore qu'un bout de
papier. Je fais partie de ceux qui sont extrémement impa-
tients de voir les résultats de tout cela, mais, j'espére que
vers le milieu de 1976, nous aurons déja constaté des
résultats dans deux domaines importants qui sont abordés
pour la premiére fois par la convention. Le premier de ces
domaines est le systéeme STABEX pour les échanges de
matiéres premiéres; si le traité est ratifié, le systéme sera
appliqué pour la premier fois intégralement en 1976.
Ensuite, 1976 devrait voir le début du nouveau régime de la
coopération financiére et technique, ce terme étant un
euphémisme exprimant 'aide internationale, qui incorpore
de nombreuses caractéristiques nouvelles, la moindre
n’étant pas qu'une somme d’argent précise est réservée
pour des projets auxquels collaborent plusieurs pays en
voie de développement. Il sera intéressant de voir si 'esprit
nouvel sur lequel est fondée la convention se traduira dans
le fonctionnement du régime lorsqu’il sera mis en ceuvre
I'année prochaine.

En dehors de cela, certains produits intéressent particu-
lierement certains: le sucre, le rhum, etc. Il s’agira de voir
quels seront les résultats, mais on devrait pouvoir com-
mencer a se faire une idée vers le milieu de 1976.

Mlle Bégin: Je vous remercie; je remarque que notre
invité nous a cité un exemple canadien, celui de la bauxite,
avec beaucoup d’élégance.

Le président: Je vous remercie, mademoiselle Bégin.
Monsieur MacDonald.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Monsieur le président, j'ai
deux bréves questions.

Tout d’abord, j'aimerais savoir quels seront les liens
entre les travaux qui se poursuivent actuellement au sein
du Groupe des 10 du Commonwealth et la session extraor-
dinaire qui se tiendra en septembre sur le nouvel ordre
économique. Est-ce que les travaux que vous effectuez
actuellement seront pris en considération par la session
extraordinaire de septembre, soit sous forme d'un apport
des pays du Commonwealth en tant que bloc, ou par un
apport des pays individuels eux-mémes?

M. Mclntyre: Disons que les chefs de gouvernements ont
décidé que tous les rapports seraient soumis a la confé-
rence de tous les ministres des Finances qui est prévue
pour la derniére semaine d’aoiit en Guyane, a Georgetown,
et il leur appartiendra de décider s’ils souhaitent présenter
le rapport a la septiéme session extraordinaire ou a d'au-
tres conférences. Il existe plusieurs possibilités. Une possi-
bilité est que les pays du Commonwealth se présentent en
groupe a cette session. Une autre est qu’ils y participent
chacun individuellement, mais en gardant a l'esprit les
conclusions que l'on peut tirer de I'effort du Common-
wealth. Nous ne le savons par vraiment, il appartiendra
aux ministres d'en décider.
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Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): It is likely that it would
simply be an individual nation’s own determination as a
result of the material coming forward at the Finance Min-
isters’ meeting rather than at this point anyway, any fore-
seeable organized presentation.

Mr. Mclntyre: Yes, it is possible but I would not want to
be too categorical about it.

Mr. MacDoanld (Egmont): Yes, it would seem some-
what premature perhaps.

The other question is with reference to a couple of
comments of yours on the development of an over-all
strategy. I think you mentioned at one point:

... retain perhaps even extend the involvement of the
private sector . ..

® 1540

And then another comment something along the lines of
the extension of the dialogue beyond governments and in
both of these I sense a suggestion of really facing what I
think is the essence of much of the problem that we have
to deal with in this country; and that is, of course, the
nature of domestic policy here because it is very clear that
if we are to make fundamental adjustments in the interna-
tional economic order along the areas that you mentioned
of commodities, trade liberalization, industrial expansion,
world development—these things, there will have to be a
number of significant alterations within our own economy.

I am wondering if you could give us any example or
suggestion of the kinds of things you think might be
possible in terms, as you say, of extending it more to the
involvement of the private sector or in terms of widening
the dialogue beyond governments. I think this is some-
thing, as Mlle Bégin was referring to, that we are going to
have to try to grapple with as political representatives in
our own countries.

Mr. Mclntyre: Just let me answer the question indirect-
ly. I think one of the experiences throughout the develop-
ing world with respect to those socio-economic systems has
been that development requires widespread and popular
participation and that the best circumstances should allow
for the exercise of private initiative and personal growth.
This is not, however, to say that the arrangements for this
would not vary from country to country.

I think it would folow from this, too, that any arrange-
ments for international co-operation in practice would
have to be extended beyond governments. The private
sector becomes involved directly through investment
projects, through procurement projects, for aid in a variety
of ways, and therefore it is my own belief that in consider-
ing the new relationships that are to be established inter-
nationally, the dialogue cannot simply be confined to the
United Nations and so on. Public opinion has to be sus-
tained. It sees the necessity for the changes and, broadly
speaking, concurs with the efforts that the governments
are going to make.

I think that people are rightly concerned, both in devel-
oped and developing countries, at the state of the interna-
tional system and what it means to them. Trade liberaliza-
tion means adjustment, and adjustment means jobs. New
relationships in transnational corporations mean balance
sheets and shareholders and so on. So I think we have to
face these problems quite squarely. And one of the obvious
things that have to be done is to start a dialogue with these

[Interprétation]

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Est-il probable que chaque
pays se présentera individuellement, plutot que de faire
une présentation conjointe, qui découlerait de la confé-
rence des ministres des Finances?

M. MclIntyre: Oui, c’est possible mais je ne peux pas vous
donner de réponse catégorique.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Cela serait peut-étre un peu
prématuré.

Ma deuxiéme question porte sur les remarques que vous
avez faites sur la mise au point d’une stratégie générale. Je
crois que vous avez mentionné a un moment donné:

. conserver, et peut-étre méme étendre, le role du
secteur priveé. ..

Et vous avez aussi apporté une remarque au sujet d’une
extention du dialogue soit d’'une ouverture du dialogue
au-dela de ce qui se passe au niveau des gouvernements ce
qui, d’aprés ce que je comprends est a votre avis nécessaire
pour traiter du probléme qui nous intéresse dans notre
pays, soit de la politique intérieure. Il faudra apporter a
cette derniére des modifications importantes dans les
domaines que vous avez mentionnées, des produits, de la
libéralisation du commerce, de I'expansion industrielle et
du développement dans le monde si l'on veut faire ces
rajustements fondamentaux de I’économie internationale
dont vous parlez.

Je me demande si vous pourriez nous donner des exem-
ples de ce que vous considerez comme possible pour impli-
quer plus le secteur privé ou pour la tenue d’'un niveau des
gouvernements. Je crois que M" Bégin en a parlé et il ne
faudra, a titre de représentants politiques du pays, nous en
occuper.

M. Mclntyre: Je répondrai a cette question d’une facon
indirecte: je crois que dans le monde en voie de développe-
ment ce que 'on voudrait, c’est qu’il y ait une participation
plus générale du public a ses systémes socio-économiques
plus une intervention de l'initiative privée et une implica-
tion personnelle; ce qui ne veut pas dire qu’il n’y aurait pas
de différence d'application selon le pays en cause.

Je crois que tous accords de coopération internationale
en pratique devraient dépasser le niveau gouvernemental.
Le secteur privé s’intéresserait a ce développement en
participant directement a des investissements, a des pro-
grammes de fourniture, d’aide de différentes sortes et, dans
mon optique, dans ces nouveaux rapports internationaux le
dialogue ne devrait pas seulement étre restreint aux
Nations Unies etc. C'est 'opinion publique qui doit étre
mise en cause et c’est le public qui doit appuyer d’'une
fagon générale ces modifications et participer aux efforts
du gouvernement en ce sens.

Je crois que les gens s’inquiétent a juste titre, a la fois
dans les pays industrialisés et dans ceux en voie de déve-
loppement, de ce qui se passe au niveau international et de
ce qu'il en résulte pour eux. Si 'on veut libéraliser le
commerce, il faut apporter des rajustements et, par voie de
conséquence, cette procédure créera des emplois. Les nou-
veaux rapports dans le domaine des sociétés transnationa-
les signifieront de nouveaux bilans, de nouveaux action-
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groups, and this is essentially a matter for national
initiative.

Equally, I think a great deal of misconception exists as
to what is possible and even desirable in some of the
developing countries, and there again there is need for
parallel dialogue. My remark is really addressed to that
sort of general observation.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): Thank you very much.
The Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Anderson.

Mr. Anderson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and also wel-
come, Mr. McIntyre, to the subcommittee’s hearings. I
appreciate your comments very much.

One area you mentioned, and I would like perhaps, if I
may, to be a little more specific—you mentioned mistakes
of the past in reference to economic aid, although you did
not go into what mistakes you were referring to. Since I
am concerned perhaps with Canada’s role in international
development, I wonder if you would have any comments,
either of a general or of a specific nature, as regards your
own particular situation and any areas that you see where
there have been mistakes or where you think there are
areas for improvement. And, as I say, if it may be towards
Canada and your area of the world.

Mr. McIntyre: When I made that general observation, I
did not really have Canada or the Caribbean principally in
mind because I think—this is nothing too flattering—
Canada has had some successes internationally, some of
which are in the Caribbean. And I think the Canadian
program in the Caribbean is in somewhat better shape
than other programs are, both multilateral and bilateral.
But having said this, however, it seems to me that talking
about the mistakes of the past, one does not wish for the
phrase to be seen in a complaining way but merely as part
of the process of self-examination. It is my impression, and
I believe that impression is shared by many people, that
the aid effort, particularly in the field of rural develop-
ment, however well-intentioned, has been misdirected
until now. It has been misdirected in the sense that the
results which were hoped for from the effort have not
really been achieved in any substantial way. In saying so,
one does not wish to complain, but one wishes simply to
address oneself to tackling the problem. Are there new
possibilities that ought to be looked at? Some people
believe, for example, that the resistance which some donor
countries have had to the notion of supporting infrastruc-
ture, or certain kinds of infrastructural works, in the rural
areas was a mistake. If one uses the benefit of hindsight
one can see in areas such as the Sahara and Bangladesh,
where the only real solution to the continuing problem of
food supply involves large and substantial investments in
infrastructure for flood control, and other programs, which
would not be within the contemplation of a single govern-
ment but which would involve international consortia, this
is the sort of thing people ought to be looking at. There has
been a deep resistance among individual donor countries to
consortia-type arrangements of this kind. Everyone has
reasons, and often very good reasons, for wishing to main-
tain the visibility of their aid program and this often
works against joint arrangements of the kind I am talking
about.

[Interpretation]

naires etc. Par conséquent, il faudra entamer un dialogue
avec ces groupes, ce qui suppose une initiative au niveau
national.

Je crois que l'on s’est beaucoup leurré dans les concep-
tions que I'on s’est faite de ce qu'il était souhaitable d’ac-
complir dans les pays en voie de développement et 14 aussi
on aurait besoin d'un dialogue paralléle. Ainsi mes remar-
ques relévent de ce genre d’observation d’ordre général.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Merci beaucoup.
Le président: Merci. Monsieur Anderson.

M. Anderson: Merci, monsieur le président et je vous
souhaite la bienvenue, monsieur McIntyre, lors de nos
audiences du sous-comité. J’ai beaucoup apprécié vos
remarques.

Il y a cependant un domaine dont vous avez parlé ou
j’aimerais avoir un peu plus de précisions. Vous avez indi-
qué que, dans le passé, on a fait des erreurs dans le cadre
de l'aide économique mais vous n’avez pas précisé lesquel-
les. Vu que je m’intéresse particuliérement au réle du
Canada dans le domaine du développement international,
je me demande si vous pourriez nous dire quelles sont ces
erreurs qui ont été faites dans votre secteur particulier ou,
dans quels domaines ces erreurs se sont produites et quel-
les sont les améliorations que vous proposez. J'aimerais
aussi que vous nous précisiez, dans le cas de ces erreurs, si
le Canada et votre région sont en cause.

M. MclIntyre: Je ne visais pas directement le Canada ou
les Antilles lorsque j’ai fait cette observation d'ordre géné-
ral. Je crois qu’au niveau international le Canada a ceuvré
avec un certain succeés et qu’'aux Antilles, le programme
poursuivi par le Canada se présente sous de meilleures
augures que certains autres programmes; je parle de pro-
grammes multilatéraux et bilatéraux. Mais compte tenu de
ces remarques, lorsqu’on traite des erreurs faites dans le
passé on ne veut pas simplement présenter des doléances
mais, en fait on veut faire un examen de conscience. J'ai
I'impression, et je crois que beaucoup de gens pensent
ainsi, que le programme d’aide économique, surtout dans le
domaine du développement rural, bien qu’il fat bien inten-
tionné, a été mal dirigé jusqu’ici. Le programme a été mal
dirigé dans ce sens qu’on n’a pas réussi a obtenir, dans une
mesure importante, les résultats voulus. On ne dit pas ceci
en voulant se plaindre, car on cherche a aborder le proble-
me. Y a-t-il de nouvelles possibilités qu'on devrait étudier?
Certains croient, par exemple, que certains pays donateurs
ont eu tort a s’opposer au concept de 'appui de 'infrastruc-
ture ou de certaines sortes de travaux d'infrastructure
dans les régions rurales. On peut voir que c'est le genre de
programme qu’on devrait examiner dans les régions telles
que le Sahara et le Bangladesh, ol la seule solution au
probléme des approvisionnements de produits alimentaires
implique I'investissement de sommes importantes dans des
projets qui visent a contréler les inondations, ou dans
d’autres projets que devrait entreprendre non pas un seul
gouvernement, mais plutét un consortium international.
Les pays donateurs ont résisté fermement aux accords qui
créeraient ce genre de consortium. Chacun a ses raisons, et
ce sont souvent de bonnes raisons, pour lesquelles il veut
que son programme d'aide soit trés visible; mais cette
attitude va souvent a 'encontre des accords multilatéraux
dont je parle.
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We are very conscious in our own work of the limitations
of the aid effort in the rural sector, because this is where
the misery exists. This is where the problem really resides
at the present time. We were certain this was in the minds
of our heads of government when they asked us specifical-
ly to add our words of wisdom, or our lack of wisdom, to
this business. As you know, the matter has been dealt with
extensively elsewhere, but nevertheless we thought there
were a few things we ought to say concerning it using the
background of our own experiences.

Mr. Anderson: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I
will pass in order to let more people. . ..

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Anderson. Mr. Duclos.

Mr. Duclos: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Welcome, Mr.
Mclntyre.

You have already realized that Canada, as a country, is
far from being out of sympathy with the objective you
wish to reach. I think the Canadian population in general
is even prepared to admit that in the past the standard of
living enjoyed by the developed countries has been
achieved to a certain extent on the backs of the developing
countries.

Now, what has to be realized is that those changes which
we wish to have made, for instance, as far as international
trade is concerned, cannot be accomplished overnight.
There is a prevailing situation. We are all politicians here,
and I think it is easy to wish to change things on the one
hand, but we have to reckon with very concrete situations.
I am thinking, for instance, of the problems regarding
import policies. I know that in some developing countries
one might wish to develop a textile industry which would
have easier access to the Western world market, but one
must realize the problems which are created. One has to
accept that the developed countries will have to adjust to
these new situations.

I would like to ask you about those changes as far as the
terms of exchange in international trade versus foreign
assistance are concerned.

® 1550
We have been told repeatedly, you know, that most of
the developing countries would much prefer to receive
much less foreign assistance provided the rules of interna-
tional trade were modified—the way the prices of raw
materials, of commodities, are determined; that we do not
wish any more to see the free market determine at what
prices those commodities are going to be fixed.

Would you indicate to us to what extent you would
really benefit from, on one hand, a reduction in the level of
foreign assistance nad, on the other hand, a new structure
in the field of international trade?

Mr. McIntyre: The fact, as I said earlier, is that you are
quite right, that developing countries start from the basic
proposition—many developing countries, at any rate—that,
in accordance with their own desire for self-reliance and so
on, they will increasingly prefer an international situation
whereby they were earning their foreign exchange from
trade than merely through concessional assistance from
developed countries. I think this is true.

[Interprétation]

Dans notre travail, nous sommes bien conscients des
limites du programme d’assistance au secteur rural car
c’est dans ce domaine que la misére existe. C’est la que se
trouve le probléme actuellement. Nous sommes certains
que c’est a ¢a que pensaient les chefs de gouvernements
lorsqu’ils nous ont demandé de nous prononcer sur ce
probléme. Comme vous le savez, on a traité en profondeur
de ce probléme ailleurs; néanmoins, nous pensons que nous
devrions dire certaines choses, d’aprés nos propres
expériences.

M. Anderson: Merci beaucoup, monsieur le président. Je
vais donner aux autres membres le temps de poser des
questions.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Anderson. Monsieur
Duclos. :

M. Duclos: Merci, monsieur le président. Soyez le bien-
venu, monsieur McIntyre.

Vous vous étes rendu compte déja que le Canada
approuve le but que vous voulez atteindre. Je pense que la
population du Canada en général est méme disposée a
admettre que le niveau de vie des pays développés a été
atteint dans une certaine mesure sur le dos des pays en
voie de développement.

A T'heure actuelle, il faut se rendre compte du fait que les
modifications que nous voudrions apporter, par exemple
dans le domaine du commerce international, ne peuvent se
faire instantanément. Il faut tenir compte de la conjonc-
ture actuelle. Nous sommes tous des hommes politiques ici,
et je pense qu’il est facile de vouloir apporter des change-
ments; cependant, nous devons faire face a des situations
bien concrétes. Par exemple, je pense au probléme ayant
trait aux politiques d’importation. Je sais que dans certains
pays en voie de développement on voudrait développer une
industrie textile qui aurait un accés plus facile aupres des
marchés occidentaux, mais on doit tenir compte des proble-
mes qui s’y soulévent. Il faut admettre que les pays déve-
loppés devront s’adapter a ces nouvelles situations.

J’aimerais vous poser une question quant a ces change-
ments dans les conditions de ’échange dans le domaine du
commerce international, par rapport a 'aide étrangeére.

On nous a souvent répété que la majorité des pays en
voie de développement préféreraient de beaucoup que
l'aide étrangeére soit diminuée mais que la structure du
commerce international soit modifiée, c’est-a-dire la fisa-
tion des prix des matiéres premiéres, des denrées, etc; ils ne
veulent plus que le marché libre soit le seul critére de
fixation des prix.

Pourriez-vous nous dire dans quelle mesure vous auriez
vraiment avantage a obtenir une diminution de l'aide
étrangeére, d'une part, et une restructuration du commerce
international, d’autre part?

M. McIntyre: Vous avez tout a fait raison d’affirmer que
les pays en voie de développement, tout au moins la majo-
rité d’entre eux, préconisent un systéme international qui
leur permettrait d’accumuler des recettes grace au com-
merce et non pas simplement grace a 'aide plus ou moins
conditionnelle des pays industrialisés.
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But I think also one has to recognize that, despite all that
can be done in the field of international trade, even to
maintain the minimal targets of the second development
decade, authentic international sources, which do not like
to be quoted, believe that it will require—and all that I am
talking about is what has been done in the trade field up to
1980, which are the figures which I have had the benefit of
examining—it will require a stepped-up effort in the field
of aid. And it is simply for the reason that I have indicated
before, that for some developing countries—and these
happen to be the poorest, with per capita incomes of less
than two hundred dollars a year—only limited advantage
could be taken of better terms for commodity trade, and
virtually none in respect of better terms for manufactured
exports.

Because, after all, it is only a handful of developing
countries that have any exporting manufacturers on any
significant scale: Brazil, Mexico, Egypt, India, Pakistan,
Taiwan, Singapore—then you have almost had it. For the
rest, it is a secondary exercise and for some, they just do
not exist. So that tariff cuts and easier access would help
some developing countries, but would not necessarily help
the poorest right now. Perhaps it might help them in ten
years’ time—allow them to plan with greater confidence
for the future, and so on. So one needs this.

But the effort over the next five to ten years: I think all
the assessments indicate, whether or not they differ in
numbers, that a renewed effort in the field of trade would
have to be accompanied by a stronger effort also in the
field of aid. And in this connection, some people believe
that the first step is to try and get all of the developed
countries, irrespective of their social and economic sys-
tems, to adhere to and implement the UN target of 0.7 per
cent for official development assistance. I did not put a
time on it: I just said to get them to implement as early as
possible.

The Chairman: Mr. Duclos.
Mr. Duclos: I will pass.
The Chairman: Thank you.
Mr. Breau.

Mr. Breau: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would just like
to ask Mr. McIntyre what he foresees as the tone for the
debate; say, now. We know that there has been a great
push in the UN and elsewhere on the part of the same
alliance that has been very cohesive—and probably rightly
so; and we are happy to see that there is some solidarity in
the UN and elsewhere—the alliance of the group of 77
which has now increased to over 100, with the Arabs and
with some from the Far East; but really, when one looks at
the oil price changes of 1973 and 1974, and you see that
some people who are part of the alliance are the same
people who intervene and push for these prices, and that
some of the people who have been thrown behind for 10
and maybe 15 years in their development plans are the
less-developed countries, some countries like Canada, and
also in Europe, adjustments have been difficult but we
have been able to adjust but an awful lot of countries have
not been able to adjust. In the year 1974, I believe, for some
of them, the total meant about $10 billion to $15 billion
more, that is, the cumulative amount. It is fantastic!

[Interpretation]

Cependant, malgré tout ce qui peut étre fait dans le
domaine du commerce international, et méme si nous con-
servons les objectifs minimums de la seconde décennie de
développement, certaines autorités internationales préfé-
ront garder l'anonymat estiment que nous devrons jus-
qu’en 1980 au moins doubler nos efforts dans le domaine de
l'aide aux pays en voie de développement. Et ceci, pour la
raison que j’ai déja indiquée, a savoir que certains pays en
voie de développement, et surtout les plus pauvres, la ou le
revenu par habitant est inférieur a $200 par an, ne voient
que des avantages trés limités a améliorer le commerce des
denrées et pratiquement aucun dans le domaine de l'expor-
tation des produits finis.

En effet, trés peu de pays en voie de développement
possédent des industries de fabrication relativement
importantes et orientées vers 'exportation; ces pays com-
prennent: le Brésil, le Mexique, 'Egypte, I'Inde, le Pakis-
tan, Taiwan, Singapour, et c’est & peu prés tout. Pour les
autres, ce n'est qu'un aspect secondaire voire inexistant.
En conséquence, une diminution des tarifs douaniers et
une plus grande liberté des échanges ne favoriseraient que
certains pays en voie de développement et absolument pas
les pays les plus pauvres. Ceci vaut pour le présent mais il
se peut que, d’ici dix ans, une telle restructuration du
commerce international tourne a 'avantage des pays les
plus pauvres; mais pour cela, il leur faudrait notamment
planifier avec une plus grande confiance en I'avenir.

Pour les cinq a dix prochaines années, selon les conclu-
sions d'un grand nombre d’études effectuées dans ce
domaine, tout effort dans le domaine du commerce interna-
tional devra s'accompagner d'un effort encore plus impor-
tant dans celui de l'aide extérieure. A cet égard, certains
estiment que la premiére étape a franchir est de convaincre
tous les pays industrialisés, quel que soit leur systéme
social et économique, d’accepter et d’appliquer I'objectif de
0.7 p. 100 fixé par 'ONU en ce qui concerne 'aide officielle
au développement. Vous remarquerez que je n'ai pas fixé
de date et que j’ai simplement parlé de convaincre les pays
industrialisés d’appliquer cette régle le plus tot possible.

Le président: Monsieur Duclos.

M. Duclos: Je passe mon tour.

Le président: Merci.

Monsieur Breau.

Mr. Breau: Merci, monsieur le président. Je voudrais
demander 2 M. McIntyre s’il a une idée de l'orientation que
vont prendre les débats. En effet, il semble que 'ONU ait
adopté une attitude de solidarité, ce dont il faut la féliciter,
d’autant plus que cette alliance, qui réunissait 77 pays, en
compte maintenant plus de 100, avec les Arabes et d'autres
pays du Moyen-Orient. Cependant, il ne faut pas oublier
que les hausses de 1973-1974 des prix du pétrole ont été
instaurées par des Etats membres de cette alliance et que
certains des pays qui se sont retrouvés avec un retard de
dix 4 quinze ans sont les pays les moins industrialisés;
certains de ces pays, comme le Canada et méme des pays
européens, ont eu des difficultés a s’adapter; nous y avons
réussi, mais beaucoup d’autres ont échoué. Pour certains
d’entre eux, ces hausses représentaient en 1974, un total de
10 a4 15 milliards de dollars et méme davantage. C'est
absolument incroyable!
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Out of maybe the $50 billion or $60 billion that the oil
price increases brought to the other countries—and I think
that is the figure, $50 to $60 billion in 1974—$10 to $15
billion came from the developing countries and the less
developed countries.

Can we foresee that these people will continue aligning
themselves with the same type of alliance when, really,
some of the things that have been happening in interna-
tional economics happened to hurt them instead of helping
them. Are we going through an exercise where the stronger
amongs the developing countries will benefit as you have
rightly pointed out, through the question of tariffs? That
helps those that have industries. What about those that do
not have industries? And even worse, what about those
who need the by-products from the commodities we are
talking about? So, do you really see the same type of
political alliance or do you see a different type of economic
alliance maybe among certain countries?

Mr. McIntyre: I would doubt very much that the broad
political alliance represented by the Group of Seven, will
change in the immediate future, though I would suppose
that as the debate develops, emphases in the group might
change, as they have changed.

Some years ago the leadership of the group was concen-
trated in Latin America, more recently among the Middle
East OPEC countries and one can conceive of situations
where, as the issues change, the leadership and the style
and the emphasis is going to change.

I want to leave with you the thought that the world is a
very heterogenous place and every act of policy benefits
someone and hurts others. In the industrialized world we
have manufacturing countries that also have important
primary producing interests: North America, Australia,
and so on. So something that is done, broadly speaking,
against primary producing interests is not necessarily in
the interests of all developing countries. Likewise some
things that are done in favour of the primary producing
interest would not necessarily be in the interest of all
developing countries. Therefore, we are constantly faced
with these conflicts.

I would hope, however, that one would look at the matter
in the context of one of my opening observations which
was that the time for flambuoyant rhetoric is passed. If
people are really serious about talking about these issues,
then negotiated postures have to be developed and this
must presume a desire for consensus and accommodation
of different points of view. I feel, from the very limited
effort that we undertook in our tour over the past two
weeks, some kind of consensus is possible and is worth
working for. But it would require moderation on both sides
and an understanding that everybody has problems, rich
and poor, industrialized and primary producing and the
real hope is that the balance of advantage would, in the
end, make the world a better place to live in.

Mr. Breau: I think I made the point that we did not
necessarily suffer the most from the oil price changes.

[Interprétation]

Sur les 50 a 60 milliards de dollars que les hausses du
prix du pétrole ont apportées aux autres pays,—je pense
que ce chiffre de 50 a 60 milliards se rapportait a I'année
1974,—10 a 15 milliards venaient des pays en voie de déve-
loppement et des pays les moins industrialisés.

Pensez-vous que ces pays vont continuer a adhérer a une
alliance qui, au lieu de les aider, leur crée encore plus de
difficultés sur le plan de I’économie internationale. Vou-
lons-nous vraiment que ce soit les pays en voie de dévelop-
pement les plus riches qui bénéficient d’'une restructura-
tion du commerce international? Les pays en voie de
développement les plus riches sont évidemment ceux qui
ont des industries; alors, qu’adviendra-t-il de ceux qui n’en
n’ont pas? Qui plus est, que feront ceux qui ont besoin des
sous-produits de ces denrées dont nous parlons? A votre
avis, aurons-nous le méme type d’alliance politique ou
s’agira-t-il d’'une alliance économique entre certains pays?

M. Mclntyre: Je ne pense pas que 'alliance politique que
représente le groupe des Sept changera dans un avenir
proche; cependant, je pense que des modifications pour-
raient intervenir au sein de ce groupe au fur et a mesure de
la polémique.

I1 y a quelques années, les chefs de file de ce groupe se
trouvaient en Amérique latine; aujourd’hui, ce sont les
pays de 'OPEP, au Moyen-Orient, et il est fort probable
que ceci changera encore selon les circonstances et les
problémes qui se poseront.

I1 faut bien garder en mémoire que le monde est extré-
mement hétérogéne et, qu'en conséquence, toute politique
destinée a avantager certains pays en lése automatique-
ment d’autres. Dans notre monde industrialisé, certains
pays dont I’économie repose essentiellement sur I'industrie
de la fabrication ont également des intéréts importants de
la production de matiéres premiéres; il s’agit de ’Amérique
du Nord, de I’Australie etc. Donc, toutes les mesures prises
a l'encontre des intéréts de la production de matiéres
premiéres ne favorisent pas nécessairement les intéréts de
tous les pays en voie de développement. De la méme facon,
les mesures qui sont prises en faveur de la production de
matiéres premiéres ne bénéficient pas automatiquement a
tous les pays en voie de développement. Nous sommes donc
constamment en présence de ces conflits.

J'aimerais cependant que vous gardiez en mémoire les
remarques que j’'ai faites au début de la séance, a savoir
que l'époque de la rhétorique flamboyante est totalement
dépassée. Si les pays veulent vraiment s’attaquer a ces
problémes, il faut alors définir une position de négotiation,
ce qui nécessite par ailleurs la volonté ferme de parvenir a
un consensus et a un réglement des différents. Au cours
des discussions que nous avons eues ces deux derniéres
semaines, je pense qu'un consensus est possible et que cela
mérite tous nos efforts. Cependant, il faut que chaque
partie en présence fasse preuve de modération et de com-
préhension car chaque pays a ses propres problémes qu'il
soit riche ou pauvre, industrialisé ou fournisseur de matie-
res premiéres, et notre objectif doit-étre de parvenir a un
certain équilibre, lequel est la condition préalable a un
monde meilleur.

M. Breau: Je pense avoir indiqué clairement que le
Canada n’avait pas forcément souffert le plus de I'augmen-
tation du prix du pétrole.
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The Chairman: Thank you very much, Mr. Breau and
Mr. Mclntyre.

Unfortunately, I must bring this excellent and very, very
interesting meeting to an end. I know that the members of
the Committee would like me to express our gratitude and
appreciation for having accepted a request on such short
notice to meet with the members of the Committee. I know
you are anxious to fly home this afternoon. I understand
your taxi is waiting for you, so thank you very much, Mr.
Mclntyre.

Mr. McIntyre: Thank you very much.

The Chairman: Thank you very much Mr. McDougal
and Mr. Overend.

Perhaps members of the Committee would stay for a few
more minutes. We have a few items of business to attend to
and then we will all go.

" The members will remember, of course, that at our last
meeting last Tuesday a motion was tabled by Mr. Roche.

This is the motion that Mr. Roche moved:

That this Committee invite the Research Branch of the
Parliamentary Library to prepare a short background
paper on the events leading up to the Seventh Special
Session of the United Nations, for information pur-
poses only.

Of course, this is for your information from the Minutes
that after debate, the motion was allowed to stand pending
a recommendation from the Subcommittee on Agenda and
Procedure.

The Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure met this
morning and it was understood that the Chairman of the
Subcommittee would be authorized to seek the services of
a member of the Library Research Branch for the duration
of our study of the question which was referred to us in
our terms of reference. So, if it is agreeable to Mr. Roche, if
he wants to withdraw his motion we have an understand-
ing that we will seek the assistance of the personnel from
the Research Branch of the Library.

Mr. Roche: In the spirit of the co-operation that we had
at the steering committee meeting this morning, which
gives me great hope for the development of this Commit-
tee’s work, and in the spirit that I think we just heard so
eloquently from our guest who just left, I would be glad to
withdraw and leave that matter in your hands, Mr. Chair-
man, to ensure that the Committee has available the
research which is necessary in order for us to come to our
judgments in the months ahead.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Roche.

Avons-nous l'accord du Comité pour autoriser le prési-
dent 8 communiquer—? Merci. Thank you.

So the members of the Subcommittee agree that its
general working paper should be sent to all members of the
Committee for their benefit?

Some hon. Members: Agreed.

[Interpretation]

Le président: Merci beaucoup, messieurs Breau et
Mclntyre.

Malheureusement, je dois mettre un terme a cette réu-
nion extrémement intéressante. Au nom des membres de ce
Comité, je voudrais exprimer ma gratitude et mes remer-
ciements a M. McIntyre pour avoir accepté de comparaitre
malgré une convocation tardive. Je sais qu'il a hate de
rentrer chez lui cet aprés-midi et un taxi 'attend a la porte.
Merci beaucoup, monsieur McIntyre.

M. Mclntyre: Merci beaucoup.

Le président: Merci beaucoup, messieurs McDougal et
Overend.

J'espere que les membres du Comité voudront bien
rester quelques minutes de plus car nous avons plusieurs
questions a régler avant de lever la séance.

Les députés se rappelleront, bien sur, que lors de notre
derniére réunion, mardi dernier, M. Roche a déposé la
motion suivante:

Je lis:

Que le Comité invite le Service des recherches de la
Bibliothéque du Parlement a préparer un bref résumé
historique des événements qui ont précédé la Septiéme
session spéciale des Nations Unies, uniquement a des
fins d’information.

Pour votre information, on constate d’apreés le procés-ver-
bal qu’on a réservé cette motion, aprés discussion, en atten-
dant de recevoir la recommandation du sous-comité du
programme et de la procédure.

Le sous-comité du programme et de la procédure s’est
réuni ce matin, et il a été conclu que le président du
sous-comité serait autorisé a solliciter les services d'un
membre du Service des recherches de la Bibliothéque pen-
dant la durée de notre étude de cette question qui nous a
été renvoyée comme faisant partie de notre mandat. Si
donc M. Roche est d’accord, il pourrait retirer sa motion
étant donné que nous allons demander l'aide du personnel

du Service de recherches de la Bibliothéque.

M. Roche: L’esprit de coopération qui s’est fait sentir
lors de la réunion ce matin du comité de direction me
permet un grand espoir pour l'avancement des travaux du
Comité, et a été renforcé par I'éloquence de notre invité qui
vient de partir. Je serais donc trés heureux de retirer ma
motion et de m’en remettre a vous, monsieur le président,
dans toute cette question, a savoir d’assurer au Comité les
services de recherches nécessaires pour que nous puissions
arriver aux décisions qui s’'imposeront au cours des mois a
venir.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Roche.

Do we have the Committee’s agreement to authorize the
Chairman to communicate with . ..? Thank you. Merci.

Les membres du sous-comité sont donc d’accord pour que
son document général de travail soit envoyé a tous les
membres du Comité?

Des voix: D'accord.
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The Chairman: Agreed. Thank you. Le président: D’accord. Merci.

Mr. Roche: May I go back? M. Roche: Puis-je reprendre la parole?

The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Roche.

Mr. Roche: I know you do not want to formalize it too
much but, because of the nature of the discussion at our
previous meeting on Tuesday, I wonder if it would be
advisable if you wrote a letter as the Chairman of the
Subcommittee to Mr. Laundy, the Director of the Research
Branch, apprizing him of the results of our discussion to
that he will understand the optimistic and forward manner
in which we want to move and in which we invite him to
share. If you would write that letter I think that would
resolve the whole matter.

The Chairman: Agreed?
Some hon. Members: Agreed.

I will leave with the Clerk the responsibility of drafting
such a letter within the spirit you just mentioned.

I think we have a few names of people who are going to
be able to go to the Special Session in New York in
September. There are also some new developments that I
should advise you about. We were informed by Mr. Mac-
Eachen that he is going to write to the Whips and suggest
to the Whips of the different parties that we have a
delegation of two, two, one and one. That is, two members
of the Conservative Party, two members of the Liberal
Party, one NDP and one Créditiste to be delegates to the
Special Session in September.

An hon. Member: Observers.

The Chairman: I am sorry, not delegates but observers,
for the duration of the Special Session between September
2 and September 15. I understand there will be no provi-
sion for transportation for the spouses of the members but,
of course, the hotel charges nothing extra for the spouse in
the hotel room. Of course, the cost for meals and transpor-
tation of the spouses should be looked after by the
members.

® 1605

We are still pursuing the idea of having a briefing ses-

sion, either in New York on September 1 or possibly

before, some time in August. As soon as we know who is

going to New York, the members will be advised of this
possibility.

Did you have a question, Mr. Francis?

Mr. Francis: I was not sure my name was included
among those interested in doing this.

The Chairman: All right. I do not know who is going to
be—Mr. Philbrook.

Mr. Philbrook: Mr. Chairman, not only would we like
our names included, but would it be possible to have them
ranked or something so that in case there is a last-minute
dropout, one of us can be slotted in?

The Chairman: Yes. All members of the Committee will
have all the documents pertaining to this special session,
not only the members of the subcommittee but all mem-
bers of the Committee.

Le président: D’accord, monsieur Roche.

M. Roche: Je sais bien que vous ne tenez pas a rendre
ceci trop formel, mais étant donné la nature de notre
discussion de la derniére réunion, celle de mardi, je me
demande si vous ne devriez pas écrire une lettre en tant
que président du sous-comité, & M. Laundy, directeur des
Services de recherches, pour lui apprendre les résultats de
notre discussion, et pour qu’il comprenne la direction opti-
miste et progressiste a laquelle nous voulons qu’il contri-
bue. J'estime qu'une telle lettre résoudrait toute cette
question.

Le président: D’accord?
Des voix: D’accord.

Je vais laisser au greffier la responsabilité de la rédac-
tion d'une telle lettre, dans le sens que vous venez
d’indiquer.

Je crois que nous avons les noms de certaines personnes
qui vont pouvoir assister a la sesseion spéciale, a New York
en septembre. A ce propos, il y a aussi de nouveaux événe-
ments dont je dois vous informer. M. MacEachen a dit qu’il
va écrire au Whip des différents partis pour proposer une
délégation selon la formule deux, deux, un et un. C'est-a-
dire que la délégation qui serait envoyée a cette session
spéciale en septembre consisterait de deux membres du
parti Conservateur, de deux Libéraux, d'un député NPD et
d’un Créditiste.

Une voix: En observateurs.

Le président: Excusez-moi, il ne s’agit pas de délégués
mais d’observateurs, pour la durée de la session spéciale,
du 2 au 15 septembre. Je crois savoir qu’il n'y aura aucune
disposition pour le transport des épouses des députés, mais
il va sans dire que les hotels ne font pas payer de supplé-
ment pour l'épouse. Evidemment, les députés devront
payer eux-mémes les repas et les frais de voyage de leurs
épouses.

Nous étudions encore la possibilité de tenir une séance
d’information, soit le 1= septembre a New York, soit a
I'avance, au mois d’aoQt. Dés que nous saurons les nom de
ceux qui devront aller a New York, nous informerons les
députés sur cette possibilité.

Vous aviez une question a poser, monsieur Francis?

M. Francis: Je ne suis pas sGr si mon nom se trouve
parmi ceux qui s'intéressent a faire cela.

Le président: Trés bien. Je ne sais pas au juste qui doit
étre. Monsieur Philbrook.

M. Philbrook: Non seulement nous aimerions que nos
noms se trouvent sur la liste, monsieur le président, mais
aussi ne serait-il pas possible d’établir un ordre de priori-
tés, quelque chose de ce genre, pour que, si quelqu'un se
retirait a la derniére minute, il soit facile de le remplacer?

Le preésident: Oui. Tous les membres du Comité rece-
vront tous les documents portant sur cette session spéciale,
non seulement les membres du sous-comité mais tous les
membres du Comité.
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Miss Bégin: And the substitutes.

The Chairman: Oh, yes. What I seek now is ratification
of the subcommittee on the formation of the steering com-
mittee on agenda and procedure. The subcommittee is
composed of the Chairman of the Committee plus five
other members. Do we have ratification of the subcommit-
tee on the forming of that steering committee on agenda
and procedure?

An hon. Member: Agreed.

Mr. Lapointe: I move that the Chairman, and five mem-
bers chosen by the Chairman after the usual consultation,
do compose the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure.

Motion agreed to.

Le président: D’accord. M. Lapointe, appuyé par M.
Francis.

As there is no other business, this committee stands
adjourned to the call of the Chair.

[Interpretation]
Mlle Bégin: Ainsi que les remplacants.

Le président: Oh, oui. J'aimerais maintenant que le sous-
comité ratifie la formation du comité directeur du pro-
gramme et de la procédure. Le sous-comité est composé du
président du Comité et de cing autres membres. Le sous-
comité ratifie-t-il la formation de ce comité directeur du
programme et de la procédure?

Une voix: D’accord.

M. Lapointe: Je propose que le Sous-comité du pro-
gramme et de la procédure soit composé du président et de
cinqg membres choisis par le président a la suite des consul-
tations habituelles.

(La motion est adoptée.)

The Chairman: Agreed. Moved by Mr. Lapointe, second-
ed by Mr. Francis.

Comme il ne reste plus rien a I'ordre du jour, la séance
est levée jusqu’a nouvelle convocation du président.
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[Text] [Traduction]

The Sub-committee on International Development of the
Standing Committee on External Affairs and National
Defence met this day at 8:12 o’clock p.m.

Members of the Sub-committee present: Messrs. Anderson,
Brewin, Gendron, Laprise, MacDonald (Egmont), Marceau,
Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich) and Roche.

Other Members present: Messrs. Francis and Philbrook.

The Clerk of the Sub-committee having informed the
Committee of the absence of the Chairman on motion of
Mr. Gendron, it was agreed that Mr. Anderson do take the
Chair of the Sub-committee as Acting-Chairman until
such time as the Chairman returns.

On motion of Mr. MacDonald (Egmont) it was agreed
that the Sub-committee be authorized to make small pur-
chases of publications for its own use during the course of
its deliberations.

The Sub-committee resumed consideration of its Order
of Reference dated July 3, 1975 (See Minutes of Proceedings,
Tuesday, July 22, 1975, Issue No. 1).

Mr. Roche moved,—That the document entitled “Poss-
ible Broad Topics for Committee Study of International
Development Cooperation” be accepted as amended as a
working document for the Sub-Committee.

After debate thereon, the question being put on the
motion, it was agreed to.

At 8:53 o'clock p.m., the Sub-committee adjourned to the
call of the Chair.

Le sous-comité du développement international du
Comité permanent des affaires extérieures et de la défense
nationale se réunit aujourd’hui a 20 h 12.

Membres du sous-comité présents: MM. Anderson, Brewin,
Gendron, Laprise, MacDonald (Egmont), Marceau, Munro
(Esquimault-Saanich) et Roche.

Autres députés présents: MM. Francis et Philbrook.

Le greffier du sous-comité informe les membres du
Comité de l'absence du président et, sur motion de M.
Gendron, il est convenu que M. Anderson prenne place au
fauteuil a titre de président suppléant jusqu’au retour du
président.

Sur motion de M. MacDonald (Egmont), il est convenu
que le sous-comité soit autorisé a faire des achats minimes
de publications pour son propre usage au cours des
délibérations.

Le sous-comité poursuit 1'étude de son ordre de renvoi
du 3 juillet 1975 (Voir procés-verbal du mardi 22 juillet 1975,
fascicule n° 1).

M. Roche propose: Que le document intitulé «Liste de
sujets généraux que pourra étudier le Comité en matiére
de coopération au développement international» soit
adopté tel que modifié en tant que document de travail
pour le sous-comité.

Apres débat, la motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

A 20 h 53, le sous-comité suspend ses travaux jusqu’a
nouvelle convocation du président.

Le greffier du sous-comité

Christine Hamilton
Clerk of the Sub-committee
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The Clerk: I would like to inform the members of the
subcommittee of the unavoidable absence of the Chairman.

An hon. Member: Have we a Vice-Chairman?
The Clerk: No.

M. Gendron: Il me fait plaisir de présenter un collégue
fort distingué en la personne de M. Hugh Anderson pour
agir a titre de président de notre Sous-comité, ce soir.

The Clerk: The members have heard the motion. Is it
agreed that Mr. Anderson take the Chair as Acting Chair-
man until Mr. Dupras’ return?

Motion agreed to.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): This subcom-
mittee has met on two occasions in the last few weeks and
I would like to advise the Committee that the steering
committee has determined the following schedule: the
Minister of External Affairs to be invited to appear on
Thursday, November 6, at 3.30 p.m., and I have been
informed that the Minister will attend.

Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Thursday?

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Yes, November
6, at 3.30 p.m. Mr. Robinson, the Under Secretary of State
has been invited to appear on Thursday, November 13, also
at 3.30 p.m. Mr. Gérin-Lajoie, President of CIDA, will be
invited to appear on Tuesday, November 18, at 8.00 p.m.

Professor G. Helliner, of the University of Toronto has
been invited to appear on Thursday, November 20, at 11.00
a.m.

I undestand that these people have all confirmed their
attendance, so that will take us up to November 20. The
steering committee will meet either this week or next to
draw up the schedule for the period following November
20. There was some doubt as to whether the Minister would
make it Thursday but it has now been confirmed. So the
schedule should be all right until November 20, unless
there are some unforseseen changes.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): Could I have the times
again?
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The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): November 6 at

3.30 p.m.; November 13 at 3.30 p.m.; November 18 at 8 p.m;
and November 20 at 11 a.m.

Mr. Munro.

Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Has any thought been
given to inviting someone from the International Develop-
ment Research Centre to appear? Dr. Hopper, for example?

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Mr. Munro, the
subcommittee could certainly take that into consideration.

Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): You do not know if
they have considered it?

Le mardi 4 novembre 1975.

[Interpretation]

Le greffier: J'aimerais prévenir les membres du sous-
comité de 'absence inévitable du président.

Une voix: Avons-nous un vice-président?
Le greffier: Non.

Mr. Gendron: It gives me great pleasure to introduce a
most honourable colleague, Mr. Hugh Anderson, as Chair-
man of our Sub-Committee this evening.

Le greffier: Vous avez entendu la motion, messieurs.
Etes-vous d’accord pour que M. Anderson agisse a titre de
président intérimaire jusqu’au retour de M. Dupras?

Motion adoptée.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Le présent sous-
comité s’est réuni a deux reprises au cours des derniéres
semaines; je voudrais informer le Comité que le comité
directeur a établi le calendrier suivant: le ministre des
Affaires extérieures est invité a comparaitre le jeudi 6
novembre a 15 h 30. On m’a fait savoir que le ministre
viendrait.

M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Le jeudi?

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Oui, le 6 novem-
bre i 15 h 30. M. Robinson, le sous-secrétaire d’Etat doit
venir le jeudi 13 novembre a 15 h 30. M. Gérin-Lajoie,
président de ’ACDI, sera appelé a comparaitre le mardi 18
novembre a 20 h 00.

Le professeur G. Helliner de I'Université de Toronto a
été invité 4 comparaitre le jeudi 20 novembre a 11 h 00.

Si j'ai bien compris, ces personnes ont confirmé qu’elles
viendraient; donc, notre horaire est rempli jusqu'au 20
novembre. Le comité directeur se réunira cette semaine ou
la semaine prochaine afin d’établir I'ordre du jour a comp-
ter du 20 novembre. La présence du ministre ici jeudi vient
d’étre confirmée. Notre emploi du temps est donc complet
jusqu’au 20 novembre, & moins de modifications
imprévues.

M. Macdonald (Egmeont): Pourriez-vous répéter les
heures une fois de plus?

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Le 6 novembre a
15 h 30, le 13 novembre a 15 h 30, le 18 novembre a
20 h 00 et le 20 novembre a 11 h 00.

Monsieur Munro.

M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): A-t-on songé a inviter
un membre du Centre de recherches pour le développe-
ment international? M. Hopper par exemple?

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Monsieur
Munro, le sous-comité prend bonne note de votre
suggestion.

M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Savez-vous si le sous-
comité y a déja pensé?
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The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): No, I cannot say
at this time, Mr. Munro, but certainly that is well taken.

Mr. MacDonald.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): I have a related question. I
am concerned about the framework in which we will be
carrying on these meetings and the general purpose of
them, in terms of any kind of investigation report we
might be making.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Could I defer
that? We are going to be dealing with it later in the
meeting. I first of all wanted to get your concurrence on
the first four meetings. We will be discussing the frame-
work at a later point.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): Fair enough.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): We have run
into some small expenses for the purchasing of publica-
tions. I ask for a motion at this time that the subcommittee
be authorized to make small purchases of publications for
its own use during the course of the deliberations. Could I
have a mover?

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): I so move.

Mr. Philbrook: Mr. Chairman, what kinds of publica-
tions, and from what source of funds?

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): The subcommit-
tee has been authorized, first of all, with funds. The publi-
cations were purchased at the United Nations in New York
at the Seventh Special Session, which several delegates
from the subcommittee attended. I must in all honesty say
to you that the slight amount of funds, three or four
dollars, has already been spent. All we are asking for is
authorization for them.

Mr. Philbrook: Okay, fine. If it is going to be substantial
in future, however, I think it would be worth while refer-
ring it to the committee.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): At the time we
were in New York Parliament was not in session, and we
felt this was the proper way of doing it. Could I have a
mover?

Mr. Philbrook: I want my suggestion to stand.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): I would like at
this time to read a letter from Mr. Gérin-Lajoie addressed
to Mr. Dupras. I would like this in the record.

As the newly-formed Parliamentary Sub-Committee
on International Development, under your chairman-
ship, prepares to meet when Parliament resumes in
October, I wish to offer the assistance of CIDA in your
deliberations.

The reference from Parliament to the Standing
Committee on External Affairs and National Defence
which empowers your Sub-Committee “to examine
and report upon the full range of policies in the field of
international development” is necessarily of keen in-
terest to this Agency, which carries the mandate for
the Canadian Government's program of development
cooperation.

[Interprétation]

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Je ne saurais
vous le dire pour l'instant, monsieur Munro, mais soyez
assuré qu'il en prend bonne note.

Monsieur MacDonald.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Ma question est connexe et
elle a trait au cadre de référence de nos séances, a leur but,
a une enquéte éventuelle ou a un rapport éventuel que
nous présenterions.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): J'y reviendrai.
Nous aborderons ce sujet plus tard au cours de la séance.
Je voulais avant tout obtenir votre accord sur les quatre
premiéres séances. Nous parlerons du cadre de référence
un peu plus tard.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Trés bien.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Nous faisons
face a quelques petites dépenses pour l'achat de publica-
tions. Il faudrait présenter une motion portant que le
sous-comité soit autorisé a faire de petites dépenses pour
I’achat de publications dont il se servira au cours des
délibérations. Quelqu’un veut-il présenter la motion?

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Je veux bien.

M. Philbrook: Monsieur le président, de quel genre de
publications s’agit-il et d’ol tirera-t-on I'argent?

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Tout d’abord, le
sous-comité a des fonds a sa disposition. On a acheté ces
publications aux Nations Unies a New York lors de la
septiéme session spéciale a laquelle ont assisté plusieurs
délégués du sous-comité. En toute honnéteté, je dois
admettre que cette petite somme, $3 ou $4, a déja été
dépensée. C’est maintenant que nous vous demandons
I'autorisation.

M. Philbrook: Trés bien. Cependant, si, a ’avenir, cette
somme devait devenir plus importante, je crois qu’il vau-
drait la peine de soumettre la chose au Comité.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Lorsque nous
étions a New York, le Parlement ne siégeait pas et nous
avons cru bon d’agir ainsi. Est-ce que quelqu’un veut bien
présenter la motion?

M. Philbrook: Je maintiens ma suggestion.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Je voudrais
maintenant vous lire une lettre de M. Gérin-Lajoie a M.
Dupras. Je voudrais qu’elle soit consignée au compte
rendu.

J'aimerais vous offrir la collaboration de I'ACDI
dans les délibérations du sous-comité sur le développe-
ment international qui se réunira sous votre prési-
dence au mois d'octobre dés que la Chambre reprendra
ses travaux.

L’Agence dont le mandat est de mettre en applica-
tion le programme canadien de coopération pour le
développement s’intéresse au plus haut point a l'ordre
de renvoi que le Parlement a confié au Comité perma-
nent des affaires extérieures et de la défense nationale,
lequel a chargé le sous-comité «d’étudier toute la
gamme de politiques en matiére de développement
international et d’en faire rapports.
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No doubt the recently published “Canada—Strategy
for International Development Cooperation— 1975-
1980 will be of special interest to the Sub-Committee.
We would be pleased to provide a detailed commentary
of this Strategy if you so desire.

In an Annex to this letter I am taking the liberty of
suggesting a variety of possible forms of assistance
that CIDA could provide to your Sub-Committee in
the months ahead.

Finally, Mr. Chairman, it gives me pleasure to
extend to the members of the Sub-Committee, through
you, a cordial invitation to a working luncheon at
CIDA at a date convenient to you and your colleagues
before the end of October. On such an occasion my
senior officials and I would be pleased to meet the
members of the Sub-Committee and engage in infor-
mal discussions.

On the Annex, Mr. Gérin-Lajoie says that CIDA would be
pleased to provide the Parliamentary Subcommittee with
the following services, and others, as required. Under Gen-
eral Information, special mailings, background documenta-
tion on CIDA and international development, and library
facilities. Under Special Briefings—and he has in brackets,
“either in the West Block or in CIDA”—Canada’s Strategy
1975-1980, selected policy questions; multilateral, bilateral
and NGO activities, program cycle. Under Assistance with
Travel Arrangements: to visit the developing countries; to
visit selected international agencies. Under Secretariat:
secretariat facilities, resources persons or research assist-
ants. Under Liaison: CIDA’s Parliamentary Liaison Officer
will be at your service to facilitate contact with CIDA, to
arrange appearances of CIDA personnel for briefings.

® 2020
Again, if it meets with the pleasure of the Committee,
perhaps the steering committee could make arrangements
for a meeting with Mr. Gérin-Lajoie and also with mem-
bers of his department. If it is your wish I will refer this to
the Steering Committee to find an appropriate date. I will
circulate this letter and I think the general information as
to facilities which they are prepared to provide for mem-
bers on this Committee is exceedingly important and with
research, secretariat facilities etc., I think this Committee
could make good use of the offer made by CIDA.

I believe everybody has been provided with a copy of the
document entitled: Possible Broad Topics for Committee
Study of International Development Co-operation, which was
prepared for the subcommittee by the Parliamentary
Centre for Foreign Affairs and Foreign Trade. And this
was the part, Mr. MacDonald, where I suggested that any
questions on the framework would be best directed. There
are three broad topics, with subtopics which have been
arranged and I believe these were sent out several days ago
as well as being here at the hearings today but, if you have
had a chance to look at them, it is intended to be a broad
over-all view, not specifically zeroing in on any one area
but hoping to get a very large overspan of the whole
program. Mr. Munro.

[Interpretation]

Les membres du sous-comité trouveront, sans nul
doute, que la publication «Canada, stratégie de coopé-
ration au développement international, 1975-1980» pré-
sente un intérét particulier pour eux. Nous nous
empresserons de vous fournir un commentaire détaillé
de cette stratégie, a votre demande.

En annexe a cette lettre, j'ai pris l'initiative de
proposer la facon dont I'ACDI pourrait préter main
forte au sous-comité dans les mois a venir.

En terminant monsieur le président, j’ai I'honneur
d’inviter tous les membres du Comité a participer a un
déjeuner de travail a 'ACDI, quand il vous conviendra
le mieux a vous et a vos collégues, d’ici la fin du mois
d’octobre. Mes collaborateurs et moi-méme profiterons
de cette occasion pour rencontrer les membres du sous-
comité et pour avoir avec vous des discussions privées.

L’annexe de M. Gérin-Lajoie précise que I'ACDI offre au
sous-comité les services suivants, ou d’autres au besoin:
renseignements généraux, documentation spéciale envoyée
sur demande, documentation générale sur 'ACDI et le
développement international, accés a la bibliothéque. On
propose également d’organiser a notre intention des séan-
ces d’information spéciales, «soit a 'édifice de I'Ouest soit a
IACDID» pour étudier: la stratégie du Canada pour les
années 1975 a 1980, diverses questions ayant trait aux
politiques, les activités multilatérales et bilatérales, les
activités avec les organismes non gouvernementaux et
l'agencement des programmes. On nous offre aussi une
aide-voyages en vue de visiter les pays en voie de dévelop-
pement ainsi que certains organismes internationaux. Au
point de vue secrétariat, on mettrait a notre disposition un
bureau du secrétariat de méme que des conférenciers ou
chargés de recherche. Enfin, 1'agent de liaison parlemen-
taire de 'ACDI sera a votre service pour faciliter les
contacts avec ’ACDI et organiser les séances d’information
animées par le personnel de 'ACDI.

Je répéte que si c'est le désir du Comité, le comité
directeur pourrait organiser une rencontre avec M. Gérin-
Lajoie et certains membres de son organisme. Je puis
demander au comité directeur de fixer une date pour cela.
Je vais distribuer cette lettre qui donne un aperqu des
services que I’ACDI semble préte a fournir aux membres
du Comité en matiére de recherche, de secrétariat, etc.. Je
pense que le Comité ne devrait pas négliger une telle offre
de la part de 'ACDI.

Tout le monde doit avoir recu le document intitulé Liste
des sujets généraux que pourra étudier le Comité en
matiére de coopération au développement international,
préparé par le centre parlementaire pour les affaires exté-
rieures et le commerce extérieur. Et c’est la, monsieur
MacDonald, qu’il faudrait poser les questions portant sur le
cadre général de nos séances. Les trois sujets principaux se
subdivisent et je crois que les documents ont été distribués
il y a quelques jours. De toute fagon nous les avons égale-
ment ici. Je ne sais si vous avez eu le temps d’y jeter un
coup d’'eeil, mais il s'agit d'un apercu général du pro-
gramme plutét que d’'un exposé trés approfondi sur cer-
tains domaines particuliers. Monsieur Munro.
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Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): On a point of order.
You said you were going to circulate the letter. You have
read it into the text and into the Minutes and I, therefore,
think it is another piece of paper we could be spared.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): Well, there is one point.
There may be some delay in actually getting copies of that
report. It depends on the time really.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): I am informed
that approximately 48 hours . . .

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): The report will be printed in
48 hours? Oh well, then I think Mr. Munro is correct likely
that that will be sufficient.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): That is the
inexperience of your Chairman, Mr. MacDonald.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): Well, no, not necessarily, I
know that some reports have taken two or three months
and I just did not want us to be in that position of two or
three weeks.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Fine. Did you
have any comments, Mr. MacDonald, on the possible broad
topics for Committee study?

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): This is the first opportunity
I have had to look at this document. I think the framework,
as it appears here, looks fairly good. I am just wondering
again, in terms of the witnesses that might be called or the
studies that might be commissioned, how we would carry
that out. It is the understanding of the people who will be
coming to appear before us that they will be coming to
make statements or to answer specific questions we have
directed to them? What frame of reference will they get?

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): I believe they
will deal with topics and then appear to answer questions
on that related topic.

Mr. Roche: To expand on that point in answer to Mr.
MacDonald’s question, I think the steering committee had
the idea that this first round of meetings that you have
enunciated with the Minister, Mr. Robinson and Mr. Gérin-
Lajoie would set the broad picture of where Canada is
going in development today and the steering committee at
that point would then zero in on the specific topics that we
are going to explore such as commodities, trade liberaliza-
tion and industrial co-operation, and at that point decide
which technical experts in the country might be available
and useful to the Committee. I think we are not setting at
this stage the entire study but only the opening round, the
broad overview and then that will enable us to zero in.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): That is correct.
I think you have expressed it very well. It was the general
overview to start with and specific at a later point. Mr.
Munro.
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Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): If I may come back to

a matter I am continually raising, perhaps we could have

the papers that are to be presented sent to us in advance so

that we can study them and then start our questioning. A

brief summary by the witnesses, yes, but an hour and 20
minutes by the witnesses, no.

[Interprétation]

M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): J'invoque le Régle-
ment. Vous avez dit que vous distribueriez la lettre.
Comme vous venez de la lire elle figurera a la fois dans nos
délibérations et au procés-verbal et je pense qu'il est inu-
tile de nous la transmettre séparément.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Oui, mais cela pose un proble-
me. Il est possible que 'on ne puisse obtenir d’autres
exemplaires de ce rapport immédiatement. Cela dépend en
fait des délais.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): On me dit qu’il
faut compter environ 48 heures . ..

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Le rapport sera prét dans 48
heures? Eh bien, je pense donc monsieur Munro que cela
devrait suffire.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Votre président
manque d’expérience, monsieur MacDonald.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Non, pas nécessairement; je
sais que pour certains rapports, il a fallu attendre 2 ou 3
mois et je ne voulais pas que cela risque de nous retarder
de 2 a 3 semaines.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Trés bien. Vou-
liez-vous faire certaines observations, monsieur MacDo-
nald, quant & ces sujets généraux que pourra étudier le
Comité?

M. MacDonald (Egmont): C’est la premiére fois que je
vois ce document. Le cadre général semble raisonnable.
Toutefois, je me demande comment nous procéderons pour
entendre certains témoins ou faire préparer telle ou telle
étude. Les gens qui comparaitront devant nous sont-ils
préts a venir faire des déclarations ou a répondre a des
questions précises que nous leur aurons posées? Comment
procéder?

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Je pense qu’ils
traiteront d'un sujet particulier et qu’ils viendront par la
suite répondre aux questions.

M. Roche: Pour revenir a la réponse donnée a M. MacDo-
nald, je pense que le comité directeur espérait que cette
premiére série de réunions avec le ministre, M. Robinson et
M. Gérin-Lajoie, permettrait d’établir en gros quelle est la
position du Canada dans le domaine du développement.
Par la suite, le comité directeur mettrait I'accent sur cer-
tains sujets particuliers comme les produits, la libéralisa-
tion des conditions du commerce et la coopération indus-
trielle; c’est alors qu'on verrait quels experts il serait
possible et utile d’inviter & comparaitre. Je pense que nous
n’en sommes pas encore a établir notre programme entier,
mais seulement a prévoir une sorte d’introduction, ou
d’apergu général qui nous permettra par la suite de nous
concentrer sur tel ou tel sujet.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): C’est exact. Je
crois que vous avez trés bien exposé la situation. On avait
en effet prévu de commencer par un apercu général et d'en
venir aux points précis par la suite. Monsieur Munro.

M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Reprenons une ques-
tion sur laquelle je ne cesse de revenir. Y aurait-il moyen
de nous faire parvenir a I'avance les documents pour nous
permettre de les étudier avant les questions? Le témoin
pourrait ensuite nous en donner un bref résumé, mais il est
exagéré qu'il prenne 1 heure 20 minutes de notre temps
pour faire un exposé.
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The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): I think you
bring up a very valid point, that many times people come
in a very complicated field, make their presentation with-
out any preparation by members of the Committee, and it
is very difficult for the Committee to absorb it in a very
short period of time. In order to make it meaningful, I
think it would be something that the steering committee
could certainly consider very strongly, that requests be put
out before the people appear as to the paper—in some cases
of course this is not possible, but where the situation arises
that they will do this, I am sure that at least the request
could be made on a very positive basis.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): The third suggestion of (c)
mentions the possibility of a background paper being done.
I gather it is the Standing Committee’s report on interna-
tion development, the one that was done in 1971. I think
that might be useful in terms of both assessing the efficacy
and the effect of that particular report and bridging a bit
of the gap between that study and the one we are launched
on now.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Although this is
before my time, I believe there was in 1971 a study done,
and this is to follow that particular study. Are you refer-
ring, under (c), to adequate resource transfers to develop-
ing countries?

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): That is right. There are some
members here who were on the Committee at that time
who recall the study and the report. It might be useful to
make it available and any kind of assessment of it, to all
the members of the Committee.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Yes, I will try to
obtain that, Mr. MacDonald. I think it is worth while to
have the background from that previous study.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): The other question I had—
perhaps you might be too embarrassed to ask it, Mr. Chair-
man. Those of us who were in New York at the special
session are still concerned about the opportunity perhaps
to bring the whole Committee up to date on the assembly,
and our own views and reactions to it.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Mr. MacDonald,
I attempted to get hold of you before this meeting. One of
the last orders of our business here this evening will be to
have you, Mr. Roche, and those people who were at the
special session give a report to the Committee.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): When is that?

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Actually it will
be following the discussion on the broad outlines of the
program.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): Since we are only partly
here, and I presume most of us are not ready for this—two
of us at least have been engulfed in this immigration
business I sense that even those who were not at New York
have a resistance to that happening this evening.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Mr. Brewin.

Mr. Brewin: Mr. Chairman, there is another problem. As
I understand it, we are a subcommittee here. Would con-
sideration be given, because of the broad, general impor-
tance, to reporting on that conference not to the subcom-
mittee but to the whole Committee?

[Interpretation]

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): En effet, il
arrive trop souvent que les témoins nous fassent un exposé
sur un sujet compliqué sans que les membres du Comité
aient eu le temps de se préparer, de sorte qu'il est difficile
pour eux d’en saisir toute la portée au moment méme. Le
Comité de direction devrait donc examiner la possibilité de
demander aux témoins de faire parvenir a 'avance et dans
toute la mesure du possible, bien entendu, des exemplaires
de leur mémoire.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): La troisiéme suggestion au
paragraphe c) fait état d'un document de travail; et il
s'agit, je présume, du rapport du Comité permanent sur le
développement international rédigé en 1971. Il serait sans
doute utile d’examiner ce rapport et de le comparer a celui
que nous allons maintenant rédiger.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Effectivement,
une étude avait été élaborée en 1971, et la présente étude
doit y faire suite en principe. Il s’agit bien au paragraphe
¢) de la rubrique intitulée «transferts de ressources aux
pays en voie de développement», n’est-ce pas?

M. MacDonald (Egmont): C'est exact. Les députés qui
faisaient partie du Comité a I'’époque, se souviendront sans
doute de I’étude ainsi que du rapport. Il serait utile, je
pense, d’en faire distribuer des exemplaires aux membres
du Comité, ainsi que les critiques qui en auraient été
faites.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Je vais essayer
de le faire, monsieur MacDonald, car cela pourrait certai-
nement nous servir.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Par ailleurs ceux d’entre nous
qui ont assisté a la session spéciale des Nations Unies a
New York aimeraient mettre le Comité au courant.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): J'ai essayé de
vous parler avant la réunion, monsieur MacDonald. Il a
justement été prévu que vers la fin de notre réunion de ce
soir, vous méme, M. Roche, et les autres députés qui ont
assisté a la session spéciale feraient un rapport au Comité.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): A quel moment, précisément?

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Aprés la discus-
sion sur les grandes lignes du programme.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Je me demande si le moment
est bien choisi, car la plupart d’entre nous n'avons pas eu le
temps de nous préparer tandis que deux membres du
Comité ont été submergés par les travaux du Comité de
I'immigration.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Monsieur
Brewin.

M. Brewin: Ceci étant une réunion du sous-comité, et

étant donné I'importance de pareils rapports, ne serait-il
pas préférable de le faire devant le Comité entier?
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Mr. Gendron: In writing. M. Gendron: Par écrit.

Mr. Brewin: No, not in writing.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): I wonder, Mr.
Brewin, with regard to the technicalities, whether our
terms of reference—whether to report to the whole Com-
mittee is actually within our authority.

Mr. Brewin: We have a broad general reference that
people attend international affairs or conferences. Mem-
bers of our Committee then have the right—not the obliga-
tion, of course— but the right to be heard from.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Would it not
accomplish the same thing to have the people report to the
subcommittee? The report can then be passed on in writing
to the members of the Committee as a whole. Or is that not
agreeable to you?

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): Let me suggest a compro-

mise, that we schedule this with a forewarning for all the
members of the Committee. Obviously it will be just a
regular meeting of this subcommittee, but it would at least
give other members who are not on the subcommittee itself
an opportunity to be here, to ask questions, and to respond
in any way they saw fit with respect to the report we
might make.
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The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Yes, that could

be done. The Subcommittee had agreed that the first meet-

ing would include a report from the delegates to the Sev-
enth Special Session. That was agreed upon at that time.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): I recall that agreement, but
the problem is that I was only made aware of this meeting
earlier today, and quite frankly there has been no opportu-
nity during the course of this day even to contact my
colleagues who are in New York, let alone organize what
kind of a presentation we are going to make to the whole of
the Subcommittee.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): I will agree to
that, if that is the wish of the Subcommittee. Mr. Roche.

Mr. Roche: Mr. MacDonald’s point is well taken, but we
have scheduled the next four meetings with people who
have been invited. Although I think your point that several
members of our Sub-committee are not present is very well
taken, perhaps it might be best to start the report from
New York so that this meeting would not be devoted to
merely housekeeping, but would be the beginning of a
substantive discussion and another meeting could be
found, perhaps, to complete the presentation from New
York. That is one way around it.

I think we might have difficulty trying to reschedule the
next four meetings and then we are into the end of
November.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): The Clerk was
just pointing out that on Thursday, November 6, we have a
tentative date at 3.30 p.m. for the Minister to appear;
however, that is not confirmed, and it could be that if he
cannot appear that day we could continue.

I think the point is well taken that regardless of when it
is scheduled, we are always going to have problems with
people attending. With the tight schedule we are on, per-
haps with the agreement of the Committee we could begin
tonight, and if necessary continue if we have that open
date on November 6.

M. Brewin: Non, pas par écrit.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Je me demande
si notre mandat prévoit que pareil rapport soit fait au
Comité plénier.

M. Brewin: Notre ordre de renvoi stipule que les mem-
bres du Comité participent a des conférences ou réunions
internationales, ce qui veut dire que ces membres ont le
droit mais non pas l'obligation, bien entendu, de faire
rapport sur ces réunions.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Mais est-ce que
ces députés ne pourraient pas présenter leur rapport au
sous-comité, rapport qui serait ensuite distribué par écrit
aux membres du Comité plénier?

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Je propose que tous les mem-
bres du Comité soient avisés par avance de cette réunion; il
s’agira d’'une réunion normale du sous-comité. Cela per-
mettrait au moins aux autres membres qui n’en font pas
partie de venir poser des questions et faire des suggestions.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Oui, on pourrait
le faire. Il avait été convenu en comité directeur que la
premiére réunion comprendrait le rapport des délégués a la
Septiéme session spéciale.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Je m’en souviens, mais le
probléme, c’est que je n’ai eu connaissance de cette réunion
qu’un peu plus tot aujourd’hui, et je dois avouer qu’il a été
impossible dans ce court laps de temps de méme contacter
mes collégues qui se trouvent a New York, encore moins
d’établir quel genre d’exposé nous ferons a I’ensemble du
sous-comité.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Je vous l'accor-
derai si c’est le souhait du Sous-comité. Monsieur Roche.

M. Roche: L’argument de M. MacDonald est trés valable,
mais nous avions déja préparé notre programme avec les
différentes personnes invitées pour les quatre prochaines
réunions. Bien que je vous accorde que plusieurs des mem-
bres de notre sous-comité soient absents, il serait peut-étre
bon de commencer avec le rapport de New York afin que
cette réunion ne soit pas simplement consacrée a nos petits
problémes d’organisation, mais soit le point de départ
d'une discussion importante. On pourrait peut-étre trouver
une autre réunion pour terminer cette étude du rapport de
New York. C’est une solution.

A mon avis, il nous sera difficile de déplacer les quatre
prochaines séances et nous nous retrouverons alors a la fin
de novembre.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Le greffier vient
de m’indiquer que jeudi le 6 novembre il est prévu que
nous entendions a 15 h 30 le ministre; toutefois, cela n'est
pas confirmé, et dans I'’éventualité ol il ne pourrait venir
nous pourrions poursuivre notre étude ce jour.

Je crois que quelle que soit notre heure de réunion, nous
aurons toujours des problémes de participation. Notre pro-
gramme étant trés rempli, nous pourrions peut-étre conve-
nir de commencer ce soir pour, au besoin, poursuivre le 6
novembre si nous le pouvons.
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We have a blocked area that gives us an extra meeting at
11 a.m.—I am sorry, on November 6, we have the Minister
apparently at 3.30 p.m., but we do have a blocked in space
at 11 a.m.

Mr. Roche: Mr. Chairman, that changes the picture. If
there is a blocked in time for 11 a.m. on November 6, then
perhaps we could set that meeting exclusively for a report
from New York, and it would give all those who were in
New York time, between now and Thursday, to prepare
their presentation and . ..

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): It also would give us an
opportunity to notify the whole membership that this was
taking place. I do think there is some virtue in at least
giving them the opportunity to be here. We had a responsi-
blity and I think the best way to discharge it is to dis-
charge it to as many people that are involved as possible.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Mr. Munro.

Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Yes, this raises a
question as to the ultimate purpose of this gathering and I
am not sure that a very firm line has yet been taken, either
in the steering committee or by the Committee as a whole.
I am not sure whether it is self-informative or whether we
are, at the end of our meetings, to formulate recommenda-
tions to the principal committee and urge upon them that
these recommendations be passed on to the government,
and to Parliament.

Now, I do not know whether this decision has been
taken. David has suggested that we should inform the
others, or are we just going to inform ourselves all along
the line?

Mr. Brewin: Mr. Chairman, I would hope not. I was one
of those who was at the Seventh Special Session and I
think the government indicated a broad general acceptance
of the principles of the new economic order. This is quite a
revolutionary and important thing, and I think. ..

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): You are talking about the
Subcommittee now, are you not? You are talking about the
Subcommittee not about the special session. He is talking
abou...

Mr. Brewin: No, I understand that. Perhaps if I finish
what I am saying it will be understood better. What I was
going to say is that I think the Seventh Special Session
brought out decisions of such importance that we would be
making a grave mistake to confine ourselves to informing
ourselves as a committee if there is any way in which we
can inform the government, if we have any suggestions to
make to Parliament and indeed even the public. I think we
should aim at that, although we may not succeed. But I
certainly do not think we should contemplate some inter-
nal exercise for our own benefit solely.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): I agree with
you, Mr. Brewin, that we certainly should reach as broad
an audience as possible. Are you referring to the whole
Committee?
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Mr. Brewin: I am perfectly prepared to accept David’s
suggestion that we notify the other members of the Com-
mittee. And, officially, it is a meeting of the Subcommittee.
There are others notified, so those who are interested may
be able to come. But I personally am quite unhappy about
trying to present any report tonight. And some of us are on
the Joint Committee on Immigration.

[Interpretation]

Selon notre emploi du temps nous avons une réunion
supplémentaire a 11 h 00—je m'excuse, le 6 novembre appa-
remment le ministre doit venir a 15 h 30, mais nous avons
un créneau de libre a 11 h 00.

M. Roche: Monsieur le président, cela change tout. Si
nous avons une possibilité de réunion prévue a 11 h 00 le 6
novembre, nous pourrions alors peut-étre consacrer exclu-
sivement cette réunion au rapport de New York, et cela
donnerait a tous ceux qui étaient a New York, d'ici jeudi, le
temps de préparer leur exposé et . . .

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Cela nous permettrait égale-
ment de prévenir tous les membres de la réunion. Il serait
bon pour le moins de leur donner la possibilité d'étre
présents. Nous avions une responsabilité et la meilleure
maniére de I'assumer est de le faire quand le plus de
personnes concernées sont présentes.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson):
Munro.

M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Oui, cela souléve la
question de l'objectif ultime de cette assemblée et je ne
suis pas trés sir que l'on en soit encore bien certain, aussi
bien au sein du comité directeur qu'au sein du comité
plénier. Je ne sais s'il s’agit d'une séance d'information ou
si, a la fin de nos réunions, nous sommes censés formuler
des recommandations auprés du comité principal et lui
demander de transmettre ces recommandations au gouver-
nement et au Parlement.

Maintenant, je ne sais si cette décision a été prise. David
a suggéré que nous devrions informer les autres, ou allons-
nous simplement nous informer nous-mémes?

Monsieur

M. Brewin: Monsieur le président, j'ose espérer que non.
Jai été un de ceux qui ont assisté a la Septiéme session
spéciale et je crois que le gouvernement a indiqué accepter
d’une maniére trés générale les principes du nouvel ordre
économique. C’est une chose relativement importante et
révolutionnaire, et je pense. ..

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Vous parlez maintenant du
Sous-comité, n'est-ce pas? Vous parlez du Sous-comité et
non pas de la session spéciale. Il ne parle pas. ..

M. Brewin: Non, je comprends. Si je finissais ce que je
suis en train de dire, on me comprendrait peut-étre mieux.
Ce que jallais dire, c’est que je pense que la Septiéme
session spéciale a entrainé des décisions d’une telle impor-
tance que nous ferions une grave erreur en nous conten-
tant de nous informer nous-mémes en tant que Comité s'il
y a un moyen par lequel nous pouvons renseigner le gou-
vernement, si nous avons des suggestions a faire au Parle-
ment et en fait au public lui-méme. C’est a cela que nous
devrions viser méme si nous ne réussissons pas. Je ne
croyais certainement pas qu'il fallait faire ce travail
interne pour notre seul bénéfice.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Je suis d’accord
avec vous, monsieur Brewin, il nous faut un auditoire aussi
vaste que possible. Songez-vous au comité plénier?

M. Brewin: Je suis tout a fait prét a accepter la sugges-
tion de David d'aviser les autres membres du Comité.
Officiellement, il s’agit d’une réunion du sous-comité.
D’autres ont été informés, par conséquent ceux qui sont
intéressés peuvent venir. Quant & moi, je suis tout a fait
contre la présentation d'un rapport ce soir. Certains parmi
nous font partie du comité mixte de I'Immigration.
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The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Mr. Brewin, we
are in the process of checking and confirming that 11 a.m.
is blocked out for us and, if we can confirm that we can
have that time, with the Committee’s agreement, I would
be very pleased to put this on for 11 a.m. on November 6. I
understand it is within the guidelines of the Subcommit-
tee, within its authority, to report to the House on the
Seventh Special Session, so of course, we can make that
report also. If that is agreeable then we will have the
members that attended the Seventh Special Session make
the report on November 6 at 11 a.m. and we will notify the
whole Subcommittee.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): You will notify . ..
Mr. Anderson: We will notify the Subcommittee.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): Plus all the members of the
External Affairs Committee, I assume, that this was taking
place.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Yes. We can
send it out, Mr. MacDonald, to all members. Anyone is free
to attend the meeting.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): The only other thing I was
going to add is if that works out all right, and I understand
you are just checking, then perhaps if this meeting does
end a bit early it could give the five of us who are here an
opportunity to have a few minutes to organize the presen-
tation we would make on Thursday morning.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): At the end of
the meeting?

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): Yes.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Certainly.
There is only one thing we did not dispense with. Is it
agreed that we proceed with those guidelines you have?

Some hon. Members: Agreed.

Mr. Philbrook: Are you referring to the broad topics, Mr.
Chairman?

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): I am referring
to the possible broad topics for Committee study of Inter-
national Development . ..

Mr. Philbrook: May I make one suggestion?
The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Certainly.

Mr. Philbrook: It is that we include a section on man-
agement controls and accountability for Foreign Aid.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): In reference to
CIDA?

Mr. Philbrook: In reference to all our foreign aid pro-
gram, CIDA and any other aspect of it, through other
departments and so on.

Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): The tenth topic.

Mr. Philbrook: Yes, in addition to the other topics.

[Interprétation]

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Monsieur
Brewin, nous sommes en train de vérifier et de confirmer si
la période de 11 heures est disponible. Lorsque ce sera fait,
avec l'accord des membres du Comité, je fixerai avec plai-
sir cette réunion pour le 6 novembre a 11 heures. Si jai
bien compris, le sous-comité a 'autorité de faire rapport a
la Chambre sur la Septiéme session spéciale. Il est évident
que nous pouvons faire ce rapport également. Si vous le
voulez, nous demanderons aux membres qui ont assisté a la
Septiéme session pséciale de présenter leur rapport le 6
novembre a 11 heures et nous allons aviser tous les mem-
bres du sous-comité.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Vous allez aviser. . .
M. Anderson: Oui, nous allons aviser le sous-comité.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Et tous les membres du
comité des Affaires extérieures également, je suppose.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Oui. Nous pou-
vons envoyer cet avis, monsieur MacDonald, a tous les
membres. Tous ceux qui le voudront pourront assister a la
réunion.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Je voulais ajouter tout sim-
plement que si tout marche bien, et je sais vous étes en
train de vérifier, si cette réunion se termine un peu plus
tot, cela nous donnerait & tous les cinqg qui sommes ici
quelques minutes pour mettre au point I’exposé que nous
devons faire jeudi matin.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): A la fin de la
réunion?

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Oui.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Certainement. I1
y a une chose que nous n’avons pas décidée. Etes-vous

d’accord pour que nous procédions selon les lignes directri-
ces que nous avons?

Des voix: D’accord.

M. Philbrook: Faites-vous allusion aux sujets d’ordre
général, monsieur le président?

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Je pense aux
sujets de nature générale que le Comité pourrait étudier,
ceux qui ont trait au développement international.

M. Philbrook: Puis-je faire une suggestion?
Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Certainement.

M. Philbrook: J'aimerais que nous puissions ajouter un
paragraphe sur les controles et la comptabilité de gestion
pour 'aide étrangére.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Dans le cadre de
I'ACDI?

M. Philbrook: Pour tout notre programme d’aide étran-
gére, pour 'ACDI et les autres, par l'intermédiaire des
autres ministéres également.

M. Munro (Esquimalt Saanich): Ce serait le dixiéme
sujet.

M. Philbrook: Oui,

mentionnés.

il s'ajouterait aux autres déja
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The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): That certainly
can be considered. Exactly what were you proposing?

Mr. Philbrook: Management controls and accountability.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): All right. Are
there any other comments on these guidelines?

Mr. Brewin: Mr. Chairman, it may appear somewhere in
here and it might just be a mode of attacking some of these
problems, or it may come under political relations with
developing countries, but I have been impressed lately
with the urgent need of trying to develop the best possible
techniques to see that our aid and trade policies both
redound to the benefit of the people in acute need in the
countries concerned. This is an emphasis that has been put
on the World Food Conference in Rome, the Seventh
Assembly, and I think it is one we all feel very keenly
about, this widespread fear, and not I think without jus-
tification. In many cases the benefit of aid is being side-
stepped, as it were, and is not meeting the most basic
human needs.

I do not know whether that topic is interrelated with
some of these things. I suppose it is in political relations
with developing countries, because obviously how far we
can assure this or what we can do to assure it may depend
on our political relations with developing countries. I
would like to see it extracted as a sort of topic at some
stage or other.
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The acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): These terms of
reference are very broad, Mr. Brewin. I think one of the
suggestions, which I mentioned to my colleague here and
which would perhaps satisfy that urge, is that we take a
certain CIDA project and start from day one with it and
carry through all the steps on it. It could be done on
anything. It could be done on grain to Bangladesh, or
whatever the Committee desires. It would be a way of
looking at the progression of what happens with a pro-
gram, the steps that take place, the controls and the whole
apparatus.

I am certain that this Committee when into this very,
very throughly during the last session with Mr. Lajoie. On
grain, there was an extensive look at the distribution and
so forth. There is no reason why that cannot be continued
during this one if it is so desired, but there are many ways
it could be done—as I say, through a project.

Certainly our guidelines are broad enough that CIDA
can be examined very minutely, and I am sure it will be.
Mr. Lajoie has indicated his willingness to co-operate in
any way that we wish. The letter I read to you indicates
that he is prepared to make information available to you
on any aspect of the program that you so desire. Whether it
be done by research or by the Deputy Minister and his
officials here in the Committee room under examination is
entirely up to the Committee.

Mr. Brewin: I think we need someone from outside the
realms of officialdom who has made a real study of this
problem.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): We will, Mr.
Brewin, have. ..

[Interpretation]

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): On pourrait
certainement y songer. Que proposez-vous exactement?

M. Philbrook: Les controles et la comptabilité de
gestion.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Trés bien. Avez-
vous d’autres remarques concernant ces lignes directrices?

M. Brewin: Monsieur le président, nous pourrions insé-
rer ce sujet ici quelque part, ¢a pourrait étre une facon de
traiter certains problémes, ou on pourrait I'incorporer au
chapitre des relations politiques avec les pays en voie de
développement. Toutefois, je me suis rendu compte récem-
ment du besoin pressant de mettre au point les meilleurs
mécanismes possibles pour que notre aide et nos politiques
commerciales profitent aux personnes qui en ont un urgent
besoin dans les pays concernés. On a souligné l'importance
de cette situation a la Conférence mondiale sur 1’alimenta-
tion 4 Rome, & la Septiéme assemblée. C’est un sujet qui
nous intéresse tous au plus haut point. C’est une crainte
qui également se répand rapidement, non sans justifica-
tion. Dans bien des cas, I'aide n’atteint pas son objectif
premier et ne répond pas aux besoins humains
fondamentaux.

Je ne sais pas si le sujet se rapporte a l'un des autres sur
la liste. Cela doit figurer sous la rubrique des relations
politiques avec les pays en voie de développement, car, de
toute évidence, I'aide que nous pouvons apporter dépend de
nos relations politiques avec ces pays. J’aimerais que l'on
discute de cette question & un moment donné.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Les sujets énu-
mérés sont trés vastes, monsieur Brewin. Je pense que
I'une des suggestions que j'ai mentionnées a mon collégue
et qui pouvaient peut-étre correspondre a la votre, serait
d’étudier un projet donné de ’ACDI de son origine jusqu'a
son aboutissement. Ce pourrait, par exemple, étre le projet
de dons de blé au Bangladesh ou un autre, au choix du
Comité. Ce serait une facon d’étudier les diverses étapes
d’'un programme, les modes de controle et tout le
fonctionnement.

Je suis certain que le Comité, lors de la derniére session,
a étudié tout cela en détail avec M. Lajoie. On a par
exemple examiné en long et en large le systéme de réparti-
tion du blé. Il n’y a pas de raison pour que I'on ne continue
pas dans la méme voie, et on a I'embarras du choix quant &
la fagon de procéder.

Cette liste de sujets est sirement assez vaste pour nous
permettre d’étudier 'ACDI avec attention, et je suis d’ail-
leurs certain que tel sera le cas. M. Lajoie a fait part de son
désir de collaborer entiérement avec nous. La lettre que je
vous ai lue dit bien qu’il est prét a nous révéler tous les
renseignements que nous désirons au sujet du programme.
C’est au Comité de décider si on procédera par programme
de recherche ou en invitant le sous-ministre et ses hauts
fonctionnaires a venir témoigner.

M. Brewin: Je crois qu’il ne faudrait pas seulement en
vendre le point de personnalités officielles, mais aussi de
gens qui ont vraiment étudié le probléme.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Nous en aurons,

monsieur Brewin.
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Mr. Brewin: I would like to have more than microcosmic
references to what happens in a particular project,
although, as you suggest, it is very useful I am sure.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Mr. Brewin, the
subcommittee will be discussing witnesses or experts in
various fields who will be asked to appear before this
committee and before the subcommittee. Again this is
where we could slot something like that in—an expert who
is outside the field, if so desired. We certainly can keep
that in mind when we are looking at prospective people to
bring to the subcommettee.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): There is a related question
to this. In terms of information coming to the Committee,
are we going to suggest or invite submissions from non-
governmental organizations. As you and I both know, they
have been playing a very active role in this field and some
of them have a large body of experience. I am wondering
whether we are going to invite written submissions or
whether we will try, after reviewing some written submis-
sions, to invite some kind of cross-section or some kind of
good representation in terms of the experience in that area.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): I think, Mr.
MacDonald, the agreement the steering committee arrived
at was that this would exctly be the case, that NGOs would
be invited. I cannot give you the scheduling at this point,
but certainly that is the intention of the subcommittee.

Mr. Brewin: Mr. Chairman, may I make a similar sort of
suggestion. If you will recall, the group who were in New
York met with a number of Congressmen who were par-
ticularly interested in this subject and who, in a sense,
invited us to continued co-operation with them. I would
hope, either as witnesses or in some other way, that we
could get together and find out what they are doing,
because we are both similar countries to some extent,
being food-producing and exporting countries.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Mr. Brewin, the
subcommittee considered this also, and it is the intention
to carry on liaison with them and to try to arrange a
meeting at some future date with members of the similar
committee in the United States. Mr. Roche.
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Mr. Roche: I would like to pick up on Mr. Brewin’s point.
I think it is very important that we start now to plan a
meeting with our counterparts from Congress. The meet-
ing we held in New York of the special session was very
productive and I think laid the groundwork for continued
co-operation. I believe, Mr. Chairman, that it would be
useful if the whole Subcommittee expressed its will on this
point now so that the steering committee could be directed
to set up a meeting either in Ottawa or in Washington in
perhaps early March for co-ordination of both our commit-
tees that are doing the same kind of work.

On that specific point, I was just going to enlarge on Mr.
Brewin's theme of liaison with American congressmen, to
establish some kind of liaison with the committee of the
British Parliament that is studying international develop-
ment. As you know, some members of that committee came
to Ottawa a few months ago, and the work that they are
doing is also part of the general picture that we are enter-
ing into, so that I think a tripartite kind of collaboration
would be to our benefit and that the steering committee
could be further directed by the subcommittee to begin a
process of liaison, whether it will involve an actual meet-

[Interprétation]

M. Brewin: Jaimerais obtenir autre chose que des
détails microcosmiques d'un programme particulier et
méme, comme vous le dites, ce serait sGrement utile. Il faut
éviter de rester en vase clos.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Monsieur
Brewin, le sous-comité discutera avec des témoins ou des
experts de divers secteurs que l'on invitera a comparaitre
devant nous ou devant le Comité. C’est peut-étre d’ailleurs
a ce moment-la que nous pourrions glisser cette question et
peut-étre méme inviter un spécialiste qui n’appartient pas
a ce domaine. Lorsque nous dresserons la liste des témoins
probables, nous y songerons.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Une autre question est liée a
celle-ci. A propos des renseignements qu'obtiendra le
Comité, allons-nous demander aux organismes non gouver-
nementaux de nous faire parvenir des mémoires? Comme
nous le savons tous deux, ceci joue un role trés actif et
certains ont énormément d’expérience. Je me demande si
nous allons les inviter a nous faire parvenir par écrit des
mémoires et, aprés avoir étudié ces derniers, les inviter a
comparaitre pour pouvoir les interroger sur leur
expérience.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Monsieur Mac-
Donald, le comité directeur a convenu d’inviter les organis-
mes non gouvernementaux a comparaitre. Je ne peux pas
encore vous donner le calendrier de ces séances, mais je
puis vous assurer de I'intention du Comité.

M. Brewin: Monsieur le président, puis-je me permettre
une suggestion semblable. Le groupe qui s’est rendu a New
York a rencontré un certain nombre de membres du Con-
grés des Etats-Unis qui s’intéressaient particuliérement a
la question et qui, dans un sens, nous ont invités a conti-
nuer de collaborer avec eux. J'aimerais donc que nous
puissions les rencontrer, a titre de témoins ou autres, pour
savoir ce qu’ils font, eux, puisque nos deux pays se ressem-
blent dans une certaine mesure, étant tous deux des pays
producteurs et exportateurs de produits alimentaires.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Monsieur
Brewin, le sous-comité a également étudié ce point et a
I'intention d’entretenir les relations avec nos homologues
des Etats-Unis et d’organiser une rencontre avec eux. Mon-
sieur Roche.

M. Roche: Je voudrais continuer dans la méme ligne que
M. Brewin, car je pense qu’il est fort important maintenant
de rencontrer nos homologues du Congrés. La séance que
nous avons eue 8 New York lors de la session spéciale a été
fort productive et nous avons jeté 1a les bases d'une colla-
boration continue. Je crois, monsieur le président, que nous
aimerions avoir I'avis du sous-comité a ce sujet afin que le
comité de direction puisse prévoir une réunion soit a
Ottawa, soit a Washington, et ce peutétre au début de mars,
afin de coordonner le travail de méme nature fait par nos
deux comités.

Dans cette méme optique de M. Brewin, outre la liaison
avec les membres du Congrés américain, je crois qu'il
serait bon d’établir quelques rapports avec le comité du
Parlement britannique qui étudie le développement inter-
national. Comme vous le savez, certains membres de ce
comité sont venus & Ottawa il y a quelques mois et leur
travail est du méme genre que le noétre. Par conséquent, il
me semble qu'une collaboration tripartite serait enrichis-
sante pour nous. Le sous-comité pourrait aussi donner des
directives au comité de direction afin que celui-ci puisse
mettre en ceuvre ce processus de liaison et prévoir une
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ing, to be determined later perhaps, but I am suggesting a
specific meeting with the congressmen from the United
States and the beginning of liaison with the British parlia-
mentary committee on international development.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Mr. Munro.

Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): While we are on that
particular line, perhaps we should also think in terms of
asking the Department of External Affairs to inform us, if
ever the head of our delegation to the EEC is in Canada,
that we should get a chance to have a talk with him. If
there is any visiting, I think we should also bear in mind
that that organization, not in an operational sense but in a
statistical sense, co-ordinates the activities of most of the
developing countries.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): I think the
suggestions that have been brought forward certainly have
merit, and it was certainly the steering committee’s inten-
tion, as the members present know, to have a liaison with
our American counterparts. I think that this could be
broadened to include the U.K. and I think that certainly is
a worthwhile suggestion and also, as far as Mr. Munro’s
suggestion is concerned, this will again come under the
question of who is available, when they are available, and
what we will do is to try to slot them in as they become
available.

I would also like to inform the Committee that the 11
o'clock meeting for Noveber 6 is confirmed. We do have the
space so we will have that meeting.

Are there any further comments on the broad topics for
Committee study or any other point that anyone wishes to
bring up? Mr. MacDonald?

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): It may be a little premature,
but obviously if we get to the stage of proposing a meeting
with the Americans it may involve some travel on our part
and we would certainly have to go to the House for some
reference on that score. However, realizing the difficulties
that might be entailed in getting the Americans to come
here, it may well require us to go at least to Washington to
talk with them there. I do not know.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): I think it is a
bit premature at this point to speculate as to where the
meeting will be held. I think the will of the Committee is
that we will meet with them at probably either Ottawa or
Washington, but as to which one will be the meeting, I
think we are just a little too early, Mr. MacDonald.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): Maybe in the meantime
some attempt can be made to gather up any material. Since
this committee so far in the Congress, as I understand it, is
not a joint standing committee of the two Houses but is in
some kind of way a bit of an advisory committee on the
Administration’s policy vis-a-vis international develop-
ment, it may be a little more difficult than usual. However,
I think if we could gain some sense of their continuing
activity even before any meeting might take place, it
would be very valuable for our own purposes here.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): I think you are
quite correct in that it is not a standing committee but an
advisory committee, which in my understanding was that
they were gathered together more or less to advise Dr.
Kissinger and the President on developing aid. I do not
know what their terms of reference are, or how long they
are going to be sitting, but I think the point the steering
committee made was that we would contact them and try
to arrange an early meeting.

[Interpretation]
réunion avec les membres du Congrés ameéricain et qu'il

entre en contact avec le comité parlementaire britannique
du développement international.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Monsieur

Munro.

M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Puisque nous parlons
de ce sujet, peut-étre pourrions-nous demander au minis-
tére des Affaires extérieures au cas ou notre chef de délé-
gation auprés de la Communauté économique européenne
serait au Canada, de nous le faire savoir afin que nous
puissions lui parler. Nous devons tenir compte du fait que
cette organisation, non pas d'un point de vue opérationnel,
mais d’'un point de vue statistique, coordonne les activités
de la plupart des pays en voie de développement.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Je pense que ces
propositions qu’on vient de soumettre sont pertinentes et
le comité de direction avait l'intention comme vous le
savez, d’établir la liaison avec nos homologues américains.
Je crois qu’on pourrait aussi songer a inclure le Royaume-
Uni, mais pour donner suite a la proposition de M. Munro,
il faut cependant tenir compte des questions de disponibi-
lité et des dates. Dés que ces personnes seront disponibles,
nous essaierons d’établir une date de rencontre.

J'aimerais aussi indiquer au Comité que la réunion de
11 h. 00 prévue pour le 6 novembre prochain est confirmée,
car nous avons obtenu la piéce nécessaire.

Avez-vous d’autres remarques que le Comité pourrait
étudier? Monsieur MacDonald.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Peut-étre vais-je un peu vite,
mais si nous voulons rencontrer nos homologues améri-
cains, il faut prévoir des voyages, ce qui nous obligera a
faire une demande a la Chambre. Comme il est probable-
ment difficile de demander aux membres du Congrés amé-
ricain de venir ici, nous serons probablement obligés de
nous rendre 4 Washington; de toute fagon, je n’en sais rien.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Je crois qu'il est
un peu tét pour faire des prévisions sur l'endroit ou se
tiendra la réunion, mais je crois que le Comité est prét a les
rencontrer soit a Ottawa, soit a Washington et pour le
moment, c’est un peu prématuré de décider, monsieur
MacDonald.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Peut-étre qu'entre-temps,
nous pourrions obtenir des renseignements sur les activités
du comité américain. Puisque ce comité, si je le comprends,
n'est pas un comité mixte permanent des deux Chambres,
mais un genre de comité consultatif chargé de conseiller
I'administration sur le développement international, la
question est un peu plus délicate naturellement. Mais je
crois qu'il nous serait utile d’avoir une idée de leurs activi-
tés avant toute réunion.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Je crois que
vous avez raison de dire que ce n’est pas un comité perma-
nent, mais un comité consultatif qui a été, si je comprends
bien, établi plus ou moins pour conseiller M. Kissinger et le
président dans le domaine de 'aide au développement. Je
ne connais pas leur mandat, et je ne connais pas la durée
de leur session; le Comité directeur désire que nous com-
muniquions avec eux, afin d'obtenir leur assentiment en
vue d’une réunion le plus tot possible.
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I would also ask for agreement from the Committee to
accept the broad topics as a working document for the
subcommittee, as amended. Is it agreed?

Some hon. Members: Agreed.

® 2050

Mr. Brewin: Mr. Chairman, I approve of that, but with a

comment that I notice that we have put in this survey a

subject that is of great, possibly emergent importance, and
that is IV A on page 5:

. cooperation involving potentially strategic ma-
terials when a developing country is itself in turmoil
or is in an unstable region (e.g. question of selling
CANDU reactors to South Korea and Argentina. ..

Mr. Francis: Did you write that, Andy?

Mr. Brewin: No, I did not: I am delighted to see it here,
though. The only thing I am pointing out is that, if we do
not move on it quickly, we will be shutting the barn door
after the horse has escaped.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): I am very
pleased, Mr. Brewin that this found favour with you. I am
surprised by your reaction, but perhaps it is predictable.
But this was certainly one of the areas that would be worth
while to study.

Mr. Brewin: All [ am pointing out is that it is a crucial
issue. I guess I am a member of the steering committee,
and I direct myself to them, but I would like to ask them to
advance such an emergent matter so that we might, poss-
ibly, have a say before final decisions are made.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): As I said ear-
lier, Mr. Brewin, one of the problems this Committee, and
all committees, face is the timing of people to speak to the
Committee. Certainly, I think your suggestion will be
taken into account, but I cannot give you a date as to when
we would be discussing this particular matter. The fact
that this will be before the House, and that negotiations
are being carried out, of course, makes it very relevant. I
think, perhaps, the steering committee could take this into
account when we do discuss possible agenda after Novem-
ber 20.

Mr. Brewin: It is all I was suggesting.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): With the agree-
ment, that is all I have on the agenda. I will adjourn this
meeting to the call of the Chair, and if the members who
attended the Seventh Special Session would remain a few
minutes, we can have a short meeting.

[Interprétation]

Les membres du Comité sont-ils d’accord sur les grandes
lignes du programme modifié, qui constituera le document
de travail du sous-comité?

Des voix: D’accord.

M. Brewin: Monsieur le président, je suis d’accord avec
cette proposition. Cependant, j’ai remarqué que nous avons
inclu un sujet d’'une grande importance, et qui le deviendra
peut-étre de plus en plus. A la page 5, le numéro IV A se lit
comme suit:

... coopération mettant en cause un matériel pouvant
avoir un valeur stratégique lorsqu’un pays en voie de
développement est lui-méme en proie au désordre ou
qu’il se trouve dans une région instable (par exemple
question de la vente de réacteurs CANDU & la Corée
du Sud et a4 I’Argentine. ..

M. Francis: Est-ce vous qui avez rédigé ce texte, Andy?

M. Brewin: Non, ce n'est pas moi; par contre, je suis trés
heureux de voir figurer cette question. A moins de prendre
des mesures rapidement, cependant, on sera dépassé par les
événements.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Je suis fort
heureux que cela vous plaise, monsieur Brewin. Votre
attitude me surprend, mais elle était sans doute prévisible.
Sans contredit, c’est 1a un aspect digne de notre attention.

M. Brewin: Je ne voulais que souligner qu’il s’agit d’'un
point trés important. En tant que membre du Comité
directeur, je m’adresse a mes collégues, et jJaimerais qu'on
puisse étudier cette question fort importante afin de pou-
voir exprimer notre opinion avant que des décisions ne
soient prises en ce domaine, si c’est possible.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Comme je l'ai
indiqué plus t6t, monsieur Brewin, ce Comité, comme tous
les autres, se heurte a un probléme, celui du temps disponi-
ble aux témoins. Nous tiendrons certes compte de votre
suggestion, mais je ne puis pas vous donner de date précise
pour ce débat. Le fait que cette question sera discutée a la
Chambre et que des négociations sont en cours, en font
bien entendu, une question fort pertinente. Je crois que le
Comité directeur devrait en tenir compte lors de I’étude de
I'ordre du jour apreés le 20 novembre.

M. Brewin: C’est tout ce que je voulais.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Cela conclut
I’étude des différents points a I'ordre du jour. Cette réu-
nion est levée jusqu’'a nouvelle convocation de la prési-
dence. Si les membres qui ont assisté a la Septiéme session
spéciale veulent bien rester pendant quelques instants, il
nous sera possible d’avoir une bréve réunion.
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(4) (4)

[Text] [Traduction]

The Sub-committee on International Development of the
Standing Committee on External Affairs and National
Defence met this day at 11:12 o’'clock a.m., the Acting
Chairman, Mr. Anderson, presiding.

Members of the Sub-committee present: Messrs. Anderson,
Breau, Brewin, Gendron, MacDonald (Egmont), Macquar-
rie, Marceau, McKenzie, Munro (Esquimalt Saanich) and
Roche.

Other Member present: Mr. Johnston.

Witnesses: Mr. D. MacDonald (Egmont), Mr. A. Brewin
and Mr. D. Roche.

The Sub-committee resumed consideration of its Order
of Reference dated July 3, 1975, relating to International
Development (See Minutes of Proceedings, Tuesday, July 22,
1975, Issue No. 1).

The witnesses made statements and answered questions
regarding the Seventh Special Session of the United
Nations.

At 12:27 o'clock p.m., the Sub-committee adjourned until
3:30 p.m,, this day.

AFTERNOON SITTING
(5)

The Sub-committee on International Development of the
Standing Committee on External Affairs and National
Defence met at 3:45 o’clock p.m., the Acting Chairman, Mr.
Anderson, presiding.

Members of the Sub-committee present: Messrs. Anderson,
Brewin, Gendron, Laprise, MacDonald (Egmont), Mac-
quarrie, Marceau, McKenzie, Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich)
and Roche.

Other Member present: Mr. Haidasz.

Appearing: The Honourable Allan MacEachen, Secretary
of State for External Affairs.

Witness: From the Department of External Affairs: Miss P.
A. McDougall, Director General, Bureau of Economic and
Scientific Affairs.

The Sub-committee resumed consideration of its Order
of Reference dated July 3, 1975, relating to International

Development, (See Minutes of Proceedings, Tuesday, July 22,
1975, Issue No. 1).

Le sous-comité sur le développement international du
Comité permanent des affaires extérieures et de la défense
nationale se réunit aujourd’hui a 11 h 12 sous la présidence
de M. Anderson (président adjoint).

Membres du sous-comité présents: MM. Anderson, Breau,
Brewin, Gendron, MacDonald (Egmont), Macquarrie, Mar-
ceau, McKenzie, Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich) et Roche.

Autre député présent: M. Johnston.

Témoins: MM. D. MacDonald (Egmont), A. Brewin et D.
Roche.

Le sous-comité reprend 1’étude de son ordre de renvoi du
3 juillet 1975 portant sur le développement international
(Voir le procés-verbal du mardi 22 juillet 1975, fascicule n° 1).

Les témoins font des déclarations et répondent aux ques-
tions touchant la 7¢ session spéciale des Nations Unies.

A 12h 27, le sous-comité suspend ses travaux jusqu’a
15 h 30 du méme jour.

SEANCE DE L’APRES-MIDI
(5)

Le sous-comité sur le développement international du
Comité permanent des affaires extérieures et de la défense
nationale se réunit a 15h45 sous la présidence de M.
Anderson (président suppléant).

Membres du sous-comité présents: MM. Anderson, Brewin,
Gendron, Laprise, MacDonald (Egmont), Macquarrie, Mar-
ceau, McKenzie, Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich) et Roche.

Autre député présent: M. Haidasz.

Comparait: L’honorable Allan MacEachen, secrétaire

d’Etat aux Affaires extérieures.

Témoin: Du ministére des Affaires extérieures: M P. A.
McDougall, directrice générale, bureau des Affaires écono-
miques et scientifiques.

Le sous-comité reprend I'étude de son ordre de renvoi du
3 juillet 1975 portant sur le développement international
(Voir le procés-verbal du mardi 22 juillet 1975, fascicule n° 1).
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The Minister made a statement. Le ministre fait une déclaration.

The Minister and the witness answered questions. Le ministre et le témoin répondent aux questions.

At 5:16 o’clock p.m., the Sub-committee adjourned to the A 17h 16, le sous-comité suspend ses travaux jusqu'a
call of the Chair. nouvelle convocation du président.

Le greffier du sous-Comité
Christine Hamilton
Clerk of the Sub-committee
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e 1112
[Texte]

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Since time is
running on, I was giving a bit of latitude. Mr. Brewin is
one of the people who was supposed to be reporting this
morning. However, he has not appeared yet. Perhaps we
could start without him and hope that he will eventually
arrive.

An hon. Member: Here he comes.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Oh, very good.
So, we will have three members here who attended the
Seventh Special Session and who will be reporting to you;
Mr. MacDonald, Mr. Brewin and Mr. Roche. Mr. Mac-
Donald will be the first witness, Mr. Brewin will be the
second and Mr. Roche will be the third. Our intended
procedure this morning is to receive a report from each of
the three members and then open the meeting up to any
questions the members of the Sub-Committee may have.
So, if I may, Mr. MacDonald, start off with you and then
we will follow with Mr. Brewin and Mr. Roche.

Mr. David MacDonald (Egmont): Mr. Chairman, you
were a bit modest in not indicating that you yourself
attended and took part with the rest of us in the Special
Session at the United Nations in September and Mr. Breau,
who was Parliamentary Secretary at that time, was also in
attendance. So, I hope that more than just having ques-
tions that we might get into at least a bit of a general
discussion about the significance of that assembly.

I have been asked to kind of set the scene a bit for the
meeting that took place in September. I think I should say
at the outset that the Special Session was held in New
York and it was only the second one, that I am aware of,
that dealt with the over-all question of the world economic
system, and I think that in itself is of significance.

Since the founding of the United Nations in 1945 there
have only been six previous special sessions, and we can
look at the issues which they dealt with in 1947 with
Palestine, in 1948 with Palestine, in 1961 with Tunisia, in
1963 with the situation in the Congo, in 1967 with South-
west Africa and then, of course, last year in 1974, the
Special Session of the United Nations General Assembly
on Raw Materials and Development, which really was the
first attempt that was made to discuss the subject matter
which has come to be known as the new international
economic order.

The session that was held in the spring of 1974, as all
members will recall, met in a period of economic turmoil
that was really without precedent, I think, since the end of
the Second World War. A number of things occurred of
which members will be well aware, both with respect to
international grain sales and, of course, the even greater
economic impact of the quadrupling of oil prices from
January 1973 to January 1974 which immediately preceded
that Sixth Special Session.

TEMOIGNAGES

(Enregistrement électronique)

Le jeudi 6 novembre 1975

[Interprétation]

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Comme le temps
passe, j’ai donné un peu de latitude. M. Brewin est une des
personnes qui devaient nous présenter leurs rapports. Tou-
tefois, il n’est pas encore arrivé. Peut-étre pouvons-nous
commencer sans lui et espérer qu'il arrive.

Une voix: Le voici.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Ah, trés bien.
Nous écouterons donc les rapports de trois députés qui ont
participé a la Septiéme session spéciale: M. MacDonald, M.
Brewin et M. Roche. M. MacDonald passera en premier,
suivi de M. Brewin, et de M. Roche. Nous adopterons la
procédure suivante: aprés avoir écouté le rapport de
chacun des trois députés, nous passerons aux questions des
membres du sous-comité. Permettez-moi donc, monsieur
MacDonald, de commencer par vous; MM. Brewin et Roche
suivront.

M. David MacDonald (Egmont): Monsieur le président,
votre modestie vous fait oublier de dire que vous étiez
vous-méme présent a la Session spéciale de septembre aux
Nations Unies; en outre, M. Breau, qui était secrétaire
parlementaire a ’époque, était également présent. J’aime-
rais aussi dire que j'espére que nous ne nous contenterons
pas de simples questions et réponses, mais que nous enga-
gerons au moins une discussion générale sur la significa-
tion de cette réunion.

On m’a demandé de brosser la toile de fond de la réunion
qui a eu lieu en septembre. Je dois peut-étre dire d’abord
que la Session spéciale s’est déroulée a New York et, qu’a
ma connaissance, ce n’est que la deuxiéme qui ait traité de
la question d’ensemble du systéme économique mondial;
cela en soi est déja important.

Depuis le fondation des Nations Unies en 1945, seulement
six sessions spéciales avaient été convoquées avant celle
dont nous parlons; elles ont traité, en 1947, de la Palestine,
en 1948, de la Palestine, en 1961, de la Tunisie, en 1963, de la
situation au Congo, et en 1967, de I’Afrique du Sud-Ouest;
ensuite, bien sir, I’année derniére, c’est-a-dire en 1974, a eu
lieu la Session spéciale de I'’Assemblée générale des
Nations Unies sur les matiéres brutes et le développement;
c’est a cette session qu’on a, pour la premiére fois, essayé
de discuter de cette question que I'on appelle maintenant le
nouvel ordre économique international.

Comme tous les députés s’en souviendront, la session du
printemps de 1974 a eu lieu au cours d'une période de
troubles économiques vraiment sans précédent, si je ne
m’abuse, depuis la fin de la Seconde Guerre mondiale. Un
certain nombre de choses sont arrivées, dont les membres
de ce Comité sont d’ailleurs au courant, en ce qui concerne
tant les ventes internationales de céréales que, bien sir,
I'effet économique encore plus considérable de la hausse
des prix du pétrole, prix qui avaient quadruplé de janvier
1973 a janvier 1974, c'est-a-dire pratiquement a la veille de
la Sixiéme session spéciale.
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The economic system itself had come under increasing
strains, particularly by the rapid expansion of Eurodollars.
I do not have to remind Canadian members of the special
Nixon measures in, I guess it was, August of 1971 and the
implications that had for Canada, and at that time the
seeming collapse of the Bretton Woods Agreement which
had served the industrial countries’ wealth since the end of
the Second World War.

All these are events that took place by way of back-
ground in terms of economic pressures that were being
exerted and that we were well aware of in Canada. It is
also, I think, increasingly well known that developments
were taking place in literally the rest of the world with
respect to their own economic situation. Perhaps it is
useful to recall that at the time of the United Nations
founding in San Francisco—I believe there were something
like 37 nations that joined at the founding of the U.N. Does
anybody have the exact figure? Anyway it was not a large
number, and certainly not large in comparison to the
number of European or Western countries that were sig-
natories to the establishment of the United Nations.

With the period of decolonization that took place in the
late forties and the nineteen fifties, the membership of the
United Nations increased very rapidly on a numerical
basis. I have lost count of the exact number of countries
that are members of the United Nations, but I think it
must be around 140.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): It is 143.
Mr. Breau: It was close to 50 at the founding.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): I am not good at mathemat-
ics, but I merely want to indicate that over the 30-year
period of the existence of the United Nations, it has tripled
in size in terms of membership, and most of the new
members of the United Nations are countries that will be
classed as under-developed or developing.

In the earlier years when the confrontation at the United
Nations was basically one that was described as being the
cold war between the East and the West, the West particu-
larly could usually control the situation to its own pur-
poses. Certainly there are strong and perhaps even heady
support for the United Nations, at least until the mid-
nineteen sixties, but increasingly in the late nineteen six-
ties it was obviously that it was obvious that the Western
control of the United Nations had slipped substantially.
From the first conference, which interestingly enough took
place 20 years ago of non-aligned nations in Bandung,
there was an increasing thrust towards a consensus of
activities and concerns among the under-developed
nations.

At some point in this whole process the countries that
were described as the Group of 77 coalesced even further to
become very much a fact of international conferences in
the nineteen seventies. Whether it be a conference on
population or on the environment or on food, the Group of
77 had acted as a block. At the recent conference in New
York the Group of 77 was actually composed, I think, of
about 110 nations who had obviously not only prepared for
the assembly in New York but had worked out fairly
detailed, in terms of chapter and verse, items that they

[Interpretation]

Le systéme économique lui-méme subissait des pressions
croissantes, en raison principalement de la prolifération
rapide des Eurodollars. Je n’ai pas a rappeler aux députés
canadiens les mesures spéciales du président Nixon, adop-
tées si je ne me trompe en aout 1971, et leurs effets sur le
Canada, pas plus que je n'ai a leur rappeler, & la méme
époque, l'effondrement apparent des Accords de Bretton
Woods qui avait favorisé la richesse des pays industrialisés
depuis la fin de la Seconde Guerre mondiale.

Ce sont tous ces événements qui ont déclenché, en quel-
que sorte, les pressions économiques ressenties au Canada.
Je pense que l'on sait également de mieux en mieux que
d’autres événements se produisaient dans le monde entier
en ce qui concerne la situation économique. Il serait peut-
étre utile de rappeler que lors de la fondation des Nations
Unies a San Francisco il y avait environ 37 pays membres.
Quelqu’un a-t-il le chiffre exact? De toute fagon, ce n’'était
pas un grand chiffre, surtout si l'on tient compte du
nombre de pays européens ou occidentaux qui ont participé
a I'établissement des Nations Unies.

La période de décolonisation qui devait suivre, a la fin
des années 1940 et au cours des années 1950, a permis au
nombre de pays membres des Nations Unies d’augmenter
trés rapidement. Je ne suis pas certain du nombre exact de
pays qui sont membres des Nations Unies, mais je pense
qu’il s’établit aux environs de 140. ;

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): 143.
M. Breau: Il était de pres de 50 lors de la fondation.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Je ne suis pas trés fort en
arithmétique, mais je voulais simplement montrer qu’'au
cours des 30 années d'existence des Nations Unies, le
nombre de pays membres a triplé et que la plupart des
nouveaux membres des Nations Unies sont des pays classés
soit comme sous-développés, soit en voie de développe-
ment.

Au cours des premiéres années d’existence des Nations
Unies, alors que le conflit fondamental était celui de la
guerre froide entre I'Est et I'Ouest, 'Ouest parvenait habi-
tuellement a controler la situation de maniére a atteindre
ses propres fins. Evidement, on appuyait alors fortement
les Nations Unies, du moins jusqu'au milieu des années
1960; toutefois, vers la fin des années 1960, il devenait de
plus en plus évident que le contréle qu'avaient exercé les
pays occidentaux sur les Nations Unies diminuait considé-
rablement. Depuis la premiére conférence des pays non-ali-
gnés a Bandung, conférence qui a eu lieu il y a justement
20 ans, on a enregistré une tendance croissante vers un
consensus des activités et des préoccupations des pays en
voie de développement.

A un moment donné, au cours de tout ce processus, les
pays qui constituaient le Groupe des 77 ont fait vraiment
front commun pour exprimer de facon évidente leurs opi-
nions aux conférences internationales, au cours des années
1970. Qu'il se soit agi d'une conférence sur la population,
sur I'environnement ou sur l'alimentation, le Groupe des 77
agissait en bloc. A la derniére conférence, a New York, le
Groupe des 77 se composait en fait, si je ne m'abuse,
d’environ 110 pays qui s’étaient, selon toute évidence, non
seulement préparés pour la réunion de New York, mais
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were anxious to deal with in a block way in confronting
the developed nations.

I will not get into this here, but one of the outstanding
features for me at the Special Assembly was the degree to
which more than 100 nations acted almost as one in terms
of the extensive negotiations that went on, but the devel-
oped nations, of which Canada is one—of course, there are
Canada, the United States, the European Economic Com-
munity, the Scandinavian countries, Japan, Australia and
New Zealand. But it was much more difficult for this
smaller block of countries—it would seem to be similar in
many ways—to decide what their own points of agreement
and disagreement might be.
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The developing nations, though, in the conferences lead-
ing up to the Special Session in New York had indicated
that they wished to have major progress made in areas of
international trade, transfer of resources to finance de-
velopment and monetary reform, industrialization, science
and technology, agricultural development and finally
restructuring of the United Nations system.

It was of interest to me, considering the importance that
many people have attached to the need for a reform of the
UN system how low a priority that in effect had at this
particular conference. There was reference to a special
report that had been done by a group of experts and some
consensus that that work should continue but it was obvi-
ous that in terms of the Group of 77, the United Nations in
its present form was perhaps satisfactory enough in
making the point and giving them power in negotiations
which they had looked for.

There is no doubt that there are some essential questions
that are coming increasingly into focus through all these
various conferences that have taken place. The traditional
model that has existed since the end of the Second World
War of free world trade or a free market concept is certain-
ly being supplanted in the proposals that have been put
forward, with the sense of a planned and regulated eco-
nomic system. Of course, that raises a great many difficult
questions for an economy such as ours. It is obviously true,
I think, that a major question has to do with a re-ordering
of the division of labour and although we have some
interest in this for Canada’s economic future, certainly the
impact upon us is as a developed nation, in the fact that we
have not solved this problem domestically, will be very
great.

Perhaps I have gone on long enough, or maybe too long,
to give some background, however sketchy, of the confer-
ence that took place in New York.

I am going to let my two colleagues, Mr. Chairman, carry
on from there.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Thank you very
much, Mr. MacDonald. I understand Mr. Brewin will
follow and then Mr. Roche. Mr. Brewin.

[Interprétation]

avaient élaboré des articles passablement détaillés dont ils
voulaient traiter en bloc lors de leur confrontation avec les
pays industrialisés.

Je ne me lancerai pas dans ce sujet maintenant, mais
j’aimerais quand méme dire que I'une des particularités les
plus frappantes que j'ai notée lors de la Session spéciale,
était le degré de coalition de ces 100 pays ou plus en ce qui
concerne les négociations poussées qui ont eu lieu. Par
contre, chez les nations industrialisées, c’est-a -dire, évi-
demment, le Canada, les Etats-Unis, la Communauté éco-
nomique européenne, les pays scandinaves, le Japon, ’Aus-
tralie et la Nouvelle-Zélande. Enfin, chez ces pays qui
constituent, somme toute, un bloc plus restreint, il a été
bien plus difficile de parvenir & une décision au sujet des
points d’entente et de désaccord.

Toutefois, au cours des conférences qui avaient précédé
la session spéciale a New York, les pays industrialisés
avaient indiqué qu’ils désiraient avancer particuliérement
dans les domaines de commerce international, du transfert
des ressources en vue de financer le développement et la
réforme monétaire, I'industrialisation, les sciences et la
technologie, l'agriculture et enfin la restructuration du
systéme des Nations Unies.

J’ai trouvé intéressant, compte tenu de I'importance que
bien des personnes avaient accordée aux besoins de réfor-
mer le systéme des Nations Unies, combien cette exigence
a fort peu retenu l'attention lors de cette réunion. On a
traité d’'un rapport spécial qui avait été présenté par un
groupe d'expert et on en est parvenu a un certain consen-
sus, a savoir que ce travail devrait étre poursuivi. Nous
nous sommes cependant vite apercus qu’en ce qui concerne
le Groupe des 77, I'Organisation des Nations Unies, sous sa
forme actuelle, est assez satisfaisante pour lui permettre
d’exprimer ses opinions et de lui donner le pouvoir de
négociation qu'il essaye d’obtenir.

Il n’y a aucun doute que certaines questions essentielles
se posent, qui constituent de plus en plus l'aspect le plus
important de ces diverses conférences. La notion tradition-
nelle qui existait depuis la fin de la Seconde Guerre mon-
diale, c’est-a-dire celle du commerce mondial libre ou du
marché libre se trouve évidemment dépassée par les propo-
sitions avancées, et remplacée par un systéme économique
planifié et réglementé. Bien s(r, cela pose un grand nombre
de questions difficiles pour une économie telle que la
notre. Il est vrai, évidemment, qu'il s’agit en grande partie
d’'une réorganisation de la répartition du travail et, bien
que nous nous intéressions a cela en vue de 'avenir écono-
mique du Canada, les conséquences pour nous, en notre
qualité de pays industrialisé, du fait que nous n’ayons pas
résolu ce probléme a l'intérieur méme du pays, seront trés
importantes.

Je crois que j'ai parlé trop longtemps déja, pour vous
brosser ce tableau, assez élémentaire quand méme, de la
situation dans le cadre de laquelle s’est inscrite la confé-
rence de New York.

Monsieur le président, je vais laisser mes deux collégues
poursuivre.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Merci beaucoup,
monsieur Macdonald. M. Brewin va maintenant prendre la
parole et sera suivi de M. Roche. Monsieur Brewin.
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Mr. Brewin: Mr. Chairman and members, you know the
Seventh Special Session took place in New York in Sep-
tember and it was designed to deal with the deep crisis of
development, with international economic relations and
with institutions. It was not simply a question of the lack
of basic means and the poverty of the people of the Third
World and the needs for food, housing, health and educa-
tion. It also had to deal with an international crisis arising
out of the fact that the feeling in the world is that there are
a few dominating countries and a majority of dominated
countries.

I think it is not unfair to say that the conference
achieved perhaps a turning point in world history. It was
put to us in rather dramatic terms by the President of
Mexico, who said we were faced with world co-operation or
world chaos, and Mr. Kissinger said that we are at the
watershed, we are in an extraordinary period which in
retrospect is either going to be seen as a period of creativi-
ty or a period when the economic order came apart politi-
cally, economically and morally. There was a general
agreement that the basic questions of food, population,
health, education, housing, the environment all have to be
solved, not by individual nations acting on their own but
by some sort of global strategy for the whole of human
society. That was a basic thesis that lay behind the confer-
ence but the encouraging feature was that whereas similar
conferences in the past had been noted by the bitter con-
frontation between the Group of 77 which, I think, really
comprises about a hundred nations who are so-called de-
veloping nations that got together in a coalition and they
confronted the developed world which reacted in a very
natural way to the accusations of neo-imperialism and all
the other things, however justified, that were said. On the
other hand, at this particular conference there was real
dialogue, a real attempt to look at the problems, see things
from the other side of the fence as it were, and to get down
to basic issues.

Now no one conference can solve the very many complex
questions that are involved in this new economic order.
But what was repeated several times was the necessity for
a political will to make the necessary changes. I think it
fair to say that, at the special session, there developed an
indication of this political will. Some of the points of
emphasis were that they placed the satisfaction of needs
and the eradication of poverty as a focal point of the whole
development process. There was a strong feeling that
assistance aid would not adequately solve the problem. It
was agreed that the strengthening of the developing Third
World to capacity should be self-reliant development, not
handouts but to help to build themselves. It was agreed
that this involved transforming, in the Third World and
the rest of the world, social, economiec, and political struc-
tures. It dealt with the question of the availability and
access to food, following the Rome Conference, transfer-
ring of international resources, and the need to adapt the
United Nations system to new requirements.

The United Nations has grown up sort of haphazardly in
a sort of haphazard way with many different, sometimes
overlapping, agencies. There were proposals for a revamp-

[Interpretation]

M. Brewin: Monsieur le président, chers collégues, vous
savez que la Septiéme session spéciale a eu lieu & New
York en septembre et qu’elle a été congue pour traiter de la
crise profonde du développement, des relations économi-
ques internationales et des insitutions. Il ne s’agissait pas
simplement de la pénurie des moyens de subsistance fon-
damentaux et de la pauvreté des pays du Tiers monde ou
des besoins en nourriture, logement, programmes de santé
et éducation. Il s’agissait également d’une crise internatio-
nale provenant d’un sentiment mondial qu'il y a peu de
pays dominateurs et une majorité de pays dominés.

Je ne crois pas qu'il soit injuste de dire que la conférence
marque, en quelque sorte, un tournant de l'histoire du
monde. Cela nous a été exprimé en termes saisissants par
le président du Mexique, qui nous a dit qu’il ne nous
restait plus qu’a choisir entre la collaboration mondiale et
le chaos universel, ainsi que par M. Kissinger qui a dit que
nous étions parvenus & un moment critique, une période
extraordinaire qui, en rétrospective, sera jugée soit comme
une période de créativité, soit comme une période de boule-
versements de 'ordre économique sur les plans tant politi-
que qu’économique et moral. De I’aveu de tous les partici-
pants, les questions fondamentales de I'alimentation, de la
population, de la santé, de I’éducation, du logement et de
I'environnement doivent toutes étre résolues, non par le
travail individuel de nations agissant a leur propre compte,
mais par une stratégie globale de I'ensemble de I'humanité.
C’était 12 la thése fondamentale qui a sous-entendu la
conférence; il est toutefois encourageant de noter, qu’alors
que des conférences antérieures semblables avaient été
marquées par un affrontement rageur entre le Groupe des
77—qui comprend, si je ne m’abuse, environ 100 pays dits
en voie de développement—qui a fait front commun et les
pays industrialisés. Ces derniers ont réagi de maniére trés
naturelle aux accusations de néo-impérialisme et autres
accusations, justifiées ou non, qui avaient été lancées. En
revanche, lors de cette conférence, il y a eu un véritable
dialogue, une tentative réelle d’étudier les problémes, de
voir les choses sous un autre angle et de s’attaquer aux
questions fondamentales.

Bien entendu, une seule conférence ne peut résoudre les
questions trés nombreuses et complexes mises en cause
dans ce nouvel ordre économique. Mais souvent on a répété
que la volonté politique d’apporter les changements néces-
saires était indispensable. Il est juste de dire que lors de
cette session spéciale on a pu voir naitre cette volonté
politique. On a surtout insisté sur la satisfaction des
besoins et 'enraiement de la pauvreté comme objectif
premier de tout développement. Beaucoup étaient persua-
dés que I'aide étrangére ne peut résoudre adéquatement le
probléme. On a convenu que la fagon d’améliorer la capa-
cité de production des pays du tiers monde en voie de
développement, c’est de créer des programmes administrés
par leurs gouvernements et non le don d’argent; autrement
dit, il faut les aider a se faire eux-mémes. Cela sous-entend
done la transformation des structures sociales, économi-
ques et politiques du Tiers monde et des autres pays. On a
traité de la question de la disponibilité des aliments, sui-
vant la Conférence de Rome, du transfert des ressources
internationales et de la nécessité d’adapter I'Organisation
des Nations Unies aux besoins nouveaux.

L’Organisation des Nations Unies s’est agrandie un peu

au hasard de sorte qu'il y a un grand nombre d’agences
différentes qui font parfois double emploi. On a donc
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ing of the United Nations to deal with the economic prob-
lems of the world as a whole.

There was a lat of talk, of course, about the international
monetary system. Trade was a major subject of discussion;
the need for stability in prices for primary products; and
this is a matter for bargaining at the UNCTAD, which I
think is coming up in March. It will have to be looked at
very seriously then.

The Third World is of the opinion that they sell to the
developed world at raw materials at low prices, which they
do not control in any way, and buy back manufactured
goods for their development at high prices. That is just one
of the problems. There are trade problems, of problems of
debt too, and the transfer of resources and capital.

I will not deal specifically with the food problems,
although they are part of the whole thing, except to say
that there remains from the Rome Conference and this
session a belief that if the Third World could be made more
productive—and it could be; it is in the realm of what is
possible—the problems of malnutrition and starvation
could be dealt with.

Now may I just say a word or two about the contribution
of different countries? In previous conferences, Dr. Kiss-
inger and other representatives of the U.S.A. took a rather
negative attitude on the question of a new economic order.
They tended to react to the abuse, I think is not too strong
a word, of the Group of 77 and other underdeveloped
developing nations and they said they had until not
thought out their proposals.
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At this conference there was an entirely new attitude.
Dr. Kissinger in a spech read by Ambassador Moynihan
proposed the creation of a development security facility to
stabilize export earnings, consumer—producer forums for
every commodity which comes into international markets
to promote efficiency, growth and stability of markets, the
removal of nontariff barriers, the lowering of tariffs on
manufactured and processed goods of developing coun-
tries, the countries. They proposed to contribute a substan-
tial amount to the world food reserve system, $200 million
in fact, with a view of building up a billion dollar fund for
agricultural development. They proposed doubling their
bilateral assistance to $532 million and they agreed with
the necessity of restructuring the economic and social
structure of the UN system.

As far as Canada was concerned, and I believe Mr. Roche
is going to deal with this in much more detail, we had a
good discussion with U.S. senators and congressmen who
are particularly interested in this whole subject of the new
economic order and what the developed countries have to
contribute. Our Secretary of State for External Affairs said
that the new economic order was based on two proposi-
tions: that developing countries do not derive sufficient
benefits from the existing system of international trade,
investment and finance and that the price increases of
petroleum and other essential imports, along with mone-
tary instability and lagging economic growth, demonstrat-
ed the shortcomings of the world economic system and the

295452

[Interprétation]
proposé une modernisation de celle-ci de facon a traiter des
problémes économiques de ’ensemble des pays.

On a bien entendu longuement parlé du systéme moné-
taire international, du commerce et de la nécessité d’'une
stabilisation des prix des produits primaires. Cette ques-
tion pourrait étre négociée lors de l'assemblée de la
CNUCED qui aura lieu, je crois, en mars. Il faudra a ce
moment-la ’étudier trés sérieusement.

Le Tiers monde est d’avis qu’il vend aux pays industria-
lisés les matiéres premiéres a des prix trés bas, sur lesquels
ils n'ont aucun controle, pour racheter, en vue de leur
développement, des produits finis a des prix élevés. Ce
n’est 1a qu'un des problémes. Ces pays ont aussi des problé-
mes relatifs au commerce, aux dettes et au transfert des
ressources et du capital.

Je ne m’attarderai pas sur les problémes de I’alimenta-
tion, méme s'’ils font partie du tableau, si ce n’est pour dire
que la Conférence de Rome et cette session spéciale ont
laissé I'impression que si I'on veut rendre plus productifs
les pays du Tiers monde, ce qui est possible, il faut d’abord
régler les problémes de malnutrition et de famine.

Je dirai maintenant quelques mots sur la contribution
des divers pays. Lors de conférences précédentes, M. Kis-
singer et d’autres représentants des Etats-Unis ont adopté
une attitude plutot négative face a la question d’'un nouvel
ordre économique. Ils réagissaient plutét aux injures, le
mot n’est pas trop fort, du Groupe des 77 et autres pays en
voie de développement et ont avoué n’avoir pas eu le temps
de songer a leurs propositions.

Lors de cette conférence, leur attitude était tout a fait
différente. M. Kissinger, dans un discours lu par I’Ambas-
sadeur Moynihan, a proposé la création d’'un organisme de
surveillance du développement chargé de stabiliser les
revenus de ’exportation, d’organiser des séminaires pour
consommateurs et producteurs portant sur toutes les den-
rées trouveés sur les marchés internationaux de facon a
promouvoir l'efficacité, la croissance et la stabilité des
marchés, la suppression des barriéres non tarifaires et la
diminution des tarifs douaniers pour les biens manufactu-
rés et finis produits par les pays en voie de développement.
I1 a proposé de verser une somme importante a la réserve
mondiale de produits alimentaires, soit 200 millions de
dollars, en vue de créer un fonds d'un milliard de dollars
destiné au développement agricole. I1 a proposé en outre de
doubler leur programme d’aide bilatérale, en portant le
montant a 532 millions de dollars, et il a convenu de la
nécessité de réorganiser les structures économiques et
sociales des Nations Unies.

En ce qui concerne le Canada, M. Roche va d’ailleurs en
parler plus longuement, nous avons eu une discussion
intéressnate avec les sénateurs et les congressistes des
Etats-Unis qui s'intéressent particuliérement a ce nouvel
ordre économique et a la contribution des pays industriali-
sés. Notre Secrétaire d'Etat aux Affaires extérieures a dit
que le nouvel ordre économique se fondait sur deux princi-
pes: les pays en voie de développement ne tirent pas suffi-
samment de bénéfices du systéme actuel du commerce
international, des investissements et des finances et I'aug-
mentation des prix du pétrole et d'autres importations
essentielles, alliée a l'instabilité monétaire et & une crois-
sance économique ralentie, prouve les failles économiques
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need for changes to benefit the developing countries. Mr.
MacEachen said this:

Canada accepts the validity of these assertions. We
recognize the need for change in the international
economic system in order to reduce the intolerable. ..

and these are the words he used,

... the intolerable disparities between rich and poor
nations.

And he renewed the pledge of a million tons of grain each
year for the next three years.

In addition, it was not just Canada and the United
States; the 9 members of the EEC and 46 developing coun-
tries in Africa, the Carribean and the Pacific have entered
into a five-year agreement dealing with these problems,
known as the Lomé Convention of February 28, 1975.

I just would conclude—and I am perhaps encroaching on
Mr. Roche’s field—to say that these objectives of the new
economic order are not only based on humanitarism,
although I think they are humanitarian in inspiration, but
on hard facts and enlightened self-interest. A stable world
requires that these things be taken seriously. I will con-
clude by saying that Mr. Miller, who I think is here—I saw
him somewhere around—has produced from the Research
Branch of the Library of Parliament a detailed report on
the Seventh Special Session in which he outlines his reac-
tions but also speaks of the attitudes of the U.S.A., the
Group of 77, which represents the developing world and
the consensus document which emerged from that. I think
all the members of the Committee have copies of it and I
strongly recommend that you read it because it outlines in
much more detail than I have been able to do the subjects
of discussion. They are complex, they are detailed, they
will take us many years in my judgment to work out but
they represent hope for a stable world.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Thank you very
much, Mr. Brewin. Mr. Roche.

Mr. Douglas Roche: Mr. Chairman and members of the
Committee, my task is to review briefly Canada’s position
at the Seventh Special Session and I want to make five
points in a kind of shorthand fashion.
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To begin, I completely concur with Mr. Brewin’s judg-
ment that the Seventh Special Session, in projecting a
global strategy, represented a turning point in the whole
question of international development, and so too did
Canada’s position launch us into a new era of international
relations in the development field. The publication of the
five-year strategy called “Strategy for International De-
velopment Co-operation 1975-1980”, in conjunction with
the speech made on September 3 by Mr. MacEachen at the
Special Session, represents a change of both philosophy
and perspective that should not be lost on this Committee.
For a long time the question of foreign aid and internation-
al development has had a moral ring to it. It came out of a
sense of duty or moral commitment to what were called
under-developed peoples, peoples of the world. Without
dismissing the continuing moral necessity of a developed
country like Canada, recognizing its responsibility to the
questions of economic social justice, without diminishing
the moral component, what has now been joined to that
very clearly in the five-year strategy, as well as the Sev-

[Interpretation]

mondiales et la nécessité d'apporter des changements au
profit des pays en voie de développement. M. MacEachen a
dit:
Le Canada reconnait la validité de ces affirmations.
I1 reconnait la nécessité de modifier le systéme écono-
mique internationale de fagon & réduire les disparités
intolérables. ..

ce sont ses propres mots,

... les disparités intolérables entre les nations riches et
les nations pauvres.

Et il a renouvelé la promesse de donner un million de
tonnes de blé chacune des trois prochaines années.

En outre, le Canada et les Etats-Unis n’étaient pas seule
en cause. Les neufs membres de la CEE, les 46 pays d’Afri-
que en voie de développement, les Antilles et les Iles du
Pacifique ont conclu un accord ce cingq ans, portant le nom
de Convention Lomé, le 28 février 1975 afin de traiter de
ces problémes.

Je terminerai, en empiéant sans doute sur le domaine de
M. Roche, en disant que ces objectifs du nouvel ordre
économique ne reposent pas sur des raisons humanitaires,
méme si elles sont évidentes, mais sur des réalités et un
intérét personnel reconnu. Pour un monde stable, nous
devons prendre ces problémes au sérieux. Enfin, M. Miller,
qui est ici, du Service des recherches de la Bibliothéque du
Parlement, a préparé un rapport détaillé de la Septiéme
session spéciale dans lequel il décrit ses réactions, parle de
Pattitude des Etats-Unis et du Groupe des 77, qui repré-
sente les pays en voie de développement, et présente le
document de I'accord général rédigé a la suite de la session.
Je crois que nous en avons tous un exemplaire. Je recom-
mande donc fortement aux membres du Comité de le lire
car il expose de facon beaucoup plus détaillée que je n’ai
pu le faire les sujets de discussion. Ceux-ci sont complexes
et élaborés. 11 nous faudra plusieurs années pour en arriver
a une conclusion mais c’est en eux que se fonde l'espoir
d’un monde stable.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Merci beaucoup,
monsieur Brewin. Monsieur Roche.

M. Douglas Roche: Monsieur le président et membres du
Comité, je vais vous exposer briévement la position qu'a
adoptée le Canada lors de la Septiéme session spéciale. Je
soulignerai cinq points.

Au départ, j’aimerais dire que je suis tout a fait d'accord
avec l'opinion émise par M. Brewin que la Septiéme session
spéciale parce qu’elle préconisait une stratégie globale a
représenté le point tournant dans toute l'affaire du déve-
loppement international, de méme que la position du
Canada nous a lancés vers une nouvelle ére de relations
internationales dans le domaine du développement. La
publication d’une stratégie quinquennale appelée «Straté-
gie pour la coopération dans le développement international
1975-1980» alliée au discours du 3 septembre de M. MacEa-
chen a la session spéciale, indique un changement et de
philosophie et de point de vue que le présent Comité ne
doit pas oublier. Pendant longtemps, la question de l'aide a
I’étranger et du développement international avait des con-
notations morales découlant de notre sens du devoir et de
notre engagement moral envers ce que nous appelions les
habitants des pays en voie de développement, les habitants
du monde. Sans rejeter la nécessité morale perpétuelle qu’a
un pays évolué comme le Canada de reconnaitre ses res-
ponsabilités face aux questions de justice sociale, économi-
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enth Session, is the question of political necessity. So, for
the first time we now have what you might call two main
avenues of life; the philosophical, moral and humanitarian
approach which has been standing for social justice for
some time, now joined to an international array of the
political dimension that is represented in the consensus
document adopted at the Seventh Special Session and in
the spirit of which Canada’s five-year strategy has been
produced. It is absolutely essential, in the terms of which
the problem is outlined in the excellent analysis which
precedes the 21 points of Canada’s five-year strategy, to
recognize that Canada has no choice but to realize our own
self-interest in maintaining a stable and secure country
which has such enormous resources and potential techno-
logical capacity in a world demanding all those things.

The second main overview is that this thing called the
new international economic order is, of course, a blueprint
and I think it is represented in the Canadian position, as I
understood it in New York, that we are not going to try to
move into this abstract, new international economic order
as if it were something that could be implemented over-
night. As Mr. Brewin has correctly noted, it is going to take
years to implement the change of thinking all the way
down the line, and I mean by that the Department of
Finance and the Department of Industry, Trade and Com-
merce, which have to support the initiatives of the Depart-
ment of External Affairs. I think it would be fair to
paraphrase Mr. MacEachen’s own view, that External
Affairs can huff and puff all it wants on implementing a
five-year strategy in the context of the global strategy of
the United Nations, it can huff and puff all it wants, but
unless it has the support of the very important depart-
ments of the Canadian Government it will be very dif-
ficult to make any real gains beyond rhetorical expositions
in international forums. So, I think the Canadian position
is that we want to move into or move towards those goals
of the new economic order that I think we will discuss in a
bit more detail as we go through this meeting. So, it is not
a question of just throwing out to the Canadian people this
new economic order. As I see it, it is a question of trying,
as a Committee, to understand what is involved in the new
economic order, what the five-year strategy can lead us
towards and finding ways in which the Canadian govern-
ment can implement arrangements of commodity, pricing,
trade liberation, and industrial co-operation, which are the
heart of the Canadian strategy, implement them in ways
that the Canadian people will both understand and sup-
port. There is certainly, in the matter of communications, a
two-way approach going on here: there is the approach of
the Canadian government to the Canadian people to try to
help Canadians understand what is really involved in a
new economic order, and, of course, having the Canadian
people then support whatever initiatives the Canadian
government can take.
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As time goes on, the role of the Committee will become
very interesting in this regard, because clearly we have a
two-way role. Our role is to understand the five-year
strategy, to interpret it, and to recommend back to the
government ways that we think are the most realistic for

[Interprétation]

que, sans amoindrir I’élément moral, nous avons vu s’ajou-
ter a cela, trés clairement, dans la stratégie de cinq années,
ainsi qu’a la Septiéme session, la question de la nécessité
politique. Nous avons donc pour la premiére fois ce que
jappellerais deux grands modes de vie; 'approche philoso-
phique, morale et humanitaire qui représente depuis quel-
que temps la justice sociale a laquelle s’ajoute sur I'échelle
internationale une dimension politique telle qu'exprimée
dans le document unanime adopté par la Septiéme session
spéciale qui a donné naissance au plan quinquennal du
Canada. Il est absolument essentiel, compte tenu du pro-
bléme tel que résumé dans I'excellente analyse qui précéde
les 21 points de la stratégie quinquennale du Canada de
reconnaitre que le Canada n’a aucun choix sauf de se
rendre compte de ses propres intéréts dans le maintien
d’un pays stable qui a d’énormes ressources et une possibi-
lité technique dans un monde ou toutes ces choses sont en
demande.

Le deuxiéme courant principal est que ce que nous appe-
lons le nouvel ordre économique international est bien sGr
un plan qui, je crois, représente la position canadienne
telle que je 'ai comprise a New York voulant que nous
n’allons pas essayer d’adopter ce nouvel ordre économique
international abstrait comme s’il s’agissait d'un pro-
gramme a appliquer du jour au lendemain. Ainsi que 'a
fait remarquer avec justesse M. Brewin, il faudra des
années pour voir le changement de mentalité sur toute la
ligne, je veux dire le ministére des Finances et le ministére
de I'Industrie et du Commerce qui doivent seconder les
initiatives du ministére des Affaires extérieures. Je crois
que 'on peut répéter 'avis de M. MacEachen voulant que
les Affaires extérieures peuvent remuer ciel et terre pour
appliquer la stratégie de cinq ans dans le contexte de la
stratégie globale des Nations Unies, le ministére peut
remuer ciel et terre, mais a moins d’étre secondé par les
ministeres les plus importants du gouvernement canadien
il sera tres difficile de réaliser des gains réels dépassant les
vagues exposés théoriques dans le forum international. Je
crois donc que la position canadienne signifie que nous
voulons nous diriger vers ces buts d’'un nouvel ordre écono-
mique et je crois également que nous pourrons en discuter
plus en détail au cours de la présente réunion. Il ne s’agit
pas de lancer a la téte du public canadien ce nouveau
concept. A mon avis, c’est une question, a titre de Comité,
d’essayer de comprendre ce que signifie un nouvel ordre
économique, a quoi peut nous mener la stratégie quinquen-
nale et de chercher des facons qui permettraient au gou-
vernement canadien d’appliquer les accords sur les pro-
duits de consommation, les prix, le libre-échange, la
coopération industrielle, le cceur méme de la stratégie
canadienne, de facon a recevoir la compréhension et I'ap-
pui des Canadiens. Trés certainement nous constatons
dans le domaine des communications une approche bilaté-
rale: il y a le geste du gouvernement canadien vers les
Canadiens pour essayer d’aider ceux-ci a comprendre ce
qu’'un nouvel ordre économique veut vraiment dire et bien
sir visant a obtenir I'appui du peuple pour les initiatives
que le gouvernement pourrait prendre.

A Tl'avenir, le role du comité deviendra trés intéressant a
cet égard car nous avons également deux réles a jouer.
Notre role est de comprendre la stratégie quinquennale, de
I'interpréter et de faire des recommandations au gouverne-
ment sur les fagons les plus réalistes & notre avis de
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implementing it, all of this in the context of developing
public opinion as we go along.

Mr. MacEachen’s speech, in which he summarized the
approach that is contained in the five-year strategy, does
go on to recommend the adjustments in the international
economic system. What are these adjustments? Well, we
begin with commodities. Commodities takes us into the
UNCTAD 4 conference next spring in Africa. Mr. Mac-
Eachen summarizes the Canadian position by saying that:

We are prepared to examine positively the idea of
negotiating arrangements for a wide range of products
including, but not limited to, those listed in UNC-
TAD'’s integrated approach.

UNCTAD is calling for is that the prices for 16 or 18
primary commodities of the world that are crucial to the
economies of the developing nations on an export basis be
negotiated in a package deal rather than being subject to
the vagaries of market forces. This introduces the whole
question of what is going to be the dominant factor in
control of the market from now on.

Will it be the interplay of the buyers and sellers which
has been dominated since the Breton Woods Agreement
following World War II by the developed nations that had
the power and potential and the capacity to call the shot on
what international prices would be? Or will prices be
arrived at by a system in which the developing nations can
themselves contribute their own values, their own goals as
to what prices should be?

If we are going to follow the UNCTAD approach, which
has been supported in principle by the Canadian govern-
ment, the developed nations—including Canada—will have
to go into a sharing, an international partnership of what
commodity prices will be. That itself represents quite a
distinct move into structural changes as distinct from just
giving foreign aid out of our largesse. It is quite a
movement.

It would certainly be premature at this time to say or not
Canada would be able to follow through in concrete detail;
that is going to be a question that this Committee is going
to have to examine.

Second, trade liberalization. At present, 75 per cent of
Canada’s imports from developing countries enter duty
free, but we the Canadian government is willing to
advance deeper tariff cuts. There again, we are going to
have to go into the question of how much Canadian busi-
ness is willing to see imported into Canada at rates that
pull back from the high tariffs we have set up over the
course of years to protect our domestic economy. Surely it
would be irresponsible for the Canadian government or
Parliament to recommend that tariffs be cut without con-
sidering the consequences. There is considerable detail
now being worked out, as I have said, as to what would be
the consequences in the textile industry, in the shoe indus-
try, for instance. Those are very real questions on which
the committee could bring experts before us to examine.

Third, industrial co-operation; the question of the role of
multi-national corporations; the export of our technology
in ways that do not exploit developing nations. The
Canadian position is a little vaguer on this, I would say,
than on commodities and trade liberalization. But,
nonetheless, it represents a determination to play a posi-
tive role in using our resources and our influence to bring
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I'appliquer, le tout dans le contexte de forger l'opinion
publique.

Le discours de M. MacEachen au cours duquel il résume
I'approche qui sous-entend la stratégie quinquennale
recommande des ajustements dans le systéme économique
international. Lesquels? D’abord les produits de consom-
mation. Ceux-ci nous aménent a parler de la conférence de
la CNUCED 4 qui doit avoir lieu le printemps prochain. M.
MacEachen a résumé la position canadienne en disant:

Nous sommes disposés a examiner de fagon positive
I'idée de négocier des accords visant un éventail de
produits, y compris mais sans se limiter a ceux inscrits
dans I'approche de CNUCED

La CNUCED demande que les prix de 16 ou 18 produits
primaires du monde qui sont essentiels & I'économie des
pays en voie de développement se négocient en groupes
plutét que d’étre sujets aux variations du marché. Cela
nous amene a la question de savoir quel sera le facteur
dominant qui contrélera le marché a 'avenir.

Est-ce qu'il s’agira de la relation entre les acheteurs et
les vendeurs, dominés depuis I'accord de Breton Woods a la
suite de la Deuxiéme Guerre mondiale par les nations
évoluées détenant le pouvoir et les possibilités d'imposer
leurs volontés quant aux prix internationaux? Ou va-t-on
convenir des prix au moyen d'un systéme qui permettrait
aux pays en voie de développement de contribuer leurs
propres valeurs, leurs propres buts quant aux prix a
établir?

Si nous voulons donner suite a l'approche de la
CNUCED, favorisée en principe par le gouvernement cana-
dien, les pays évolués, y compris le Canada, devront parta-
ger, devront conclure une association internationale pour
fixer les prix. C'est 1a une démarche tout a fait nouvelle
dont les modifications de structure qui nous éloignent, de
simplement faire des largesses et distribuer l'aide interna-
tionale. C’est un geste trés important.

Il serait trés certainement prématuré maintenant de dire
qu’on pourra ou non donner suite par des détails concrets;
c’est 1a une question sur laquelle devra se pencher le
comité.

Deuxiémement, il y a le libre échange. A I'heure actuelle,
75 p. 100 des importations canadiennes en provenance des
pays en voie de développement sont hors taxe, mais le
gouvernement canadien est disposé a accorder d'autres
réductions encore. Encore une fois, il va nous falloir nous
pencher sur la question afin de savoir a quel point les
commerc¢ants canadiens sont disposés a voir des importa-
tions entrer au Canada a des taux bien au-dessous de ceux
fixés pour protéger notre économie nationale. Il serait
stupide pour le gouvernement canadien ou le Parlement de
recommander que les tarifs soient abaissés sans examiner
les conséquences. Il y a des études détaillées en cours en ce
moment pour savoir quelles seraient les répercussions sur
I'industrie textile, et sur l'industrie de la chaussure, par
exemple. Ce sont la des questions trés réelles et nous
pourrions faire venir des experts pour nous les expliquer.

Troisiemement, la coopération industrielle; la question
du réle des multinationales; 'exportation de notre techni-
que de fagon a ne pas exploiter les pays en voie de dévelop-
pement. La position canadienne est un peu plus vague a cet
égard que sur les produits de consommation et le libre
échange. Néanmoins, elle indique le désir de jouer un réle
positif en utilisant nos ressources et notre influence afin
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about a constructive change internationally. So, the new
economic order and the five-year strategy brings us, as a
Committee, to grips with very specific items and I think
we are going to explore in another two months—I hope we
do—real ways in which Canada can enter this new phase
or this new era of participating on a partnership basis in
structural change with the developing nations, which is
what they want and which is what the Group of 77 has
been calling for during the Sixth and Seventh Special
Sessions of the United Nations in order that they no longer
be subject to the whims of the developed countries that
may or may not give aid.
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The giving of aid ought to be very critically examined by
this Committee because there are many experts in the
world who maintain that the giving of aid only prolongs
the problems since it increases the dependence. Nonethe-
less, the situation is so complicated today that we cannot
pull back from aid. It is not a question of our moving into
structural change and then having no longer reliance on
aid.

I call as my chief witness in this area Mr. Robert S.
MacNamara, President of the World Bank, who has said
that over the next five to eight years an additional aid flow
of some $40 billion to $50 billion will be needed in addition
to the current level. Why? Because the situation in what is
now called the Fourth World, the 32 least developed coun-
tries contraining one billion people who have no energy
access, is now so critical with respect to just the basics of
food, shelter, energy, clothing and medicine that without
increased aid flow directed to those least developed coun-
tries they will have no hope whatsoever of participating in
the structural reforms of the new economic order because
the structural reforms presuppose a capacity to trade and a
capacity to produce. So, for the next decade we can say at
the very least, without having any resort to crystal ball
gazing, it is absolutely clear that the developed nations, in
order to meet both the moral and the political imperative
of international co-operation and development, will have
to move on two fronts at the same time. I believe that to be
a point that the Canadian people do not understand at all.

This leads me to what I have said on several occasions
since September, namely, that the Canadian position
today, as reflected in the five-year strategy, is clearly far
in advance of Canadian public opinion today, and that is a
question that we are also going to have to examine. The
Canadian position makes a change, also in the five-year
strategy, in the bilateral aspect of foreign aid. Some 60 per
cent of Canada's foreign aid, now $933 million this year, is
in bilateral and, as you know, 80 per cent of that has had to
be spent in total bilateral funds spent in Canada, and that
has raised real questions as to why we give foreign aid in
the first place. Over the past 25 years Canada has given
$3.6 billion in foreign aid, and it would not take very long
to advance an argument that that has helped the Canadian
economy far more than it has helped the economies of the
developing nations. That is a fact we have to live with. The
Canadian position does re-affirm its commitment to reach-
ing .7 per cent. Although official development assistance
does not give a target, we are now giving .53 per cent a year

[Interprétation]

d’amener des changements constructifs dans les milieux
internationaux. Donc le nouvel ordre économique et cette
stratégie de cinq ans nous obligent, a titre de Comité, a
nous occuper de questions fort précises. J'espere que dans
les deux mois a venir nous allons chercher réellement a
trouver des moyens efficaces par lesquels le Canada pourra
participer a cette nouvelle ére des changements de struc-
ture dans les pays en voie de développement. En fait, c’est
ce que ce Groupe des 77 a indiqué au cours des Sixiéme et
Septiéme sessions spéciales des Nations Unies afin de ne
plus étre sujettes a la fantaisie des pays industrialisés dans
le domaine de I'aide.

Le Comité devrait examiner d’un ceil fort critique cette
question de l'aide apportée car beaucoup d’experts dans le
monde prétendent que fournir de I'aide ne fait que retarder
la solution des problémes du fait que celle-ci accroit la
dépendance des pays aidés. Néanmoins, aujourd’hui la si-
tuation est si compliquée que nous ne pouvons retirer toute
notre aide; il ne peut étre question de nous lancer dans des
changements de structure puis aprés de ne plus nous occu-
per de 'aide.

Je m’appuie ici sur ce qu’a dit mon principal témoin dans
ce domaine, soit M. Robert S. MacNamara, président de la
Banque mondiale, qui déclarait qu’au cours des cinq a huit
prochaines années il faudrait apporter 40 a 50 milliards de
dollars d’aide en plus de ce que nous donnons déja. Pour-
quoi? Pour la simple raison que la situation est si critique
dans ce que nous appelons le Quatriéme monde et qui
comprend les 32 pays les moins développés avec un mil-
liard d’habitants qui n’ont aucun accés aux sources d’éner-
gie, qu’on manque la-bas de nourriture, d’abris, d’énergie,
de vétements et de médicaments et que, si on n’apporte pas
un accroissement d’aide directement des pays industriali-
sés il sera vain de songer & une participation de leur part
aux réformes de structures du nouvel ordre économique.
Des réformes de structure supposent de la part des nations
gqu'elles aient la possibilité de faire du commerce, de pro-
duire. Donc nous pouvons dire que pour les 10 années a
venir au minimum, sans avoir recours a des devins, il est
absolument certain que les nations industrialisées devront,
pour répondre aux nécessités de la politique de coopération
internationale et de développement, s’occuper de deux
fronts en méme temps. Je crois que c’est 1a une situation
que les Canadiens ne comprennent pas.

Ceci me conduit a répéter ce que j'ai déja énoncé souvent
depuis septembre, soit que la position du Canada aujour-
d’hui vis-a-vis de cette stratégie de cinq ans est beaucoup
en avance sur l'opinion publique canadienne et que, par
conséquent, il faudra en tenir compte. Dans l'optique de
cette stratégie de cing ans, soit du co6té bilatéral de 'aide
extérieure, la situation du Canada n’est pas ce qu'elle
devrait étre. Quelque 60 p. 100 de l'aide extérieure du
Canada, soit 933 millions de dollars cette année, consti-
tuent cette aide bilatérale et comme vous le savez 80 p. 100
de ces fonds doivent étre dépensés au Canada, ce qui a mis
en doute le principe méme de l'aide a I'étranger. Ces 25
derniéres années, le Canada a fourni 3.6 milliards de dol-
lars en aide extérieure et on peut facilement prétendre que
cette aide a plus aidé I'économie canadienne que celle des
pays en voie de développement. Il nous faut faire face a la
vérité: le Canada continue a réaffirmer qu'il veut remplir
son engagement soit atteindre .7 p. 100, comme fixé depuis
longtemps par les Nations Unies. Or, méme si du coté
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and .7 per cent has been advocated by the UN for a long
time. Sweden is the only developed country that has now
reached .7 per cent. The United States has fallen almost to
the bottom of the OECD list. The mean is around .33 per
cent. Canada ia ahead of the average. Nonetheless, in the
view of such impartial observers as the Commonwealth
team that Canada supported in preparing a report for the
Seventh Special Session, the experts, which are called the
Group of ten experts, representing the Commonwealth
countries made it very clear that the developed countries
ought to reach 1 per cent of GNP in ODA before 1980. That
was a very clear target. So, as we consider the Canadian
position, which I have spoken of in complimentary terms
so far and very sincerely, I think the Committee also has to
recognize that the Canadian position in the five-year
strategy does differ and falls short of certain specifics
raised in the Commonwealth report: such specifics being
that the Commonwealth report is saying 1 per cent of GNP
by 1980 and the Commonwealth report is saying indexa-
tion, which is the formula by which prices of exports from
the developing nations are hooked to the prices of their
imports of manufactured goods from the developed
nations. That is indexation, which we have spoken against
and the Commonwealth has spoken for. The Common-
wealth has also spoken for what is called the SDR aid link,
in which special drawing rights, the new form of interna-
tional monetary funds—that priorities be given to develop-
ing nations. Canada has not supported that.

® 1150
Mr. Chairman, in closing I would remind the Committee
that there is an area of investigation here, of examining
the differences between Canada’s five-year strategy and
the Commonwealth report, centering on the 1 per cent
GNP, the SDR aid link, and indexation. I think it is
interesting to note that the Commonwealth experts have
declared:

We consider that the reasons developed countries have
advanced in an attempt to explain why annual aid
appropriations have failed to allow them to reach the
0.7 per cent target already have little economic sub-
stance or validity.

That is a quote from the Commonwealth report that I
believe ought to be explored.

Finally, nothing of any real consequence in a real way in
Canada can be done without the development of public
opinion. I believe that public opinion in Canada is far
behind what we are doing and also the five-year strategy.
One of the ways in which we might make a contribution,
Mr. Chairman, to helping the development of public opin-
ion would be to show this Committee, and perhaps have an
evening to show the members of Parliament, the two-hour
documentary called “Five Minutes to Midnight”. This was
produced by a team of British television producers who
took two years and went around the world and produced a
two-hour documentary on this subject. It was premiered to
the delegates at the Seventh Special Session, and everyone
who has seen it so far considers it the most remarkable
document of explaining why poor people are poor, why
they are trapped in repeated cycles of poverty, what is
being done about it, and what ought to be done beyond
that.

[Interpretation]

officiel on n’indique pas d’objectif, nous fournissons .53 p.
100 par an. La Suéde est le seul pays qui fournit .7 p. 100;
les Etats-Unis sont presqu'en bas de la liste des pays de
I'OCDE. Soit aux alentours de .33 p. 100. Le Canada
dépasse la moyenne mais aux yeux d’observateurs impar-
tiaux comme ceux de I'équipe du Commonwealth auxquels
le Canada a donné son soutien en préparant un rapport
pour la Septiéme session spéciale des Nations Unies, soit
aux yeux de ce groupe des 10 experts comme on les appelle
et qui représente les pays du Commonwealth, il est bien
clair que les pays industrialisés devraient fournir 1 p. 100
de leur Produit national brut en aide extérieure au déve-
loppement avant 1980. Nous considérons que la position
canadienne, méme si je I'ai vantée, et je crois que le Comité
est d’accord, la position canadienne vis-a-vis de cette stra-
tégie de cinq ans est fort loin de répondre a cet objectif du
rapport du Commonwealth. Ce rapport du Commonwealth
parle d'indexation soit d’'une formule grace a laquelle les
prix des exportations en provenance des pays en voie de
développement seraient liés aux prix de leurs importations
de produits fabriqués en provenance des pays industriali-
sés. Il s’agit donc d'une indexation contre laquelle je me
suis élevé mais que le Commonwealth a appuyée. Le Com-
monwealth a aussi parlé des droits de tirage spéciaux qui
constituent une nouvelle sorte de fonds monétaires inter-
nationaux, donnant priorité aux nations en voie de déve-
loppement. Le Canada n’a pas rallié ce point de vue.

Pour terminer, monsieur le président, je voudrais rappe-
ler au Comité qu’il faudrait s’occuper d’étudier ces diffé-
rences qui existent entre la stratégie de cing ans du
Canada et le rapport du Commonwealth qui se concentre
sur le 1 p. 100 du Produit national brut et 'aide au moyen
de droits de tirages spéciaux ainsi que sur l'indexation. Je
crois qu'il est intéressant de faire remarquer que les
experts du Commonwealth ont déclaré:

Nous considérons que les raisons invoquées par les
pays industrialisés pour expliquer pourquoi ils n’'ont
pas atteint cet objectif de 0.7 p. 100 au point de vue
aide annuelle ne sont pas fondées ou valides économi-
quement parlant.

Je crois qu'on devrait méditer sur ce rapport du
Commonwealth.

En fin de compte, on ne pourra rien faire de valable si on
n’obtient pas au Canada l'accord du public et je crois que
I'opinion publique au Canada ne suit pas, de loin, ce que
nous faisons ni ce qu'il en est au point de vue stratégie sur
cing ans. Une des fagons grace a laquelle nous pourrions
contribuer, monsieur le président, a aider a faire prendre
conscience au public de ces réalités serait de projeter
devant les membres du présent Comité, et peut-étre au
cours d'une soirée de projeter pour le bénéfice des députés,
ce film documentaire de deux heures intitulé: «Five
Minutes to Midnights. Ce film a été créé par un équipe de
réalisateurs britanniques qui ont passé deux ans a voyager
autour du monde. Il a été projeté pour la premiére fois
devant les délégués de la Septiéme session spéciale des
Nations Unies et, jusqu'ici, tout le monde le considére
comme le document le plus remarquable sur la situation
des pays sous-développés car il explique pourquoi les gens
y sont pauvres et pourquoi ils sont dans un cercle vicieux
de pauvreté; il explique quelles sont les mesures qu'on a
prises et quelles sont celles que I'on pourrait prendre.
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The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Thank you, Mr.
Roche. As agreed upon, we will have a discussion on the
points brought up by the three speakers. I have Mr.
McKenzie listed as the first questioner or speaker.

Mr. McKenzie: Mr. Chairman, I would like to thank the
three gentlemen for their most interesting report. I would
like to ask Mr. Roche if he could provide us with a little
more information pn this Fourth World that he mentioned.

Could you tell us how long these conditions have existed
in these countries? It seems obvious to me that they cannot
have very high educational standards. Is anything being
done to improve their educational standards?

Mr. Roche: I will briefly review what I consider is the
Fourth World. The “Fourth World” is a relatively new
term, but it is essential to describe—I think I said earlier
32—it is 35 countries most severely affected by the interna-
tional economic upheaval of the mid-seventies. They are
short on food, energy, and fertilizer, and are trying to cope
with the highest population growth rate in the world. It is
a combination of high population growth rate and low
capacity for production in food, energy and what we call
the necessities of life. They can only be regarded, in the
words of Mr. McNamara at the World Bank, as “economic
hardship cases”. They include India, Bangladesh, Pakistan,
Burma, Ethiopia, Zaire, Tanzania, and that is just a few.
Their estimated population is one billion and their per
capita GNP is $149.

Just to continue the comparison, the per capita GNP of
the First World, the developed world, is $3,720. In the
Second World, which is mainly the Communist states,
including Communist China, the per capita is $1,049. What
is called in general terms the Third World, meaning de-
veloping countries, now has to be seen as that group of
countries in the majority who have quite a bit of potential.
Many of them are oil producing states themselves, Nigeria,
Algeria, Indonesia, and so on. Many of these countries have
a capacity, and their per capita GNP is $784. So when you
get to the Fourth World, which is the 35 least developed,
you see what a tremendous drop it is to $149.

I think you were referring to the reasons.
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Mr. McKenzie: Yes. How long have these conditions

existed? Did I understand you to say they just started in
the seventies?

Mr. Roche: They have been exacerbated in the seventies
by the oil crisis because when oil was quadrupled and now
quintupled in price, the countries that have been called the
least developed have had their aid flow more than wiped
out by their balance of payments to pay for that oil and
also to repay their existing debt on loans which they had
previously received. In other words, in commercial and
economic terms, they are falling further and further into
bankruptcy without any way of getting out and precisely
because of the quintupling of world prices.

[Interprétation]

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Merci, monsieur
Roche. Comme nous ’avons accepté, nous discuterons des
questions soulevées par les trois orateurs précédents. J'ai
sur ma liste tout d’abord M. McKenzie.

M. McKenzie: Monsieur le président, j'aimerais remer-
cier ces trois messieurs pour leur rapport si passionnant.
J’aimerais demander & M. Roche s§’il pourrait nous donner
un peu plus de renseignements sur ce Quatriéme monde
dont il a parlé.

Pourriez-vous nous dire depuis combien de temps ces
conditions existent dans ces pays? Il me semble évident
que le niveau d’éducation dans ces pays est fort bas; est-ce
qu’on prend des mesures pour I'améliorer?

M. Roche: Je vais décrire briévement ce que je considére
comme englobé dans ce terme «Quatriéme monde». Il s’agit
la d’une expression récemment créée; je crois avoir men-
tionné plutot qu’il s’agissait de 32 pays, mais en fait ce sont
35 pays qui ont été les plus défavorisés au point de vue
économie internationale au cours du milieu des années
1970. I1 leur manque la nourriture, ’énergie, les engrais et
leur taux de croissance démographique est un des plus
élevés au monde. Il y a donc combinaison de taux élevé
démographique et de basse capacité de production alimen-
taire, énergétique, enfin de production de ce que nous
appelons les nécessités vitales. La seule facon dont on peut
les qualifier c’est comme M. McNamara I’a fait devant la
Banque mondiale, soit de «cas d’économie de misére». Il
faut y inclure I'Inde, le Bangladesh, le Pakistan, la Birma-
nie, 'Ethiopie, le Zaire, la Tanzanie entre autres. On évalue
leur population & un milliard et leur Produit national brut
par habitant a $149.

Aux fins de comparaison, disons que le Premier monde,
soit le monde industriel, jouit d’'un Produit national brut
par habitant de $3,720. Dans le Deuxiéme monde, soit
principalement les Etats communistes, y compris la Chine
communiste, le revenu par habitant est de $1,049. Ce que
I'on dénomme généralement le Tiers monde, soit les pays
en voie de développement constitue un groupe de pays
possédant la plupart du temps pas mal de possibilités.
Certains de ces pays produisent du pétrole comme le Nige-
ria, I’Algérie, I'Indonésie, etc. Leur Produit national brut
par habitant est de $784. Donc lorsque vous en arrivez au
Quatriéme monde soit ces 35 pays les moins développés,
vous vous apercevez que I’on tombe a $149.

Je crois que vous vouliez parler des raisons qui ont
amené une telle situation.

M. McKenzie: Oui. Depuis quand existent ces condi-
tions? Vous ai-je bien compris lorsque vous avez affirmé
qu’elles étaient apparues dans les années 1970?

M. Roche: Je pense que la situation s’est aggravée pen-
dant les années 1970, du fait de la crise du pétrole, puisque
le prix de ce produit a quadruplé et méme, maintenant,
quintuplé; de ce fait, les pays que I'on a appelés les moins
développés ont constaté que l'aide qu’ils recevaient était
plus qu’annulée par le déficit de leur balance des paie-
ments, puisqu'’ils devaient non seulement payer beaucoup
plus cher pour le pétrole mais également rembourser les
dettes qu’ils avaient contractées a 1'occasion de préts anté-
rieurs. En d'autres termes, sur un plan commercial et
économique, ces pays ne cessent de prendre du retard et
l'augmentation phénoménale des prix mondiaux ne leur
laisse aucune chance de s’en sortir.
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And naturally many international agencies are very
gravely concerned about this which is one reason why
Canada was one of the leaders in developing the third
window in the IMF which is a special way in which they
got funds from the oil exporting nations made available at
very low or concessionary terms to help those least devel-
oped countries to pay for their oil imports.

Mr. McKenzie: Did you say that some of these Fourth
World countries are oil-producing countries?

Mr. Roche: No. The oil-producing countries and Third
World countries.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): What is poten-
tially India now.

Mr. Roche: The oil-producing countries are principally
Indonesia, Kuwait, Nigeria Algeria, Saudi Arabia,
Venezuela. They are countries that are quickly attaining
what is almost First World status. We are dealing with
figures obtained in 1972. The 1972 figures are the most
recent available on an international basis and, of course,
developments since 1972 have thrown out of tilt or out of
focus some of the figures. That is why the real per capita
income in some of those oil-exporting nations is now much
greater than most of us realize. Of course, that is one
reason why Canada is changing its foreign aid program or
has been over the past year to concentration on the least
developed and phasing out those developing nations at the
highest end of the ladder.

Mr. McKenzie: If I could just have one brief question
here. Some of the Third World countries are big oil-produc-
ing countries and they are taking billions of dollars in.
They are making billions of dollars a year, these oil-pro-
ducing countries.

Mr. Roche: Some of them are phenomenal figures; I
would have to look them up.

Mr. McKenzie: You hear these fantastic stories about
some of the oil producers going over and dropping $2
million or $3 million at the tables in Las Vegas and buying
hotels in the United States and airlines and all the rest of
these sorts of things. What safeguards have we got, a
country like Canada, to see that this sort of thing is not
going on, that they are not allowed to do this? Can we stop
them in any way or take this matter up with them? You
know, we are sending goods and money and so forth over
there adn there are many playboy sheiks that are squan-
dering their billions and millions of dollars elsewhere.

Mr. Roche: I think you are touching the heart of the
Canadian foreign aid question. I think there are probably
many answers to come out. I would like to touch on two
points that I think respond to the point you are bringing
up. The first is what I would call the elitism of the Third
World countries. Within those countries there is definitely
an elite in certain countries, a very pronounced elite that is
in control itself and is fostering its own kind of minority
society within the developing country that is itself benefit-
ing and it is those people that probably turn up at the Las
Vegas gambling tables. So I do not see much way in which
we can change those systems until the people of the de-

[Interpretation]

Evidemment, beaucoup d'organismes internationaux
sont trés préoccupés par cette situation et c’est I'une des
raisons pour lesquelles le Canada a été 'un des premiers
pays a créer des liens spéciaux avec le Tiers monde, dans le
cadre du Fonds monétaire international, afin de permettre
a ces pays de recevoir des fonds des pays exportateurs de
pétrole, a des taux d’intérét trés faibles ou a des conditions
annexes trés avantageuses, pour les aider a acquitter leur
dette pétroliére. '

M. McKenzie: Avez-vous affirmé que certains de ces
pays du Quart monde sont des pays producteurs de
pétrole?

M. Roche: Non, les pays producteurs de pétrole sont
classés dans les pays du Tiers monde.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Quelle est la
situation de I'Inde dans ce contexte?

M. Roche: Les principaux pays producteurs de pétrole
sont I'Indonésie, le Koweit, le Nigeria, 1'Algérie, 1'Arabie
Saoudite et le Venezuela. Il s’agit la de pays qui sont sur le
point d’atteindre le rang de pays développés. Cependant,
n’oubliez pas que nous traitons ici de chiffres de 1972,
puisque ce sont les plus récents, alors que I'évolution qui
s'est produite depuis lors risque d'avoir modifié quelque
peu la situation. C’est pourquoi le revenu individuel réel
de certains de ces pays exportateurs de pétrole est mainte-
nant beaucoup plus élevé que beaucoup d’entre nous ne
seraient disposés a le croire. C'est d'ailleurs l'une des
raisons pour lesquelles le Canada modifie ses programmes
d’aide aux pays étrangers, en s’efforcant, depuis un an, de
concentrer ses efforts sur les pays les moins développés en
décrochant, si vous voulez, les pays qui se trouvent mainte-
nant en haut de I’échelle.

M. McKenzie: J'aimerais poser une bréve question. Cer-
tains des pays du Tiers monde sont de forts pays exporta-
teurs de pétrole et ont donc des revenus s'élevant a des
milliards de dollars par année.

M. Roche: Je pourrais vérifier mais je puis déja vous
confirmer que certains d'entre eux ont des revenus assez
phénoménaux.

M. McKenzie: Ainsi, tout le monde a sans doute entendu
parler de certains producteurs de pétrole jouant deux ou
trois millions de dollars & Las Vegas, achetant des hotels
aux Etats-Unis, des lignes aériennes, etc. J'aimerais donc
savoir si un pays tel que le nétre dispose de garanties
suffisantes pour s'assurer que ce genre de choses ne se
produit pas chez lui. Pouvons-nous les interdire d’agir de
cette maniére, d’'une maniére quelconque, ou pouvons-nous
au moins en discuter avec eux? En effet, vous savez que
nous envoyons a '’étranger beaucoup de biens et d'argent
alors que certains Don Juan arabes gaspillent leurs mil-
lions de dollars en Occident.

M. Roche: Je pense que ceci nous améne dans le vif du
sujet, tout au moins en ce qui nous concerne. évidemment,
nous pourrions sans doute obtenir beaucoup de réponses a
toutes nos questions. J'aimerais cependant mentionner
deux choses qui me semblent répondre a votre remarque.
La premiére concerne ce que j'appellerais I'élitisme des
pays du Tiers monde. En effet, il existe, dans certains
d’entre eux, une élite bien définie, parfaitement maitre de
la situation et dont le seul intérét est de protéger la société
minoritaire dont elle fait partie. Il ne fait aucun doute que
ce sont certains de ces membres que l'on peut retrouver
autour des tables de jeu de Las Vegas. Cependant, je ne
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veloping nations themselves achieve enough income,
enough education that they equalize within their own
countries and take away from the overpowering control of
the wealth in some of those countries.

Nonetheless that would not be sufficient reason not to
provide aid to those countries. I think we have to consider
where aid is needed and to provide it in ways that we can
guarantee get down to the people. That brings you to the
second point, which is that CIDA itself recognizes that its
monitoring facilities are insufficient. I think it is very
clear. This bring us back to this Committee’s responsibility
to ensure that the money CIDA is providing is monitored
as well as can possibly be done.

e 1200

Mr. Brewin: But it is only fair to say, and I think you

would agree, that CIDA is already cutting down aid to

some of the oil-producing countries, or cutting them out. I

think it is cutting out Venezuela which used to get Canadi-

an aid, Nigeria, and some of the Middle East countries. So
we are already cutting them out.

Another thing I think it is fair to say is that some of
these, particularly the Middle East countries are contribut-
ing substantially to international funds for aid to the Third
World. They are not ignoring that, and it is one of the good
features. Perhaps in their own way they are taking up
some of the burden that their wealth imposes on them.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Mr. Breau.

Mr. Breau: I just want to make one point because it is
dangerous to be carried away, not voluntarily of course,
but carried to a misconception. There is absolutely no
foreign aid money going to the Middle East at all from
Canada.

I have heard the stories too, Mr. McKenzie, about drop-
ping a lot of money, but there are no Canadian funds—one
knows approximately where these countries are. To my
knowledge—and I have just had it comfirmed to me—there
have been no Canadian funds to the Middle East oil-pro-
ducing countries at all.

The ones I know of are Nigeria and Venezuela that are
being re-directed with the new strategy, but Nigeria is far
from being the country that would have earned more
because of oil. It was a very poor country with a lot of
problems, and it was not one of those that was making
more out of the oil boom.

I just want to make that point clear so that we do not
associate the spending in Las Vegas and everything with
the Canadian foreign aid money.

Mr. McKenzie: There was one country that got $36
million from us that was an oil-producing country.

29545—3

[Interprétation]

vois pas comment nous pourrions modifier ce systéme, tant
que les peuples des pays en voie de développement n’au-
ront pas atteint un niveau de revenu et un niveau d’éduca-
tion suffisants pour rattraper ces élites et les déposséder
du contréle absolu qu’elles exercent sur les richesses de
leurs pays.

Ceci dit, jaffirmerais que ceci ne constitue pas une
raison suffisante pour leur refuser toute aide. En effet, je
crois qu'il convient de définir avec précision les formes
d’aide qui restent nécessaires et d’assurer que cette aide
parvient aux gens qui en ont vraiment besoin. Ceci
m’améne & ma seconde remarque, c’est-a-dire que I’ACDI
elle-méme reconnait que ses moyens de controle sont
insuffisants. Ceci me parait tout a fait évident. Nous en
revenons donc a la responsabilité qu’a votre Comité d’assu-
rer que l'argent fourni par 'ACDI fait I'objet du contréle le
plus sérieux possible.

M. Brewin: Mais vous reconnaitrez sans doute avec moi
que ’ACDI diminue l'aide qu’elle accorde a certains des
pays producteurs de pétrole et va parfois méme jusqu’a la
supprimer totalement. Ainsi, le Venezuela, la Nigeria et
certains des pays du Moyen Orient recoivent maintenant
de notre pays une aide beaucoup plus parcimonieuse
qu’auparavant.

Je pense en outre qu'il convient de faire une autre
remarque importante, a savoir que certains de ces pays, et
surtout ceux du Moyen Orient, participent de maniére
substantielle a I'aide financiére internationale accordée au
Tiers Monde. C’est sans doute la I'un des aspects trés
positifs de la situation. Peut-étre pourrions-nous en con-
clure qu’ils ont maintenant accepté d’assumer une certaine
partie du fardeau que leur impose leurs richesses.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Monsieur

Breau.

M. Breau: J'aimerais apporter certaines précisions car je
pense qu'il est dangereux de se laisser aller a des affirma-
tions erronées, méme si cela n’est pas volontaire. En effet,
le Canada n’accorde absolument aucune aide financiére au
Moyen Orient.

Tout comme M. McKenzie, j'ai entendu dire que certains
des pays de cette région du monde recoivent des sommes
importantes mais je puis vous assurer que rien, a cet égard,
ne vient du Canada; d’ailleurs, nous savons généralement
quels sont les pays concernés. J'insiste donc sur ce fait, qui
vient d’ailleurs de m’étre tout juste reconfirmé.

Pour les pays tels que la Nigeria et le Venezuela, je sais
que la nouvelle stratégie de ’ACDI aboutit & une réduction
de l'aide qui leur était accordée auparavant, mais il faut
bien reconnaitre que la Nigeria est loin d’étre le pays ayant
profité le plus du pétrole. Il s’agissait en effet d'un pays
trés pauvre, confronté a une foule de problémes, qui n'est
donc certainement pas le plus grand bénéficiaire de la
manne pétroliére.

Je tiens a ce gque ceci soit clair, afin qu’il n'existe aucune
confusion entre le gaspillage de certains a Las Vegas et
I'aide étrangére accordée par le Canada.

M. McKenzie: Si je ne me trompe, un pays producteur de
pétrole a requ $36 millions du Canada.
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Mr. Breau: Not a Middle East country.

Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Well, Yemen, but it is
not an oil producer.

Mr. McKenzie: No, this was an oil-producing country. I
cannot think of the name of it right now, but I am going to
look it up.

Mr. Breau: Nigeria and Venezuela are the only ones I
know of. But Nigeria is far from being a rich country, even
with the oil boom.

I also would like to congratulate the members on their
report. I think it is a very accurate report, and their
contribution here this moring is equal only to the contribu-
tion you all made at the session which I had the opportu-
nity to see, where you were very helpful to the NGO’s and
to Mr. MacEachen and, I suppose, to the session.

I would like to say—Mr. MacDonald has touched on this
very briefly—that one of the important things that has
happened at this session is that leading up to it, in all the
other debates, there has been an awful lot of, and maybe
only, political doctrine. A lot of debate had centred on
symbolism and other things. At the Seventh Special Ses-
sion, from both sides, from the American side as well as
from the other side, there was less of that or practically
none at all, and they were trying to reach accommodations.

This is not the first time people have tried to accomo-
date, but I think what is encouraging here is the American
position, the change in the speech and the change in the
position, where they now refer to United Nations economic
agencies. They refer to them as relevant organizations for
the first time. There is UNCTAD, for example. They had
always ignored it.

I think this is a reflection of what has been happening in
the United States. Their foreign policy for years has been
based on anti-communism and the fear, justified or not, I
do not know, of communism. Their whole foreign policy
had been based on that, and that carried them into Viet
Nam. That was very costly in human resources and in
financial resources. There is an indication that American
policy might now have turned to attack this problem of the
weak economic structures of the world. I think that is an
encouraging feature.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): May I add one more com-
ment as a result of Mr. Breau’s remarks on the Americans?
I think it was certainly significant to us, and I do not think
any of us have mentioned it, that the American Congress
played a very active role with respect to this Special
Session of the United Nations. Arising out of the difficul-
ties that occurred in 1974 at the Sixth Special Session and
some of the remarks that were made by the previous
representative, Mr. Scali, there was a growing concern in
Congress about the nature of the American administration
participation at the Seventh Special Session. And so, in
many months preceding the Special Session, a bicameral,
bipartisan committee was formed, which acted as an infor-

[Interpretation]

M. Breau: Mais il ne s’agissait pas d’'un pays du Moyen
Orient.

M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Il s’agissait du Yemen,
mais ce n’est pas un pays producteur de pétrole.

M. McKenzie: Non, il s’agissait d’'un pays producteur de
pétrole. Je n’ai pas le nom sur la langue mais je pourrais
certainement le retrouver.

M. Breau: La Nigeria et le Venezuela sont les deux seuls
dont j'ai connaissance. En ce qui concerne la Nigeria, je
viens déja de vous expliquer la situation.

J’en profiterais d'ailleurs maintenant pour féliciter les
membres qui ont produit ce rapport, qui me semble étre
trés exact; leur contribution a la discussion de ce matin est
sans doute égale a celles qui ont apporté tous les membres
du Comité et je pense que tout ceci a été trés utile a M.
MacEachen, lors de ses travaux.

J’aimerais maintenant revenir sur 'une des choses men-
tionnées par M. Macdonald, c’est-a-dire sur les développe-
ments importants que 'on a pu constater lors de cette
session des Nations Unies et sur les conséquences détermi-
nantes que tout ceci aura sur le plan de la doctrine politi-
que. En effet, jusqu’a présent, une grande partie des débats
était entachée de notions symboliques et de considérations
politiques. C’est donc avec satisfaction que nous avons
constaté que Septiéme session spéciale a marqué un retrait
trés net a cet égard, aussi bien de la part des Etats-Unis
que des pays de l'autre bord, qui se sont sérieusement
efforcés de parvenir a des accords.

Evidemment, ce n’est pas la premiére fois que I'on essaie
de se mettre d’accord sur quelque chose, mais je pense que
c’est la modification de la position des Etats-Unis qui
constitue le facteur le plus encourageant, puisque ses délé-
gués ont modifié leur position, ainsi que leur style oratoire,
et ont accepté de discuter au sein des organismes économi-
ques des Nations Unies. Pour la premiére fois, ils considé-
rent que ces organismes ont un réle important a jouer.
C’est ainsi le cas de la NUCED, que les Etats-Unis avaient
jusqu’a présent totalement ignorée.

Ceci me semble réfléter assez bien I'évolution de la
politique étrangére des Etats-Unis, qui, depuis des années,
était basée, purement et simplement, sur un anti-commu-
nisme primaire et sur une crainte du communisme, justi-
fiée ou non, je ne le sais pas. Cependant, cette politique
étrangére et ces principes ont abouti a la tragédie du
Vietnam, qui a été trés colteuse a la fois en termes de
ressources humaines et en termes de ressources financié-
res. L’évolution récente que I'on a pu constater aux Etats-
Unis nous porte a croire que ce pays s'est maintenant
décidé a attaquer le probléme de base, qui est celui de la
faiblesse des structures économiques dans le monde. Ceci
me parait donc étre tout a fait encourageant.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Puis-je ajouter une remarque
a ce que vient de dire M. Breau sur les Américains? En
effet, je ne sais pas si quelqu’un I’a déja mentionné, mais je
pense qu'il convient de remarquer que le role trés actif
joué par le Congrés américain dans le cadre de cette ses-
sion spéciale des Nations Unies a pour nous une significa-
tion trés particuliére. A la suite des difficultés rencontrées
en 1974, lors de la Sixiéme session spéciale, et de certaines
des remarques faites par l'ancien représentant américain,
M. Scali, le Congreés avait des doutes croissants au sujet de
la nature de la participation américaine a la Septiéme
session spéciale. De ce fait, durant les mois précédant cette
session, un comité mixte fut formé, comprenant des repre-
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mal working group with the Secretary of State, Mr.
Kissinger.
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They produced a number of policy papers which they
took to the Secretary of State. They consulted with him in
some detail about the nature of the presentation the
American government would make. They also indicated
that they were most anxious to be at the Special Session
and to continue to work very closely with the Secretary of
State and his officials during the course of the Session.

It was also our opportunity, because they were there, to
meet with them for an hour and a half and to discuss some
common points of concern. I think it was an illuminating
session for all of us to hear of the degree to which they had
become involved and to the degree to which, quite frankly,
they took credit for what they thought was quite a signifi-
cant change.

I think almost every observer would have to acknowl-
edge the importance of that early speech, the Kissinger
speech, made by Mr. Moynihan, which lasted almost two
hours and put on the table a whole host of proposals,
almost swamping the delegates in a whole series of initia-
tives. Not that they were all necessarily accepted with glee,
but it showed that at least the Amreicans wanted to talk,
wanted to negotiate on many of the issues, and they began
to use the structure that had been established by the
Group of 77.

The Congressional representatives who were there, and
who continued to play an active role through the Session,
indicated that there was going to be a return to the old
model of advise and consent, I guess, that has existed in
American foreign policy over the years. They told us as
well that following this Special Session they would hope to
continue this Special Committee. They even indicated that
there might be an opportunity for our International De-
velopment Sub-Committee here with them to consider
points of concern and interest.

Mr. Breau: There is no question that the philosophical
gap, if one can call it that, still exists, and it is very deep,
because the way of approaching the problems is altogether
different. The Third World —or the Group of 77—have
been asking for certain institutions$, for example, in the
field of commodities. The Americans are still resisting that
very strongly, and on the SDR aid link the fight has not
started yet. There is no question that they are trying to
find accommodation and they are negotiating. But the gap
between the two as to how we approach this problem is
still very wide. But what I said was encouraging is not
necessarily the two positions but the fact that they are
talking now and that they are trying to find ways of
moving.

The American speech, of course, was good, because it
reflected a new attitude and a change in certain things.
But I still suspect it was a great political coup to get a
better debate and stop the anti-American debate and
maybe embarrass the European debate, because they were
in a jam. As you know, they were there for the Session and
could not get agreement amongst the Canadian representa-

[Interprétation]
sentants des deux parties, dans le but d’assurer une liaison
officieuse avec le Secrétaire d’Etat, M. Kissinger.

Ce comité a élaboré un certain nombre de documents de
travail qu’il a transmis au Secrétaire d’Etat. De plus, il a
maintenu avec ce dernier une consultation étroite quant a
la nature de la participation du gouvernement américain
aux travaux de cette session. Il a également signalé au
Secrétaire d’Etat qu’il était trés désireux d’étre représenté
a la session spéciale et de continuer a travailler en liaison
étroite avec les représentants du Secrétariat d’Etat pen-
dant la durée des travaux.

La présence de certains membres de ce Comité a la
session spéciale nous a donné la possibilité de les rencon-
trer, pendant une heure et demie, pour discuter de certai-
nes de nos préoccupations communes. Ceci nous a permis
de constater, avec satisfaction, que les membres de ce
Comité avaient une large part de responsabilités dans ce
qu’ils interprétaient comme un changement d’orientation
trés important dans la politique étrangeére de leur pays.

Tous les observateurs auront sans doute admis l'impor-
tance du premier discours de M. Kissinger, prononcé par
M. Moynihan, discours qui dura pratiquement deux heures
et permit aux Etats-Unis de présenter toute une série de
propositions, noyant presque les délégués dans une masse
de nouvelles initiatives. Evidemment, elles ne furent peut-
étre pas toutes acceptées avec joie mais elles témoignaient
au moins de la volonté de discussions des Etats-Unis, ainsi
que de leur désir de négociations, et permirent de faire
appel aux structures établies dans le cadre du groupe des
77,

Les représentants du Congrés présents lors de cette
session spéciale, qui ont continué a jouer un role actif
pendant la session elle-méme, ont indiqué qu’il y aurait un
retour a 'ancien systéme d’information et de conseils qui
permettait, dans le passé, d’élaborer la politique étrangére
des Etats-Unis. Ils nous ont également affirmé qu’ils espé-
raient que leur comité spécial continuerait a travailler
dans ce domaine aprés la session. Je pourrais d’ailleurs
vous dire qu’ils se sont montrés trés intéressés par 'organi-
sation d’'une réunion commune, avec les membres de notre
sous-comité, pour traiter de questions d’intérét mutuel.

M. Breau: Il ne fait aucun doute que le fossé psychologi-
que qui existait auparavant n'a pas été totalement comblé,
car notre méthode d’analyse de ces problémes est manifes-
tement trés différente de la leur. Ainsi, le Tiers Monde ou
le Groupe des 77, ont réclamé la création de certains orga-
nismes, dans le domaine des produits de base, par exemple.
Les Américains s’opposent toujours fermement a ce genre
de suggestion mais nous n'en sommes pas encore a une
situation de conflit. En effet, il ne fait aucun doute que I'on
s'efforce, de part et d’autre, de négocier et de parvenir a un
accord, méme si ce dernier reste pour l'instant trés éloigné.
Quoi qu'il en soit, ce ne sont pas les deux positions en
conflit qui nous permettent de déceler des signes encoura-
geants mais plutét le fait que les parties concernées accep-
tent maintenant de discuter et d’essayer de progresser.

En ce sens, le discours américain fut trés positif puisqu’il
manifestait un changement d’orientation dans certains
domaines. Je soupgonne toutefois toujours qu'il constituait
également un truc politique trés efficace, permettant aux
Etats-Unis de susciter un débat plus positif et de mettre un
terme aux récriminations anti-américaines, tout en embar-
rassant, en méme temps, les pays européens, qui se trou-
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tives for very many changes. So the Americans, by that
speech and by getting the debate going in that way, were
avoiding an awful lot of anti-American feelings—which
maybe is good.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Mr. Johnston.

Mr. Johnston: Yes. I have one question, if I may.

I realize that in any approach to international aid and to
the problems of the Third World—and the Fourth World
and eventually there will be a Fifth World, I am sure—it
becomes almost impossible to prevent oneself from adopt-
ing a good samaritan approach. Yet it seems to me that the
end result of most of this planning would be to industrial-
ize virtually all the nations of the world and to develop
them along the lines on which we ourselves and other
industrialized nations have developed. It will bring them
eventually to a state which, within this country, a great
many people deplore, particularly the ones who are most
involved in external, aid program. Pollution, soul-destroy-
ing industrialization, exploitation of the workers, and so
on. Has any thought been given in the United Nations
committee to how that almost inevitable process can be
prevented?

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Yes, Mr. Roche.
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Mr. Roche: That question, Mr. Johnston, is one that has
been coming up regularly since the UN began to hold
special meetings on the global problems of environment,
food, population, resources, and so on. The thrust of the UN
meetings of the past three or four years, which you might
say have now culminated in the Seventh Special Session,
the reaffirmation of The New Economic Order, has been to
establish very cleary that the global problems are transna-
tional and require transnational solutions. That is why this
global strategy has been arrived at. The developing nations
have been saying repeatedly at all these meetings. “Please
do not solve you environment problems or the problems of
the quality of life at our expense.” That is to say, however
appealing it might be to pull back on the industrialization
of the world in consideration of environment problems, it
is unrealistic. Why? Because the population of the world is
going to double, that is absolutely certain. It is demograph-
ically foreseen that it will double before the year 2000 and
probably triple, according to the World Population Con-
gress in Bucharest, before it can level off, so by the year
2050 there will be between 11 billion and 15 billion people
in the world. There are a number of cities that are increas-
ing and going past the 1 million mark. A few years ago
there were only, maybe, a handful of cities in the world
that had more than 1 million people, but by 1985 there will
be 274 cities in the world beyond 1 million and 10 cities
beyond 15 million. Those are the figures that Mr. Strong
has given through his work in the environment in speak-
ing directly to this point; namely, that if we do not produce
and find ways of producing in the developing nations
enough food, enough shelter and enough industrialization
to support the burgeoning populations, that even more
chaos will result than we now have.

[Interpretation]

vaient alors en difficultés. En effet, comme vous le savez,
malgré leur présence a cette session spéciale, ils n'ont pas
réussi a obtenir l'accord des représentants canadiens a
certaines modifications. Donc, les Américains, par ce dis-
cours et par la maniére selon laquelle ils ont lancé le débat,
ont réussi a phagocyter une grande partie de I'anti-améri-
canisme de certains pays, ce qui est certainement positif.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Monsieur
JOhnston.

M. Johnston: J'aimerais poser une question.

Je sais bien qu'il est trés difficile d’éviter d’adopter une
attitude de bon samaritain lorsque I'on analyse les problé-
mes d’aide internationale, de Tiers Monde, de Quart
Monde, et, pourquoi pas, de Cinquiéme Monde, car il y en
aura bient6t un. Cependant, je suppose que le résultat final
de la plupart de ces travaux sera d'industrialiser pratique-
ment toutes les nations du monde et de les développer
selon le schéma que nous-mémes et d’autres pays indus-
trialisés avons adopté. Ainsi, ces pays aboutiront finale-
ment 4 une situation que beaucoup d’entre nous déplorent
déja, c’est-a-dire, a 'apparition de problémes de pollution,
d'industrialisation inhumaine, d’exploitation des masses
laborieuses, etc. J'aimerais donc vous demander si le
comité des Nations unies a réfléchi au moyen qui permet-
trait d’éviter ce processus pratiquement inévitable.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Monsieur

Roche.

M. Roche: Je dois vous dire que cette question a été
posée a maintes reprises, réguliérement, depuis que 'ONU
organise des séances spéciales consacrées aux problémes
mondiaux de l'environnement, de l’alimentation, de la
démographie, des ressources, etc. Ainsi, depuis trois ou
quatre ans, I'idée force qui s’est manifestée a l'occasion de
ces réunions et qui vient s’en doute de s’affirmer le plus
clairement a 'occasion de la Septiéme session spéciale, a
été celle de I'élaboration d’un nouvel ordre économique,
c’est-a-dire de la reconnaissance par tous et chacun que les
problémes mondiaux sont des problémes transnationaux,
exigeant des solutions transnationales. C'est pour cette
raison que l'on est maintenant arrivé a cette notion de
stratégie globale, et je puis vous affirmer que les pays en
voie de développement n’ont cessé de nous répéter; «sur-
tout, n'essayez pas de résoudre votre probléme d'environ-
nement ou de qualité de vie a nos dépends». Ceci doit nous
permettre de bien comprendre que méme s'il peut paraitre
séduisant de freiner l'industrialisation du monde pour
résoudre certains problémes écologiques, il ne s’agirait que
d'une situation totalement irréaliste. Pourquoi? Parce que
la population du globe va doubler, ce qui est absolument
certain. En effet, il est prévu que notre population aura
doublé avant I’An 2000 et qu’elle aura probablement triplé,
selon la conférence démographique de Bucarest, avant de
parvenir a un niveau de stabilisation, en conséquence, d'ici
I’An 2050, il se peut fort bien que nous soyons entre 11 a 15
milliards de personnes a nous partager les ressources de la
planéte. Les conséquences de ce phénoméne sont multiples.
Ainsi, beaucoup de villes dépasseront le million d’habi-
tants. I1 y a quelques années il en existait que quelques-
unes dans le monde, mais d’ici 1985, il y en aura 274, et 10
d’entre elles auront plus de 15 millions d’habitants. Ces
chiffres sont ceux qu’'a cités M. Strong dans les déclara-
tions qu'il a faites au sujet des problémes écologiques, pour
montrer que nous ne pourrons aboutir qu’a un chaos indes-
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I am not suggesting that the Un is saying that we forget
the environment or the quality of life issues at all. It is
merely that the situation in most of the developing world
is now so desperate that any thought of pulling back on
industrialization and on growth for the production of
essential goods would, I think, render our civilization
bankrupt.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): May I make an even more
pointed answer to Mr. Johnston’s question. In March of
this year there was in fact a meeting of the United Nation’s
Industrial Development Organization, which is directly
concerned with this question, because at the present time
only 7 per cent of the world industry exists in developing
countries in the world, and at that time they issued in
Lima, Peru, a declaration and world plan of action, which
calls for a redistribution of world industry so that develop-
ing countries would have 25 per cent of it by the year 2000.
That is more than triple the amount they presently have.
So, there is no doubt, as far as the Group of 77 is con-
cerned, that this is a fundamental concern for them, and
they have made it plain at the conferences that Doug
referred to that they will not acceopt the kind of western
sudden preoccupation with environmental questions in
place of their basic need for industry. I think that is
something we have to face and it is one we are going to
have to sort out with them, but I do not think there is any
way in which we can reverse what is a basic demand as far
as they are concerned.

Mr. Johnston: Another thing that bothers me is that a
great many of these nations seem to manage, at the same
time we hear the plea for aid, to carry on some rather nasty
little military operations against each other that go on and
give troubles on borders, such as the situation in Morocco
and Algeria that is developing at the moment. These things
go on and somehow the force, the funds and the armaments
are found.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): Where are they manufac-
tured, primarily? Where do they come from?
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Mr. Johnston: No, but they are found. They are found. It
is good question, too. You can build a case really, on the
developing of armed forces as being perhaps the only way
that a primitive society can pull itself up to a higher level.
You can go to Egypt and watch what is going on there;
constant confrontation with Israel becomes a sort of neces-
sity in order to achieve. They have some of the same
problems of consensus, I suppose, that we do in this coun-
try on getting anything done.

But I am still concerned, and you cannot write it off
quite that easily; and I know that all the developed coun-
tries are in the game of flogging military hardware around
the world but it would not be flogged as easily nor would
we fall into that thing as easily if the market was not more
than available at all times. I wonder somehow at the sort of
lack of UN action on some of these issues as long as they

[Interprétation]
criptible si nous ne réussissons pas a produire plus, a aider
les pays en voie de développement a produire leur propre
alimentation, leur logement, leurs produits industriels, etc.
Evidemment, je ne veux pas dire par 1a que 'ONU
suggére purement et simplement d’abandonner toute
notion de protection de ’environnement, mais plutét que la
situation dans la plupart des pays en voie de développe-
ment est maintenant tellement désespérée que toute idée
de marche arriére en matiére d’industrialisation et de pro-
duction de biens essentiels aboutirait a la faillite totale de
notre civilisation.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): J'aimerais ajouter quelques
choses a cette réponse. En mars de cette année s’est tenue
une réunion de I’Organisation de développement industriel
des Nations unies, qui s’est directement intéressée a cette
question car, a I’heure actuelle, seul 7 p. 100 des industries
mondiales sont situées dans les pays en voie de développe-
ment; & l'occasion de cette réunion, organisée a Lima, au
Pérou, une déclaration et un plan global d’actions ont été
élaborés, réclamant une nouvelle répartition des entrepri-
ses mondiales, afin que les pays en voie de développement
disposent de 25 p. 100 de l'industrie internationale d’ici
I’An 2,000. Cet objectif représente plus du triple du chiffre
actuel. Donc, en ce qui concerne le groupe des 77, tout au
moins, il ne fait aucun doute que ceci constitue une préoc-
cupation fondamentale et les pays qui le composent ont
clairement affirmé, lors des conférences mentionnées par
Doug, qu’ils n’accepteraient pas que les soudaines préoccu-
pations du monde occidental pour les problémes écologi-
ques tiennent la place de leurs besoins essentiels en
matiére d’industrialisation. Il s’agit 14 d’'un facteur dont
nous sommes maintenant obligés de tenir compte, en colla-
boration avec les pays concernés, mais je ne pense pas qu’il
soit possible, a I'heure actuelle, de faire marche arriére
pour ce qui constitue, de leur part, une exigence
fondamentale.

M. Johnston: Une autre chose qui me préoccupe et que
beaucoup de ces pays, tout en réclamant a corps et a cri une
aide supplémentaire, semblent se débrouiller pour se
lancer dans des opérations militaires tout a fait déplora-
bles, les uns contre les autres, comme le prouve la situation
actuelle au Maroc en Algérie. Ces problémes existent donc,
mais, en méme temps, ces pays se débrouillent quand
méme pour trouver des fonds pour acheter des armes.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): D'ou proviennent-elles? Ou
sont-elles fabriquées?

M. Johnston: 1l s’agit peut-étre 1a d'une bonne question
mais il n'en reste pas moins qu'ils trouvent les sommes
nécessaires pour les acheter. En fait. il ne serait pas impos-
sible de démontrer que le développement des forces armées
constitue peut-étre le seul moyen qu’ont des sociétés primi-
tives pour atteindre des niveaux de développement supé-
rieurs. Allez donc voir en Egypte ce qui s’y passe: la
confrontation permanente avec Israél est devenue en quel-
que sorte une nécessité. Ils ont également des mémes
difficultés que nous a obtenir un consensus pour faire quoi
que ce soit.

Cependant, mon inquiétude demeure, et on ne peut pas
I'ignorer; je sais que tous les pays industrialisés se sont
lancés dans une vente massive d’armements militaires
dans le monde entier, mais je ne pense pas que nous nous
préterions aussi facilement a ce jeu si les marchés n'étaient
pas aussi vastes. Je m’'étonne cependant que les Nations
unies n'aient pas pris de mesures dans ce domaine, mais
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involve only the Third or Fourth World countries; if they
involved a developed country at the same time there would
be much greater concern about it.

Mr. Brewin: Could I try to answer that. Indeed there has
been a great deal of concern about this. When we are
talking about all these programs of aid and trade, the
setting up of world food development funds and things like
that, we are taling about money. They cannot be done
without contributions from the developed world and they
cannot be effective without contributions from the de-
veloping nations themselves, without their making a real
effort. And that—The fact that priority is now given not
only in the developing countries but in the developed
countries to expenditures on armaments is a major ob-
stacle to this whole program. In other words, I think one
aspect of this program of the new economic order must
necessarily be to restructure our priorities. You see differ-
ent figures but I think it is $250 billion spent generally on
military procurement and military weapons. .. -

An hon. Member: Is that per year?
Mr. Brewin: Per year, yes, $250 billion.
An hon. Member: Million?

Mr. Brewin: Billion; I said billion advisedly. And that is
a fantastically large contribution which, if even a part of it
was diverted to development in the sense that we have
been discussing it, could make a major difference in deal-
ing with malnutrition and poverty and lack of education
which are characteristic of the Third World and are very—
this is a jargon word—destabilizing factors in themselves.
It is an odd thing—and I do not quote them because either
of them are the authorities that I always turn to—both the
Pope and the Government of the Soviet Union recommend-
ed a 10 per cent reduction in armament expenditures on all
countries to be put into a development fund. There is
nothing sacrosanct about the 10 per cent but it is really a
concrete illustration of the fact that some people recognize
that this new economic order will require diversionive
resources from the very thing you have raised. I think you
have raised an extremely important subject and I think
later we will have to develop it.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Mr. Munro. And
I might mention that Mr. Munro’s name is the last name I
have on my list.

Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): I think the Commit-
tee, small as it is, owes a debt of thanks to the people that
have briefed us this morning and set the scene really for
the studies that we are about to undertake. I think we have
all had some notion of th new economic order but I think
this has set it in the historical and the economic and
political context. I for one am extremely grateful for the
comprehensive and bipartisan manner in which it was
done; I think it was excellent.

I have a million questions here. I think Andy answered
one of them by his suggestion that both the Pope and the
U.S.S.R. had made the suggestion about the 10 per cent
reduction in armaments into... I wonder if there is any
way of assessing—leave the Pope out of it for a minute—
and come to—because we do not know how many batta-
lions he has.

[Interpretation]

c’est sans doute parce que cela n'implique que le Tiers et le
Quart monde; en effet, si un pays industrialisé était con-
cerné, on se préoccuperait beaucoup plus de ce probléme.

M. Brewin: Je vais essayer de vous répondre. Nous nous
sommes beaucoup préoccupés de cette question. Lorsque
nous parlons de tous ces programmes d’aide et d’échanges
commerciaux, a savoir la constitution de fonds monétaires
pour 'alimentation dans le monde et autres, il s’agit essen-
tiellement d’argent. Or, un tel fond ne pourrait pas étre
constitué sans la participation des pays industrialisés, dont
la contribution exige un effort réel. Aujourd'hui, le fait
qu’on accorde la priorité aux dépenses d’armements non
seulement dans les pays en voie de développement mais
aussi dans les pays industrialisés, constitue un obstacle
majeur a 'application de tout ce programme. En d'autres
termes, ce nouvel ordre économique que nous préconisons
exige une refonte compléte de nos priorités. On nous cite
toujours des chiffres différents, mais je pense que le chif-
fre exact est 250 milliards de dollars en ce qui concerne les
dépenses d’armement militaire . . .

Une voix: Par an?
M. Brewin: Oui, par an.
Une voix: Millions de dollars?

M. Brewin: J'ai dit milliards, et j’ai justement fait atten-
tion. C’est une somme considérable dont une partie seule-
ment, si elle était consacrée au développement au sens ou
nous l'’entendons maintenant, pourrait grandement contri-
buer a résoudre les problémes de malnutrition, de pauvreté
et d’analphabétisme qui caractérisent le Tiers-monde et
qui constituent des facteurs d’instabilité. Il est curieux de
voir (je ne les cite pas car ni I'un ni 'autre ne sont des
autorités auxquelles je me référe) que le pape et le gouver-
nement d’union soviétique aient recommandé une réduc-
tion de 10 p. 100 pour les dépenses d’armement dans tous
les pays, et que les montants ainsi économisés soient versés
dans un fond de développement. Ce pourcentage n’a rien
d’une panacée mais il montre cependant que l'on reconnait
de plus en plus que le nouvel ordre économique nécessitera
des ressources supplémentaires. Vous avez soulevé une
question extrémement importante et il faudra y revenir
plus tard.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Monsieur
Munro. Je dois vous signaler que le nom de M. Munro est le
dernier qui figure sur ma liste.

M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Les membres de ce
Comité, aussi peu nombreux soient-ils, sont, j'en suis sir,
trés reconnaissants 4 nos témoins d’aujourd’hui de nous
avoir fait un exposé trés clair de la situation et de nous
avoir ainsi mieux préparés a I'étude que nous allons entre-
prendre. Nous avions sans doute tous une idée de ce nouvel
ordre économique mais vous avez su le replacer dans son
contexte historique, économique et politique. Pour ma part,
en tout cas, je vous suis extrémement reconnaissant de
votre exposé détaillé et objectif; c’était excellent.

J'aurais des milliers de questions & poser. Andy a déja
répondu a 'une d’entre elles en disant que le pape et le
gouvernement d'Union soviétique avait suggéré cette
réduction de 10 p. 100 dans les dépenses d'armements—je
me demande s'il serait possible d'évaluer—et laissons le
pape de c6té un instant car nous ne savons pas combien il a
de bataillons.
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An hon. Member: There are no nuclear weapons
anyway.
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An hon. Member: He has some moral influence, I
understand.

Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): All joking aside, is
there any way of determining from your experience at the
U.N. in this Session how serious the USSR is? Was it a
political gesture to win friends and perhaps influence a
few people from the USSR and from what is called the
Second World—because this was one of the questions that
I had in mind to ask: What role is the Second World
playing?

Not unrelated perhaps to this—and we have been talking
about the public relations problem we are going to have in
our own country—has anyone yet figured out how the
public relations operation in the Third and Fourth Worlds
are going to take place to change some attitudes there? For
example, two-crop seeds are provided to people and they
say: oh, hell, I do not have to grow more; this particular
seed will grow twice the crop I used to grow so I will plant
only half the amount of land and it will involve just half
the amount of labour. These are facts that can be verified.

There is an attitude-changing operation in that part of
the world that the First and Second World really cannot
get into—and I do not know how we are going to get that
message across, only on the food front. Have you any ideas
on that? Maybe we can get into it later because I have
some other questions I can bring up on that as we get
deeper into it. But about the USSR; was it political? Can
you assess it at all?

Mr. Breau: We would have to change to consumer
products.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Mr. Roche.

Mr. Roche: Well, just to give you a very brief answer, it
is the general consensus, Mr. Munro, that the Second
World is standing by in this whole question, and that the
USSR has not been very concerned at all with these ques-
tions of development in the Third World.

Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): They have not, even
up to now.

Mr. Roche: Right. At the Seventh Special Session they
gave it a little bit of rhetoric. China has really carried the
ball on rhetoric against the “imperialist” developed nations
of the West that have caused these problems. We have not,
at the time of this meeting, got into the whole question of
the causes. That would take us quite a bit afield. But I
think the brief answer to your question is: the Second
World is undistinguished.

Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Therefore, we do not
have to wear the hair shirt entirely ourselves.

Mr. Roche: Exactly.
Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): All right. Thank you.

Mr. Brewin: No, but I think I would like to add a couple
of observations. One is that the Soviet Union, particularly
in the field of agriculture and food, is deeply self-centered
in that it is concerned with its own problem. I think what
we can hope for from them is at least that they will be an
influence for stability, but as to a major contribution, no.

[Interprétation]
Une voix: Il n’a pas d’'armement nucléaire de toute fagon.

Une voix: Mais il a une certaine influence morale.

M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Toute blague mise a
part, pensez-vous, d’aprés votre expérience aux Nations-
Unies, que I'Union Soviétique est vraiment sérieuse? A-
t-elle fait cette suggestion par intérét politique afin de
s'attirer des alliés et peut-étre influencer certains pays du
Deuxiéme monde? Je voulais justement vous poser la ques-
tion suivante: quel role joue le Deuxiéme monde?

Sur un autre sujet, puisque nous avons parlé du proble-
me des relations publiques que nous allons avoir dans
notre pays, sait-on comment seront organisées les relations
publiques dans le Tiers et le Quart monde afin d’y modifier
certaines attitudes? Par exemple, lorsqu’on offre a certains
pays des cultures bisannuelles, ils vous répondent qu'’ils
n’ont pas besoin de cultiver davantage; de plus, s’ils adop-
tent des cultures bisannuelles, ils ne cultivent que la
moitié de leur terres, ce qui leur donne donc moitié moins
de travail. Ce sont des faits qui peuvent étre vérifiés.

Je pense que le Premier et le Deuxiéme mondes ne
peuvent pas vraiment modifier des attitudes des habitants
de ces pays, et je me demande comment nous pourrons
faire passer le message, ne serait-ce que sur le plan alimen-
taire. Avez-vous des idées la-dessus? Nous pourrons peut-
étre y revenir plus tard, car j’ai d’autres questions que je
voudrais également poser a ce sujet. Revenons-en a 1'Union
Soviétique; ce geste était-il politique?

M. Breau: Il nous faudrait passer aux produits a la
consommation.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Monsieur

Roche.

M. Roche: En quelques mots, monsieur Munro, il est
généralement admis que le Deuxiéme monde reste a 'écart
de toute cette question et que I'Union Soviétique ne se
préoccupe pas du tout de ces problémes de développement
dans le Tiers-monde.

M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): C’est vrai.

M. Roche: Lors de la Septiéme session spéciale, I'Union
Soviétique s’est lancée un peu dans la rhétorique. En fait,
c’est la Chine qui s’est le plus attaquée a I'impérialisme des
pays industrialisés de I'Ouest. En fait, nous n’avons pas
encore abordé les véritables causes de ces problémes. Nous
avons encore des progrés a faire, mais pour répondre a
votre question, je dirais que le Deuxiéme monde se tient a
I'écart.

M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Donc, nous ne sommes
pas les seuls responsables.

M. Roche: C’est exact.
M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Trés bien. Merci.

M. Brewin: Je voudrais ajouter quelque chose. Tout
d’abord, I'Union Soviétique est trés égocentrique, spéciale-
ment dans le domaine de I'agriculture et de 'alimentation
ou elle a ses propres problémes. Tout ce que nous pouvons
attendre d’elle, est qu’elle exerce une influence vers la
stabilité, mais je ne pense pas qu'elle comptera parmi les
principaux contributeurs.
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The Chinese contribution, on the other hand, is one of
saying: look what we have done. It would probably help at
lot of the Third World to look at some of the things they
have done. You mentioned the individual who did not
want to use two seeds.

I do not think there is any doubt from what the Chinese
say and from what other people who have visited there say,
that they have inspired in their people a desire, a motiva-
tion for working hard to clean up their own problems.
Perhaps they have something to contribute from the
experience they have been through. There again, I do not
think they will be a major contributor—although, you
know, in Tanzania they built a railway which the rest of
the world turned down. They are, as Doug said, full of
progaganda. There is no doubt about that. But I think,
beneath the propoganda, there may be something to which
we should pay serious attention.

Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): I will leave the others
until later.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Thank you very
much, Mr. Munro.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): Just before you close, per-
haps I could say that there were two other members of our
delegation who unfortunately could not attend today, Mr.
Irénée Pelletier and Mr. Lloyd Francis. They both would
have liked to be here and to be able to participate, and I
know they will both be available from time to time on our
Committee. I just wanted to make the other members
aware that they were there and played a very active role in
all of our of our deliberations in New York.

Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): May I make one final
comment for the record?

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Mr. Munro.

Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): We are entering into
an area now of a change in our attitudes to CIDA and the
whole concept of relations between developed and develop-
ing countries. I think it is very important that we be given
a pretty clear notion of what we have been doing up to now
so that we know what we are starting from.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Thank you, Mr.
Munro. I think from the outline we have already presented
to you that it is our intention to start from where we have
been as to where we are going.

I would like to also thank the three members of the
subcommittee who reported to you this morning. I am also
sorry that all members that were in New York were not
able to attend this meeting, but I think the three that have
reported have certainly expressed their views on a very
non-partisan basis.

Before you go, I might remind you that we have docu-
mentation at the front desk for this afternoon. The Minis-
ter will be attending at 3.30 p.m., and the Parliamentary
Centre has prepared an outline or a briefing guide for
members of the subcommittee. There is also other docu-
mentation here, so if you want to avail yourselves of it,
perhaps you could pick it up before you leave.

[Interpretation]

Les Chinois, par contre, nous disent sans cesse: regardez
ce que nous, nous avons fait. Il serait d'ailleurs peut-étre
utile pour le Tiers-Monde que nous le fassions. Vous avez
parlé tout a I'heure de cet agriculteur qui ne voulait pas
utiliser de cultures bisannuelles.

Je ne pense pas que l'on puisse douter des déclarations
des Chinois car plusieurs personnes qui se sont rendues
sur place ont constaté qu’ils avaient inspiré a leur peuple la
volonté et le désir de travailler d’arrache pied pour résou-
dre ses propres problémes. Les Chinois ont sans doute
quelque chose a apporter aprés l'expérience qu'ils ont
connue. Cependant, je ne pense pas qu'ils contribueront
beaucoup, méme s'ils ont construit une linge de chemin de
fer en Tanzanie, alors que le reste du monde avait refusé de
s’en charger. Comme Doug I'a dit, ils ont des moyens de
propagande énormes. Cela ne fait aucun doute, mais cela
ne doit pas nous empécher de porter une grande attention a
leurs réalisations.

M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Je reviendrai a mes
questions plus tard.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Merci beaucoup,
monsieur Munro.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Avant de lever la séance, je
voudrais dire que deux autres personnes faisaient partie de
notre délégation mais que, malheureusement, elles n'ont pu
étre présentes aujourd’hui; il s’agit de MM. Irénée Pelletier
et Lloyd Francis. Ils regrettent tous les deux ce contre-
temps car ils auraient aimé participer a la discussion, mais
j'espére qu’ils pourront assister de temps a autre a nos
séances. Je voulais simplement faire remarquer aux dépu-
tés présents que ces deux personnes étaient membres de la
délégation et qu’elles avaient joué un réle tres actif dans
toutes nos délibérations a New York.

M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Puis-je faire un der-
nier commentaire?

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Monsieur

Munro.

M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Nous entrons dans une
ére nouvelle ou des changements importants vont affecter
nos attitudes vis-a-vis de 'ACDI et tout ce concept des
relations entre pays industrialisés et pays en voie de déve-
loppement. Il serait trés important que l'on nous expose
clairement ce que nous avons fait jusqu'a présent dans ce
domaine afin de savoir précisément d’ol nous partons.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Merci, monsieur
Munro. Je pense que les exposés qui vous ont été présentés
vous montrent bien que nous avions l'intention de procé-
der ainsi.

Je voudrais également remercier les trois membres du
sous-comité qui vous ont fait rapport ce matin. Je regrette
également que tous les députés qui étaient a New York
n’aient pas pu participer a notre réunion, mais les trois qui
étaient 1a aujourd’hui nous ont fait des exposés trés
objectifs.

Avant de lever la séance, je voudrais vous rappeler que
nous avons des documents a votre disposition pour cet
aprés-midi. Le ministre sera la a 15 h 30 pour vous présen-
ter un exposé. Il y a également d’autres documents ici que
vous pouvez vous procurer si vous le désirez.



6-11-1975

Sous-comité sur le développement international 4:25

[Texte]
The subcommittee will adjourn until 3.30 p.m., when the
Hon. Allan J. MacEachen will be in attendance. Thank you.

AFTERNOON SITTING

® 1544
The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): This afternoon
we will resume consideration of the order of reference
relating to international development. Appearing is the
Honourable Allan MacEachen, Secretary of State for
External Affairs. To his immediate right is Mr. McDougall,
Director General of the Bureau of Economic and Scientific
Affairs of the Department of External Affairs. I would like
to call upon the Minister to make a statement at this time
and then invite members to question him following his
statement.

Mr. MacEachen, welcome to the Committee. It is always
a pleasure having you.

® 1545

Hon. Allan Joseph MacEachen (Secretary of State for

External Affairs): Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have copies

of the statement, if anybody wants to follow me. I would

be glad to have them distributed. I regret I have not had

them distributed beforehand but we are in an evolving
situation and that may occur, Mr. Munro.

Thank you for your words of welcome, Mr. Chairman
and members of the Committee. I welcome the formation
of this subcommittee, and for two reasons. In the first
place, Canada, like other wealthy nations, finds itself at a
crucial point in its relations with the developing countries.
After 25 years of what used to be called foreign aid we are
facing a whole new set of circumstances calling for new
solutions to new problems. The various options open to us
all have far-reaching consequences, not only for our for-
eign policy but for our national life as well.

The second reason why I welcome the formation of this
subcommittee is the broad mandate given it in the refer-
ence by Parliament, the reference of June 17. Not only is
the Committee empowered to report upon the full range of
international development policies but it is asked to do so
with particular reference to the economic relations be-
tween developed and developing countries. Parliament has
thus shown itself aware of the fact that international
development co-operation encompasses an area beyond aid
transfers and involves our entire relationship with de-
veloping nations. I shall come back to this point in more
detail later.

In this initial meeting of the subcommittee I want to
assure you of the full co-operation of the Department of
External Affairs and of CIDA in the work of the
Committee.

I wish today to speak about our development assistance
program, about broader questions involved in our econom-
ic relations with developing countries and about the role of
the subcommittee. The broad mandate given to this sub-
committee is entirely appropriate as it reflects the growing
sophistication and widening influence of Canada’s interna-
tional development co-operation from its modest begin-
nings 25 years ago.

[Interprétation]
La séance est levée jusqu’a 15h 30 cet aprés-midi, ou
nous recevrons ’honorable Allan J. MacEachen. Merci.

SEANCE DE L’APRES-MIDI

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Cet aprés-midi,
nous continuerons a examiner 'ordre de renvoi concernant
le développement international. Notre témoin sera 1’hono-
rable Allan MacEachen, secrétaire d’Etat aux Affaires
extérieures. L’accompagne a sa droite M. McDougall, direc-
teur général du Bureau des Affaires économiques et scien-
tifiques du ministére des Affaires extérieures. J'invite le
ministre a faire une déclaration et ensuite j'inviterai les
membres a lui poser des questions.

Monsieur MacEachen, soyez le bienvenu au comité. Il
nous fait plaisir de vous recevoir.

L’honorable Allan dJoseph MacEachen (secrétaire
d’Etat aux Affaires extérieures): Merci, monsieur le prési-
dent. J’ai ici quelques exemplaires de la déclaration si vous
préférez me suivre a la lecture. Je serai heureux de les
faire distribuer. Je regrette de ne les avoir pas distribués
auparavant, mais la situation évolue tellement vite qu’on
n’a pu faire mieux, monsieur Munro.

Je vous remercie de vos gentils mots d’accueil, monsieur
le président et messieurs du Comité. J’'applaudis la créa-
tion de ce sous-comité pour deux raisons. Premiérement, le
Canada, comme tout autre pays riche, en est rendu a un
point critique dans ses relations avec les pays en voie de
développement. Aprés 25 ans de ce que l'on appelle «’aide
étrangére», nous envisageons une nouvelle conjoncture qui
demande de nouvelles solutions a de nouveaux probléemes.
Les différentes options qui nous sont ouvertes ont toutes
des conséquences importantes, non seulement a 1’égard de
notre politique étrangére, mais aussi a I’égard de notre vie
nationale.

La seconde raison, qui me porte & applaudir la création
de ce sous-comité, est le mandat assez général que lui a
donné le Parlement dans son ordre de renvoi du 17 juin.
Non seulement ce Comité a-t-il recu le pouvoir de faire
rapport sur toute la gamme des politiques du développe-
ment international, mais on lui a aussi demandé d’étudier
particuliérement les relations économiques entre les pays
développés et les pays en voie de développement. Le Parle-
ment s’est ainsi montré conscient que la coopération dans
le développement international comprenait plus que de
simples transferts d’aide, mais qu’elle englobait tous nos
rapports avec les pays en voie de développement. Plus tard
je discuterai de ce point en plus de détail.

A cette premiére réunion du sous-comité, je désire vous
assurer de l'entiére coopération du ministére des Affaires
extérieures et de I'ACDI dans le travail du Comité.

Aujourd’hui, je veux parler du programme d'aide au
développement, des grandes questions dans nos relations
économiques avec les pays en voie de développement, et
aussi du role de ce sous-comité. Il est juste que le mandat
de ce sous-comité soit assez général, car il réfléte la com-
plexité croissante et l'influence grandissante du Canada
dans la coopération internationale pour le développement,
et depuis ses modestes débuts, il y a 25 ans.
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You will recall that the Canadian aid program began
more or less as a family affair. After India Pakistan and
Ceylon shed their colonial status in the late nineteen
forties an awareness soon emerged that political autonomy
would be difficult to sustain without rapid and intensive
economic and social development. In order to support that
development Canada joined Britain, Australia, New Zea-
land and the three newly independent Asian countries in
establishing the Colombo Plan. For eight years the Colom-
bo Plan was Canada’s only country-to-country aid pro-
gram, and when other members of the Commonwealth also
gained their independence Canada extended its support to
them by mounting the Commonwealth Caribbean Assist-
ance Plan in 1958 and the Commonwealth Africa Assist-
ance Plan in 1960.

A year later the francophone aspect of our heritage and
our bilingual character found expression in the launching
of an assistance program for francophone African coun-
tries. This assistance was greatly amplified by a number of
development projects identified in 1968 by the Chevrier
mission.

Meanwhile Canada had turned its attention to Latin
America by establishing a special Canadian fund in the
Inter-American Development Bank in 1964, and in 1970 this
program was augmented by one of direct bilateral assist-
ance to Latin American countries.

® 1550
In 1960 the government of the day took note of the fact
that aid programs are an integral part of Canada’s foreign
policy and are molded by the nature of the relationships
between Canada and the recipient countries. The adminis-
tration and operation of these programs were brought
together under the supervision and control of the Secre-
tary of State for External Affairs, and the External Aid
Office was established.

The same decision established a senior interdepartmen-
tal committee now known as the Canadian International
Development Board. We are now studying ways to enable
the Board to play a more constructive role in co-ordinating
the policies of the various departments involved in our
development assistance program.

The growing complexity of the problems of developing
countries made necessary a full review of our development
assistance programs, a review which led to the publication
on September 2 of The Strategy for International Develop-
ment Co-operation 1975-1980. Our strategy is not so much
an agonizing reappraisal of international development
policy as an expression of a number of concepts and prac-
tices which have evolved from our 25 years of experience
in development co-operation. World events have made
more critical this re-evaluation of the purpose and nature
of our relationships with the developing countries. Already
in 1970 the foreign policy review suggested that the con-
cepts of aid applied during the 1960s were not adequate for
the coming decade. The strategy for 1975-1980 is not a rigid
formula for development co-operation; it is designed to be
responsive to the flow of events while maintaining the
continuity so essential to effective long-term economic and
social development programs.

[Interpretation)

Vous vous rappellerez sans doute que le programme
d’aide canadien a commencé plutét comme une affaire de
famille. Quand I'Inde, le Pakistan, et Ceylan, abandon-
naient leur statut colonial a la fin des années 1940, il est
vite apparu que 'autonomie politique serait assez difficile
a maintenir sans un développement économique et social
rapide et intensif. Afin d'appuyer cet effort, le Canada, la
Grande-Bretagne, I’Australie, la Nouvelle-Zélande et trois
autres pays asiatiques nouvellement indépendants, ont
établi le plan de Colombo. Pendant 8 ans, le plan de
Colombo était le seul programme d'aide bilatérale du
Canada, et quand d’autres membres du Commonwealth ont
aussi atteint leur indépendance, le Canada leur a donné
son appui en créant le plan d’aide aux pays des Caraibes
membres du Commonwealth, en 1958, et le plan d’assis-
tance pour I'Afrique du Commonwealth en 1960.

Un an plus tard, I'aspect francophone de notre culture et
de notre caractére bilingue se manifestaient dans la créa-
tion d’'un programme d’assistance pour les pays francopho-
nes d’Afrique. Cette assistance a pris de I'ampleur lorsque
la mission Chevrier a identifié en 1968 plusieurs projets de
développement.

Pendant ce temps, le Canada s’est occupé de ’Amérique
latine en créant un fonds spécial et canadien avec la
Banque du développement interaméricain en 1964, et en
1970, ce programme était rehaussé par un autre d'assis-
tance directe bilatérale avec les pays latino-américains.

En 1960, le gouvernement au pouvoir notait que les
programmes d’aide faisaient partie intégrale de la politique
étrangére du Canada, et dépendaient de la nature méme
des rapports qui existaient entre le Canada et les pays
bénéficiaires. Le Secrétaire d’Etat aux Affaires extérieures
s'était alors vu confier la tache de superviser et de contro-
ler 'administration et 'exécution des programmes d’aide.
Le Bureau de l'aide extérieure voyait le jour.

Par la méme occasion, on créait un comité interministé-
riel, maintenant connu sous le nom de Conseil canadien de
développement international. Nous étudions présentement
les moyens de permettre au Conseil de jouer un réle encore
plus grand que par le passé dans la coordination des politi-
ques des divers ministéres engagés dans notre programme
d’aide au développement.

La complexité de plus en plus grande des problémes
auxquels sont confrontés les pays en voie de développe-
ment nous a forcés a procéder a un examen détaillé de
notre programme d’aide au développement. Cet examen a
conduit a la publication le 2 septembre dernier de la Straté-
gie de coopération au développement international 1975-
1980. Notre Stratégie n’est pas tant une réévaluation déses-
pérée de la politique de développement international, que
la formulation d’un certain nombre de concepts et de prati-
ques qui se dégagent de nos 25 années d’expérience dans la
coopération au développement. Les événements mondiaux
ont conféré une acuité toute spéciale a cette remise en
question de la raison d’étre et de la nature de nos rapports
avec les pays du tiers-monde. Déja en 1970, la Politique
étrangére au service des Canadiens laissait entrevoir que
les formes d’aide appliquées au cours des années soixante
ne répondaient pas aux exigences de la décennie qui com-
mencait. La Stratégie 1975-1980 est loin d’étre une formule
rigide. Elle est congue de facon a s'adapter au cours des
événements, tout en maintenant la continuité qui est pri-
mordiale au succés de programmes de développement
social et économique a long terme.
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I do not want to go over all the 21 points in the strategy,
but I would like to refer to some of the most significant
aspects. Canada’s assistance will be concentrated in a lim-
ited number of developing countries to ensure maximum
effectiveness and impact. The Canadian program will con-
centrate upon the poorest countries, those most seriously
affected by economic dislocation, and on the poorest
groups within those countries. At least 80 per cent of our
bilateral assistance will be aimed at these countries.
Canadian development efforts will focus increasingly upon
major world problems such as agriculture and rural de-
velopment, basic education and training, public health and
population, shelter and energy.

Canada wishes to help those nations which show a real
willingness to help themselves. True co-operation provides
nations with the option of choosing a method of develop-
ment most appropriate to their own political, economic and
social requirements. We wish to see, however, forms of
development in which the poorest and weakest members of
society, the rural poor, the landless tenant farmers, the
urban untrained and unemployed, share from the begin-
ning in the benefits of growth. The program will be flex-
ible, with forms of assistance available which are tailored
to the needs of some middle-income developing countries.

We restate our determination to reach the official United
Nations target of 0.7 per cent of our gross national product
in official development assistance through annual
increases in assistance as a percentage of gross national
product. We recognize that this pledge will be a severe test
of our national commitment to development co-operation.

The strategy review document will provide a focus for
the Committee, if it so wishes, to examine Canada’s de-
velopment policy. It is the first time, I believe, that we
have pulled together the guiding principles of our develop-
ment program, and certainly I would welcome any com-
ments the Committee may have on the principles that we
have outlined, whether we are going in the right direction,
and whether there are other principles that ought to be
added or some that ought to be removed.

® 1555
I would like now to turn to broader questions involved
in Canada's economic relations with developing countries.
As members of the Subcommittee, you have all shown a
keen interest in the report of the Commonwealth Expert
Group on a new international economic order and in the
Seventh Special Session of the United Nations General
Assembly, which was held two months ago. Several of you
attended the Seventh Special Session and I wish to place
on record my appreciation of your important contribution
to the work of our delegation.

I wish to review for you briefly my personal reaction to
these exercises in which we have been involved in the past
few months. The first point in my view is that significant
progress has been made. The report of the Commonwealth
Expert Group was a positive contribution to international
dialogue and understanding, and gives us an important
guide towards practical action to lessen disparities in
living standards between rich and poor around the world.

[Interprétation]

Je n’ai pas l'intention de m’attarder a une revue des 21
points de la Stratégie. J'aimerais simplement souligner
certains des plus importants. Le Canada concentrera son
aide dans un nombre limité de pays du tiers-monde afin
que ceux-ci puissent en tirer le meilleur parti possible.
Notre programme d’aide au développement dirigera la plus
grande partie de ses ressources vers les pays les plus
pauvres, vers ceux qui sont le plus gravement touchés par
le bouleversement économique et vers les groupes les plus
pauvres de ces pays. Nous consacrerons au moins 80% de
nos crédits bilatéraux a ces pays. Le Canada concentrera
de plus en plus son aide sur les secteurs cruciaux—notam-
ment 'agriculture, le développement rural, I’éducation et
la formation de base, la santé publique et la démographie,
le logement et I'énergie.

Le Canada désire venir en aide aux pays qui veulent
réellement s’aider. La véritable coopération consiste a leur
laisser la liberté de choisir le mode de développement qui
convienne le mieux a leur situation politique, économique
et sociale. Nous désirons toutefois que les méthodes choi-
sies permettent aux membres les plus pauvres et les plus
défavorisés de la société—les pauvres des régions rurales,
les cultivateurs sans terre, et les chémeurs urbains sans
qualifications professionnelles—de profiter dés le départ
des bienfaits de la croissance. L.e programme se veut
souple; certaines formes d’aide seront établies en fonction
des besoins de pays en voie de développement a revenus
moyens.

Nous réaffirmons notre volonté d’atteindre 1'objectif de
0,7% du PNB fixé par les Nations Unies au titre de 'aide
publique au développement, par une augmentation
annuelle de la part de notre PNB consacrée a l'aide au
développement. Nous reconnaissons que cette entreprise
mettra a rude épreuve notre engagement national a la
coopération au développement.

Le document de révision de nos politiques permettra aux
membres du Comité de mieux comprendre notre politique
de développement. Pour la premiére fois, nous avons réuni
en un seul document les grandes lignes directrices de notre
programme de développement et je suis ouvert a tous les
commentaires que vous voudrez bien faire a ce sujet. J'ai-
merais savoir si, a votre avis, les principes qui y sont
énoncés sont réalistes ou bien si certains devraient étre
reformulés.

J'aimerais maintenant aborder certaines grandes ques-
tions touchant les relations économiques du Canada avec
les pays en voie de développement. En tant que membres
du sous-comité, vous étes tous vivement intéressés au rap-
port du groupe d’experts du Commonwealth sur le nouvel
ordre économique international ainsi qu’a la septiéme ses-
sion extraordinaire de I'’Assemblée générale des Nations
Unies qui s'est tenue il y a deux mois. Certains d’entre
vous ont assisté a cette session et je ne voudrais pas passer
sous silence la contribution importante que vous avez
apportée au travail de la délégation canadienne.

Permettez-moi maintenant de vous résumer briévement
mes réactions face aux événements auxquels nous avons
participé au cours des derniers mois. Tout d’abord, nous
avons réalisé des progrés importants. Le rapport du groupe
d’experts du Commonwealth, en plus de favoriser le dialo-
gue et la compréhension a l'échelle internationale, nous
éclaire sur les mesures a prendre pour diminuer les inégali-
tés de niveaux de vie entre les riches et les pauvres dans le
monde.
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At the Commonwealth Finance Minister's meeting in
August, ministers gave their general endorsement to this
report. The Commonwealth Expert Group will meet again
next year to pursue its task in new areas, such as the
problems of developing countries, which must import most
of their required raw materials. I believe it is worth men-
tioning that the report of the Commonwealth Expert
Group was the first in a sense consensus document that
had been produced by representatives of developing coun-
tries and by representatives of developed countries. It was
the first consensus document and the conclusions of the
endorsation of the ministers of Finance of the document
was also a new departure.

It was subsequently tabled, put into the flow of material
at the United Nations Seventh Special Session. While it did
not have the prominence in the debate that the main
document which was produced by the nonaligned had, it
still in my view was a significant development. The docu-
ment of the nonaligned was the focus of debate and it was,
of course, supplemented by the statement of the United
States, which subsequently put also into play its own
proposals, and the Commonwealth document was there as
well.

I believe those of us who were present at the Seventh
Special Session, including Mr. Roche and Mr. Brewin, who
are present today, would have observed a greatly improved
atmosphere for debate and negotiations at the United
Nations. There was flexibility, foresight and goodwill on
all sides of the table and the approach which emerged from
that session is one which we welcome and support. There
was a much greater meeting of minds at the Seventh
Special Session and this resulted in a consensus approach
in dealing with the difficulties and needs of developing
countries.

I believe the view would probably be shared by other
members of the Committee who were in New York that the
statement of the United States played a crucial role in this
changed atmosphere. Certainly in the absence of an Ameri-
can initiative of that importance, probably the session
would not have resulted in the adoption of a consensus
resolution. Canada’s efforts in this area over the past few
months have been aimed at putting forward constructive
positions reflecting Canada’s interests in the long and
short run. They have also been aimed at building bridges
between developed and developing countries. Our delega-
tion at the United Nations at the Seventh Special Session
was able to participate in that bridge building role. Cer-
tainly, our role was a positive role, helpful in the circum-
stances, I believe. In my own statement at the Seventh
Special Session I said that we are determined to play a
positive role using our resources and influence to bring
about constructive change in the international economic
system, thereby reducing the gap between rich and poor
nations.
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I reiterate that statement today. I attended the now
resumed General Assembly which followed the special
session and I met with the delegation at the General
Assembly. I certainly expressed the clear view to the dele-
gation that the document that had been adopted at the
Seventh Special Session was not to be regarded as a tacti-
cal move on the part of Canada, or as a response to a purely
tactical situation; it was a document that we regarded as

[Interpretation]

Le rapport a recu l'approbation générale des ministres
des Finances du Commonwealth lors de leur réunion en
aout dernier. Le groupe d'experts du Commonwealth se
réunira de nouveau 'année prochaine afin de poursuivre
ses travaux et il étudiera notamment les problémes aux-
quels font face les pays en voie de développement obligés
d’importer la plupart de leurs matiéres premiéres. Il serait
utile de souligner ici que le rapport du groupe d’experts est
le premier document a réaliser 'accord entre des représen-
tants des pays industrialisés et des représentants des pays
en voie de développement. C'est la premiére fois qu'un
consensus se dégage; 'approbation qu'il a recueillie auprés
des ministres des Finances constitue également un nou-
veau départ.

Le document a été déposé et fait partie de 'ensemble des
documents de la septiéme session spéciale des Nations
Unies. Méme s’il n’a pas eu la méme attention lors du débat
que le document principal que les pays non alignés avaient
préparé, il n’en demeure pas moins qu’a mon avis il consti-
tue un événement majeur. C’est le document des pays non
alignés qui fut au centre du débat et est venue s’ajouter
également la déclaration des Etats-Unis qui par la suite ont
fait leurs propres propositions; le document du Common-
wealth a eu sa place également.

Je suppose que ceux qui étaient présents a la septiéme
session extraordinaire, et parmi eux M. Roche et M. Brewin
qui sont ici aujourd’hui n’ont pas pu manquer de constater
que l'atmosphere se prétait beaucoup plus a la discussion
et aux négociations a4 I’Assemblée générale. Tous ont fait
preuve de souplesse, prévoyance et de bonne volonté et
I’approche retenue rencontre notre appui. Il y régnait une
communauté de vues beaucoup plus grande ce qui a permis
a un consensus de se dégager sur la facon d’aborder les
problémes et les besoins des pays en voie de
développement.

D’autres membres du Comité qui étaient a New York
conviendront probablement avec moi que la déclaration
des Etats-Unis a joué un rdle important dans ce change-
ment d’atmosphére. Sans cette initiative américaine, la
sesison ne se serait peut-étre pas terminée par I'adoption
d’une résolution ralliant tous les pays. Le Canada au cours
des derniers mois a voulu formuler a cet égard des prises
de position constructives qui reflétent les intéréts cana-
diens a court et a long termes. Il a cherché a établir des
ponts entre les pays industrialisés et les pays en voie de
développement. Notre délégation a la septiéme session
extraordinaire aux Nations Unies a pu précisément jouer
ce role d’animateur. Notre role a certainement été positif et
utile étant donné les circonstances. Dans mon allocution a
la septiéme session extraordinaire, j'affirmais que nous
avons la ferme intention de jouer un role positif afin de
mettre a profit nos ressources et notre influence dans le
cadre des efforts visant a apporter des améliorations au
systéme économique international et a réduire, ce faisant,
I’écart entre les nations riches et les nations pauvres.

Notre intention reste la méme aujourd’hui. J'ai assisté a
la réunion de l'assemblée générale qui a suivi la session
extraordinaire et j'ai rencontré les délégués. J'ai bien fait
comprendre aux délégués que le document qu'on avait
adopté lors de la septiéme session extraordinaire ne consti-
tuait pas une tactique de la part du Canada ou encore une
réaction face a une situation purement stratégique. Il s’agit
d’un document que nous considérons le nétre et que nous



6-11-1975

Sous-comité sur le développement international 4:29

[Texte]

our document, we had supported it and we ought to work
positively in the General Assembly to have it move for-
ward in the deliberations of the Second Committee. In fact,
a member of your subcommittee, Mr. Stanbury, is our
spokesman on the Second Committee and he has been
given that support in my statement to the delegation.

I believe, at the United Nations and in these other
forums we have made progress on commodities, trade lib-
eralization, the transfer of resources, industrial co-opera-
tion, food and agriculture. We must ensure that the evolu-
tion of the international economic system continues in the
right direction. We must take advantage of the improved
international atmosphere. I believe a lack of will on the
part of developed or developing countries in the field of
international economic co-operation would result in our
losing the gains made at the Seventh Special Session.

The next steps in the process are the Conference on
International Economic Co-Operation in Paris or the
so-called producer consumer conference, ongoing discus-
sions in commodity councils leading up to UNCTAD IV in
Nairobi, the continuing multilateral trade negotiations
under GATT and the discussions of international financial
and monetary issues at the IMF. In each of these forums
we shall be putting forward positions which reflect Cana-
da's economic interests and our desire to strengthen the
co-operation with developing countries.

The Conference on International Economic Co-Opera-
tion will hold a ministerial session in December. I hope to
attend that session which I think will be a very crucial
event in the evolution of international economic co-opera-
tion. Certainly, the atmosphere that prevailed at the Sev-
enth Special Session will have a favourable effect on the
atmosphere at the Conference on International Economic
Co-Operation. We have, obviously, a vital interest our-
selves to pursue at this conference. There will be four
commissions, two of which are of primary concern to
Canada, the Commission on Raw Materials, and the Com-
mission on Energy, and it probably will see these Commis-
sions, for a period of a year, discussing the whole question
of raw materials, which is a big item in the context of the
new International Economic Order, with probably at the
end of the year some report to Ministers.
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That is really the next incident in this unfolding scene.

We are now preparing for that meeting. We have not yet

completed our preparations and we have not sought final
approval of our positions from the Cabinet.

I want now to turn to some other general comments. Just
as the Canadian International Development Board under
the Chairmanship of Mr. Gérin-Lajoie advises me on de-
velopment assistance matters, the Interdepartmental Com-
mittee on Economic Relations with Developing Countries,
under the Chairmanship of Mr. Robinson, advises me on
the broader multi-dimensional issues that we are continu-
ing to deal with. I wish to stress the interdepartmental
nature of the government's consideration of these issues.
Thus, through our aid program and through other meas-
ures of co-operation with developing countries, we are
seeking ways of lessening disparities between developed
and developing countries.

[Interprétation]

avons appuyé; nous devons travailler au sein de 'assem-
blée générale pour qu’il soit étudié lors des délibérations
du deuxiéme comité. Un membre de votre sous-comité, M.
Stanbury, est notre porte-parole au deuxiéme comité et je
lui ai donné mon appui lors de mon exposé devant les
délégués.

J'estime qu’'aux Nations Unies et dans les autres cercles
ou sont débattues ces questions, nous avons fait des pro-
grés en ce qui concerne les produits de base, la libéralisa-
tion des échanges, le transfert des ressources, la coopéra-
tion industrielle, 'alimentation et l'agriculture. Il nous
faut maintenant veiller a ce que I'évolution du systéme
économique international se poursuive dans la bonne voie.
Nous devons profiter de I’amélioration de la conjoncture
internationale. Si la détermination des pays industrialisés
ou des pays en voie de développement devait fléchir dans
le domaine de la coopération économique internationale, je
crois que nous perdrions les gains réalisés lors de la sep-
tiéme session extraordinaire.

Les prochaines étapes seront: la conférence sur la coopé-
ration économique internationale de Paris réunissant des
pays producteurs et consommateurs, les discussions que
poursuivent les conseils de produits de base en vue de
préparer la quatriéme conférence de la CNUCED a Nairobi,
les négociations commerciales multilatérales menées sous
I’égide du GATT et la discussion des problémes financiers
et d’intéréts internationaux au sein du FMI. Les positions
que nous adopterons a chacune de ces étapes refléteront les
intéréts économiques canadiens et notre désir de renforcer
la coopération avec les pays en voie de développement.

La conférence sur la coopération économique tiendra une
session ministérielle en décembre. J'espére pouvoir partici-
per a cette réunion d’'importance primordiale. L’atmos-
phére qui a régné lors de la septiéme session extraordinaire
ne peut qu'étre bénéfique a I'atmosphere de la conférence
sur la coopération économique internationale. Il ne fait pas
de doute que cette conférence présente un grand intérét
pour le Canada. On formera 4 commissions, dont 2 intéres-
sent particuliérement le Canada, la Commission des matieé-
res premiéres et la Commission de I’énergie. Ces commis-
sion étudieront probablement toute la question des
matiéres premiéres pendant une année et ce sujet a certai-
nement son importance dans le contexte du nouvel ordre
économique international; a la fin de cette année on fera
rapport au ministre.

Voila donc ce qui se prépare de ce cdté-la et nous nous
préparons pour cette réunion. Nous n’avons pas encore
terminé et nous n’avons pas encore demandé au Cabinet
d’approuver nos positions.

J'aimerais maintenant passer a quelques sujets géné-
raux. A linstar du Conseil canadien de développement
international, lequel, présidé par M. Gérin-Lajoie, me con-
seille sur les questions d’aide au développement, le comité
interministériel sur les relations économiques avec les
pays en voie de développement que dirige M. Robinson me
conseille sur les grands problémes multidimensionnels qui
nous intéressent. Permettez-moi de souligner le caractére
interministériel de notre étude ce ces problémes. Par la
voie de notre programme d’'aide et d’autres mesures de
coopération avec les pays en voie de développement, nous
cherchons ainsi des moyens de combler le fossé qui existe
entre pays industrialisés et pays en voie de développement.



4:30

Sub-Committee on International Development

6-11-1975

[Text]

In my view, bringing rich and poor closer together and
finding ways to lessen these great disparities is one of the
fundamental tasks in the field of international relations
today. It is crucial for global stability and for the future of
human civilization. I believe Canada has the ability to
maintain and increase its efforts to confront these prob-
lems despite the sacrifices which will be required in our
domestic fight against inflation.

Aid programs are easy targets in time of economic stress.
Support for our programs must be founded upon a broad
understanding by Canadians of the critical problems
facing the community of nations and of the disastrous
results which would follow any reduction of effort by
industrialized nations because of economic problems at
home. The importance of broadly-based national support
for our programs and policies aimed at assisting develop-
ing countries cannot be overemphasized.

I understand that members of the subcommittee will be
making an effort to ensure that Canadians are made more
aware of the issues involved in our relations with develop-
ing countries. Discussion in this subcommittee and efforts
by each of you to air these questions with the Canadian
people will make a valuable contribution to improving
understanding of the issues.

The Canadian people should be made aware of the costs
and benefits, in economic and political terms, of action
which may be taken by Canada in favour of developing
countries through the budget for our International De-
velopment Program, through improved access to the
Canadian market for developing country exports, and
through agreements to stabilize international trade and
commodities. There may be domestic economic costs, but in
the longer term the cost of doing too little could be much
greater.

I see, therefore, the need for continuing consultations
between this subcommittee and myself and my officials. I
look forward to this dialogue and I would be pleased to try
to answer some questions, although I doubt whether we
can carry the discussion much further than we have car-
ried it already until you have probably made more progress
in your studies and we have made more progress in ours.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Thank you, Mr.
Minister. I think perhaps I was remiss. I did not introduce
Mr. Bruce Williams on my far right, who is the Executive
Vice-President of the Canadian Industrial Development
Agency.

My first questionner is Mr. Roche.
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Mr. Roche: Mr. MacEachen, this morning I had occasion
to make some extended comments on the five-year strate-
gy, and if I could telescope them now, I would say that I
think, indeed, the strategy is in the right direction. It is a
question of speed, of implementation that concerns me, but
before I get to that, I noticed today that Canada has
increased its commitments and appropriation to the United
Nations by $4.5 million to a total contribution in the
coming fiscal year of $24.5 million. I just want to say that I
think that was a very wise decision, at this time, to indi-
cate in a monetary way the support of Canada for the
United Nations at a time when the United Nations is under
considerable attack and misunderstanding in the Western
World.

[Interpretation]

La recherche de mécanismes pour diminuer les grandes
disparités entre riches et pauvres constitue, 4 mon avis,
I'une des taches fondamentales dans le domaine des rela-
tions internationales contemporaines. Cette tache est cru-
ciale pour la stabilité globale et I'avenir de I'’humanité. Je
crois que notre pays peut maintenir et accroitre ses efforts
en vue de résoudre ces problémes, en dépit des sacrifices
qu’exigera de nous la luttre contre l'inflation.

Les programmes d’aide sont des cibles faciles quand la
conjoncture économique est mauvaise. Notre programme
doit trouver ses appuis dans une population consciente des
problémes critiques qu’éprouve la communauté des nations
et des conséquences désastreuses que pourrait entrainer
toute diminution de I'effort des nations industrialisées en
raison de problémes économiques internes. On ne saurait
exagérer I'importance de I'appui des Canadiens relative-
ment aux programmes et aux politiques par lesquels nous
cherchons a aider les pays en voie de développement.

Les membres du sous-comité s’efforceront d’une maniére
toute particuliére d’aider les Canadiens a prendre davan-
tage conscience des composantes de nos rapports avec ces
pays. Les travaux du sous-comité et vos efforts individuels
pour faire mieux connaitre ces questions au peuple cana-
dien qui favoriseront une meilleure compréhension des
problémes.

11 faut que le peuple canadien sache quels sont les béné-
fices et les colits, économiques et politiques, de I'aide que
peut accorder le Canada aux pays en voie de développe-
ment par les crédits qu’il affecte a son programme de
développement international, par une ouverture plus
grande du marché canadien aux exportations des pays en
voie de développement et par des accords de stabilisation
des échanges internationaux au niveau des produits de
base. Cette aide aura bien sir des répercussions économi-
ques pour nous, mais a long terme, une trop grande parci-
monie pourrait bien s’avérer beaucoup plus cofiteuse.

Je crois donc qu’il est nécessaire que de part et d’autre
nous poursuivions le dialogue. Je me réjouis a l'idée d’un
dialogue et je serai heureux d’essayer de répondre a vos
questions mais, pour que la discussion porte fruit, il nous
faudra a tous approfondir notre étude des sujets en cause.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Merci, monsieur
le ministre. Quelle négligence, j'ai oublié de vous présenter
M. Bruce Williams, a ma droite, qui est le vice-président
exécutif de I’Agence canadienne pour le développement
international.

Le premier nom sur ma liste est celui de M. Roche.

M. Roche: Monsieur MacEachen, ce matin, j'ai fait de
nombreuses observations sur la stratégie quinquennale et,
en résumé, je crois que je peux dire que cette stratégie est
engagée dans la bonne voie. C’est la vitesse et I'application
qui m’inquiétent. Mais auparavant, j’ai appris aujourd’hui
que le Canada a augmenté le montant des sommes affec-
tées aux Nations Unies, et que $4.5 millions viendront
s’ajouter pour constituer une contribution totale de $24.5
millions pour le prochain exercice. Je me réjouis de cette
décision qui est trés sage, et qui indique que, en langage
monétaire, le Canada appuie les Nations Unies a un
moment ou elles subissent de sérieuses attaques et font
I'objet de 'incompréhension du monde occidental.
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Last week I had occasion to go back to the United
Nations following the Seventh Special Session and just
kind of observing, again, reconfirmed for me the strength-
ened presence of Canada at the UN. As one analyses the
speeches that have been made by members of the Canadian
delegation, including your own, in both the Assembly and
the various committees, I think one can draw the conclu-
sion that Canada desires to participate more meaningfully
than perhaps ever before in the understanding of what
needs to be done to bring economic and social justice into
the world; that the war that the United Nations was sup-
posed to have been founded to stop now needs to be
defined on much larger terms than military conflict.
Important as that part of the definition is, it also needs to
be defined in terms of the rich-poor conflict, and in that
way, I think, Canada is moving forward, so I support that
increase.

I am concerned about the implementation of the five-
year strategy. I have said several times since it was pub-
lished that it is in advance of the Canadian public opinion
today and it will be necessary to bring along the Depart-
ment of Finance and the Department of Industry, Trade
and Commerce into the thinking expressed by the Depart-
ment of External Affairs, which reflects the multi-dimen-
sional approach to international development today, which
is a combination of both aid and of structural changes. It is
the combination that I think is extremely important to get
across to all the members of the government, as well as to
the Canadian people.

If I could just be specific for a moment, though, I recog-
nize that we cannot move too far away from concentration
on the aid question because of whaat Mr. McNamara, the
President of the World Bank, has said, that the least-
developed nations need an extra $40 to $50 billion over the
next 5 to 8 years in order to compensate for the deleterious
effect off the energy crisis, particularly on those countries.
This brings us to the question of ODA, and Canada in the
five-year strategy reaffirmed its commitment to get to .7
per cent of the GNP, but without indicating when we
would get to that.

I want to ask you, first of all, in accordance with the
strategy, can you state what steps have been taken to get
to .7 per cent, bearing in mind that it is at .53 per cent now,
and allied to that, I simply want to put my question in the
context of the Commonwealth experts’ statement of which
you have been a strong supporter, which, of course, comes
out for 1 per cent of GNP by 1980. In other words, it is a
very clear target. I will just read one sentence that summa-
rizes their position. The Commonwealth experts have
declared:

We consider that the reasons developed countries have
advanced in an attempt to explain why annual aid
appropriations have failed to allow them to reach the
.7 per cent target already have little economic sub-
stance or validity.

I have a couple of other questions, but I think I will stop
there.

® 1615

Mr. MacEachen: Well, we have restated our target of the
United Nations target; .7 per cent of the Gross National
Product. At the Commonwealth Ministers meeting, which I
attended in Guinea, I spoke on this particular question. I
stated that in Canada we had been making substantial

[Imterprétation]

La semaine derniére, j'ai eu l'occasion de retourner aux
Nations Unies, aprés la septiéme session extraordinaire et
j’ai pu observer que la présence du Canada y était encore
plus remarquable. Si I'on étudie les discours prononcés par
les membres de la délégation canadienne, notamment le
votre, a ’assemblée générale, ou & I'occasion des séances de
divers comités, on peut constater que le Canada désire
participer plus activement que jamais aux démarches
visant a instaurer une justice sociale et économique dans le
monde. On comprend que cette guerre que les Nations
Unies devaient enrayer s’étend a des domaines bien au-
dela des conflits militaires. Il est important de redéfinir ce
combat, et il faut le définir dans le contexte de I’antago-
nisme riches-pauvres; c’est de cette facon que le Canada.
évolue et voila pourquoi japprouve l'augmentation de la
somme versée.

L’application de la stratégie quinquennale m’inquiéte.
J’ai dit a plusieurs reprises, depuis qu’on en connait les
modalités, que 'opinion publique canadienne n’était pas
préte a la comprendre et qu’il sera nécessaire de faire
intervenir le ministére de Finances, le ministére de 1'In-
dustrie et du Commerce, car les opinions du ministére des
Affaires extérieures tiennent compte de l'approche multi-
dimensionnelle au développement international qui au-
jourd’hui fait intervenir a la fois l'aide et les modifications
structurelles. Voild un tandem qui & mon avis, a une
importance énorme et que les députés, comme le peuple
canadien, doivent comprendre.

Permettez-moi d’entrer dans les détails, méme si je com-
prends que nous ne pouvons pas négliger I'aspect aide de la
question, surtout aprés ce qu’a dit M. McNamara? Le prési-
dent de la Banque mondiale croit que les nations les moins
développées auront besoin de $40 ou $50 milliards au cours
des 5 a 8 prochaines années, afin de compenser l'effet
néfaste de la crise de I’énergie dans ces pays. Cela nous
améne a la question de 'ODA et a cette stratégie quinquen-
nale, a l'occasion de laquelle le Canada a réitéré son enga-
gement a augmenter son aide jusqu’a .7 p. 100 de son
produit national brut, sans toutefois indiquer quand cela se
réaliserait.

En commencant, je voudrais vous demander si, dans le
contexte de cette stratégie, vous pouvez nous dire quelles
mesures on a prises pour atteindre ce .7 p. 100 surtout
lorsque, présentement, notre pourcentage s’éléeve a .53 p.
100. Je voudrais inscrire ma question dans le contexte de la
déclaration des experts du Commonwealth, a laquelle vous
accordez votre appui le plus complet et qui préconise 1 p.
100 du produit national brut, d’ici 1980. En d’autres termes,
voila une cible bien précise. Je vais maintenant vous lire
une phrase qui résume la position des experts du Common-
wealth, et je cite:

Nous croyons que les raisons invoquées par les pays
industriels pour expliquer 'échec au niveau du pour-
centage annuel affecté a I'aide, raisons qui les auraient
empéché d’atteindre le pourcentage cible de .7 p. 100, se
défendent trés mal du point de vue économique.

J'ai quelques autres questions, mais je crois que je vais
m'arréter ici.

M. MacEachen: Eh bien, nous avons marqué au compas
notre cible a 'intérieur de la cible des Nations-Unies: .7 p.
100 du produit national brut. Lors de la réunion des minis-
tres du Commonwealth, a laquelle j'ai assisté en Guinée,
j'ai traité de cette question particuliére. J'ai déclaré qu'au
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increases in our aid to disbursements each year and if we
were able to maintain that momentum in the future, we
could probably reach that target by 1980. I have not sought
a commitment from my colleagues in the government that
we would reach it in 1980 because I believe, based on the
record, the declaration of a firm date of intention is un-
necessary. I sometimes feel we can do as well by making
our improvements on an annual basis, rather than a specif-
ic target. That is my own particular view.

On the one per cent, I believe the budgetary conse-
quences are so great at the moment that it would be quite
impossible for us to consider the recommendation of the
Commonwealth group of experts as one we could imple-
ment. At the Commonwealth meeting I reserved on that
particular point.

Mr. McNamara is undoubtedly right in putting an
emphasis on, and seeking an increase in, the total transfer
of resources from developing to developed countries. This
is an important aim, but the quality of that aid is as
important as the quantity, in my opinion.

Mr. Roche: I appreciate that answer. I also think quality
is important. Nonetheless, the sheer quantity needed in the
least developed countries needs to be increased. I do not
think the quality would have to suffer. I do not want to
argue the point any further but only leave you with my
thought which this Committee will have to face, as time
goes on, namely: how to reconcile the Canadian position
and the Commonwealth position, since we are supporting
both, because the Canadian government has supported the
thrust of the Commonwealth Report. I believe we ought to
be moving to one per cent.

Having said that, I want to ask you what means you are
going to take, sir, to develop public opinion in Canada for
these trade and monetary contributions called for by the
new economic order. I raised this very question in an
exchange of correspondence with you. I suggested there be
a series of conferences across Canada under the sponsor-
ship of the government. You replied that you thought there
was some merit in this idea but perhaps it ought to be
under the wing of CIDA.

It seems to me, sir, that if we are going to have any kind
of public education across Canada and put it under the
wing of CIDA, we partially defeat what the new economic
order is all about since we have to get across to people that
it is not just a matter of giving aid. It is a question of
structural changes.

Therefore, I want to put to you now, a very strong
representation that the Department of External Affairs,
not CIDA, sponsor conferences across the country to de-
velop that full range of public opinion that is so necessary
for Canadians to get a full understanding of the new
economic order.

Mr. MacEachen: I think it is very big undertaking to try
to explain the implications of the new international eco-
nomic order to the public. And it is all the more difficult
when, even at the very top of discussions, all the implica-
tions are not even fully understood by governments or by
delegations at the United Nations. So it is an undertaking.
I think I personally will attempt, as the opportunity
presents itself at the United Nations and elsewhere, to
bring forward this essential element in our Canadian for-
eign policy.

[Interpretation]

Canada nous avons pu considérablement augmenter l'aide
annuelle a un rythme nous permettant d’espérer atteindre
I'objectif vers 1980. Je n’ai pas demandé d'engagement a
mes collégues en ce sens, car je crois, d’aprés la perfor-
mance, qu'une date fixe d'intention ne s’'impose pas. Je
pense parfois que nous pouvons accomplir autant d’année
en année plutot que de viser une cible fixe. C'est une
opinion.

Les ramifications budgétaires du taux de 1 p. 100 me
semblent d'une telle magnitude en ce moment qu'il nous
serait & peu prés impossible de considérer la recommanda-
tion du groupe des experts du Commonwealth si nous
devions nous-mémes l'appliquer. J'ai exprimé des réserves
a ce sujet lors de la conférence du Commonwealth.

M. McNamara a sans doute raison d’insister sur le trans-
fert global des ressources d'un pays en voie de développe-
ment a un pays industrialisé. C’est un objectif de premier
plan, mais la qualité de 'aide n’est pas moins importante
que la quantité a mon avis.

M. Roche: Je comprends. J'estime aussi que l'aspect
qualitatif est important. Néanmoins, la quantité minimale
indispensable aux pays en voie de développement doit étre
augmentée sans que la qualité en souffre. Je ne veux pas
insister sur ce point mais je vous laisse y penser car notre
comité devra y réfléchir a mesure que le temps passera et,
plus particuliéerement a la facon de concilier la position
canadienne et la position du Commonwealth, puisque nous
donnons notre appui des deux cdtés vu que le gouverne-
ment canadien a donné son appui au rapport du Common-
wealth. Je crois que nous devrions tenter d’atteindre le 1 p.
100.

Cela dit, jaimerais savoir quels sont les moyens que
vous prendrez, monsieur, pour intéresser 'opinion publi-
que au Canada a ces échanges et contributions financiéres
exigées par le nouvel ordre économique. C'est la question
que j’ai soulevée dans un échange de lettres avec vous. J'ai
suggéré qu’'une série de conférences aient lieu au Canada
sous I'égide du gouvernement. Vous avez répondu que cela
n’était pas sans mérite mais que peut-étre 'ACDI serait
mieux placée pour le faire.

Il me semble, monsieur, que si vous devez éduquer le
public canadien et le faire sous 1'égide de I'ACDI, c’est
faire échec au nouvel ordre économique en tous points
puisque nous devons faire comprendre aux gens qu'il ne
s’agit pas simplement de donner de l'aide. Il s’agit de
transformations structurales.

Je tiens donc & vous rappeler fermement que c'est le
Ministére des affaires extérieures et non pas '’ACDI qui
parraine les conférences a travers le pays afin de sensibili-
ser complétement la polutation a la nécessité pour les
Canadiens de bien comprendre en quoi consiste le nouvel
ordre économique.

M. MacEachen: C’est beaucoup entreprendre, me sem-
ble-t-il, que de vouloir convaincre et éclairer le public sur
tout ce qu'implique le nouvel ordre économique internatio-
nal. Et c'est d’autant plus difficile lorsque, dans le plus vif
du débats, toutes les implications n'en sont méme pas trés
bien saisies par les représentants officiels des gouverne-
ments et les délégués aux Nations Unies. C'est donc une
grande entreprise. Je m'efforcerai quant 4 moi en toute
occasion, aux Nations Unies comme ailleurs, de faire res-
sortir cet élément essentiel de notre politique canadienne
extérieure.
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It has been coming through, I believe, bit by bit. I think

the subcommittee, in its work, can help. One of the reasons

I was favourable to the reference itself was that it would

give Parliament and those who appeared before a parlia-

mentary committee an opportunity to engage in some con-
ditioning of public opinion.

I think the nongovernmental organizations are also
useful in that role. They are active, they turned out in full
force, as you remember, at the Seventh Special Session,
and I think it is important that we try to ensure that there
is a constant dialogue between the government, Parlia-
ment, the nongovernmental organizations and the public.

Mr. Roche: I want to ask one supplementary before I use
up my time, Mr. Minister.

It is now one year since Canada pledged at the World
Food Conference to send 1 million tons of food this year to
developing nations, a commitment reaffirmed in New York
this fall, and since the grain crop in Canada this year has
exceeded expectations I wonder if you could state how
much of that 1 million tons has been shipped so far, and to
which countries?

Mzr. MacEachen: I cannot state that. I would be happy to
get the information but I do not have it with me.

Mr. Roche: Can you affirm now that shipments are
underway, or is it possible that none. ..

Mr. MacEachen: Are you thinking of the first year or
the second year?

Mr. Roche: The first of the three year commitment.
Mr. MacEachen: Oh, sure.
Mr. Roche: The year 1975.

Mr. MacEachen: Yes. I know by virtue of my contact
with CIDA officials and various country programs that we
have been shipping and we hope to complete our commit-
ment by the end of the fiscal year, I guess it would be. So
we will have discharged that obligation.

I think you will be pleased to know, Mr. Roche, that we
could have achieved economies because we made our com-
mitment in physical terms instead of dollars, because at
that particular time at the World Food Conference it was
felt that that was the best way to do it. Since then the
prices have gone down. So we are better off because we
have been rewarded for our virtue, in other words. What
we have saved on the million tons we have still insisted on
putting into the food budget, so we have not reduced by
virtue of that event our total dollars on the food allocation.
That has been our position all the way through. So I think
that when we get you the details you will know that we
have been moving on that and we will complete our
objective,

[Interprétation]

I1 y a de petites lueurs. Je pense que le sous-comité peut
aider par ses travaux. Une des raisons pour lesquelles j'ai
accepté avec complaisance 'ordre de renvoi, c’est que cela
permettrait au Parlement et & ceux qui comparaissent
devant le comité parlementaire de contribuer a éduquer le
public.

Les organismes non gouvernementaux peuvent aussi
jouer leur role. Ce sont des corps actifs qui se présentent
en foule comme ils 'ont fait, vous vous en souvenez bien,
lors de la septiéme session extraordinaire, et il me semble
important que nous nous efforcions d’assurer un dialogue
constant entre le gouvernement, le Parlement, les organis-
mes non gouvernementaux.

M. Roche: J'aimerais poser une question supplémentaire
avant d’épuiser le temps qui m’est alloué, monsieur le
ministre.

I1 y a un an que le Canada s’est engagé a la Conférence
mondiale sur I’Alimentation & envoyer un million de
tonnes de vivres cette année aux nations en voie de déve-
loppement, un engagement reconfirmé cet automne a New
York; vu que la récolte de céréales au Canada cette année a
dépassé tout ce qui avait été prévu, je me demande si vous
pourriez nous dire combien de ce million de tonnes a été
expédié jusqu’a présent et & quels pays?

M. MacEachen: Je ne saurais dire. Je serais heureux de
vous procurer le renseignement mais je n’ai pas cette
information ici.

M. Roche: Pourriez-vous nous dire quel est le mouve-
ment des expéditions présentement ou est-ce possible
qu’aucune. ..

M. MacEachen: Est-ce que vous parlez de la premiére ou
de la deuxiéme année?

M. Roche: La premiére des trois années d’engagement.
M. MacEachen: Oh, certainement.
M. Roche: L’année 1975.

Mr. MacEachen: Oui. Je sais par mes rapports avec les
hauts fonctionnaires de I’ACDI et ma participation a -
divers programmes d’autres pays, que les expéditions se
poursuivent; nous espérons avoir tout expédié avant la fin
de l'année financiére. Nous aurons donc respecté cet
engagement.

Sans doute serez-vous heureux d’apprendre, monsieur
Roche, que nous aurions pu égargner parce que nous nous
sommes engagés en termes de volume physique plutot
qu'en dollars, estimant a ce moment de la Conférence
mondiale sur I’Alimentation que c’était la meilleure facon
de procéder. Depuis, les prix ont baissé. Notre vertu semble
donc avoir été récompensée. Nous avons cependant insisté
pour intégrer au budget alimentaire ce que nous avons
épargné sur le million de tonnes et nous n'avons donc pas
réduit a cause de cela notre engagement global en dollars
pour l'alimentation. Nous avons été en tous fidéles a cette
pratique. C’est pourquoi je pense que, lorsque vous en
connaitrez le détail, vous serez persuadé que nous avons
bien agi et que nous parviendrons a notre objectif.
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The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Mr. Brewin. Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Monsieur

Mr. Brewin: Mr. Chairman, I would like to take a sen-
tence or two as a sort of preamble to my question. I would
like to express my pleasure that the Minister has so obvi-
ously taken a deep interest in this problem and he seems
clearly to recognize the need for the change of direction,
which is a big job. I would also like to say that I share his
feeling that the Seventh Special Session of the General
Assembly evinced an encouraging political world to co-
operate on a world scale to develop a world strategy based
on human need. Having said that, I would ask the Minister,
or perhaps I will put all the three questions I have in one,
some of them may seem premature to ask him, but at some
future date he may be able to answer them, if he does not
think it is the right time now.

Does the Minister see the UNCTAD (4) meeting as a
critical stage in carrying forward the rather general pro-
posals contained in the consensus agreement at the Special
Session and as critical to these relations between devel-
oped and developing countries and, if so, can he tell us
anything about what Canada is doing to prepare for this
gathering? Does he thinks it is a critical stage and, third—
again I think this may be premature, but I would like to
hear what the Minister has to say about it—has Canada in
its role that he outli.aed as a bridge builder, I think, or
something of that sort, considered taking substantial
initiatives in the UNCTAD (4) meeting, and perhaps I
could add, partly because Canada’s position as an impor-
tant exporting nation and an important developed nation,
it can in my judgment and I think in the Minister’s be of
great importance to the success of what I think is the next
main chapter in the development of this whole strategy.

Mr. MacEachen: Mr. Chairman, I have no hesitation in
saying that in my opinion the UNCTAD meeting next
spring, I believe, next May, will be a very important stage
in this process. I believe at the meeting in New York it was
clearly understood that maybe the next most important
step after the Seventh Special Session was the UNCTAD
(4), but I personally tend to believe the meeting which will
take place next month, the International Conference on
Economic Co-operation will be important, and will be
helpful in forming opinions that may have effects at the
GATT, at UNCTAD, at the IMF and so on. So, it seems to
be, in a sense, an operation that is unfolding in various
places and one of the most important ones is UNCTAD.

What preparations are we making? We have, as I stated,
under Mr. Robinson, an Interdepartmental Committee,
that has now, as I understand, already started preparing
for the UNCTAD (4). YOu will be hearing, I gather, from
Mr. Robinson in due course and he will be able to give you
a more precise picture of how the interdepartmental pro-
cess is working, but we did have at the Seventh Special
Session, as you know, representatives from other depart-
ments and it is obvious that in this particular field, in the
multidimensional approach that involves trade and tech-

Brewin.

M. Brewin: Monsieur le président, j'aimerais prononcer
quelques mots en guise de préambule & ma question. Je
suis trés heureux de voir que le ministre a manifesté un
intérét aussi vif devant ce probléme et qu'il semble claire-
ment reconnaitre le besoin d'un changement de direction,
ce qui représente une tiche considérable. J’aimerais égale-
ment ajouter que je partage son opinion a savoir que la
septiéme session extraordinaire de I’Assemblée générale a
lancé un mot d'encouragement politique afin qu'on colla-
bore a I’échelle mondiale & I'élaboration d'une stratégie
d’ensemble se fondant sur les besoins de 'humanité. Cela
dit, jaimerais poser trois questions au ministre, ou peut-
étre que je les réunirai en une seule, bien qu’elles puissent
lui paraitre prématurées, mais il pourra y répondre a une
date ultérieure s’il juge qu'il est un peu tét pour y répondre
maintenant.

Le ministre est-il d’avis que la quatriéme réunion de la
CNUCED constitue une étape critique dans l'application
pratique des propositions plutot générales contenues dans
l'accord atteint a la session extraordinaire et qu’elle est
critique au niveau des relations entre les pays industriali-
sés et les pays en voie de développement; dans l'affirma-
tive, peut-il nous dire quels sont les préparatifs du Canada
en vue de cette rencontre? Est-il d’avis qu’il s’agit la d'une
étape critique et troisiémement, cette question est peut-
étre prématurée, mais jaimerais entendre la réponse du
ministre a ce sujet—est-ce que le Canada, dans le réle de
constructeur de ponts, je crois, ou quelque chose du genre,
qu’il s’est donné, a songé a prendre une initiative considé-
rable dans la quatriéme réunion de la CNUCED? Je pour-
rais peut-étre ajouter, que le Canada, en partie a cause de
sa position, a titre de pays exportateur et industrialisé
important, peut, selon moi et selon le ministre, collaborer
dans une grande mesure au succés de ce qui est a mon avis,
le prochain chapitre principal dans I'élaboration de l'en-
semble de cette stratégie.

M. MacEachen: Monsieur le président, je n’hésite pas a
dire que selon moi, la réunion de la CNUCED qui aura lieu
le printemps prochain, en mai, je crois, sera une étape trés
importante de ce processus. Lors de la réunion de New
York, on a indiqué clairement que la plus importante étape
qui suivrait la septiéme session extraordinaire serait la
quatriéme réunion de la CNUCED, mais j'ai tendance a
croire que la réunion qui aura lieu le mois prochain,
c’est-a-dire la Conférence internationale sur la coopération
économique, sera importante, et aidera a former des opi-
nions susceptibles d’avoir des répercussions lors des réu-
nions du GATT, de la CNUCED, du FMI et ainsi de suite. Il
semble donc s’agir 1a d'une opération qui se prépare a
divers endroits dont l'un des plus importants sera la
CNUCED.

En quoi consistent nos préparatifs? Comme je I'ai déja
dit, il existe un Comité interministériel dirigé par M.
Robinson qui a déja commencé, si j'ai bien compris, a se
préparer en vue de la quatriéme réunion de la CNUCED.
M. Robinson se prononcera sur la question au moment
opportun et il sera en mesure de vous fournir des explica-
tions plus précises sur la facon dont fonctionne le proces-
sus interministériel. Cependant, lors de la septiéme session
extraordinaire, nous avons entendu des représentants des
autres ministéres et il est clair que dans ce domaine a
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nology and monetary questions, it involves Finance and
Trade and Commerce, and unless they are with us and
moving with us, we will not be able to make progress. That
is why we have this interdepartmental—it is because it is
an interdepartmental necessity that we have set up this
committee. So they are working.

Do you want to make any comments on that, Miss
McDougall?

® 1630
Miss Pam McDougall (Director General, Bureau of
Economic and Scientific Affairs, Department of Exter-
nal Affairs): Perhaps I might say, Mr. Brewin, that the
agenda for UNCTAD has really only in the past six weeks
or two months been settled. That is not to say that the
important issues have not been clear for a long time, but
the way in which these were going to be addressed at
UNCTAD IV will depend to some extent on the form of the
agenda, and also to a very great extent on what happened
at the Seventh Special Session, the sort of movement
forward that was made there. On what will happen during
the preparatory meetings leading up to UNCTAD IV, the
committee on commodities which will be meeting, the
UNCTAD trade and development board which will be
meeting, what we have to do in our preparatory process,
basing ourselves on the now-established agenda, is to look
at the issues and try to see what kind of initiative Canada
can take, either individually or on a multilateral basis. I
rather suspect it is more apt to need to be on a multilateral
basis because this is an area where individual initiatives
do not really produce all that much result, I do not believe.
As we get closer to UNCTAD IV we will be able to judge
the nature of initiatives that can be taken.

I would like to emphasize one of the points the Minister
made, and that is that we cannot look at UNCTAD IV in a
vacuum. All the other things that are developing at the
same time, and particularly the commissions which will
probably be set up under the conference on international
economic co-operation, will have a very strong effect on
what happens in Nairobi.

The Chairman: This will be your last question, Mr.
Brewin.

Mr. Brewin: That is all.
The Chairman: Mr. Marceau
M. Marceau: Merci, monsieur le président.

Comme nouveau membre du Comité des affaires exté-
rieures, je suis heureux de me retrouver en présence du
ministre et de lui demander, a titre de premiére question,
d’expliciter un peu ce qu'il mentionne au paragraphe 2 de
sa déclaration:

. notre patrimoine culturel francais et notre carac-
tére bilingue ont trouvé leur expression dans la créa-
tion d'un programme d’aide en faveur des pays de
I’Afrique francophone. Ce secteur a pris une expansion
considérable a la suite des projets de développement
qui ont été proposés par la mission Chevrier en 1968.

J'aimerais que le Ministre me précise davantage quels sont
ces développements considérables qui ont été réalisés et
quelles sont ses perspectives d’avenir en ce qui concerne le
développement dans ce secteur francophone. J'aimerais
qu'il me dise quelle proportion environ du budget est
allouée aux secteurs francophones.

[Interprétation]

multiples dimensions qui comprend le commerce, la tech-
nologie et les questions financiéres, le ministére du Com-
merce et des Finances a un réle a jouer et, 8 moins qu'il ne
nous accorde son concours, il nous sera impossible d’avan-
cer. Voila pourquoi on a créé ce comité interministériel; on
I’a créé a cause d’un besoin véritable. Déja le Comité est a
T’ceuvre.

Y

Auriez-vous quelques remarques a ce sujet, mademoi-
selle McDougall?

Mlle Pam MacDougall (directrice générale, Bureau des
affaires économiques et scientifiques, ministére des
Affaires extérieures): Peut-étre devrais-je dire, monsieur
Brewin, que 'ordre du jour de la CNUCED n’a été mis au
point que depuis six semaines ou deux mois. Cela ne veut
pas dire qu’on n’a pas détecté les questions importantes
depuis longtemps; c’est plutot la facon dont on les abordera
a la CNUCED IV qui dépendra quelque peu du genre
d’ordre du jour, mais aussi, en grande partie, de ce qui s’est
passé a la septiéme Session Extraordinaire, donc du pro-
grés qui s’y est fait. Cela dépendra aussi de ce qui se fera
durant les réunions préparatoires a la CNUCED IV et & la
réunion du comité des denrées. La commission pour le
commerce et le développement de la CNUCED doit aussi se
réunir. Ce que nous devons faire dans ce processus de
préparation, nous fondant sur 'ordre du jour maintenant
établi, c’est d’examiner les questions et de voir quelle
initiative pourra prendre le Canada, soit seul ou sur une
base multilatérale. Je crois que nous devrons agir sur une
base multilatérale, parce que je ne crois pas que ce soit un
domaine ou les initiatives individuelles donnent vraiment
de bons résultats. A mesure qu'approchera la CNUCED IV,
nous pourrons voir le genre d’initiative a prendre.

Je voudrais insister sur un point qu’a souligné le minis-
tre, c’est-a-dire que nous ne devons pas considérer la
CNUCED IV hors contexte. Tout ce qui se fait ailleurs et
particuliérement dans les commissions qui seront sans
doute établies par la conférence pour la coopération écono-
mique internationale, influencera d’une facon importante
ce qui se passera a Nairobi.

Le président: C'est votre derniére question, monsieur
Brewin.

M. Brewin: C’est tout.
Le président: Monsieur Marceau.
Mr. Marceau: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

As a new member of the Committee for External Affairs,
I am happy to see the Minister here, and to ask him, as a
first question, to clarify what he has mentioned in para-
graph 2 of his declaration:

. our French cultural heritage and our bilingual
character are expressed in the establishment of this
aid program for francophone countries of Africa. This
area has grown considerably as a result of the develop-
ment programs which were proposed by the Chevrier
mission in 1968.

I would ask the Minister to explain further what were the
great developments which were carried out and what are
the prospects for the future regarding the development in
this francophone area. I would like him to tell me what
portion of the budget has been allocated to the franco-
phone areas.
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Mr. MacEachen: Thank you very much, Mr. Marceau,
for your comments about my presence at the Committee.
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In a sense, in our aid program we have reflected not only
our own domestic interests. For example, we have, as a
country, been quite involved. We are a member of the
Commonwealth, we have become involved in Common-
wealth countries, and it seemed to be a natural thing for
Canada to do. And it was equally natural for us to reflect
our own cultural and linguistic composition by becoming
actively involved in francophone Africa. It is in a sense a
projection or a reinforcement of our own domestic cultural
policy. But it is basically an aid program. I visited West
Africa this year, I visited two anglophone and two franco-
phone countries and one bilingual country, and we are
active in all these.

Some of the projects that had been launched as a result
of the Chevrier mission were in full flower this year. For
example, I think it was as a result of the Chevrier mission
that we developed the institute at Yaounde for the treat-
ment of handicapped children under the leadership of
Cardinal Léger. That is a tremendously important project
in response to the incidence of polio still prevalent in the
Cameroons. The institute, which is modern in every way,
was literally taken out of the bush, and children come
there. That is one. I think the library at Abidjan, which I
visited, was a much-mentioned subject and it is the pride
and joy of the leaders of that country. I believe the radio,
the television educational program in the Ivory Coast was
another that came out of the Chevrier mission. These are a
number. We could get the exact details. Mr. Williams tells
me that 20 per cent of our bilateral budget is directed to
francophone Africa. We are heavily involved in Africa
because it corresponds to the thrust of our program that we
assist the poorest countries and certainly in Africa are to
be found the poorest countries in the world.

M. Marceau: Monsieur le ministre, le Canada assistera,
semble-t-il & la conférence des 27 nations consommatrices
et productrices a Paris, en décembre. Celle-ci fait suite a
une premiére séance préparatoire qui s’est révélée infruc-
tueuse et a laquelle le Canada ne fut pas invité, entre les
principaux pays producteurs et consommateurs de pétrole
en avril. L'une des principales pierres d’achoppement, sem-
ble-t-il, a été le refus des Etats-Unis d’accéder aux deman-
des des producteurs voulant que le débat porte sur un plus
grand éventail de produits et de questions de
développement.
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Les Etats-Unis ont maintenant accepté cette proposition.

Ma question au ministre est la suivante: quelle importance

le ministre accorde-t-il a cette conférence spéciale et com-

ment est-elle reliée au dialogue permanent qu'un groupe

plus important de pays a lancé dans les organisations
internationales, par exemple, L'ONU?

Ma seconde question: Etant donné que le Canada ne sera
sans doute pas invité a la réunion préparatoire spéciale des
pays occidentaux en France, la semaine prochaine, adop-
tera-t-il & la conférence des 27 nations une position plus
individualisée qu’il ne l'aura fait autrement? Et enfin,
notre pays a-t-il un role spécial a jouer étant donné la place
improtante qu’il occupe comme consommateur et comme
producteur de matiéres premiéres?

[Interpretation]

M. MacEachen: Merci bien, monsieur Marceau, pour vos
bonnes remarques au sujet de ma présence a ce comité.

Au fait, notre programme d'aide ne refléte pas seulement
nos intéréts propres. Par exemple, nous, en tant que pays,
nous sommes trés engagés. Nous sommes membres du
Commonwealth; donc nous sommes engagés avec les pays
du Commonwealth, et cela nous semble tout a faite naturel
pour le Canada. Et il nous a également semblé naturel de
refléter nos composants culturels et linguistiques en nous
engageant envers I'Afrique francophone. En ce sens, c'est
un prolongement de notre politique culturelle intérieure.
Mais, c’est fondamentalement un programme d’aide. J'ai
visité I’Afrique de 'Ouest cette année, j'ai visité deux pays
anglophones, deux pays francophones, et un pays bilingue;
partout, nous sommes actifs.

Quelques-uns des projets qui ont été lancés apres la
mission Chevrier sont en pleine voie d'épanouissement
cette année. Par exemple, je pense que c’est a la suite de la
mission Chevrier que nous avons ouvert, a Yaounde, I'ins-
titut pour les soins aux enfants handicapés, sous I'égide du
cardinal Léger. C'est 1a un projet trés important vu les
ravages de la polio au Cameroun. Cet institut, tout a fait
moderne, a été créée a méme la forét, et les enfants s’y
rendent. Et ce n’est 1 qu'un seul projet parmi tant d’au-
tres. La bibliothéque d’Abidjan, que j'ai visitée et qui est
souvent mentionnée, fait la joie et ’honneur des dirigeants
de ce pays. Je crois que le programme d’éducation a la
radio et a la télévision en Cote-d’'Ivoire découle aussi de la
mission Chevrier. Il y en a plusieurs. Nous pourrions vous
donner de plus amples détails. M. Williams me dit que 20 p.
100 de notre budget d’aide bilatérale est destiné a I'Afrique
francophone. Nous sommes lourdement engagés en Afrique
parce que cela répond au but de notre programme d’aider
les pays les plus pauvres et sirement qu'en Afrique, nous
pouvons trouver les pays les plus pauvres du monde.

Mr. Marceau: Mr. Minister, it seems that Canada will be
attending a conference of 27 consumer and producing
nations in Paris, in December. Seemingly this was a sequel
to a rather unfruitful first preparatory session, at which
Canada was not invited, between the main oil consuming
and producing countries, in April. It would seem that the
main stumbling block was the refusal of the United States
to agree to the demands of the producers who wanted the
discussions to bear on a greater range of products and on
questions of development.

The United States have now accepted this proposal. My
question to the Minister is as follows: how important does
the Minister consider this special conference to be, and
how is it linked to the on-going dialogue that a larger
group of countries has begun in international organiza-
tions such as the United Nations?

My second question is as follows: in view of the fact that
Canada will undoubtedly not be invited to the special
preparatory meeting of Western countries in France to
take place next week, will it adopt a more individual
position than it has in the past at the 27-nation conference?
And finally, does our country have a special role to play,
given the important position it holds as a consumer and a
producer of raw materials?
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Mr. MacEachen: I think the importance of the meet-
ing—it is now called the Conference on International Co-
operation growing out of the effort of a producer-consumer
dialogue at the meeting of the International Energy
Agency last December, I believe, when Doctor Kissinger
put forward, as I recollect, the notion of additional com-
missions dealing with raw materials and energy. There are
two more. I think they are financial institutions, and
international . ..

A witness: Energy, raw materials, development, and
financial and monetary issues.

Mr. MacEachen: This will be, I think an important
meeting in the context of the consumer-producer dialogue.
As you have stated, the oil producers and the developing
countries wanted to broaden the dialogue to include other
raw meterials. I believe it is obvious that is happening and
other raw materials are in play. At the United Nations they
will be in play at this particular conference. There will be
27 countries, we understand, of which 8 are industrialized
countries, and will be one of the 8. We will be presenting
our own point of view. We have, as you have pointed out, a
stake in many aspects, but, in so far as oil is concerned, we
have very important interests that we will want to pro-
mote at that conference. Canada will be expressing its own
opinion and we never expected to express anyone else’s
opinion if we had been invited and if we are invited to the
Economic Summit. We believe we have a point of view that
ought to be expressed at the International Conference and
at the Economic Summit, and we will not necessarily be
reflecting the opinion of the United States. If our interests
are parallel, then we will be taking the same view. If not,
we will not. I think it would be unfortunate for us if we
are not at the Summit because we have our own point of
view to put forward.

Mr. Marceau: This will be my last question, Mr. Chair-
man, and it is a short one.

Vous avez parlé, monsieur le ministre, de I'atmosphére
de conciliation qui existe actuellement au sein des réu-
nions internationales.
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Est-ce que vous croyez que cette atmosphére est stable et
qu'elle va durer? Est-ce que vous pourriez me dire, par
exemple, quels sont les sujets les plus dangereux pour
compromettre cette atmosphére de cordialité et de dialogue
qui semble prévaloir depuis quelque mois?

Mr. MacEachen: I think the atmosphere was improved
at the Seventh Special Session because both the developing
and the developed countries realized that what had hap-
pened at the previous session was getting nowhere, that
the confrontation had led to futility, and if there were
further confrontation at the Seventh Special Session, it
would have led to even greater frustration and a greater
poisoning of the international atmosphere at a time when,
it seemed to me, one of the main international objectives
was to co-operate to provide for resumed economic growth.
The change in the atmosphere, I think, was evident at the
meeting of the non-aligned and at the Organization of
African Unity when political questions such as the Middle
East were treated in a less rhetorical way than they had
been. Who knows what new problems will arise? Who
knows what new debates will be provoked at the General

[Interprétation]

M. MacEachen: Je pense que I'importance de cette réu-
nion, qui s’appelle maintenant la Conférence sur la coopé-
ration internationale, découle des efforts faits pour enta-
mer un dialogue entre les producteurs et les
consommateurs lors de la réunion de I’Agence internatio-
nale de I’énergie en décembre dernier lorsque M. Kissinger
a posé le concept de commissions supplémentaires pour
s'occuper des matiéres premiéres et de I’énergie. Il y en a
deux autres. Je pense que ce sont des institutions financie-
reset...

Un témoin: L’énergie, les matiéres premiéres, le déve-
loppement et les questions financiéres et monétaires.

M. MacEachen: Je pense que cette réunion sera impor-
tante dans le contexte du dialogue entre les consomma-
teurs et les producteurs. Comme vous l'avez déclaré, les
producteurs de pétrole et les pays en voie de développe-
ment ont voulu élargir ce dialogue pour inclure d’autres
matiéres premiéres. A mon avis, il est évident qu'il y a bien
d’autres matiéres premiéres en jeu. Elles seront certaine-
ment en jeu hors de cette Conférence spéciale des Nations-
Unies. Vingt-sept pays, dont huit pays industrialisés, vont
participer a la conférence et nous serons parmi ces huit
pays. Nous allons présenter notre propre point de vue.
Comme vous 'avez signalé, bien des questions nous tou-
chent de prés, mais en ce qui concerne le pétrole, nous
avons des intéréts trés importants que nous voudrions
promouvoir a cette conférence. Le Canada va exprimer sa
propre opinion et nous n'avons jamais eu l'intention d’ex-
primer l'opinion de quelqu’un d’autre si I'on nous avait
invités et si I'on nous invite au «Sommet économiquey.
Nous croyons que nous avons un point de vue qui devrait
étre exprimé a la Conférence internationale et au «Sommet
économique» et nous n’allons pas nécessairement réfléter
I'opinion des Etats-Unis. Si nos intérts sont communs, nous
allons adopter des positions voisines. Sinon, nous pren-
drons position seuls. Je pense qu'il serait malheureux de ne
pas assister a cette conférence au sommet car nous avons
notre propre point de vue a exprimer.

M. Marceau: J'ai une derniére question bréve a poser,
monsieur le président.

Mr. Minister, you mentioned the atmosphere of concilia-
tion which now exists at international meetings.

Do you believe that this atmosphere is stable and that it
will last? For example, could you tell me what the most
dangerous topics are that might compromise this atmos-
phere of cordiality and dialogue which seems to have
prevailed for some months now?

M. MacEachen: Je pense que cette atmosphere s’est
améliorée lors de la septiéme session extraordinaire parce
que les pays développés et les pays en voie de développe-
ment se sont rendu compte que ce qui s’est passé lors de la
derniére session ne nous avait pas fait avancer; que la
confrontation était futile, et que si la méme chose se
répétait lors de la septiéme session, la frustation serait
accure et l'ambiance internationale serait encore plus
empoisonnée justement au moment ou 'un des principaux
objectifs internationaux était la collaboration en vue d'une
reprise économique. Je pense que le changement d’atmos-
phére a été évident lors de la réunion des pays non-alignés
et au sein de 'Organisation de 'unité africaine car on y a
traité des questions politiques comme le Moyen-Orient
d'une facon beaucoup moins rhétorique qu'auparavant. Qui
sait quels nouveaux problémes vont surgir. Qui sait quels
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Assembly? I think there is a fair chance that this interna-
tional atmosphere can be maintained.

M. Marceau: Merci, monsieur le ministre.

The Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Laprise, and then Mr.
Macquarrie.

M. Laprise: Monsieur le ministre, j'ai lu avec plaisir la
déclaration que vous venez de nous présenter. Il y a un
point en particulier qui a attiré mon attention a savoir
lorsque vous énumérez les taches que le Canada a décidé
d’entreprendre au cours des prochaines étapes, en vertu de
l’aide apportée aux pays en voie de développement. Je
constate que le Canada concentrera son aide dans un
nombre limité de pays. Je ne sais pas exactement comment
le Canada distribuait son aide dans le passé. Mais je pense
que dans un pays aussi restreint que le Canada, un grand
pays mais une petite population, méme si on réussit a
atteindre 0.7 p. 100 de notre produit national brut, il reste
que c’est encore, vis-a-vis des 77 pays sous-développés ou
en voie de développement, un montant qui peut paraitre
insignifiant. Je pense que I'idée de limiter notre aide a un
certain nombre de pays peut apporter de meilleurs
résultats.

Tout ceci pour savoir si vous avez des consultations avec
les autres pays qui, comme le Canada, apportent de l'aide
aux pays sous-développés, afin de ne pas doubler I'aide
qu’on peut apporter, si vous voulez, a certains pays et de
s’assurer que certains pays ne soient pas négligés dans
I’aide accordée par ’ensemble des pays.

I1 faudrait que chaque pays du Tiers monde soit d’Afri-
que, soit d’Asie, soit d’Amérique latine ou soit des Antilles,
recoive sa part d’aide des pays plus fortunés. C’est pour-
quoi j'aimerais savoir quelle négociation se fait entre les
pays pour déterminer le genre d’aide et la destination de
laide que chaque pays doit apporter. J'aimerais aussi
savoir exactement dans quelle partie du monde le Canada
va concentrer ses activités au cours des prochaines années.
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Mr. MacEachen: Mr. Chairman, Canada determines for
itself the destination of its own aid. A part of the aid is put
into multilateral institutions. I believe you will notice in
the strategy review that we hope to increase the amount of
multilateral assistance, through multilateral agencies,
because it is an efficient way of distributing aid. We hope
to increase that.

When it comes to direct bilateral aid the decision is ours,
although we certainly consult with other countries, both
formally and informally. There is a committee of develop-
ing countries of the OECD which meets and exchanges
views on aid questions, on what is happening in the aid
field, and no doubt we are influenced by these discussions.
In some cases, Mr. Laprise, we participate with other
countries in a single development project in a developing
country; or we may participate with the World Bank in a
sparticular project. At times a number of countries will
come together to support one particular project in a de-
veloping country. So we do have a good deal of consulta-
tion, but we make the decisions.

[Interpretation]

nouveaux débats seront provoqués a I’Assemblée générale?
Je pense qu’il est toutefois possible que cette atmosphére
internationale se maintienne.

Mr. Marceau: Thank you, Mr. Minister.
Le président: Merci. M. Laprise suivi de M. Macquarrie.

Mr. Laprise: Mr. Minister, it was with pleasure that I
read the statement that you have just presented to us.
There is one special point which attracted my attention,
namely, when you list the task which Canada has decided
to undertake in the next few stages, with regard to aid to
the developing countries. I note that Canada will concen-
trate its aid in a limited number of countries. I do not
know exactly how Canada distributed its aid in the past,
but I think that in a country like Canada with so large an
area and so small a population, even if we reached the goal
of .7 per cent of our gross national product, that amount
might still appear insignificant to the 77 underdeveloped
or developing countries. I think that the idea of limiting
our aid to a certain number of countries may have better
results.

What I would like to know is whether you have consult-
ed the other countries which, like Canada, give assistance
to the underdeveloped countries to ensure that aid to
certain countries is not doubled and that some countries
are not neglected by the aid-giving countries as a whole.

Every country in the Third World, whether in Africa,
Asia, Latin America or the West Indies, must receive its
share of aid from the more fortunate countries. That is
why I would like to know what negotiations have taken
place between the countries in order to determine the type
of aid that each country is to give and the pruposes for
which it is ti be used. I would also like to know exactly in
what part of the world Canada intends to concentrate its
activities over the nex few years.

M. MacEachen: Monsieur le président, le Canada déter-
mine lui-méme la destination de son aide. Il en accorde une
partie aux institutions multilatérales. Vous remarquerez
stirement, dans ’examen de la stratégie, que nous espérons
accroitre le montant de 'aide multilatérale, par I'entremise
d’organismes multilatéraux, puisqu’il s’agit 1a d’'un moyen
efficace de répartition. Nous espérons accroitre cette por-
tion de notre aide.

Pour ce qui est de l'aide bilatérale, nous sommes libres
de prendre nos décisions, bien que nous consultions certes
d’autres pays, officiellement et officieusement. Il existe un
comité des pays en voie de développement de 'OCDE, qui
se réunit pour permettre I’échange d’opinions au sujet de
l'aide qu'on leur accorde, sur ce qui se passe dans ce
domaine, et il ne fait aucun doute que ces discussions nous
influencent. Dans certains cas, monsieur Laprise, nous
collaborons avec d’autres pays a un seul projet d’expansion
dans un pays en voie de développement; nous pouvons
également collaborer avec la Banque mondiale dans le
cadre d'un projet donné. Il arrive parfois qu'un bon
nombre de pays appuient ensemble un projet spécial dans
un pays en voie de développement. Il y a donc un niveau
élevé de consultation mais c’est nous qui prenons la
décision.
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In the strategy review there is a definite commitment
that our aid will be designated for a limited number of
countries. That is basically a planning objective—to ensure
that we have the maximum possible concentration,
through limiting our aid to a definite number of countries.
That is very difficult; I think I have learned that because
there are so many demands, and it is difficult to delete
countries that are presently receiving aid. But the idea is
to limit rather than to increase the number, and we hope
that some countries will graduate from our program.

For example, Nigeria has been a recipient of capital,
financial aid, from Canada. We have stated that in the
future we will confine our aid to technical assistance, for
which we hope Nigeria will pay. They have agreed to that.
In fact, when I was in Nigeria they made it clear that
because of their increased revenues from oil, they hoped to
be free from requiring aid from us except in technical
assistance, and maybe they will pay for it.

In that way, we may be able to reduce the number of
countries in order to concentrate. It is obvious that we
cannot do a good job in all the developing countries.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): A final ques-
tion, Mr. Laprise.

M. Laprise: Une derniére question, oui?

Lorsque, dans un pays ol nous apportons notre aide, il se
produit des bouleversements assez importants—je pense
par exemple au Bangladesh—quelle est l'attitude du
Canada a ce moment-1a? Est-ce que l'aide est arrétée en
attendant que le pays se stabilise ou bien est-ce que l'aide
du Canada peut étre changée de place? Est-ce qu'on peut
changer notre fagon de les aider a ce moment-l1a?

Mr. MacEachen: In the case of Bangladesh we have
continued our program. In one country that comes to mind,
we are more or less out of that country because of what we
regarded as an unsettled condition within that country,
that our officers were unable to perform their work effec-
tively and we have in a sense suspended the development
of new programs.
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The political situation would affect us in the sense that

if we cannot work, if we cannot get projects underway,

then of course we would not operate, but that has not
occurred in Bangladesh.

The Vice-Chairman: Before we go any further, before
we hear from Mr. Macquarrie, is it the intention of the
Committee to adjourn at five o’clock, which is our normal
adjournment time? I realize that Mr. Munro and Mr. Mac-
Donald also have their names on the list, but the Minister
has indicated that he will be back at some future date.

Mr. Roche: Can he stay until 5.15 p.m.?
The Vice-Chairman: All right. Mr. Macquarrie.

Mr. Macquarrie: I liked the address of the Minister, the
remarks, and especially the word “fora”. I thought today as
I thought at the time of his visit to Africa and his perfect

linguistic balance that Mackenzie King might in fact not
be dead.

[Interprétation]

Dans I'examen de la stragégie, il est clair que notre aide
sera destinée 4 un nombre limité de pays. Il s’agit 14 en
principe d’'un objectif de planification afin d’assurer le
plus de concentration possible, en limitant notre aide a un
nombre limité de pays. Cela est trés difficile puisqu’il y a
tellement de demandes et qu’il n’est pas aisé de rayer de la
liste des pays qui bénéficient habituellement de notre aide.
Cependant, il s’agit de limiter le nombre plutét que de
l'augmenter, et nous espérons que certains pays sauront se
passer de notre programme.

Par exemple, le Nigéria recevait des capitaux, de l'aide
financiére, du Canada. Nous avons déclaré qu’a l'avenir
nous leur accorderons notre aide uniquement sur le plan
technique, et nous espérons que le Nigéria nous rémuné-
rera de nos services. Le Nigéria a accepté. En fait, lorsque
je suis allé au Nigéria, on m’a assuré qu’étant donné la
hausse des revenus de ce pays, grace a son pétrole, il
espérait pouvoir se passer de notre aide, sauf sur le plan
technique, et peut-étre que nous serons rémunéreés.

Nous pourrons peut-étre ainsi réduire le nombre de pays
afin de concentrer nos efforts. Il est évident que nous ne
pouvons faire du bon travail dans tous les pays en voie de
développement.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Une derniére
question, monsieur Laprise.

Mr. Laprise: One last question, yes?

When important changes occur in a country receiving
our assistance—Bangladesh for instance—what is Cana-
da’s attitude? Is our assistance halted until the country
stabilizes itself, or can we transfer our assistance some-
where else? Can we change our way of helping them at
that time?

M. MacEachen: Dans le cas du Bangladesh, nous avons
poursuivi notre programme. Il y a un pays auquel je pense
dont nous nous sommes pratiquement retirés car les condi-
tions étaient a ce point incertaines que nos agents n’étaient
plus en mesure de faire leur travail efficacement; nous
avons donc suspendu la mise en ceuvre de nouveaux
programmes.

La situation politique nous touche dans la mesure ou
nous ne pouvons pas travailler, dans la mesure ou nous ne
pouvons pas mettre nos projets en ceuvre, mais cela n’a pas
été le cas au Bangladesh.

Le vice-président: Avant de poursuivre, avant d’enten-
dre M. Macquarrie, je vous demande si vous avez l'inten-
tion de lever la séance a 17 h 00; c'est I'’heure habituelle. Je
sais bien que MM. Munro et MacDonald ont également leur
nom sur la liste mais le ministre nous a déja prévenu qu'il
reviendrait.

M. Roche: Peut-il rester jusqu'a 17 h 15?
Le vice-président: Trés bien. Monsieur Macquarrie.

M. Macquarrie: J'ai beaucoup aimé le discours du minis-
tre, ses observations, en particulier lorsqu’il a prononcé le
mot «fora». Comme je 'avais déja pensé au moment de sa
visite en Afrique, devant sa parfaite maitrise linguistique,
j'ai pensé que Mackenzie King n’'était peut-étre pas mort.
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I am not going to comment on the line the Minister has
dealt with so well. I am, with him, positive about recent
developments in this government and in this field—only in
this field, mind you—and in the world. I am a little leery
that perhaps in all our excitement and self-satisfaction
over new concepts and new tactics we might just forget
that it is the same old world.

I want to direct the Minister to one area that is very
important to me, and not just because of one of their basic
products. That is the Commonwealth Caribbean area. I
notice there is a meeting of officials next week to discuss
situations following the agreement of the Lomé Conven-
tion. I am wondering how far our thinking has gone
toward a weakening of the special relationship with the
Commonwealth Caribbean, which as every schoolboy
knows is the oldest area in the world as far as Canada’s
special interest is concerned. The document here refers to
the 1925 agreement, but of course there were trade agree-
ments as long ago as 1911.

I have always regarded this area as one where Canada
may prove itself as very effective in the field of aid. I
understand that from some of the larger countries we are
doing a bit of a withdrawing. I am wondering about the
reaction to that, and I am wondering if, in terms of some of
the new formulae, we are going to be extending our assist-
ance to the smaller communities, these very small com-
munities whose political and economic viability is most
precarious even at best. I am just wondering if before this
gathering with our people, the Minister and his people
have thought along these lines as to where Canada is going
in reference to this very important area.

Mr. MacEachen: Mr. Chairman, we do have, as Mr.
Macquarrie has mentioned, quite an active program in the
Caribbean. In various countries of the Caribbean it seems
to me we are doing a great deal in, for example, the field of
transportation, the field of education, and agricultural and
fisheries development. Obviously that will continue for
some years into the future because of the economic deve-
lopmental requirements of the Caribbean. Happily there is
some upward increase in per capita income in the Carib-
bean and it is to be hoped that at some future time the per
capita income of countries in the Caribbean will rise to the
point where at least some of the countries will not be areas
of concentration for Canadian assistance, that we will be
able to adapt our programs to changed economic circum-
stances, and that we will have increasing economic rela-
tions with the Caribbean in supplement and perhaps in the
future in substitution for the aid relationship. But that is
not imminent. I think it is worth mentioning that in the
Caribbean, because you can only ascribe it partially to the
reasons mentioned by Mr. Macquarrie, we have the highest
per capita amount spent of any geographic area in the
world. We put in $20 million in 1974-75. That would be even
an important sum in Prince Edward Island, certainly in
Hillsborough.

Mr. Macquarrie: Yes.
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Mr. MacEachen: Next week we are having a meeting
with Caribbean officials to attempt to update our economic
relations with them. We will begin discussions with them,
I suppose, based on the Canada-West Indies Trade Agree-
ment and try to update that. Discussions will begin next
week and continue presumably at a later period. That is

[Interpretation]

Je ne reviendrai pas sur les observations parfaitement
judicieuses du ministre. Tout comme lui, je suis convaincu
des résultats positifs obtenus récemment par le gouverne-
ment dans ce domaine—dans ce domaine seulement, je le
précise—et dans le monde. Pourtant, je crains un peu que
dans cette ambiance d’autosatisfaction et d’euphorie face a
de nouveaux principes et de nouvelles méthodes, nous
n’oublions que cette vieille terre n’a pas changé.

Je voudrais revenir avec le ministre a une région qui me
semble trés importante, et pas seulement a cause de sa
production de base. Il s’agit des Antilles du Common-
wealth. Je sais que la semaine prochaine une réunion aura
lieu pour discuter de la situation a la suite des accords de
la Convention Lomé. Je me demande dans quelle mesure
nous avons accepté un affaiblissement des relations spécia-
les qui nous unissent avec les Antilles du Commonwealth;
en effet, comme tous les écoliers le savent, c’est, historique-
ment, la premieére région avec laquelle le Canada ait entre-
tenu des relations. Il s'agit dans ce document d’'un accord
datant de 1925, mais des accords avaient été signés des
1911.

J’ai toujours considéré que 'aide canadienne devait étre
particuliérement efficace dans cette région. Je sais que
nous avons tendance a nous retirer des pays les plus
grands. Je me demande quelles ont été les réactions et si,
dans le cadre de la nouvelle formule, nous allons apporter
notre aide aux communautés les moins importantes, ces
communautés dont la viabilité politique et économique est
extrémement précaire dans le meilleur des cas. A 'occasion
de cette réunion, le ministre et ses colléegues ont probable-
ment réfléchi tout particuliérement a la situation cana-
dienne face a cette région extrémement importante.

M. MacEachen: Monsieur le président, comme M. Mac-
quarrie ’a mentionné, nous sommes tres actifs dans les
Antilles. Dans plusieurs pays des Antilles, nous faisons
beaucoup, par exemple dans le domaine des transports, de
I’éducation, du développement agricole et du développe-
ment des péches. Le développement économique de ces
pays exigera que nous poursuivions ces efforts pendant
plusieurs années encore. Heureusement, les Antilles con-
naissent actuellement une augmentation du revenu par
habitant et 'on peut espérer que, pour certaines villes du
moins, ces augmentations nous permettent d’'ici quelque
temps de réduire le volume de notre aide et d’adadpter nos
programmes a de nouvelles circonstances économiques;
nous pouvons également espérer pour l'avenir remplager
notre aide par de nouvelles relations économiques. Mais
cela n’est pas pour demain. Notons qu’aux Antilles, le
volume de notre aide est plus élevé par habitant que dans
toute autre région géographique du monde. En 1974-1975,
nous avons versé 20 millions de dollars, somme importante,
méme pour I'Ile-du-Prince-Edouard et en tout cas pour
Hillsborough.

M. Macquarrie: Oui.

M. MacEachen: La semaine prochaine, nous rencontrons
les représentants des Antilles pour essayer de mettre a jour
nos relations économiques. Le point de départ de nos dis-
cussions sera probablement 'accord commercial Canada-
Antilles que nous allons essayer de réviser. Les discussions
commengeront la semaine prochaine et se poursuivront
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my general response to your question. If you have any
other points, I will try to deal with them.

Mr. Macquarrie: I do.

The Vice-Chairman: I am afraid we have two more
questioners. Thank you very much, Mr. Macquarrie. Mr.
Munro and then Mr. MacDonald.

Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): I might start with a
plea and then ask my couple of questions.

Since our attitude towards the developing countries, let
us say, is moving from one position to another now, for a
very good set of reasons, I do think it is most important to
know where we have been so that we know where we are
going. And in this connection I urge upon the Minister
most sincerely my wish that his officials look with kind-
ness upon the questions that I have put on the Order
Paper. There are many questions. But it does give us where
we are now and we must know to what degree we want,
can and should shift from one form of looking at the
developing world to another attitude towards it.

Having said that, I would like to turn to page 3 of your
statement, Mr. Minister, the second paragraph, where you
mention the concentration on the poorest countries, and
you touched on it briefly in your reply to a question from
Mr. Pelletier, I think it was, or Mr. Laprise, when you said
that it is obviously not easy to shift or to pull back from
where you now are and to concentrate more heavily on one
set of countries, that there are ongoing programs, and it
looks as though you are discriminating by dropping them
off the list because there are other more needful cases.
Well, all resources are finite, I think, and we have to do
what we can in the best way we know how. But I refer to
the second portion, “and concentrate on the poorest group
within those countries”.
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This has been a problem facing the development assist-
ance programs of all countries.

Is that just put in because the officials wanted, or we
wanted, to put on a good show? How do you do that? Are
there any practical plans at all for ensuring that the poor-
est groups within those countries are those to whom we
direct our attention? We have always been trying to do
that, but then we say we are under the constraints of doing
what the host government will permit us to do. Are there
any definite plans, any tactics, any strategy, that can be
revealed as to how that is going to be accomplished? It is a
very nice statement, I am glad to see it, but is it meaning-
ful? And how could it be made meaningful?

A third element, if I might just put in, is that we have
been dealing, particularly in the new economic order,
thinking, in economic terms; and I wonder when we are
going to get around to the position of dealing with those
other countries who are not as highly developed as we are,
of recognizing that there is a contribution which all coun-
tries can make to one another, in the cultural sense, with a
view to enhancing and increasing the degree of interna-
tional understanding.

[Interprétation]

probablement & une date ultérieure. Je vous ai donné une
réponse générale, si vous avez d’autres questions, j'essaie-
rai d’y répondre.

M. Macquarrie: Effectivement.

Le vice-président: Malheureusement, nous avons encore
deux noms sur notre liste. Merci, beaucoup, monsieur Mac-
quarrie. M. Munro, puis M. MacDonald.

M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Une requéte, pour
commencer, puis une ou deux questions.

Puisque nous sommes en train de modifier notre position
envers les pays en voie de développement pour d’excellen-
tes raisons, il me semble primordial de savoir ol nous en
sommes pour savoir ou nous allons. Et pour cette raison, je
prie instamment le ministre et ses collégues d’accueillir
favorablement les questions que j’ai inscrites au feuilleton.
I1 y en a plusieurs mais cela ne nous dit pas ol nous en
sommes et nous devons absolument savoir dans quelle
mesure nous voulons, nous pouvons et nous devons modi-
fier notre position envers le monde en voie de
développement.

Cela dit, je vous raméne a la page 3 de votre déclaration,
monsieur le ministre, au second paragraphe; vous avez
parlé de la concentration des efforts sur les pays les plus
pauvres et vous étes revenu sur la question en répondant a
M. Pelletier, ou bien a M. Laprise; vous avez dit qu'’il
n’était pas facile de faire marche arriére dans certains pays
et d’essayer de concentrer nos efforts sur certains autres,
car cela vous obligeait 4 abandonner des programmes per-
manents pour d’autres plus urgents, ce qui peut ressembler
a une certaine forme de discrimination. Bien sir, nos
ressources ne sont pas infinies et nous devons faire tout ce
que nous pouvons dans la mesure de nos moyens. Je vous
rappelle le second paragraphe: «concentrer nos efforts sur
les plus pauvres de ces pays».

C’est un probléme auquel se sont heurtés tous les pro-
grammes d’aide au développement dans tous les pays.

A-t-on déclaré cela simplement parce que les représen-
tants officiels, ou nous-mémes, voulions faire bonne
impression? Comment procéder? Quelle garantie avons-
nous que ce sont les groupes les plus pauvres de ces pays
qui bénéficient de notre attention directe? Nous avons
toujours essayé de parvenir a ce résultat mais, bien sar,
nous avons pour argument que nous devons nous soumet-
tre aux restrictions qui nous sont imposées par les gouver-
nements de ces pays. Existe-t-il des méthodes, des straté-
gies, des plans qui nous indiqueraient la fagcon dont on a
Iintention de procéder? C’est une trés jolie déclaration, je
suis heureux de la lire, mais quelle est sa signification?
Dans quelle mesure peut-elle étre significative?

En troisiéme lieu, reconnaissons que nous avons vu la
situation, particuliérement a I'’époque d’'un nouvel ordre
économique, en termes économiques. Je me demande
quand nous arriverons enfin a reconnaitre que nous devons
faire quelque chose pour tous les autres pays qui ne sont
pas aussi développés que nous, et 2 admettre que tous les
pays peuvent apporter une contribution a d’autres pays
dans le domaine culturel dans le but d’augmenter et de
promouvoir la compréhension internationale.
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I am thinking of such things as the Shastri Institute,
about which one of the officials here today knows a good
deal more than I do. It is that sort of thing, an exchange, so
that we can understand the history, origin, mores, present
philosophy, present attitudes of foreign countries. Is it not
time that we embark into a scheme, not just of saying, we
will help you, but they can help us? With our financial
assistance, they can bring to us some of their intellectuals,
if you like, on a long-term basis to give us an insight into
their motivations—maybe that is the best word I can use to
bring it all together. Has any thought been given in this
line as well: first, the poor countries—how do you get to
the poorest groups in countries?—and then, making the
recipient countries, as they now are, feel that respect
which they ought to have, knowing that they have some-
thing to offer to us and helping them offer it to us?

Mr. MacEachen: Mr. Chairman, the question raised by
Mr. Munro is obviously to some extent conditioned by the
country programs themselves but, as he has pointed out, in
developing priorities in a particular country, one has to
take into account the views of the recipient country, and
that is obviously an over-all conditioning or constraint.
But I believe that we are attempting to focus on such
global problems as agriculture and rural development.
That is one focus, or one emphasis, one priority, that came
out of the World Food Conference loud and clear.

While it is impossible for us to say, you must develop
rural industries, or you must get away from industrializa-
tion and do agriculture, nevertheless I think it is possible
for us to make it clear that we are more inclined to, and
will support, agricultural programs or programs designed
to increase food production than we will others.

I think in that way we can have an influence; and I think
it is possible, in talking to and planning with developing
countries, to make our priorities at least known to them,
that we are more likely to help in that direction. I know
that in my own case, in looking at projects that come
forward, I am justified, in some cases, only on the grounds
that they are taking place among the poorest parts of the
country. For example, I do not think Brazil would be
regarded as the poorest country in the world. It is a
developing country with which we have had an aid rela-
tionship. But certainly I would, in approving any projects
for that country, insist that the projects take place in the
Northeastern part of Brazil where you find the poorest of
the poor. We have some ability to influence the situation,
obviously, in the selection of our projects, in the concentra-
tion on these sectors of food, agriculture and public health,
to really get at the poorest. I am glad you say you think it
is good. I think it is good. I think others might say it is not
good because we ought to be reinforcing . ..

Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): I am criticizing pro-
grams because they were not.
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Mr. MacEachen: We ought to be reinforcing the success-
ful or the better off. Pardon?

Mr. Brewin: So that they give us more business.

[Interpretation]

Je pense en particulier a I'Institut Shastri que I'un de vos
collégues, ici présent, connait beaucoup mieux que moi. Ce
genre d’échange est indispensable pour nous conduire a
mieux connaitre I'histoire, l'origine, les mceurs, la philoso-
phie et les attitudes actuelles des pays étrangers. N'est-il
pas temps de déclarer: oui, nous pouvons vous aider, mais
vous aussi pouvez nous aider? En échange de notre assis-
tance financiére, ces pays pourraient nous mettre en con-
tact avec leurs intellectuels, ce qui nous permettrait, a long
terme, de mieux connaitre leur motivation, c’est probable-
ment le meilleur terme que je puisse utiliser. A-t-on songé
a cela également, que les pays pauvres viennent en pre-
mier, qu’il importe avant tout de toucher les groupes les
plus pauvres dans ces pays, mais qu’ensuite nous devons
leur donner I'importance qu’ils méritent en leur faisant
comprendre qu’ils ont quelque chose a nous offrir et en les
aidant & nous 'offrir?

M. MacEachen: Monsieur le président, la question posée
par M. Munro est bien sir, dans une certaine mesure,
conditionnée par les programmes de ces pays eux-mémes;
or, comme il I’a souligné, devant les priorités de développe-
ment d’un pays particulier, nous devons tenir compte du
point de vue de ce pays et cela nous impose des limites.
Pour l'instant, nous essayons de centrer nos efforts sur des
problémes globaux comme l'agriculture et le développe-
ment rural. C’est le point important, la priorité absolue qui
s’est dégagée sans le moindre doute de la Conférence mon-
diale sur I’Alimentation.

Nous ne pouvons pas dire a ces pays qu'ils doivent
développer leurs industries rurales ou abandonner I'indus-
trialisation en faveur de I'agriculture mais, par contre, je
pense que nous avons la possibilité de leur faire compren-
dre que nous soutiendrons beaucoup plus volontiers les
programmes agricoles, les programmes visant a augmenter
la production alimentaire, que les autres.

C’est donc une influence que nous pourrons exercer et je
pense que lorsque nous discuterons de planification avec
les pays en voie de développement, nous pourrons du
moins leur faire connaitre nos priorités, leur dire que nous
apporterons plus volontiers notre aide dans ce sens. Je sais
que pour ma part, certains projets qu’on me propose me
semblent justifiés uniquement dans la mesure ou ils tou-
chent les régions plus pauvres d’un pays. Par exemple, je
ne pense pas qu’'on puisse considérer le Brésil comme un
des pays les plus pauvres du monde. C’est pourtant un pays
en voie de développement avec lequel nous entretenons des
relations d’aide. Par contre, si on me propose un projet
pour ce pays, je ne I'approuverai pas s’il ne s’applique pas
au Nord-Est du Brésil ou se trouve les plus pauvres d’entre
les pauvres. Par le choix de ces projets, par la concentra-
tion des efforts dans l’alimentation, l'agriculture et la
santé publique, nous pouvons bien sir influencer la situa-
tion et toucher les plus pauvres. Je suis heureux de vous
entendre dire que vous approuvez. J'approuve également.
Certains n’approuverons pas, pensant que nous devons
encourager . ..

M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Je critiquais vos pro-
grammes justement parce qu’ils ne font pas cela.

M. MacEachen: Nous devons encourager ceux qui réus-
sissent, ceux pour lesquels tout n’est pas perdu. Pardon?

M. Brewin: Ceux qui sont susceptibles de devenir des
partenaires économiques.
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The Vice-Chairman: Mr. Brewin, to the Chair, please.

Mr. MacEachen: Anyway, you have three more minutes
so I will try to be shorter.

The Vice-Chairman: All right. Mr. MacDonald.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): I realize there is a shortage
of time and the questions I wish to raise are ones which
obviously require some time to answer, so, with your
permission, I will give you the questions to allow them to
percolate to yourself and your officials. Hopefully, you can
get into some detail when you reappear.

Since your last appearance, and before the main Com-
mittee, two important developments have taken place, the
Commonwealth meeting with the new global order, and, of
course, the special session. Both of these have emanated in
very important documents, in which Canada has played a
very active role, I wish to know, particularly with the
document arising from the special session, in what way are
we beginning to work with this document? The great
difficulty, as I am sure you recognize, is that we gain
consensus with very inspiring language and esoteric goals,
then there does not seem to be any time frame, or mech-
anism that relates to the domestic responsibilities which
nations have. Obviously, Canada is one of the most highly-
developed countries in the world and as a major trader has
a great interest in and responsibility for implementation of
this.

I wonder whether the Department has already set up
some working group which is looking at the early
implementations of some of the easier consensus items
which are in the document. How we are handling the more
difficult aspects of it? Is the Department preparing or will
it be preparing some overall assessment? This would apply,
actually, to both documents. But I presume this is one that
we arrive at some consensus with all of the nations that
participated. It has some even greater importance for us.
Of course, we do play an active role, not only in the United
Nations itself, but in many of its agencies. I will be anxious
to have an answer on this.

In a related question, I am also concerned whether there
is any plan being evolved to bring in the various sectors of
the Canadian economy? My colleague, Mr. Roche, has men-
tioned the problems of other department: Finance, Indus-
try, Trade and Commerce, and others; to relate in some
way the sort of multi-dimensional approach that is pre-
sented in the five-year plan. I an concerned about other
aspects of the Canadian economy. Obviously, in an econo-
my such as ours, there are major inputs from industry and
labour, as well as the various provincial responsibilities
that exist.

Finally, I would be most anxious to know what kind of
preparations we are making in light of these documents in
UNCTAD because next spring in Nairobi, the UNCTAD
forum will be the next major occasion for our country and
others to respond to what I am sure will be many similar_
questions that will be raised and debated. I presume that
Canada, having taken and moved, really, its own position
quite substantially over the last few months, would not
want to lose any of that momentum. We will obviously
have to be prepared to deal with some of the more difficult
issues that we have not yet been able to solve, in the
context of UNCTAD IV.

[Interprétation]
Le vice-président: Monsieur Brewin, c’est au président
que vous devez vous adresser.

M. MacEachen: De toute fagon, il vous reste 3 minutes et
je vais essayer d’étre bref.

Le vice-président: Trés bien. Monsieur MacDonald.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Je sais bien que le temps nous
presse et les questions que je veux vous poser ne peuvent
faire 'objet d’'une réponse rapide; je vais donc me permet-
tre de vous les poser pour que vous ayez le temps de les
décanter, vous et vos collégues. Nous pourrons peut-étre
entrer dans les détails la prochaine fois.

Depuis votre derniére visite au comité principal, deux
événements importants ont eu lieu: la réunion du Com-
monwealth sur le nouvel ordre général ainsi, bien sir, que
la session extraordinaire. Ces deux événements ont été a
Torigine de la publication de documents fort importants
que le Canada a contribué activement & préparer. A propos
du document de la session extraordinaire, j’aimerais savoir
dans quelle mesure nous avons commencé a travailler a ce
document? La difficulté principale, vous devez en étre
conscient, est de nous mettre d’accord sur des objectifs que
I'on peut qualifier d’ésotériques dans un langage particu-
liérement significatif; de méme, il semble qu’aucun méca-
nisme, aucun plan n’ait été prévu quant aux responsabili-
tés individuelles des nations. De toute évidence, le Canada
est I'un des pays les plus développés du monde et, en tant
que nation commerciale importante, il a des responsabilités
et des intéréts particuliérement grands dans ce domaine.

Le ministére a-t-il déja chargé un groupe de travail
d’étudier les modalités d’application des mesures les moins
controversées du document? Comment avons-nous 'inten-
tion de faire face a ses aspects les plus complexes? Le
ministére prépare-t-il ou a-t-il I'intention de préparer une
évaluation générale? En fait, cela s’applique aux deux
documents. Mais je suppose que cet accord auquel nombre
de nations ont participé a une importance toute particu-
liére pour nous. Bien sir, nous jouons un réle actif, non
seulement aux Nations Unies proprement dites, mais au
sein d’'un grand nombre de ces organismes. Votre réponse
m’intéressera particuliérement.

Dans le méme ordre d'idée, je me demande si on a songé
a un plan susceptible de regrouper les différents secteurs
de I’économie canadienne? Mon collégue, M. Roche, a parlé
des problémes d’autres ministéres: les Finances, I'Industrie
et le Commerce, ainsi que d’autres; ces ministéres ont
quelque difficulté a se situer dans les rouages multidimen-
sionnels de ce plan quinquennal. D’autres aspects de 1’éco-
nomie canadienne m’inquiétent également. Bien siir, dans
une économie comme la notre, I'industrie et la main-d’ceu-
vre ont une participation importante de méme que les
diverses agences provinciales.

Enfin, je me demande ce que nous faisons, sur la base de
ces documents, pour nous préparer a la prochaine confé-
rence de la CNUCED qui se tiendra au printemps prochain
a Nairobi; c’est la prohaine occasion importante qu’aura
notre pays, au milieu d’autres, de répondre a4 un grand
nombre de questions qui seront soulevées et discutées. Je
suppose que le Canada, qui vient de réviser sa position en
profondeur au cours des derniers mois, aura a cceur de ne
pas laisser échapper ces occasions. Evidemment, nous
devons étre préts a envisager a la conférence de la
CNUCED les questions les plus difficiles que nous n’avons
pas encore réglées.
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I realize I have put quite a bit on your plate, Mr. Minis-
ter, but these are subjects which I hope we can get into in
some detail when you return with your officials.
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The Acting Chairman (Mr. Anderson): Thank you very

much, Mr. MacDonald, and thank you very much, members

of the Committee, for your forbearance in keeping within

the time limit. Mr. Minister, Mr. McDougall and Mr. Wil-

liams, thank you very much for appearing before us today,
with your usual wisdom.

I would like to mention that our next meeting will be on
Thursday, November 13 at 3.30 p.m. Mr. Robinson, the
Under-Secretary of State for External Affairs, will be
appearing.

The meeting is adjourned to the call of the Chair.

[Interpretation]

Je crois que je vous en ai donné beaucoup de sujets de
réflexions, monsieur le ministre, mais ce sont 1a des sujets
que j'espére nous voir aborder en détail a votre retour avec
vos hauts fonctionnaires.

Le président suppléant (M. Anderson): Merci bien,
monsieur MacDonald, et merci aussi a vous, messieurs du
Comité, pour avoir bien voulu respecter les échéances de
temps. Monsieur le ministre, mademoiselle McDougall et
monsieur Williams, nous vous remercions d’avoir comparu
aujourd’hui, évidemment, avec votre sagesse habituelle.

Je voudrais indiquer que la prochaine séance aura lieu le
jeudi 13 novembre a 15 h 30. M. Robinson, le sous-secrétaire
d’Etat aux Affaires extérieures, sera notre témoin.

La séance est ajournée, jusqu’a nouvelle convocation par
le président.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS PROCES-VERBAL

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 18, 1975 LE MARDI 18 NOVEMBRE 1975

(6) (6)

[Text] [Traduction]

The Sub-committee on International Development of the
Standing Committee on External Affairs and National
Defence met this day at 8:16 o’clock p.m., the Chairman,
Mr. Dupras, presiding.

Members of the Sub-committee present: Mr. Anderson,
Miss Bégin, Messrs. Breau, Brewin, Dupras, Gendron, Mac-
Donald (Egmont), Macquarrie, Marceau, Munro
(Esquimalt-Saanich), Prud’homme and Roche.

Other Member present: Mr. Landers.

Witness: From the Canadian International Development
Corporation: Mr. Paul Gérin-Lajoie, President.

The Sub-committee resumed consideration of its Order
of Reference dated July 3, 1975 relating to International
Development. (See Minutes of Proceedings, Tuesday, July 22,
1975, Issue No. 1).

The witness answered questions.

At 10:00 o’clock p.m., the Committee adjourned to the
call of the Chair.

Le sous-comité du développement international du
Comité permanent des affaires extérieures et de la défense
nationale se réunit aujourd’hui a 20 h 16, sous la présidence
de M. Dupras (président).

Membres du sous-comité présents: M. Anderson, Mue
Bégin, MM. Breau, Brewin, Dupras, Gendron, MacDonald
(Egmont), Macquarrie, Marceau, Munro (Esquimalt-Saa-
nich), Prud’homme et Roche.

Autre député présent: M. Landers.

Témoin: De ’Agence canadienne de développement interna-
tional: M. Paul Gérin-Lajoie, président.

Le sous-comité poursuit 1’étude de son ordre de renvoi
du 3 juillet 1975 ayant trait au développement internatio-
nal. (Voir procés-verbal du mardi 22 juillet 1975, fascicule n°
1).

Le témoin répond aux questions.

A 22 heures, le Comité suspend ses travaux jusqu’a
nouvelle convocation du président.

Le greffier du sous-comité

Christine Hamilton
Clerk of the Sub-committee
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[Text]

Le président: Ce soir, nous poursuivons 1’étude portant
sur le programme international d’aide et a cette fin, nous
avons le plaisir d’avoir avec nous le président de 'ACDI,
M. Paul Gérin-Lajoie.

As you know, this is the fifth meeting of the subcommit-
tee dealing with international development. Before we
proceed, I would like to express my appreciation to the
Vice-Chairman of the Committee, Hugh Anderson, for
replacing me so ably for the first four meetings of this
subcommittee while I was in India.

I understand, Mr. Gérin-Lajoie, that you have no ope-
ning remarks to make, but you would like to have the
members express their views. So, without any further ado,
I will invite Mr. Doug Roche to ask the first questions.

Mr. Roche: Mr. Chairman, when the Minister appeared
before the subcommittee several weeks ago, I had occasion
to indicate to him some comments on the strategy for
international development and co-operation, 1975-1980,
which I will not repeat now because the Minutes contain
my reaction, which was a positive reaction. When the
Minister appeared that very day, three members of Parlia-
ment who had been present as parliamentary observers of
the Seventh Special Session, Messrs. Andrew Brewin,
David MacDonald and myself made some comments about
our impressions of the Seventh Special Session and Cana-
da’s role at it. I think the Minutes also make clear our
belief that Canada must keep pressing forward in interna-
tional development co-operation and in implementing the
five-year strategy.

® 2015

So my questions tonight will be very brief in that regard,
bearing in mind that the president will be coming back,
Mr. Chairman, to the whole committee of external affairs
on Thursday of this week for consideration of the supple-
mentary estimates. At that time we might go into some
more detailed questions concerning the operation of CIDA.

Bearing in mind that the president’s appearance tonight
before the subcommittee has to do with the long-range
plans of CIDA in conjunction with the five-year strategy, I
want to begin by asking the president first of all, on the
question of food, how much of the one million tons that
Canada pledged for the year 1975 have been sent so far and
how much of it has been distributed multilaterally through
United Nations agencies.

Mr. Gérin-Lajoie: Mr. Chairman, at this stage we have
committed 592,000 tons to be sent on a bilateral basis out of
which 500,000 tons have been shipped already. The other
92,000 tons are to be shipped in November, December, and
early 1976 for a small balance.

Then another 408,000 tons have been commited multila-
terally with the World Food Program. To be more precise,
Mr. Chairman, I should say that 400,000 tons have been
committed through the World Food Program and 8,000 tons
for UNWRA.

EVIDENCE

(Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)
Tuesday, November 18, 1975

[Interpretation]

The Chairman: Tonight, we are resuming our study of
the international aid program and, to this end, we are very
pleased to welcome the Chairman of CIDA, Mr. Paul
Gérin-Lajoie.

Comme vous le savez, c’est la cinquiéme séance du sous-
comité qui s'occupe du développement international.
Avant de poursuivre, j'aimerais remercier le vice-président
du Comité, M. Hugh Anderson, de m’avoir remplacé pen-
dant les quatre premiéres séances de ce sous-comité alors
que j’étais en Inde.

Monsieur Gérin-Lajoie, vous n’avez pas de déclaration
d’ouverture, mais vous étes trés désireux d'entendre les
députés exprimer leur point de vue. J'invite done, sans plus
tarder, M. Doug Roche a poser les premiéres questions.

M. Roche: Monsieur le président, lorsque le ministre a
comparu devant le sous-comité il y a quelques semaines,
j’ai pu lui dire ce que je pensais de la stratégie de dévelop-
pement international et de coopération pour la période
allant de 1975 & 1980; je ne me répéterai pas puisque les
procés-verbaux témoignent encore de mes réactions qui
furent positives. Ce jour-la, trois députés qui avaient
assisté en tant qu'observateurs parlementaires a la sep-
tiéme séance spéciale, MM. Andrew Brewin, David MacDo-
nald et moi-méme ont fait part au ministre de leurs impres-
sions sur la septiéme séance spéciale et sur le role joué par
le Canada a cette occasion. Les procés-verbaux témoignent
également de notre désir de voir le Canada promouvoir la
coopération dans le domaine du développement internatio-
nal et appliquer la stratégie quinquennale.

Je passerai donc trés vite ce soir sur ces questions,
puisque le président doit venir cette semaine assister au
comité plénier des Affaires extérieures qui étudiera le
budget supplémentaire. Nous pourrons en profiter pour
aborder des questions plus détaillées au sujet de '’ACDI.

Puisque le président comparait aujourd’hui devant le
sous-comité pour étudier avec nous les plans a long terme
de ’ACDI dans le cadre de la stratégie quinquennale, je
commencerai par lui demander combien de millions de
tonnes de produits alimentaires ont été expédiées par le
Canada en 1975 et, dans quelle proportion la distribution
s’est faite multilatéralement par l'entremise des organis-
mes des Nations unies.

M. Gérin-Lajoie: Monsieur le président, jusqu’'a présent
nous nous sommes engagés a livrer 592,000 tonnes de pro-
duits alimentaires sur une base bilatérale; 500,000 tonnes
ont déja été expédiées. Les 92,000 tonnes restantes doivent
partir en novembre, décembre et au début de 1976 pour une
trés faible partie.

D’autre part, nous nous sommes engagés a livrer 408,000
tonnes d’aliments dans le cadre du programme mondial
d’aide alimentaire. Je précise, monsieur le président, que
400,000 tonnes sont destinées au programme d’aide alimen-
taire et 8,000 tonnes au programme d'urgence des Nations
unies.
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[Texte]

The shipments have not been completed yet, but arran-
gements have been completed for the shipments to take
place in the coming weeks and months.

An hon. Member: And on a bilateral basis, Mr. Presi-
dent, can you say which countries have had a priority for
receiving Canadian food?

Mr. Gérin-Lajoie: Mr. Chairman, I have in front of me
the total list of shipments per country. Tanzania, 19,000
tons already shipped; India, 250,000 tons; Pakistan 85,000
tons; Bangladesh, 130,000 tons; Sri Lanka 13,000 tons; Haiti,
3,000.

Then for shipments shortly in November, December and
early 1976, Ghana, 18,000, Tanzania another 14,000, Sri
Lanka another 10,500, Pakistan another 15,000 and the
Sahelian countries, 37.1.

® 2020
Mr. Roche: I thank him for that detail, Mr. Chairman. I
want to touch briefly on India. It is my understanding that
following the detonation of a nuclear device by India,
Canada cut back its nonfood aid to India. I want to know,
please, what the status of Canada’s aid to India now is, the
nonfood aid to India? Have we resumed or will we resume
this aid or what is the policy we are now following?

Mr. Geérin-Lajoie: The policy has not changed since the
nuclear explosion and the Canadian government decision
to “freese” the aid program for India. That means, in actual
practice, that non food aid has been implemented when
Canada was already committed, but Canada has made no
further commitment and has made no further planning
regarding nonfood aid.

I am sorry, Mr. Chairman, I said “regarding nonfood aid”
I should be more precise. It is nonfood aid, nonagricultural
development. What did not fall under the Cabinet decision
to freeze included both food aid and agricultural items. So
these have been going on.

Mr. Roche: Are we going to maintain the policy of
nonfood aid to India?

Mr. Gérin-Lajoie: The position has not changed, Mr.
Chairman.

Mr. Roche: I had an exchange of correspondence with
the Minister, following the publication of the five-year
strategy and the Seventh Special Session, which reaf-
firmed the new economic order, on the raising of public
opinion in Canada, and whether or not there could be a
series of seminars or some sort of public education pro-
gram run by the government to help Canadian people to
understand more clearly what is going on in the world:
what the new economic order is about and what the five-
year strategy is about.

The Minister replied that such public education pro-
grams should be under the sponsorship of CIDA. I would
like to know, Mr. Chairman, what CIDA is planning in the
way of public education programs for Canadians since I
premised my question on the conviction that it will be
impossible for the Canadian government to move ahead in
this regard without an acceleration of Canadian under-
standing and public opinion.

[Interprétation]

Les expéditions ne sont pas terminées mais toutes les
dispositions sont prises pour qu’elles aient lieu au cours
des prochaines semaines et des prochains mois.

Une voix: Dans le cadre de I'aide bilatérale, monsieur le
président, pouvez-vous nous dire & quels pays nous accor-
dons notre aide en priorité?

M. Gérin-Lajoie: Monsieur le président, j'ai sous les
yeux la liste compléte des expéditions par pays. Tanzanie,
19,000 tonnes expédiées; Inde, 250,000 tonnes; Pakistan,
85,000 tonnes; Bangladesh, 130,000 tonnes; Sri Lanka, 13,000
tonnes; Haiti, 3,000 tonnes.

Ensuite, des expéditions qui auront lieu en novembre,
décembre et au début de 1976: le Ghana, 18,000 tonnes; la
Tanzanie, 14,000 tonnes de plus; Sri Lanka, 10,500 tonnes de
plus; le Pakistan, 15,000 tonnes de plus; ainsi que les pays
du Sahel, 37.1 tonnes.

M. Roche: Je remercie le témoin de ces détails, monsieur
le président, je voudrais maintenant aborder la question de
I'Inde. J’ai cru comprendre que 'Inde ayant fait une expé-
rience nucléaire, le Canada a décidé de réduire son aide
non alimentaire a ce pays. J’aimerais savoir ou en est 'aide
non alimentaire du Canada a I'Inde? Avons-nous repris les
livraisons, avons-nous l'intention de le faire, quelle est la
politique a I’heure actuelle?

M. Gérin-Lajoie: Depuis '’explosion nucléaire, la politi-
que n'a pas changé et la décision canadienne de bloquer le
programme d’aide destiné a 'Inde tient toujours. En fait,
cela signifie que les engagements pris au préalable sont
toujours respectés mais que le Canada n’a fait aucune
planification nouvelle et pris aucun engagement nouveau
dans le domaine de l'aide non alimentaire.

Monsieur le président, excusez-moi, j’ai parlé d’«aide non
alimentaire», j’aurais di étre plus précis. Il s’agit de 'aide
non alimentaire, du développement non agricole. Le blo-
cage imposé par le Cabinet ne s’'applique pas a l'aide
alimentaire ni a l'aide au secteur agricole que nous
poursuivons.

M. Roche: Allons-nous conserver cette méme politique?

M. Gérin-Lajoie: Monsieur le président, notre position
reste inchangée.

M. Roche: J'en ai déja parlé au ministre par lettre a la
suite de la publication de la stratégie quinquennale, a la
suite de la Septiéme séance spéciale qui a confirmé le
nouvel ordre économique; nous avions parlé d’alerter 1'opi-
nion publique au Canada, nous nous étions demandé s'il
n’était pas possible d’organiser une série de séminaires
publics d’'information pour aider les Canadiens 4 compren-
dre plus clairement ce qui se passe dans le monde, pour
leur exliquer le nouvel ordre économique et la stratégie
quinquennale.

Le ministre m’avait répondu que c'était a 'ACDI de
parrainer des programmes publics d’information dans ce
domaine. Monsieur le président, je voudrais savoir ce que
I’ACDI a lintention de faire dans ce secteur. Je pars du
principe que le gouvernement canadien ne pourra aller de
I'avant dans ce domaine sans alerter I'opinion publique
canadienne.
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Mr. Gérin-Lajoie: Up to now Mr. Chairman, we have
concentrated our efforts mainly on supporting the efforts
of nongovernmental organizations throughout Canada.
There are public education or public participation pro-
grams which have existed for some time that we support
having in mind that particular objective.

We have also supported efforts like those of the Alberta
Provincial council for international development. I regret
that I cannot recall the exact name, but it is the council
bringing together all the nongovernmental organizations
in Alberta. It has existed for the past couple of years or so.
They had a six-week effort recently in which CIDA par-
ticipated and it was intended to make the Canadian people
in that province better aware of the various facets of
international development.

This is the kind of support that CIDA has given up to
now. On the other hand, we have now under elaboration a
communication program which would involve a number of
public consultations on a regional and national basis.

Mr. Roche: When are we going to start these?

® 2025
Mr. Gérin-Lajoie: No date has been set but it would be
some time during the winter time.

Mr. Roche: My final question, Mr. Chairman, has to do
with the .7 per cent of GNP for ODA. As you know, Mr.
Chairman, the Commonwealth report of the experts
recommended 1 per cent of GNP by 1980. Canada has not
accepted that, nor are we even close to .7 per cent of GNP
for this year, even though there has been an acceleration of
development assistance over the past few years. I want to
know if CIDA intends to keep pressing to reach 1 per cent
of GNP, in the philosophy enunciated by Robert McNama-
ra, President of the World Bank, who in making the case
that the new economic order demands greatly increased
aid as well as structural reform stated that the 1 per cent
target could be reached if the western industrialized
nations would agree merely to give 5 per cent of their
increased GNP from now to 1980, meaning that we could
retain 95 per cent of the increase of GNP but only 5 per
cent of the increase would bring us to 1 per cent. I think
the President is following my argument; it is a familiar one
in these circles. I want to know if CIDA is going to press to
reach 1 per cent, not be content with .7 per cent, and what
are you going to do about it.

Mr. Geérin-Lajoie: Well, Mr. Chairman, that is a matter
of government policy and the strategy of 1975-1980 which
has been published has the expression of a Canadian gov-
ernment policy in relation to international development
co-operation. The objective set is 0.7 per cent and, without
mentioning any target date, it is stressed that if the pro-
gram continues to grow at the pace of the last five years,
we would reach that target by 1979-1980.

I would like to say, more specifically in answer to Mr.
Roche’s question, that I do not think it is the responsibility
and role of an agency like CIDA really to push or to fight
for increased government spending, although this state-
ment might have to be qualified. We certainly have the
responsibility to put all the facts before our Minister, and
with the facts we have in CIDA we realize, of course, that
we should put the case before our Minister that the needs

[Interpretation]

M. Gérin-Lajoie: Monsieur le président, jusqu'a présent
nous avons avant tout essayé de soutenir les efforts des
organismes non gouvernementaux du Canada. Nous soute-
nons certains programmes d'information publique ou de
participation publique qui existent déja depuis un certain
temps.

Nous avons également encouragé les efforts d’organis-
mes tel que le Conseil provincial de I'Alberta pour le
développement international. Je ne me souviens pas du
titre exact mais il s’agit du Conseil qui regroupe tous les
organismes non gouvernementaux en Alberta. Il existe
depuis environ 2 ans et, tout récemment, il a entrepris,
avec la participation de I'’ACDI, une campagne de 6 semai-
nes destinée a faire comprendre aux Canadiens de cette
province les différents aspects du développement
international.

Voila ce que 'ACDI a fait jusqu’a présent. D’autre part,
nous sommes en train de préparer un programme de com-
munications qui comprendra un certain nombre de consul-
tations publiques, régionales et nationales.

M. Roche: Quand avez-vous l'intention de commencer?

M. Gérin-Lajoie: Aucune date n’'a été fixée mais nous
devrions pouvoir commencer cet hiver.

M. Roche: Monsieur le président, ma derniére question
porte sur les 0.7 p. 100 du PNB destinés au développement
international. Comme vous le savez, monsieur le président,
le rapport des experts du Commonwealth a recommandé
que l'on atteigne 1 p. 100 du PNB d’ici 1980. Le Canada n’a
pas accepté cette recommandation et nous sommes encore
loin des 0.7 p. 100 du PNB pour cette année en dépit d'une
certaine accélération de I'aide au développement au cours
des derniéres années. M. Robert McNamara, président de la
Banque mondiale a remarqué, alors qu’il observait que le
nouvel ordre économique exigerait une augmentation
importante de l'aide ainsi que des réformes structurales,
que l'objectif de 1 p. 100 pouvait étre atteint si les nations
industrialisées occidentales consentaient a donner 5 p. 100
de l'augmentation de leur produit national brut entre au-
jourd’hui et 1980; cela signifie que nous pourrions conser-
ver 95 p. 100 de 'augmentation du PNB et qu’en cédant 5 p.
100 seulement de cette augmentation, nous pourrions
atteindre 1 p. 100; ceci étant dit, 'ACDI a-t-elle I'intention
de faire en sorte que nous atteignions cette proportion de 1
p. 100 du PNB? Le président doit comprendre mon raison-
nement, il n’est pas nouveau dans ce domaine, je voudrais
savoir si ’ACDI a l'intention de se contenter des 0.7 p. 100
ou bien si elle s’efforcera d’atteindre le 1 p. 100.

M. Gérin-Lajoie: Monsieur le président, cela reléve de la
politique gouvernementale et, dans la stratégie pour les
années 1975-1980 qui vient d’étre publiée, la politique du
gouvernement canadien dans le domaine de la coopération
au développement international est expliquée. L'objectif
est fixé a 0.7 p. 100 et, bien qu'aucune échéance ne soit
précisée, on insiste sur le fait que le programme doit
continuer au rythme des cinq derniéres années. Cela nous
permettrait d’atteindre 1'objectif d'ici 1979-1980.

J'ajoute qu'il n’appartient pas a 'ACDI en tant qu'a-
gence de faire pression sur le gouvernement pour qu'il
augmente ses dépenses mais, cette position mérite peut-
étre certaines réserves. Nos responsabilités nous obligent
bien siir & exposer tous les faits & notre ministre et, étant
donné les faits dont nous disposons a I'ACDI, nous pour-
rions fort bien expliquer au ministre que les besoins dans
le monde sont extrémement pressants et que le Canada est
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of the world are very great and that Canada can contrib-
ute. In that way, of course, we push for an increased total
percentage of Canadian GNP being allocated for interna-
tional development co-operation. But perhaps the member
would like me to add this thought, which I have, that the
volume is indeed an essential aspect of international de-
velopment co-operation but that the conditions of that aid
and the way assistance is transferred to developing coun-
tries is as important as volume, in a way, because it is a
fact that, during the past 25 years, many industrialized
countries have provided financial support to developing
countries but with conditions, such that developing coun-
tries are now overburdened with a very serious debt prob-
lem, which Canada has not contributed towards creating.
On the contrary.

Perhaps I should stop there.

® 2030
Mr. Roche: Well, I will just make the final comment, Mr.
Chairman, that I believe it is the duty of CIDA to keep
pressing. I accept the argument that the quality of the aid
is every bit as important as the quantity, and I am not
making any anti-representation on quantity only, but
given the fact that in the Fourth World there are 35
countries with one billion people who need an increased
amount of aid over the next five years or the new economic
order will never mean anything to them, then I believe
that it is an absolute duty on the part of CIDA to keep
selling increased aid to the Canadian government and to
the Canadian people, and I am going to make a strong
representation on that behalf.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Roche.

Mr. Gérin-Lajoie: Mr. Chairman, perhaps you would
allow me to add a word about this. This intervention of Mr.
Roche takes place at a time when IDA, the soft loan arm of
the World Bank, is starting with a so-called replenishment
exercise.

IDA of the World Bank—that is the International De-
velopment Association—operates with funds supplied by
so-called donor countries on a no-interest basis for use by
the World Bank; or more or less on a no-interest basis, as
the World Bank charges % of one per cent as an adminis-
trative charge but no interest. There will be a meeting in
Paris next week of former donors and potential new
donors, and Canada will participate in that meeting. That
is only a first meeting, an exploratory one.

Perhaps the member would like me to say that we in
CIDA are concerned about the world conditions under
which that operation is starting. We in Canada are going
through this anti-inflation effort and other countries of the
industrialized world have their own inflation problems, as
well; and I may say that the question of volume which the
member has just raised brings to my mind the question of
the replenishment of IDA, which is a most important
operation for cooperation in international development, for
resource transfers to developing countries. I just express
the hope that the kind of intervention that has been made
by the member will be listened to not only in Canada but
in other parts of the world where, after all, wealth is more
abundant than in the Third World.

The Chairman: Thank you.

[Interprétation]

en mesure d'apporter sa contribution. De cette fagon, bien
sr, nous pourrions demander qu’'un plus grand pourcen-
tage du PNB canadien soit réservé a l'aide au développe-
ment international. J'ajouterai, si le député le permet, que
le volume de notre aide est bien sir un aspect essentiel de
l'aide au développement international mais que les condi-
tions de cette aide et les modes de transfert vers les pays
en voie de développement sont tout aussi importants que le
volume; en effet, depuis 25 ans un grand nombre de pays
industrialisés ont offert une aide financiére aux pays en
voie de développement mais dans des conditions telles que
ces pays ploient aujourd’hui sous de lourdes dettes que le
Canada n’a pas contribué a créer. Au contraire.

Je devrais peut-étre m’en tenir 1a.

M. Roche: Monsieur le président, en terminant j'observe
qu’a mon sens I’ACDI a le devoir de poursuivre la lutte. Je
sais bien que la qualité de l'aide est tout aussi importante
que la quantité et je ne veux pas me faire 'avocat d’'une
politique de la quantité mais puisque dans le quart monde
35 pays peuplés par un milliard d’hommes ont besoin d’une
aide sans cesse croissante pour les cinq années a venir si
nous voulons que le nouvel ordre économique leur soit
d’'une quelconque utilité, le devoir de 'ACDI est de faire
des efforts constants pour que le gouvernement canadien
et la population canadienne acceptent d’augmenter leur
aide; j’ai l'intention de défendre ce point de vue trés
fermement.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Roche.

M. Gérin-Lajoie: Monsieur le président, vous me permet-
trez peut-étre d’ajouter un mot. Au moment méme ou M.
Roche a fait cette intervention, 'ADI, la section des prix
spéciaux de la Banque mondiale entreprend un programme
destiné a remplir ses coffres.

L’ADI, de la Banque mondiale, c’est-a-dire I’Association
pour le développement international fonctionne grace aux
fonds fournis sans intérét par les pays donateurs. Pratique-
ment sans intérét, du moins, puisque la Banque mondiale
demande % de 1 p. 100 a titre de frais administratifs mais
pas d’intérét. La semaine prochaine a Paris se réuniront les
anciens pays donateurs et d’autres qui sont susceptibles de
le devenir; le Canada participera a cette séance. Il s’agit
d’une premiére séance de prise de contact.

J’ajoute, a I'intention du député, que I'ACDI s’inquiéte
des conditions mondiales dans lesquelles cette opération
est entreprise. Nous avons entrepris de lutter contre I'infla-
tion et d’autres pays du monde industrialisé se heurtent au
méme probléme d’inflation. Vous avez parlé du volume de
l'aide et cela m’a fait penser au remplissage des coffres de
I’ADI; c’est une opération primordiale pour 'aide au déve-
loppement international et pour les transferts de ressour-
ces aux pays en voie de développement. Et j'espére que ce
que vient de dire le député et ce que d’autres pensent de la
question sera écouté, non seulement au Canada mais dans
d’autres parties du monde qui jouissent d’'une abondance
que n'a pas le Tiers monde.

Le président: Merci.
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Mr. Brewin. Monsieur Brewin.
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Mr. Brewin: Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask Mr.

Gérin-Lajoie about a point that I have found frequently

discussed lately, which seems to me to be a very central

problem, and that is the question of whether effective

means are available to ensure that the aid which we give
reaches those who are in actual need of it.

Now I appreciate that some of the aid has to go, natural-
ly, to meet emergencies and I appreciate that we have said
we are going to concentrate on the least developed or
poorest countries. I presume the distributing agencies are
usually the governments of the recipient countries and I
notice as long ago as 1971 the predecessor of this Commit-
tee said that equitable distribution should be a primary
determinant of the type of development co-operation
engaged in Canada. I understand that naturally this is a
sensitive and difficult subject, but I have heard some
critics of the whole program say that a great deal of aid,
not just from Canada, but from other parts of the devel-
oped world, is siphoned off, as it were, by those who are
not in any great need. Is there any way, based upon CIDA’s
experience, by which we can effectively and properly put
pressure to assure that the methods of distribution in fact
get the aid to the people who are in the greatest need for
it? I understand in Bangladesh, which has been particular-
ly hard hit to some extent by disasters not of her own
making, that some food aid we pledged was conditional
upon the government of that country developing more
effective measures to get the food to those who need it.
Was this an exceptional thing or is it possible, without
being offensive to recipient countries, to make it clear that
our aid is directed at projects and people which will serve
the greatest actual need in the world rather than go to
people whose need is perhaps much less and whose power
is much greater?

Mr. Gérin-Lajoie: Mr. Chairman, I believe the question
should be answered, first, by making a distinction between
emergency aid or emergency relief on the one hand and
development assistance on the other part. The member
referred to Bangladesh and particularly to our food aid to
Bangladesh. This would fall, I should think, more under
the heading of emergency relief than development assist-
ance. In that case the means to make sure that our assist-
ance reaches those groups of the population which are in
the most acute need of it, is a very difficult challenge.

The member will recall that I headed a CIDA mission to
report back to our Minister. Last spring I was in Ban-
gladesh and I produced for the Minister a report which the
Minister has made public in which I made the point as the
result of my various observations, that on the whole I was
satisfied that Canadian aid and more generally foreign
food aid to Bangladesh was reaching those needing food,
although I explained at the time that this is a very complex
situation, that food aid goes into the global food, let us not
say reserves, but the whole food input of Bangladesh and
most of the food had to be distributed through commercial
channels, commercial channels which were controlled by
government through a ration system, and that only a rela-
tively small part of food aid was being distributed free of
charge by the government. That is one aspect and if the
member wishes to have more information on the emergen-
cy relief aspect I can provide some, but I might suggest
that how development assistance proper reaches the needy

M. Brewin: Monsieur le président, il est une question qui
a été fréquemment discutée derniérement et qui me semble
primordiale, celle de savoir si nous disposons de moyens
efficaces plur nous assurer que l'aide que nous donnons,
atteint ceux qui en ont le plus besoin.

Je sais bien qu’une partie de cette aide doit faire face aux
cas d’urgence et je sais bien que nous allons devoir concen-
trer nos efforts sur les pays les moins développés ou les
plus pauvres. J'imagine que ce sont habituellement les
gouvernements des pays bénéficiaires qui effectuent la
distribution. Dés 1971, le Comité qui a précédé celui-ci
déclare qu'une distribution équitable devrait déterminer
essentiellement le type d’aide au développement accordée
par le Canada. Naturellement, il s’agit 1a d'un sujet délicat
et difficile a la fois, mais j'ai entendu certains critiques du
programme dire qu'une grande partie de l'aide, celle qui
provient non seulement du Canada mais également des
autres pays industrialisés, est en quelque sorte aspirée par
ceux qui n'en ont pas le plus besoin. En se fondant sur
I'expérience de ’ACDI, y a-t-il un moyen d’exercer des
pressions efficaces et honnétes afin de nous assurer que les
méthodes de répartition aideront ceux qui en ont le plus
besoin? Si je comprends bien, on a ainsi accordé une aide
alimentaire au Bangladesh, pays qui a été particuliérement
touché par des désastres indépendants de sa volonté dans
une certaine mesure, sous réserve que le gouvernement de
ce pays mette au point des mesures plus efficaces en vue de
distribuer la nourriture a ceux qui en avaient besoin.
S’agissait-il 1a d’'une exception ou est-il possible, sans tou-
tefois offenser les pays bénéficiaires, de préciser que notre
aide est destinée aux projets et aux personnes qui en ont le
plus besoin, plutot qu’a ceux dont les besoins sont peut-
étre moindres mais dont le pouvoir est beaucoup plus
grand?

M. Gérin-Lajoie: Monsieur le président, pour répondre a
cette question il faut tout d’abord faire une distinction
entre les secours d’urgence d’une part et l'aide a l'expan-
sion d’autre part. Le député a parlé du Bangladesh et
notamment de notre aide alimentaire a ce pays. Il s’agit la
plutdt d’un secours d’urgence que d’une aide a I'expansion.
Dans un tel cas, faire en sorte que notre aide atteindra les
groupes de la population qui en ont le plus besoin, consti-
tue un rude défi.

Le député se souviendra que j'ai dirigé une mission de
I’ACDI chargée de présenter un rapport a notre ministre.
Au printemps dernier, je suis allé au Bangladesh et j'ai
rédigé un rapport a 'intention du ministre, que ce dernier
a rendu public. A la suite de mes diverses observations, j'ai
indiqué dans ce rapport que 'aide canadienne dans l'en-
semble et I'aide alimentaire étrangére accordées au Bangla-
desh en général étaient distribuées a ceux qui en avaient
besoin. Je lui ai cependant expliqué a I'époque qu'’il s’agis-
sait 1a d’une situation trés complexe, a savoir que 'ensem-
ble de l'aide alimentaire au Bangladesh était regroupée,
comment dire, non pas dans des réserves, mais pour l'en-
semble du pays et que la majeure partie de ces aliments
étaient ensuite redistribués par des voies commerciales
controlées par le gouvernement, grace a un rationnement,
et que seule une partie relativement faible de l'aide était
distribuée gratuitement par le gouvernement. Ce n’est la
qu’un aspect de la situation et si le député désire obtenir de
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people is the most important thing on a longer term basis.
In that respect this situation varies from country to coun-
try and from one type of assistance to another type of
assistance.
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When we do, as in the case of Haiti, proceed with
projects where the whole financial contribution of Canada
is being administered by Canadians, let us say for the
operation of a technical school in Haiti, for the develop-
ment of a regional development program or to make an
inventory of hydraulic resources, indeed the control of
Canadian funds is, I would think, totally loss-proof that it
reach the poor population. In the case of the technical or
trade schools, I believe, without hesitation, that it does
reach the needy people. In the case of the regional develop-
ment program it also deals with the population which is in
a very poor rural sector. With regard to the hydraulic
resources inventory, of course that is a more global and not
so direct type of impact on the poor population, but it is a
very important aspect indirectly because water supply for
all purposes is so important everywhere in the world. We
could give examples all over the world of that type of
intervention by Canada.

There are other types of intervention which involve
financing infrastructure projects. In those cases, of course,
the impact on the poor population is not so direct and
exclusive when we help to build airports, hydro-electric
dams or harbour equipment. The work is there as an
infrastructure to provide a country with the instruments
that will enable the economy of the country to work
properly and therefore to help the poor population in-
directly with the better-off population. However, that is
another type of intervention in which the impact on the
poor population is less direct, but I believe not less
important.

The Chairman: Do you have any further questions, Mr.
Brewin?

Mr. Brewin: No.
Le preésident: Monsieur Marceau.
M. Marceau: Merci, monsieur le président.

Je dois dire que je suis personnellement trés heureux de
rencontrer le président de ’Agence canadienne de déve-
loppement international et je profite de l'occasion pour le
féliciter pour son excellent travail dans des moments aussi
difficiles.

Monsieur Gérin-Lajoie, avec cette nouvelle stratégie qui
introduit de nouvelles orientations ou qui accentue cer-
taines tendances importantes du programme d’aide, il
semble que le Canada sera appelé a contribuer relative-
ment moins sous forme de préts, de travailleurs spécialisés,
de matériaux, d'équipement et de personnel d’administra-
tion, mais davantage sous forme de fonds, ce qui constitue
un pas vers un transfert plus spontané des ressources.

Pouvez-vous me dire si c’est une impression juste et s'il
s'agit d'une tendance générale dans les pays donateurs?
Egalement, par ce transfert plus spontané des ressources,
jusqu'a quel point le Canada pourra-t-il exercer un con-
trole de gestion? Comment pourra-t-il le faire?
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plus amples renseignements sur les secours d'urgence, je
pourrai lui en fournir. Permettez-moi cependant de dire
que la fagon dont l'aide au développement elle-méme
atteint ceux qui en ont besoin constitue I'aspect le plus
important du programme a long terme. Sur ce plan, la
situation varie d'un pays a l'autre et d’'un type d’'aide a un
autre.

Lorsque dans le cadre de certains programmes l'aide
financiére du Canada est entiérement administrée par des
Canadiens, comme dans le cas d’une école technique, en
Haiti, d’'un programme d’expansion régionale ou de 'inven-
taire des ressources hydrauliques, le contréle des fonds
canadiens garantit entiérement que l'aide sera distribuée
aux pauvres. En ce qui concerne les écoles techniques ou
commerciales, je puis dire sans hésitation que l'aide est
accordée a ceux qui en ont besoin. Quant au programme
d’expansion régionale, il s'adresse également aux habitants
des régions rurales trés pauvres. Pour ce qui est de I'inven-
taire des ressources hydrauliques, c’'est évidemment 1a un
domaine plus général et ses effets ne se font pas sentir
aussi directement sur la population pauvre, bien qu'indi-
rectement il s’agisse d’'un aspect trés important puisque
I'approvisionnement en eau est primordiale partout dans le
monde. On pourrait citer des exemples de ce type d’inter-
vention du Canada partout dans le monde.

I1 y a d’autres types d’intervention comportant le finan-
cement des projets d’infrastructures. Evidemment, les
répercussions sur la population pauvre ne sont pas aussi
directes et exclusives lorsque nous aidons a construire des
aéroports, des barrages hydro-électriques ou des installa-
tions portuaires. La tache est ici de doter un pays des
infrastructures qui permettront a son économie de s’épa-
nouir et par conséquent d’aider indirectement la popula-
tion pauvre ainsi que les mieux nanties. Toutefois, il s’agit
la d’'un autre type d’intervention dont les effets sur la
population pauvre sont moins directs mais non moins
importants.

Le président: Avez-vous d’autres questions, monsieur
Brewin?

M. Brewin: Non.
The Chairman: Mr. Marceau.
Mr. Marceau: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I must say that I am personally very pleased to meet the
President of the Canadian International Development
Agency and I take the opportunity to congratulate him for
his excellent work in such difficult times.

Mr. Gérin-Lajoie, with this new strategy introducing
new directions or emphasizing certain important tenden-
cies in the assistance program, it seems that Canada will
be asked to contribute relatively less as far as loans, skilled
workers, materials, equipment and management staff is
concerned, but more with respect to funds, which consti-
tutes a step towards a more spontaneous resources
transfer.

Can you tell me if my impression is correct and if that is
a general tendency in donor countries? Furthermore, by
this more spontaneous resources transfer, to what degree
could Canada control the management? How could Canada
achieve this?
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M. Gérin-Lajoie: Monsieur le président, la perception du
député est parfaitement juste. Il y a un point spécifique de
la stratégie, le point 13, qui se référe a la liquidité accrue
des transferts. La stratégie énonce, sous le point 13, les
raisons pour lesquelles les transferts de fonds devraient se
faire de fagon plus liquide et un peu plus automatique dans
I'avenir que dans le passé. Notamment parce que les pays
sont plus en mesure, et je parle de facon globale, les pays
sont plus en mesure aujourd’hui qu’il y a 10 ou 20 ans
d’administrer eux-mémes leur développement. Aussi les
pays ont développé un sentiment de fierté nationale plus
important qui s’oppose & une intervention étrangére, surt-
out une intervention étrangeére trop tatillonne, dans leurs
affaires internes. Nous croyons en outre que, pour une plus
grande efficacité, dans une agence comme I’ACDI, on ne
doit pas accaparer dans une mesure trop d’étendue des
pouvoirs administratifs qui soient une source de délai et
qui soient une source de frustration pour les pays avec
lesquels nous voulons coopérer. En somme nous croyons
qu’il faut conserver les controles a un degré minimum pour
satisfaire les exigences d’'une bonne administration des
fonds publics.

C’est une tendance qui se généralise dans le monde, pour
répondre a un autre aspect de la question du député, c’est
un aspect qu’il ne faut toutefois pas dissocier du reste de la
stratégie, reste de la stratégie ol l'on met I'accent sur la
nécessité de concentrer de plus en plus de ressources pour
contribuer aux efforts de reglement des grands problémes
mondiaux dans le domaine de I’alimentation, de la popula-
tion, I’éducation, la santé et autres problémes mondiaux
qui sont mentionnés notamment au point 7 de la stratégie.

Le dernier aspect de la question du député porte sur les
moyens de controle du Canada ou les moyens en somme de
nous satisfaire que les fonds canadiens utilisés a des fins
de coopération d’assistance aux pays en voie de développe-
ment sont vraiment utilisés a bon escient. Je pense que
dans '’ensemble ces moyens-la demeurent mais changent.
Ces moyens-la deviennent moins tatillons et je ferai, si les
membres du Comité me le permettent, une comparaison
avec ce qui se passe au Canada. Dans l'administration
fédérale canadienne il y a eu une certaine époque ou les
organismes centraux, Conseil du trésor, Commission de la
fonction publique et autres organismes centraux avaient
pour tache, de par la loi, de surveiller dans le détail l'ac-
complissement des fonctions par les différents ministéres.
Aujourd’hui ce qui a été accepté par le Parlement c’est que
les agences centrales sont la pour établir des lignes de
conduite générales, sont li pour suivre les facons de
procéder des ministéres dans les grandes lignes, mais sont
surtout 1a pour voir, du moins c’est devenu un aspect trés
important de leurs fonctions, de juger les ministéres selon
leur performance, c’'est-a-dire comment ont-ils utilisé les
pouvoirs en matiére de dotation, en matiére de contréle
quotidien des opérations financiéres.

Or, dans le cas des pays en voie de développement nous
visons a faire un peu la méme chose. Lorsqu’on accorde des
transferts relativement liquides aux pays en voie de déve-
loppement, par exemple, sous forme de ligne de crédit, on
met un crédit, disons de 25, de 50 millions de dollars a la
disposition d’un pays pour acheter au Canada des produits,
des produits qui, la plupart du temps, serviront a faire
fonctionner les usines ou serviront pour la distribution
d’engrais dans les pays en voie de développement. Alors a
ce moment-la nous laissons une grande latitude de fonc-

[Interpretation]

Mr. Gérin-Lajoie: Mr. Chairman, the member’s percep-
tion is perfectly correct. There is a specific point in the
strategy, point 13, dealing with the increasing liquidity of
transfers. Under Point 13 of the strategy, reasons are given
why the future transfer of funds should become more
“liquid” and a little more “automatic” than in the past.
Particularly because countries are better able, and I mean
globally, countries are more able today, than they were 10
or 20 years ago, to manage their own development. Also
countries have acquired a much greater sense of national
pride which resents any foreign intervention, particularly
an inefficient foreign intervention into their internal
affairs. Moreover, we believe, in order to gain more effi-
ciency in an agency such as CIDA, that we must avoid
being bogged down by administrative processes which
could become a source of delay and frustration for the
cooperating countries. In brief, we believe in maintaining
only sufficient controls as to satisfy the needs for good
administration of public funds.

And to answer another part of the question of the
Member, this is in fact a worldwide trend. It is an aspect,
however, that we must not isolate from the rest of the
Strategy, where the necessity to concentrate more and
more resources in order to contribute to the solution of the
great world problems in food, population, education, health
and other world problems, is emphasized, as mentioned
under Point 7 of the Strategy.

The last part of the member’s question deals with the
means of control Canada can use to satisfy itself that
Canadian funds destined for co-operative assistance to
developing countries are, in fact, used for such purposes. I
think that generally those means that we have are in
constant evolution. They are now more definite an less
niggling and if the Committee members will allow, I shall
make a comparison with what has occurred in Canada.
There was a time, in the Canadian federal administration,
when certain central organizations, such as the Treasury
Board, the Public Service Commission and other such
central agencies were tasked, by law, with the detailed
supervision of the accomplishment of tasks by the various
departments. Now, Parliament has accepted that these cen-
tral agencies should only establish general policy guide-
lines; follow generally the operations of the departments;
and that they are there really—and it has become an
important aspect of their role—to evaluate the perform-
ance of the departments, that is, to check the use of their
authority in the staffing function and in the everyday
control of financial operations.

We hope to apply the same system in developing coun-
tries. When we make transfers of cash resources to a
developing country, say in the form of a line of credit, we
place credits of say $25 to $50 million at the disposal of the
country, in order that it may buy, in Canada, products,
which will be used mostly in an industry or for the distri-
bution of fertilizers in developing countries. Then we give
great liberty of operation to that country, it is the country
which will buy its products in Canada using the available
bank credit. And it is only later that we will go to the

e —l




18-11-1975

Sous-comité sur le développement international §i11

[Texte)

tionnement au pays, c’est le pays qui vient acheter au
Canada en se servant du crédit bancaire que nous mettons
a sa disposition. Et c’est aprés coup que nous irons vérifier
si le pays a bien utilisé les fonds pour les fins auxquelles le
crédit était destiné et également voir dans quelle mesure il
y a eu une distribution des avantages de ces fonds dans
I’ensemble de la population. Et cela, nous croyons que nous
sommes de plus en plus en mesure de le faire par nos
propres observations sur place.
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Nous avons des missions, des ambassades dans bien des
pays; nous avons des fonctionnaires de ’ACDI qui vont
réguliérement sur place; nous avons méme des systémes
d’évaluation aprés coup et, aussi, nous profitons énormé-
ment des études qui sont faites par d’autres donateurs
bilatéruax ou, sur le plan multilatéral, par la Banque mon-
diale. La Banque mondiale fait des études méthodiques et
rigoureuses du comportement des pays en matiére de déve-
loppement. Et le résultat de ces études est a notre disposi-
tion et nous aide, a 'ACDI, dans la formation de notre
jugement sur la facon dont les pays en voie de développe-
ment utilisent I'aide qu’ils recoivent soit du Canada, soit
d’autres sources.

M. Marceau: Monsieur Gérin-Lajoie, est-ce que vous
pourriez me préciser quelles sont d’aprés vous l'impor-
tance, I'étendue et lefficacité de l'aide nouvellement
apportée par les pays producteurs de pétrole? Est-ce que
les entreprises d'aide coopérative de ces pays, qui sont
prévues dans la stratégie, se sont concrétisées?

M. Gérin-Lajoie: D’abord, monsieur le président, j'aime-
rais dire que les statistiques internationales indiquent que
les pays exportateurs de pétrole, les pays membres de
I'OPEP, contribuent trés substantiellement a l'aide inter-
nationale, au développement des pays moins bien nantis.
Effectivement, les déboursés faits par les pays de 'OPEP
au cours de 1974 représentent un pourcentage du produit
national brut qui se compare déja a celui du Canada et de
la moyenne des pays industrialisés. D’autre part, les enga-
gements pris par les pays de 'OPEP dans le domaine de
I'aide au développement dépassent largement les engage-
ments pris par les pays industrialisés. De mémoire, mon-
sieur le président, dans les pays industrialisés ou le niveau
des engagements et le niveau des déboursés sont mainte-
nant a peu prés les mémes, puisque nous avons atteint
collectivement un certain rythme de croisiére, les engage-
ments sont de l'ordre de 0.35 p 100 environ. Ce sont la les
statistiques du comité d'aide au développement de 'OCDE.
Dans le cas des pays de I'OPEP, les engagements d’assis-
tance au développement, pour des projets donc qui sont en
voie de planification mais qui ne sont pas encore en voie
d'exécution, sont, et je cite ce chiffre de mémoire, sous
toute réserve, mais il est quand méme assez juste pour que
je le cite, les engagements, dis-je, sont de 'ordre de 3 p. 100
du produit national brut.

Maintenant, je me dois, pour donner une image aussi
juste que possible, de dire que les contributions des pays
de I'OPEP, pour fin d'assistance au développement, sont
généralement concentrées dans un nombre de pays relati-
vement restreint, que 'aide des pays de 'OPEP est dirigée
principalement vers les pays amis, en majorité vers les
pays arabes, que les termes ou les conditions de cette aide
ne sont pas toujours aussi favorables que ceux accordés par
le Canada, par exemple des préts sans intérét ou des dons.
Mais selon les chiffres recueillis et par la Banque mondiale
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country and check that the funds have been used for the
purposes for which the credits had been granted and to see
also how well the funds have benefitted the population in
general. And this, we find we can do more and more easily
through on-the-spot observations.

We have missions, or embassies in a great number of
countries; we also have CIDA agents who regularly visit
these countries; we even have postevaluation systems and
finally, we benefit considerably from the studies which are
made by other bilateral donors, or multilaterally, through
the World Bank. The World Bank studies very methodical-
ly and very closely the behaviour of developing countries.
The results of these studies are available and are very
helpful in CIDA to evaluate the way in which developing
countries have used aid which they have received from
Canada or other sources.

Mr. Marceau: Mr. Gérin-Lajoie, could you give a little
more detail on the amount, the scope and the usefulness of
aid which has recently been brought to developing coun-
tries by the oil-producing countries? Have the co-operative
assistance undertakings of these countries which are, in
fact, included in the Strategy, materialized?

Mr. Gérin-Lajoie: First, Mr. Chairman, I want to note
that the international statistics show that the oil exporting
countries, the OPEC members, contribute to a great degree
to international aid, to the development of the poorer
countries. In fact, the funds provided by the OPEC coun-
tries during 1974, as a percentage of the gross national
product, compares favourably with that of Canada and the
average for industrialized countries. Moreover, the com-
mitments made by the OPEC countries, in the area of
assistance development, is by far greater than those made
by industrialized countries. Off the top to my head, Mr.
Chairman, the industrialized countries where the level of
commitments and the level of funds are now about the
same, since we all seem to have reached a certain cruising
range, the commitments are in the order of 0.35 per cent.
These are statistics from the Committee for Aid to De-
velopment of OECD. In the OPEC countries, commitments
of aid to development, for projects which are still in the
planning stage, are, and I say this off the top of my head
although it should be fairly accurate, the commitments are
in the order of 3 per cent of the gross national product.

Now, if I am to give you as accurate a picture as possible,
I must say that the contributions of OPEC countries, for
aid to development, are concentrated in a relatively small
number of countries; that aid from the OPEC countries is
generally aimed at friendly countries, allies, mostly Arab
countries; and that the terms and conditions relating to
this assistance is not quite as favourable as that granted by
Canada, in the form of gifts or interest-free loans, for
example. But according to the figures collected by both the
World Bank and by the Committee on Assistance to De-
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et par le Comité d’aide au développement, les engagements,
a toutes fins pratiques, en volume, pris par les pays de
I'OPEP sont de I'ordre de 3 p. 100 du produit national brut.
Est-ce que cela répond a la question? Le député, je pense,
s’est référé au point de la stratégie ou il est question de
coopération souhaitée entre le Canada et les pays produc-
teurs ou exportateurs de pétrole pour fin de partage du
financement de certains projets, c’est une formule dont
I’exploration est en train d’étre poussée plus loin et 'ACDI
fait les démarches nécessaires pour les mettre a exécution.

M. Marceau: Une derniére question, monsieur le
’ . q
président.
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I1 y a une question qui semble assez épineuse, et elle:

. consiste & déterminer quels pays parmi ceux qui
ont le plus besoin d’aide, feront le plus grand effort
pour venir en aide a leurs citoyens les plus
désavantagés . ..

dans quelles mesures ’ACDI juge-t-elle qu’un
éventuel pays receveur est apte a bénéficier de l'aide
canadienne, d’aprés les efforts de ce dernier pour
répartir équitablement les bénéfices du développement
et

. si pareils jugements sont portés, quel genre de
critéres utilise-t-on?
M. Gérin-Lajoie: Monsieur le président, je crois que c’est
la question la plus difficile qu'on puisse nous poser, vrai-
ment la plus difficile.

Comment évaluer, ce qu’on appelle en anglais le Commit-
ment to development d’'un pays, commitment transposé dans
les actions des pays? Je dois dire qu’il n’y a pas de moyen
satisfaisant entre nos mains a I’heure actuelle pour faire
cette évaluation, nous n'avons que des moyens insatisfai-
sants et incomplets que nous visons a améliorer. Et effecti-
vement, a l'intérieur de ’'ACDI, nous avons du personnel
qui travaille sur cette question, qui travaille non pas dans
I'isolement, bien au contraire, mais en liaison constante
avec les efforts du méme genre qui se font dans d’autres
régions du monde, y compris a la Banque mondiale.

Alors qu’est-ce que je pourrais donner comme renseigne-
ments plus complets au député et aux membres du Comité
a cet égard?

M. Marceau: Est-ce qu’il y a des solutions immédiates
envisagées dans le but d’améliorer ce choix et le rendre
plus efficace?

M. Gérin-Lajoie: Non, monsieur le président. Je vais
vous donner un exemple bien concret, jai dit que c’était
difficile, j’ai commencé par dire ¢a. Maintenant, méme si
c’est difficile, méme si nous n’avons pas de critéres absolus
a cet égard, nous avons quand méme certains indicateurs et
il est reconnu, non seulement au Canada, mais dans divers
organismes de développement que dans un pays comme
I'Inde par exemple, qui est un récipiendaire important de
I'assistance canadienne et d’autres pays, l'absence de
érforme agraire fait que la distribution de 'aide étrangére
ne se fait pas d’'une facon absolument satisfaisante. Il est
reconnu par exemple que les bienfaits de cette fameuse
révolution verte qui a produit des résultats notables ont
profité davantage aux grands propriétaires terriens plutot
qu'aux petits fermiers, parce que les grands propriétaires
terriens, premiérement avaient plus d'expérience, plus de
capacité d'utiliser les nouvelles méthodes et plus de res-
sources financiéres pour acheter les nouvelles semences et
les engrais nécessaires.

[Interpretation]

velopment, the commitments in volumes, of the OPEC
countries is in the order of 3 per cent of their gross
national product. Does that answer your question? I think
the member was referring to the section of the strategy
where it deals with the cooperation they would like to see
between Canada and the oil producing or exporting coun-
tries in the sharing of the funding of certain projects. It is
a formula which has been looked at very intensely and
CIDA is making the necessary arrangements to apply it.

Mr. Marceau: A last question, Mr. Chairman.

A rather sensitive question and I quote:

... consists in establishing which country among those
most in need of aid, will themselves try hardest to help
the most disadvantaged of their citizens. ..

... to what extent does CIDA judge the suitability of
potential aid recipients in terms of their efforts to
share the benefits of development equitably and con-
centrate on the segments of the population most in
need?

... if such judgments are made, what kinds of criteria
are used?

Mr. Gérin-Lajoie: Mr. Chairman, I believe that is a most
difficult question that you can ask us. Really, the most
difficult.

How do you evaluate the commitment to development of
a country, commitment being defined as the actions of the
country? I must say that we have no satisfactory way at
the moment to make such an evaluation, we have only very
unsatisfactory and incomplete ways which we are trying to
improve. In fact, in CIDA, we have a staff which is study-
ing this question, studying it not in isolation but rather in
liaison, in constant liaison with other areas of the world,
including the World Bank, who are also working in the
same area.

Then what kind of information can I give the members
on this subject?

Mr. Marceau: Do you have any immediate solutions
which could improve the effectiveness of this choice?

Mr. Gérin-Lajoie: No, Mr. Chairman. I will give you a
very good example, when I said it was difficult, I started
by saying that. Now, even if it is very difficult, even if we
do not have a firm criteria to base ourselves on, still we
have certain indicators, and it is recognized not only in
Canada but in other development organizations that in a
country like India, for example, which is an important
recipient of Canadian and other countries’ aid, the absence
of an agricultural reform is such that the distribution of
foreign aid is not absolutely satisfactory. It has been recog-
nized, for example, that the benefits of that famous “Green
revolution” which gave remarkable results, benefited the
large landowners more than the small farmers, because the
larger landowners had more experience, more ability to use
new methods and more financial resources to buy new
seeds and the necessary fertilizers.
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[Texte]

Alors voila une observation que nous pouvons faire,
méme si nous n'avons pas des critéres absolument rigou-
reux. Qu’est-ce que nous pouvons faire dans un cas comme
celui-la?
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Je dois vous avouer en toute candeur que c’est un faible
exemple que je donne, nous n’avons pas identifié de
moyens d’influencer le gouvernement indien, du moins
directement. Indirectement, je dois dire ceci: c’est surtout
par des interventions collectives que le Canada arrive a
faire dans un tel cas une intervention qui puisse avoir, a
relativement moyen terme, pas a court terme, quelque
effet. Intervention collective, j'ai en vue les réunions du
consortium de I'Inde sous I'égide de la Banque mondiale.
Ce consortium des pays donateurs se réunit une fois par
année depuis le premier jour ou I'Inde a eu des problémes
de remboursement d’emprunt, la Banque mondiale a réuni
les donateurs a la connaissance du gouvernement de 1'Inde,
pour discuter de la situation financiére et depuis lors ce
groupe de donateurs se réunit chaque année. A l'occasion
de cette réunion, les donateurs, et le Canada en particulier,
font valoir aux représentants du gouvernement de 1'Inde
que nous sommes disposés, comme pays, a continuer a
apporter une aide financiére et technique a I'Inde, mais
qu’il est important pour le gouvernement de ce pays de
prendre des dispositions pour attirer une distribution plus
équitable des retombées ou des effets de l'assistance au
développement qui produit une croissance économique en
Inde, croissance donc qui doit étre équitablement répartie.

Maintenant, quel résultat tout cela a-t-il donné? Ces
interventions répétées d’année en année? Eh bien, je pense
pouvoir dire des résultats relativement minces. La situa-
tion politique des pays n'évolue pas trés rapidement. En
Inde, on me dit que le Parlement est composé en majorité
de propriétaires terriens, alors on voit tout de suite la
difficulté de transformer les situations rapidement. Mais je
pense quand méme qu'il se prend certaines mesures et
d'aprés les renseignements qu’on a pu obtenir au cours des
derniéres semaines et des derniers mois, en dépit des diffi-
cultés politiques que I'Inde a eu a traverser sur le plan
interne, selon les nouvelles que I'on a, je pense qu’il y a une
certaine évolution favorable dans le sens d’une meilleure
répartition des bienfaits de la croissance économique. Mais
je ne veux pas donner l'impression d'une naiveté plus
grande que celle que j'ai, c’est un probléme qui demeure
non résolu, trés difficile, mais dont nous sommes trés
conscients.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Marceau. Mr. MacDonald.
Mr. Anderson: On a point of clarification, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Anderson.

Mr. Anderson: In the second last question of my col-
league he requested the OPEC countries’ aid to other Arab
nations. Did the figure you quoted, Mr. Gérin-Lajoie,
include aid for military hardware or was that merely for
development aid, because I understand that there is a
certain amount of military aid sent out by the OPEC
countries?

Mr. Gérin-Lajoie: I am not in a position to answer the
question. I do not know if military aid is excluded from
that figure or not. I do not have the information now.

[Interprétation]

So here is one assessment that we can make, even if we
do not have absolutely strict criteria. What can we do in
such a case?

I must admit in all sincerity that I gave you a weak
example. We have not identified any means to influence
the Indian government, at least directly. Indirectly, I must
say this: it is mainly through collective interventions that
Canada can make in such a case an intervention with a
medium term and not a short term impact. I have seen
some collective intervention, for instance the India consor-
tium meetings under the World Bank. This donor countries
consortium has been meeting once a year since the first
day when India had problems reimbursing its loan, and the
World Bank called a meeting of the donors with the knowl-
edge of India’s government to discuss its financial situa-
tion and since then that donors group meets each year. At
this meeting, the donors and Canada in particular, indicate
to India’s government’s representatives that we are ready,
as countries, to continue to bring financial and technical
aid to India, but that it is important for the government of
that country to take steps in order to distribute more
evenly the effects of the development assistance; they
bring an economic rise in India which must be evenly
distributed.

Now, what has been the result of all this? These repeated
interventions from year to year? Well, I can say that the
results were relatively small. The political situation of
countries does not evolve very rapidly. In India, I am told
that the parliament is mainly composed of land owners,
which readily indicates the difficulty there will be to
transform the situations rapidly. But I think nonetheless
that certain steps are being taken and judging from the
information we have gathered during the past weeks and
months, in spite of India’s internal political difficulties, I
think there is some favourable evolution towards a better
distribution of assistance and economic growth. But I do
not want to give the impression that I am more naive than
I actually am, and this problem has not yet been solved, it
is very difficult, but we are very conscious of it.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Marceau. Monsieur
MacDonald.

M. Anderson: J'aimerais avoir des précisions, monsieur
le président.

Le président: Oui, monsieur Anderson.

M. Anderson: L'avant-derniére question de mon collégue
portait sur l'aide des pays producteurs de pétrole aux
autres nations arabes. J'aimerais demander a M. Gérin-
Lajoie si le chiffre qu'il a cité comprend I'aide militaire ou
simplement l'aide au développement, car je crois compren-
dre que les pays producteurs de pétrole accordent une
certaine aide militaire?

M. Gérin-Lajoie: Je ne suis pas en mesure de répondre a
cette question. Je ne sais pas si I'aide militaire est comprise
dans ce chiffre ou non. Je n’ai pas les renseignements avec
moi.
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Mr. Anderson: Thank you very much. M. Anderson: Merci beaucoup.

The Chairman: All right. Mr. MacDonald.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): Thank you very much, Mr.
Chairman. I think we are grateful for the appearance of
the president here tonight. Perhaps it should be said,
although I think it has been obvious from the kind of
discussion that we have had here this evening, that the
nature of the relationship between the president and this
subcommittee is obviously quite different from the one
that may have existed in the past with respect to the
examination of estimates and the discussion of CIDA
itself, or one that might exist in the future when the
External Affairs Committee deals with CIDA as an entity.

I think the president is well aware, because I know that
he has already written this Committee with respect to our
work, that we are really launched on a joint venture here
in an attempt to come to grips with some of the crucial
questions and issues with respect to international develop-
ment. While I think it is of some real significance that the
relative increase of spending under CIDA has increased
significantly, certainly in relationship to other expendi-
tures under the federal government, we realize that the
extent to which we can spend public funds, either within
this country or outside this country, to achieve a major
impact is obviously limited. It is limited in terms of
resources and limited in terms of the very size of the
problems with which we are confronted. Yet it is quite
obvious that Canada is one of the very few countries in the
world representative of a relatively small population that
can play an activist role, and has played an activist role
and increasingly so through CIDA.
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The significant thing, I think, and I am sure the Presi-
dent agrees with this, is that with the new five-year strate-
gy, we are now looking at an over-all framework which is
much greater than the role CIDA heretofore exercised
primarily by itself. What the President is helping us to do
this evening, through some of the questions that have been
put by the members, is to try to point up some of the areas
where we will need a great deal more investigation and a
great deal more information.

One of the basic questions that concerns me, and I
simply put it on the table now because I think we will have
to come back to it again and again, is the examination of
the search for useful models of development, both in a
macro sense and in a micro sense. This is one of the things
that, quite frankly, disturbs me to a degree in the five-year
strategy. While a considerable amount of attention is paid
to the concentration of expenditures, the move towards
dealing with the poorest cases or those countries or areas
in greatest need, there does not seem to be too much
recognition of any kind of learning that may have taken
place in this century. Quite obviously it has only been in
the last 10 to 30 years that we have been heavily engaged
in the exercise of trying to transfer resources, monetary or
otherwise, and achieve some measure of development.
What kind of successful models, what kind of successful
experiences are there that we might be able to build on,
with respect to increasing our activity in the international
development field?

Le président: Trés bien. Monsieur MacDonald.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Merci beaucoup, monsieur le
président. Nous sommes tous trés reconnaissants envers le
président qui a bien voulu comparaitre devant nous ce soir.
I1 vaut peut-étre la peine de noter, bien que ce soit évident
si I'on en juge d’apres la discussion de ce soir, que la nature
des rapports qui existent entre le président et ce sous-
comité est évidemment trés différente de celle qui existait
par le passé en ce qui concerne I'examen du budget et toute
discussion concernant 'ACDI elle-méme, et elle est diffé-
rente également de celle qui existera peut-étre a 1'avenir
lorsque le Comité des affaires extérieures se penchera sur
’ACDI.

Comme le président a déja présenté un mémoire a ce
Comité en ce qui concerne notre travail, il sait probable-
ment que nous sommes maintenant lancés dans une entre-
prise commune destinée a régler certaines des questions
cruciales du développement international. Bien que la
hausse considérable des dépenses de I’ACDI revéte une
importance réelle, du moins si on la compare a d'autres
dépenses du gouvernement fédéral, nous nous rendons
compte que la mesure dans laquelle il est possible de
dépenser les deniers publics est trés limitée, que ce soit au
pays ou a l'extérieur, si l'on veut obtenir des résultats
marqués. Elle est limitée sur le plan des ressources et de
I'ampleur méme des problémes auxquels nous faisons face.
Cependant, il est évident que le Canada est I'un des rares
pays au monde qui, avec une population relativement
faible, soit en mesure de jouer un réle actif et qui ait été de
plus en plus actif par I’entremise de '’ACDI.

Ce qui importe, selon moi, et je suis persuadé que le
président est d’accord, c’est de voir que dans le cadre de
cette nouvelle stratégie de cinq ans, nous sommes mainte-
nant en face d’'un plan d’ensemble beaucoup plus vaste que
celui dans le cadre duquel 'ACDI a exercé ses activités
jusqu'a présent. Grace a certaines des questions qu'ont
posées les députés ce soir, le président a tenté de nous
indiquer certains des domaines sur lesquels nous devrons
nous pencher davantage.

L’une des questions fondamentales qui me préoccupent,
et jen parle maintenant car je crois qu'il faudra y revenir
maintes et maintes fois, est celle de la recherche de mode-
les utiles d’expansion, aux plans général et particulier. En
toute franchise, c’est 'un des aspects de la stratégie quin-
quennale qui m'inquiéte. Alors que I'on s’attache surtout a
une concentration des dépenses, aux moyens d'aider les
pays ou les régions qui en ont le plus besoin, on ne semble
pas tenir compte de ce que l'on a appris sur la question
depuis le début du siécle. Evidemment, ce n’est qu’au cours
des dix a trente derniéres années que nous avons pris part
activement au transfert des ressources, monétaires et
autres, et que nous avons pu réaliser un certain niveau
d’expansion. Sur quels types de modéles ou d’expériences
qui ont réussi pouvons-nous nous fonder pour accroitre
notre activité dans le domaine du développement
international?
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I am wondering if the president can tell us, Mr. Chair-
man, whether or not there is a great deal of attention or
much attention being paid to this kind of question within
CIDA. Perhaps CIDA itself may be able to suggest at some
point, even to our Committee, whether there has been some
evaluation, not just evaluation in terms of CIDA’s own
activities but in terms of the types of projects in which
countries like ours have been involved with development
aid. I hope I have been specific enough to give the presi-
dent a chance to respond to that kind of question.

Mr. Gérin-Lajoie: Thank you, Mr. MacDonald. I under-
stand your question as being whether CIDA has drawn
many lessons from the experience we have had, and the
extent to which the lessons drawn from past experience
are reflected in the strategy and in our activites.

Indeed, we have drawn lessons, Mr. Chairman, and this
gives me the opportunity to complete the answer I gave
Mr. Marceau a few moments ago when he and I referred to
the question of a greater liquidity of transfers to develop-
ing countries. A lesson we have drawn from the past, for
instance, is that some countries have a greater administra-
tive capacity than others to administer their own develop-
ment, and they can make use of a wider degree of freedom
in the administration of assistance from abroad. On the
other hand, we have drawn also another lesson which is
more or less of a counterpart to this one, that possibly we
could and should—we, from the point of view of our bilat-
eral assistance from Canada—go progressively away from
large infrastructure projects which have only an indirect
and longer-term effect on the population itself, on human
beings, and concentrate more on projects which reach the
population more directly.
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The larger infrastructure projects, in our view, could be
taken over easily by such large multilateral institutions as
the World Bank, highways, hydro electric dams, harbours
and so on. Of course, I am speaking of an emphasis. I am
not saying that we are considering in any way dropping
entirely those kinds of projects or interventions. Canada
has a large degree of expertise and industrial capacity in
such fields, and indeed that expertise and that industrial
capacity should be put to use in developing countries. But,
on the other hand, let us say, to be specific, that we have
already departed from assistance in the construction of
traditional types of hospitals, of large schools, and that we
are allocating our funds more and more in the fields of
health and education, to projects which deal with the
health problems of the mass of the population in the back
countries, so to speak, away from the capitals. The same
applies in the field of education, not concentrating on
university education except for very specific purposes in
some cases, but helping countries to develop the basic
services of education for the whole population. For
instance, in the small Caribbean islands we have con-
tributed to the construction of small schools at the primary
level that have significant components of training in
trades.

And another lesson we have learned, for instance, which
applies in this particular instance, is that we ought to be
careful in insisting on the use of Canadan supplies. At one
point some years ago it was pointed out in Trinidad and
Tobago, and there was some publicity in the press—more
than publicity at the time—about the higher cost of
Canadian buildings within the university setup as com-

[Interprétation]

Je me demande si le président peut nous dire, monsieur
le président, si 'ACDI porte un intérét a ce genre de
question. Peut-étre que ’ACDI elle-méme pourrait indi-
quer & un moment donné, méme devant notre Comité, si
T'on a fait une évaluation quelconque, en ce qui concerne
non seulement les activités de ’ACDI elle-mémes mais
également les programmes auxquels des pays comme le
notre ont participé dans le cadre de 'aide au développe-
ment. J'espére que ma question est assez précise pour
permettre au président de me fournir une réponse.

M. Gérin-Lajoie: Merci, monsieur MacDonald. Si je com-
prends bien, vous me demandez si 'ACDI a tiré de nom-
breuses lecons de son expérience et, dans quelle mesure ces
lecons influencent sa politique et ses activités.

Nous avons en effet tiré des legons, monsieur le prési-
dent, ce qui me permet de compléter la réponse que jai
donnée a M. Marceau il y a quelques instants lorsque nous
avons parlé d’'une plus grande souplesse des transferts
dans les pays en voie de développement. Par exemple, nous
avons appris par le passé que certains pays sont plus
capables que d’autres d’administrer leur propre expansion,
et qu'on peut leur laisser de la latitude dans I'administra-
tion de l'aide étrangére. Par contre, nous avons tiré une
autre lecon qui est plus ou moins la contrepartie de celle-ci.
Peut-étre pourrions-nous et devrions-nous—du point de
vue de l'aide bilatérale du Canada—nous éloigné progressi-
vement de grands projets s’infrastructure qui n’ont qu’un
effet indirect et a long terme sur la population ou sur les
étres humains et nous concentrer davantage sur des projets
qui, touchent plus directement I’élément humain.

Selon nous, les principaux projets d’infrastructure
réseaux routiers, barrages hydro-électriques, ports, etc.,
pourraient étre facilement assumés par de grandes institu-
tions multinationales telle que la Banque mondiale. Je ne
veux pas laisser entendre que nous envisageons de discon-
tinuer complétement ce genre de projets ou d’interven-
tions. Le haut niveau de compétence industrielle que pos-
séde le Canada dans ces domaines devait étre utilisé dans
les pays en voie de développement. Par contre, disons pour
étre plus spécifique, que nous avons déja diminué notre
aide pour la construction de types traditionnels d’hépitaux
ou de grandes écoles. Nous allouons nos ressources de plus
en plus dans les domaines de la santé et de I’éducation, a
des projets qui portent sur des problémes d’hygiéne tou-
chant la masse de la population dans les régions éloignées
des pays, loin des capitales. Il en est de méme dans le
domaine ol nous nous retirons de 'éducation universitaire
sauf dans quelques cas trés spécifiques, pour aider davan-
tage les pays a développer des services fondamentaux
d'éducation pour leur population entiére. Par exemple,
dans les Antilles nous avons contribué a la construction de
petites écoles du niveau élémentaire ou vous retrouvez des
éléments importants de formation professionnelle.

Une autre lecon que nous avons apprise dans ce cas
particulier, c'est que nous devons étre prudents et ne pas
tenir & tout prix a utiliser des matériaux canadiens. Il y a
quelques années a la Trinité et & Tobago la presse a fait
plus que grand état du coiit élevé des édifices canadiens a
I'intérieur du complexe universitaire en comparaison des
édifices construits par les Britanniques. La grande propor-
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pared to buildings erected by the British. There was a high
Canadian component in construction and that accounted at
least for a very significant proportion of the higher cost.
Then, when it came to financing schools, I said at the
primary level, for the small Caribbean islands we decided
to use local architectural services and to use local ma-
terials to a very large extent.

This is the kind of lesson or lessons that we draw in the
field of health. For instance, we have during the last couple
of years adopted a couple of projects which are intended to
develop basic health services and hygenic services in the
back country of countries such as Dahomey, for instance.
Those are illustrations of the kind of lessons we have
drawn from the Canadian experience or in some cases the
experience of other countries, but mainly our own experi-
ence over the years and which are reflected in this strategy
now published.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): I have one further question.
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The Chairman: One more question.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): I do not know whether
directly or indirectly you have come to this question that I
was going to ask you. The second question has to do with
what I think is likely the most significant part of the
whole five-year strategy. It is the decision about untying
bilateral aid. I think that is of tremendous significance. I
think it is not without its political difficulties, quite frank-
ly, and I presume that those will have to be faced and dealt
with in the months to come, but I think its potential in
terms of achieving much more, along the lines you suggest,
is really quite significant.

I wonder how quickly we are going to see this actually
take place. Perhaps to put the question another way, do
you think the difficulties are going to be fairly great and
the process is going to be quite long and difficult, with
regard to achieving a considerable amount of untying of
bilateral aid?

Mr. Gérin-Lajoie: In favour of procurement in develop-
ing countries?

Mr. MacDonald (Egmont): Yes.

Mr. Gérin-Lajoie: The difficulties are there. From the
work that has already been started and going on in CIDA
during the past few months since this strategy has been
published—and let us say a couple of months before—I
have to answer your question, Mr. MacDonald, by saying
that we find the difficulties to be serious.

There is a government decision, a government policy
decision, and we take CIDA’s mandate as being to imple-
ment this strategy. Although the difficulties are serious,
we will overcome them. I hope to be able to report more
precisely in a few months from now the way we have
managed to overcome those difficulties and how we are
implementing that point of the strategy.

Mr. MacDonald (Egmeont): I think, if I could add this
final comment, it may be quite useful for our Committee
because this obviously is an essential problem, not only for
Canada but for a great number of donor countries to deal
with. If there can be some useful findings with regard to
how we implement that policy, I think that may be a major
recommendation that would form a significant part of our
report.

[Interpretation]

tion de matériaux canadiens dans cette construction expli-
que, au moins en grande partie, la raison du colt plus
élevé. Ainsi, lorsqu’il s’est agi de financer des écoles, élé-
mentaires dans les petites Antilles nous avons décidé
d’avoir recours en grande partie, aux services d’architectes
locaux et nous avons surtout employé des matériaux
locaux.

Voila le genre de legon que nous retirons dans le
domaine de la santé. Par exemple, au cours des deux
derniéres années, nous avons adopté quelques projets des-
tinés a développer des services fondamentaux d’hygiéne
dans les régions éloignées de pays tel que le Dahomey. Cela
illustre le genre de lecons que nous avons retirées de
I'expérience du Canada ou d’autres pays, mais principale-
ment de notre propre expérience, laquelle est reflétée dans
la stratérie publiée récemment.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): J'aimerais poser une autre
question.

Le président: Une autre question.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Je ne suis pas certain si d’'une
facon directe ou indirecte vous avez abordé la question que
je vais vous poser. La Seconde question porte sur ce qui me
semble étre la partie la plus importante de votre stratégie
de 5 ans. Je veux dire la décision de débloquer l'aide
bilatérale. Je crois que cette décision en est une de grande
importance. Elle comporte des difficultés politiques et je
suppose que nous devrons y faire face durant les prochains
mois; mais je crois qu’'une telle décision nous permettra
d’accomplir beaucoup plus dans le sens suggéré.

Je me demande avec quelle rapidité cette décision sera
mise en vigueur. Croyez-vous que les difficultés seront
assez importantes et que le processus sera long et difficile
en ce qui a trait & un déblocage considérable de l'aide
bilatérale?

M. Gérin-Lajoie: En faveur de 'approvisionnement dans
les pays en développement?

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Oui.

M. Gérin-Lajoie: Les difficultés ne manquent pas. Je
répondrai a votre question, monsieur MacDonald en vous
disant que, si ]en juge par le travail déja ébauché et celui
qui se continue a ’ACDI depuis la publication de la straté-
gie, et je dirais méme quelques mois auparavant, nous
constatons que les difficultés sont sérieuses.

Il s’agit d’'une décision du gouvernement, d’une décision
polmque et nous estimons que le mandat de 'ACDI est
d’exécuter cette stratégie. Méme si les difficultés sont
sérieuses, nous les surmonterons. D'ici quelques mois, j'es-
pére pouvoir vous soumettre un rapport plus précis sur les
moyens utilisés pour surmonter ces difficultés et exécuter
cette stratégie.

M. MacDonald (Egmont): Si vous me permettez, j'ajou-
terai un dernier commentaire qui pourrait étre utile a
notre comité. Il s’agit d’un probléme essentiel, non seule-
ment pour le Canada mais pour un grand nombre de pays
donateurs. Si nous faisons des découvertes intéressantes
sur la facon de mettre en ceuvre cette politique, je crois
qu'une recommandation majeure devrait paraitre dans
notre rapport.
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The Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Breau.

M. Breau: Merci, monsieur le président. J'aurais trois
questions, je vais les poser tout de suite et le président
pourra y répondre. La premiére suit la réponse que le
président de 'ACDI a donnée a M. Brewin au sujet des
systémes de distribution dans les pays en voie de dévelop-
pement. Je comprends trés bien que lorsqu’il s’agit d’aide
multilatérale ou d’aide bilatérale nous avons certains con-
troles, mais lorsqu’on parle de restructuration de 1’écono-
mie mondiale ou du nouvel ordre économique, les résultats
nets de cela sont les colits que certians pays, surtout ceux
du monde occidental, devront absorber et qui profiteront a
des pays en voie de développement. Et il est bien possible
que nous ayons beaucoup moins de controle a ce
moment-la, parce que lorsque nous faisons des ajustements
tarifaires ou des ententes internationales qui compliquent
plusieurs pays, il est probable que nous n’aurons pas telle-
ment de controle. Alors, quelle sorte de sauvegarde pré-
voyez-vous, vous de '’ACDI, de par vos contacts avec les
autres pays, qu'ils soient en voie de développement ou
d’autres pays donateurs dans le cadre d’institutions multi-
latérales, quelle sorte de sauvegarde prévoyez-vous?

® 2120
Ma deuxiéme question traite du développment agricole
et j'ai deux questions a ce sujet. Premiérement, quels
seraient les investissements requis pour rendre, par exem-
ple, 'Afrique, le continent africain autosuffisant pour son
revenu agricole, au point de vue alimentation et dans
certains domaines de base de méme que le sud-ouest asia-
tique? Quels seraient les investissements requis pour ces
deux grandes régions? Je pense que ce sont deux probléms
majeurs au point de vue développement agricole et au
point de vue alimentation et cela touche énormément de
gens.

Troisiémement, ou en sont rendus les organismes mul-
tilatéraux comme la Banque modiale ou les autres dans la
planification de ces infrastructures qui serait requise et
dans combien d’années pourra-t-on réver que ces deux
grandes régions-la pourraient devenir autosuffisantes si le
monde industrialisé décidait d’y investir?

M. Gérin-Lajoie: Monsieur le président, M. Breau pose
des questions d'une grande envergure je vais faire un
effort pour ne pas répondre trop longuement, mais mon
souci d’étre aussi clair et aussi précis que possible m’en-
traine parfois a étre un peu plus long que je devrais
peut-étre 1'étre.

Sur la premiére question, quelle sauvegarde pouvons-
nous envisager a '’ACDI pour nous assurer que les pays en
voie de développment adoptent des mesures qui, a leur
tour, assurent une distribution aussi juste que possible du
produit de la croissance économique de ces pays? Cela me
raméne un petit peu a la question de M. Marceau tout a
I'heure et a la réponse que j'ai donnée et au fait que je
pourrais peut-étre compléter un peu cette réponse.

De prime abord on pourrait dire qu'il n'y en a pas de
moyen et l'ordre économique mondial nouveau vise a per-
mettre aux pays en voie de développement, exportateurs de
matiéres premiéres, d'avoir un meilleur rendement finan-
cier pour leurs exportations, un nouvel ordre économique
mondial qui permettrait aux pays en voie de développe-
ment de s'industrialiser et par conséquent étre un peu plus
autosuffisants et aussi d’avoir des recettes d'exportation
plus considérables que maintenant. On pourrait continuer
I'énumeération des divers éléments d'un ordre économique

[Interprétation]
Le président: Merci. Monsieur Breau.

Mr. Breau: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have three
questions which I will ask immediately and the Chairman
may the reply to them. My first question follows the reply
given by the Chairman of CIDA to Mr. Brewin concerning
the distribution systems in the developing countries. I
understand very well that when we speak of multilateral
or bilateral aid, we maintain certain controls. However,
when we speak of restructuring the world economy of the
new economic order, the net results are the costs that
certain countries, mainly those of the West, must absorb,
but that will profit the developing countries. It is quite
possible that we maintain much less control at this point,
because when we make tariff adjustments or come into
international agreements which involve many countries, it
is probable that we will not retain much control. Following
your exchanges with other countries, be they developing
countries or other donor countries within the frame of
multilateral institutions, what kind of safeguard does
CIDA foresee?

I would like to ask two questions dealing with agricul-
tural development. First of all, what would be the amount
of investment required to make the African continent
self-sufficient in its agricultural development with regard
to food and other basic commodities? What about South-
west Asia? What investments would be required for these
two important regions? I think that agricultural develop-
ment and food are two major problems that affect a great
number of people.

Thirdly, where are multilateral institutions, such as the
World Bank or others at, as far as the planning of infras-
tructures necessary for the development of these two
important regions is concerned? In how many years could
we dream to see these two regions self-sufficient if the
industrialized world decided to invest in them?

Mr. Gérin-Lajoie: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Breau has asked
me questions that are far-reaching. I will try to be brief in
my reply, but my concern for clarity and preciseness some-
times drags me into speaking a little longer than I should.

Regarding the first question, which safeguard can CIDA
consider to ensure that the developing countries adopt
measures which, in turn, will ensure as just a distribution
as possible of commodities resulting from economic growth
of these countries? This brings me back to the question
asked by Mr. Marceau a little while back and to the reply I

gave him. I might add a few comments to complete my
answer.

At first glance, we might say that there exists no such
means: a new international economic order would aim at
allowing the developing countries, exporters of raw ma-
terials, to obtain a better financial return for their exporta-
tions; a new international economic order would allow
such countries to industrialize and consequently to become
a little more self-sufficient by obtaining better benefits
than presently. We could continue the enumeration of
various elements of an international economic order which
we all have in mind. In that case, developing countries
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mondial auquel nous visons tous d'une fagcon ou d’une
autre. A ce moment-la, les pays en voie de développement
sont entiérement libres d’utiliser leurs recettes comme ils
I'entendent. Je pense néanmoins qu’il restera nécessaire,
pour un bon nombre d’années a venir, de maintenir un
systéme international de transfert de ressources de facon
libérale pour aider au développment des pays en voie de
développment. Ce qui veut dire qu’a coété des mesures
touchant un nouvel ordre de relations commerciales, un
nouvel ordre touchant la répartition des centres industriels
et des sources de production industielle dans le monde, une
meilleure répartition des connaissances techniques et tech-
nologiques permettant d’aider l'autre développment, il
restera nécessaire d’avoir une assistance. Alors on en vient
a la question de M. Marceau dans le fond: quelle influence,
dans le cas d’'une assistance au développment, un pays
comme le Canada peut exercer auprés d’autres pays pour
qu’ils adoptent des mesures assurant une meilleure distri-
bution du produit de la croissance économique. J'ai dit aux
membres du Comité en réponse a la question tout a ’heure,
combien il était difficile d’exercer cette influence. Je vou-
drais donner un élément plus positif & ce moment-ci, et
dire quelle est I'opinion du Canada, I'opinion que ’ACDI
met oeuvre. Ce n'est pas seulement une opinion de fonc-
tionnaires de I’ACDI: je pense que c’est I'opinion du gou-
vernement canadien, et je pense que que ¢a déborde le
gouvernement, c’est I'opinion de la majorité des Canadiens
que je connais.
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La meilleure fagcon d’exercer une influence auprés des
pays en voie de développement pour les amener a transfor-
mer leurs propres structures économiques, ce n’est pas de
tenter de le faire de facon directrice, mais c’est beaucoup
plus de développer entre ces pays et le Canada un climat
de confiance tel que tout le long de nos relations avec ces
pays en voie de développement, nous puissions, le plus
souvent de facon imperceptible, exercer auprés d’eux, au
travers des fonctionnaires de ces pays, souvent touchant
directement les hommes politiques eux-mémes, une
influence qui laisse, & moyen terme et bien str a long
terme, sa marque.

Ceci n’est pas mesurable. Je ne peux pas arriver au
Parlement, je ne peux pas arriver a Statistique Canada et
dire: «Voici les progrés accomplis avec tel pays en I'espace
de cinq ans, au point de vue commitment to development».
Mais, je pense que c’est quelque chose qui se sent et
quelque chose qui permet a des fonctionnaires de dire a un
comité comme celui-ci: «Eh bien, jai le sentiment que
l’action exercée par les fonctionnaires de I’ACDI, dans
leurs relations avec les pays en voie de développement, a
contribué pour une part, une part modeste bien sir, a
I’évolution de plusieurs pays vers un régime de distribu-
tion plus équitable du produit de la croissance
économiquer.

C’est la réponse a la premiére question, monsieur le
président. Je ne peux vraiment pas donner quelque chose
de plus précis, de plus mesurable, mais je dois aux fonc-
tions que j'occupe de dire que j'ai le sentiment que le
Canada exerce une certaine influence dans ce sens.

M. Breau: Je voudrais faire juste un commentaire sur
cette partie de ma question. Est-ce que vous admettez que,
contrairement a l'aide bilatérale ou l'aide venant d’organis-
mes multilatéraux, il y a un plus grand besoin de sauvegar-
des? Je ne parle pas seulement du Canada, je parle du

[Interpretation]

would be entirely free to use their benefits as they wish.
Nevertheless, I think it will be necessary, for a number of
years, to maintain an international system of liberal
resource transfer to assist developing countries in their
evolution. This means that above and beyond measures
touching a new order of commercial relations, a new order
of distribution for industrial centres and sources of indus-
trial production in the world, a better breakdown of tech-
nical knowledge and technologists encouraging self-
development, development assistance will remain neces-
sary. We are back to Mr. Marceau’s question: what influ-
ence can a country like Canada exercise upon other coun-
tries as far as development aid is concerned, so that they
may adopt measures that ensure a better distribution of
the result of economic growth. In reply to a question asked
a while ago, I told members of the Committee how difficult
it is to exercise such an influence. At this time, I would
like to introduce a more positive element and inform you
of the opinion of Canada which is carried out by CIDA. It
is not only the opinion of CIDA officials; I think it is the
opinion of the Canadian government and I might say it
goes beyond that, since it is the opinion of the majority of
Canadians I know.

The best way to exercise an influence upon developing
countries to bring them to transform their own economic
structures, is not to do so in a directive manner. It is more
important to create, between these countries and Canada,
an atmosphere of confidence, so that all through our rela-
tions with these developing countries, we exercise upon
them, often in an unperceivable fashion, through native
officials or often by approaching politicians themselves, an
influence which leaves its mark both for short-term and
long-term periods.

All this cannot be measured. I cannot go to Parliament or
to Statistics Canada and say: «Here is the progress accom-
plished with such a country during five years from the
point of view of commitment to development». But, I think
it is something that can be felt and allows our officials to
say to a Committee such as this one: «Well, I have the
feeling that the action exercised by CIDA officials in their
relations with the developing countries contributed in
some way, be it as modest as it is, to the evolution of many
countries towards a more equitable distribution of the
result of economic growths.

This is my reply to the first question, Mr. Chairman. I
cannot submit to you anything more precise or more mea-
surable, but I consider it is my duty to tell you that I feel
Canada exercises a certain influence in this manner.

Mr. Breau: I would simply like to make a comment on
this part of my question. Don’t you agree that, contrary to
what happens in the case bilateral on multilateral aid,
there is a certain need for safeguards? I do not speak only
for Canada, but for the industrialized world who needs




18-11-1975

Sous-comité sur le développement international 5:19

[Texte]

monde industrialisé qui a besoin d’avoir certaines assuran-
ces, contrairement a l'aide bilatérale ou a I'aide multilaté-
rale, qu'une restructuration de I'’économie mondiale, du
systéme économique mondial, va apporter des bénéfices
aux gens qui sont le plus dans le besoin dans les pays en
voie de développement? Vous voyez la différence que je
veux faire.

M. Gérin-Lajoie: Parfaitement, mais je suis porté. ..

M. Breau: Je sais que c’est difficile, que c’est extréme-
ment difficile.

M. Gérin-Lajoie: Je suis porté a répondre au député qu'il
n’y en a pas de moyens, si on se place uniquement dans le
cadre des changements touchant les relations économiques
dans le monde.

M. Breau: Moi, je dirais qu’il va falloir trouver des
moyens, pour les raisons que vous savez. Est-ce que vous
pourriez faire des commentaires sur mes deux autres
questions?

M. Gérin-Lajoie: Au sujet du développement agricole,
monsieur le président, je ne suis pas a méme de dire quel
volume d'investissement il faudrait dans le monde pour
rendre 1'Afrique et I’Asie auto-suffisantes en matiere de
production alimentaire. A ma connaissance, il n’y a pas eu
de telle évaluation de faite. Tout ce que je sais, c’est qu’on
parle parfois du développement a des fins agricoles des
grandes plaines du Gange, dans le nord de I'Inde; on parle
du développement des grandes plaines du Soudan en Afri-
que, du Soudan dont le potentiel au point de vue agricole,
au point de vue de la production de céréales, est apparem-
ment comparable a celui de I’Ouest canadien. On dit que le
développement de ces deux grandes plaines, dans un cas
celle du sud-est asiatique et dans l'autre cas celle de I'est
de I'Afrique, requerrait des milliards et des milliards de
dollars.

Au point que, jusqu’'a maintenant, surtout dans le cas de
la plaine du Gange, aucun donateur international, aucune
institution internationale méme la Banque mondiale n’a
accepté de se lancer dans une entreprise du genre. C'est
donc dire que les sommes requises paraissent tellement
énormes qu’on se demande dans les milieux les plus avertis
s'il y a lieu d’entreprendre cette tache a ces endroits.

Maintenant, le député a posé sa question en relation avec
les investissements j'ai pris cela dans le sens d’investisse-
ments financiers, mais ici ...
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M. Breau: Lorsque je parle d’investissement, je parle de

capital requis pour le développement; cela peut étre de

l'aide, cela peut étre des préts, cela peut étre bien des
choses.

M. Gérin-Lajoie: C’est cela, mais en termes d'argent. Je
vais insister sur l'autre aspect, I'aspect humain des choses,
et la on se trouve dans un grand dilemme. Il y en a qui,
dans le monde du développement international, favorisent
le développement de grands territoires pour assurer une
grande production agricole notamment de céréales, en
disant que cela devrait se faire sur une base pratiquement
industrielle pour assurer une production qui soit mise a la
disposition du monde. D’autres disent, et je dois dire qu'a
I'ACDI nous favorisons nettement cette approche, qu'on ne
peut pas considérer la production agricole mondiale de
cette facon, en l'isolant du développement humain; il faut
que le développement de la production alimentaire se fasse
de pair avec I'élévation du niveau de vie des populations

[Interprétation]

certain assurances contrary to the bilateral or multilateral
assistance, that a restructuring of the world economic
system will bring about benefits to the most needy people
in the developing countries? Do you see the difference I am
aiming at?

Mr. Gérin-Lajoie: Perfectly, but I am inclined . ..

Mzr. Breau: I know it is very difficult, extremely
difficult.

Mr. Gérin-Lajoie: I feel like telling the member that
such means do not exist if we consider the problem solely
within the framework of world economic relations.

Mr. Breau: According to me, we will have to find some
means, for the reasons already mentioned. Could you com-
ment on my two other questions?

Mr. Gérin-Lajoie: Concerning agricultural development,
Mr. Chairman, I am unable to quote figures on the volume
of investment necessary in the world to bring Africa and
Asia to a state of self-sufficiency in the field of food
production. To my knowledge, no such evaluation has been
made. All I know is that we often speak of the agricultural
development of the vast plains of «le Gange» in Northern
India; we speak of the development of the vast plains of
Sudan in Africa, Sudan whose agricultural potential for
the production of cereals is apparently comparable to that
of Western Canada. It is said that the development of these
two vast plains, one in Southeast Asia and the other one in
Eastern Africa, would require billions and billions of
dollars.

This being the case, particularly in so far as the Ganges
Plain is concerned, it has so far been impossible to find any
international institution or donor, including the World
Bank, willing to get involved in such an undertaking. In
other words, the amount of money required seems so enor-
mous that those who are most familiar with the situation
are wondering whether it is feasible to carry out such
projects in certain areas.

Now your question referred to investments, which I
understood to be financial investments but . ..

Mr. Breau: When I spoke of investments, I was referring
to the capital required for development; it could take the
form of assistance, loans, or other types of aid.

M. Gérin-Lajoie: Yes, in other words the financial
aspect. But let me describe the human aspect because this
is one that causes our dilemma. Some international de-
velopment experts advocate an almost industrial approach
to the cultivation of large territories in order to ensure the
greatest possible production, especially of grains. Others,
and we in CIDA are of this opinion, think that it is
impossible to isolate the question of world agricultural
production from that of human development. Improved
food production must go along with the raising of the
standard of living of the rural masses. Investing billions of
dollars in the development of the Ganges Plains without
putting corresponding amounts of money into improving
the conditions of the small farmers in India and the rest of
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rurales, des masses de populations rurales dans le monde.
Investir des milliards pour développer les plaines du
Gange, sans investir de fagon correspondante pour amélio-
rer le sort de tous les petits fermiers de I'Inde et du reste
du monde, ce serait une mauvaise appréciation des besoins
de ’humanité sur le plan strictement humain. Ce qu’il faut,
ce n’est pas seulement d’avoir la nourriture a distribuer a
tout le monde, mais de rendre tout le monde productif.

Et la théorie va méme encore plus loin. Les tenants de
cette deuxiéme attitude vont jusqu’a dire qu’en dévelop-
pant de cette facon le capital humain en milieu rural, on
assurera a long terme une plus grande production alimen-
taire sur I’ensemble de la terre. A court terme, industriali-
ser la production de certains territoires ferait qu’on pro-
duirait peut-étre plus en cing ans ou dix ans, mais sur une
période de 25, de 50 ou de 100 ans, si on veut vraiment
améliorer le sort des hommes qui vivent aujourd’hui sur la
terre et des hommes qui naitront de ceux qui vivent au-
jourd’hui, il faut s’attaquer directement aux conditions de
vie des milieux ruraux actuellement habités par des masses
de population. Alors, cela suppose une action de développe-
ment trés complexe qui repose d’abord sur les gouverne-
ments de chaque pays et, seulement par appoint, de 'aide
venant de l'extérieur. Et le Canada, incidemment, par
I’ACDI, consacre déja de plus en plus de fonds, et il en
consacrera de plus en plus dans l'avenir a I'assistance au
développement en milieu rural puisqu’il comporte toutes
les composantes du milieu rural, il y a I’aspect production;
il y a I'aspect irrigation des sols; il y a I'aspect engrais; il y
a l'aspect de machinerie agricole; il y a tout I'aspect forma-
tion; il y a I’aspect santé; il y a ’aspect développement des
marchés a lintérieur du pays, il y a tout laspect des
communications secondaires a lintérieur des pays. La
Banque mondiale et d’autres institutions peuvent contri-
buer a construire de grandes routes dans les pays, mais il
ne faut jamais oublier tous les chemins d’accés qui sont
nécessaires aux petits centres de production agricole. Alors
cela montre la complexité du développement rural et en
dépit de cette complexité, évidemment, c’est un probléme
auquel il faut s’attaquer.

M. Breau: Votre réponse provoque certainement plu-
sieurs questions, mais je n’ai pas le temps de continuer.
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Le président: Merci, monsieur Breau.

The Chairman: Mr. Munro

Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Thank you. I too wel-
come the President of CIDA here this evening. I have one
comment to make, which is by way of being a point of
order or a suggestion, plus a couple of questions which I
should like to put.

The comment is just to draw to the attention of the
Chair that Mr. Arnold Smith is back in Ottawa, and that I
am hoping he will be amongst those we will ask one day to
help us in our deliberations. He can be found at Carleton
University.

My questions—I was going to formulate four, but I will
sort of put them together. The first one relates to the
changing nature of relations. We have been talking about
aid and structural reform, to put them in two different
sorts of pockets. I am wondering whether we could have a
comment from Mr. Gérin-Lajoie on the manner in which
these two different approaches are to go along hand in
hand, or whether there is a phase-out and a phase-in. It is
my understanding that they are to march side by side, in
the five-year strategy that has been devised both domesti-
cally in Canada and in the international field.

[Interpretation]

the world would amount to neglecting the human side of
the scheme. It is not enough to meet the world's food
requirements, we must also make everyone productive.

This theory goes even further. Proponents of this
approach claim that by developing the human capital in
rural areas, we will be favourizing a much greater long-
term food production. In the short-term, an industrial
approach to food production in certain areas will result in
noticeable improvements but over a period of 25, 50 or 100
years, we must deal directly with the problems and living
conditions of the great masses of rural inhabitants. This
requires very complex development action which is, first
and foremost, the responsibility of the individual govern-
ments of each country and rests only in a secondary way
on outside aid. Canada, through CIDA, has been devoting
an ever increasing amount of money, and this amount will
continue to augment in the future, to rural development
assistance. Our programs take into account all aspects of
rural life, production, soil irrigation, fertilizers, agricultur-
al machinery, communications within the country and so
forth. The World Bank and other institutions have con-
tributed to build highways in the countries, but let us not
forget all the secondary roads that are necessary to provide
access to the small agricultural centres. This then indicates
the complexity involved in rural development but regard-
less of the complexity, there is a real problem to be solved.

Mr. Breau: Your answer certainly brings about many
questions but I am running out of time.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Breau.

Le président: Monsieur Munro.

M. Munro (Esquimalt Saanich): Merci. A mon tour
j’aimerais souhaiter la bienvenue au président de 'ACDIL
Tout d’abord un rappel au Réglement ou plutot une sugges-
tion aprés quoi je passerai a une ou deux questions.

J'aimerais attirer 'attention du président sur le fait que
M. Arnold Smith est de retour a Ottawa et j'espére qu'on le
comptera parmi ceux que nous convierons a nos délibéra-
tions. On peut le rejoindre a I'Université Carleton.

Mes questions maintenant. Au départ j'en avais quatre
mais je les regrouperai. Ma premiére a trait a 1'évolution
des relations. Nous avons parlé d’une part d’aide et d’autre
part de réforme structurelle pour apposer deux étiquettes
différentes. M. Gérin-Lajoie a-t-il des observations a faire
sur la facon de réconcilier ces deux points de vue et
pourrait-il nous dire si cela se fait suivant un processus
linéaire comportant un début et une fin des opérations. Si
je comprends bien les deux approches seront constamment
présentes dans 'application de la stratégie quinquennale, a
la fois au Canada et sur place.
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In the structural reform area would he be prepared to
mention—No, let me say in the aid area first, would he be
prepared to mention, as the Minister mentioned here, that
the emphasis was going to be on the poorest countries and
on the poorest groups within those countries? Has there
been any decision yet taken as to which those poorest
countries are, whether they are the Fourth World and
whether it is going to be a complete shift over in that
direction? This, I believe, was described at one time as the
“Fourth World.”

Is there going to be a shift in the aid field to that
particular group of nations, with a re-emphasis in structur-
al reform and economic and commercial relations with the
other less developed countries? I have just cited three or
four possible areas of activity, like third-country procure-
ment, which I am sure would be welcome by many of the
developing countries where they have a technique that is
exportable, but they may not be able to export it to assist a
neighbour who might be less fortunate themselves. Would
we be prepared to assist them in doing this, giving them
the feeling? I think this is what we have all been looking
for, that each of the developing countries must be made to
see that they have contributions to make as well as contri-
butions to receive. Another area, of course, could be in the
budgetary support field which has been done by some
countries—particularly in the servicing of debt. My second
question—I will come back to the debt one, but I will leave
it in that form at the moment.

The third area might be in the financing of native-grown
products, whether for our own use or for third country, to
serve third country needs. In other words, if there are
emergencies, emergency food aid let us say, do we neces-
sarily need to take it from our country when there could be
a more appropriate sort of product nearby which we would
be prepared, if it is available in quantity, to buy and
provide to the country in need?
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The fourth area could be a combination of both aid and

structural reform, and I cite simply as an example a fish-

processing plant for home consumption and for develop-
ment of exports to other parts of the world.

Is this the sort of thing, as will as trade, long-term
commodity agreements and so on, that is envisaged in the
new approach to the developing world?

Mr. Gérin-Lajoie: My short answer, Mr. Chairman,
would be, yes. I should perhaps give a few words of
explanation and first perhaps formulate a word of qualifi-
cation. Canada has not provided up to now, and does not
plan to provide, budgetary support as such. I believe, to my
knowledge anyway, that budgetary support has been pro-
vided in the world only by former colonial powers.

Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): And the United
States.

Mr. Gérin-Lajoie: And the United States, which is not
excluded from the expression I have just used.

Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Why former?

[Interprétation]

Pour ce qui est de la réforme structurelle il a mention-
né—mais d’abord je voudrais parler au secteur de l'aide
dont il a dit qu’elle s’adresserait tout d’abord aux pays les
plus pauvres et aux plus défavorisés dans ces pays. N'est-ce
pas la ce que le ministre a laissé croire? A-t-on déterminé
quels étaient les pays les plus pauvres, constituent-ils un
quatrieme monde et il y aura-t-il un changement total
d’orientation? N’a-t-on pas parlé a un moment d’'un «qua-
triéme monde».

L’aide ne sera-t-elle pas redirigée vers ce groupe de
nations en méme temps que l'on accentuera l'idée de
réforme structurelle et de relation économique et commer-
ciale avec les autres pays moins industrialisés? Je n’ai cité
que trois ou quatre secteurs d’activités, comme 'approvi-
sionnement par un tiers pays, lequel, j’en suis sur, ferait
l'affaire de nombre de pays en voie de développement qui
ont des techniques a offrir mais qui ne peuvent pas les
exporter pour venir en aide a un voisin moins nanti.
Seriez-vous prét a les aider dans cette voie? J'estime que
c’est a cela qu’il faut en venir, que chaque pays en voie de
développement comprenne qu’il doit faire sa part en méme
temps qu’il regoit une part d’aide. Il est un autre secteur
celui de 'aide budgétaire, dont certains pays ont profité,
qui sert a la liquidation de la dette. C’est 1a ma deuxiéme
question et j'y reviendrai un peu plus tard.

Un troisiéme secteur pourrait avoir trait au financement
de produits sur place, que ce soit pour la propre consomma-
tion d’'un pays ou pour celle d’un tiers pays, pour répondre
aux besoins d'un tiers pays. En d’autres termes, en cas
d’urgence, en cas d'un besoin aigu de nourriture, on ne
puiserait pas nécessairement a nos ressources alors que
dans un pays voisin se trouve le nécessaire en quantité
suffisante, que nous pourrions acheter et fournir aux pays
nécessiteux.

Le quatriéme secteur pourrait trés bien combiner a la
fois 'aide et la réforme structurale et je ne citerai qu'un
exemple, celui d’une usine de transformation du poisson
pour la consommation nationale et pour ’exportation.

Quand vous songez a une nouvelle perception des pays
en voie de développement est-ce que vous songez a cela, de
méme qu'au commerce et aux accords a long terme pour un
produit quelconque etc.?

M. Gérin-Lajoie: Monsieur le président, je dirais oui, en
résumé. J'ajouterais quelques mots d’explication apreés
avoir fait quelques réserves. Le Canada, jusqu'a présent,
n’a jamais offert d’appui au niveau des budgets et n’a pas
I'intention de le faire. Que je sache, il n'y a que les ancien-
nes puissances coloniales qui ont fourni ces genres d'aide.

M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Et les Etats-Unis.

M. Gérin-Lajoie: Et les Etats-Unis bien sar, qui font
partie des puissances auxquelles je viens de faire allusion.

M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Pourquoi donc avez-
vous dit anciennes?
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Mr. Gérin-Lajoie: In the very strict sense, technically
speaking the United States has had colonies or territories,
in the Pacific particularly.

So Canada has not planned and does not plan, as I said,
to provide budgetary support as such. We come close to
providing budgetary support, of course, with our lines of
credit that enable developing countries to buy almost any-
thing they like in Canada and through their own procur-
ment mechanisms.

The member has referred to, but said he would come
back to, the debt relief aspect, so I will leave it open for
further questions from him.

The question of third-country procurement, as he very
well mentioned, is one of our immediate objectives as well.
That comes under the point dealing with untying of pro-
curement for developing countries, Point 14.

So I believe the various aspects that have been men-
tioned by Mr. Munro, with the qualification I have given in
relation to budgetary support, are really part of the strate-
gy and of CIDA policy already.

Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): What about the aid
and structural reform mix? Is it to be a mix? Is it to be a
phase-out of one and a taking over of the other in the
strategy, or a re-emphasis, a redirection, of the aid?

Mr. Gérin-Lajoie: Yes, it would amount to a redirection
of our co-operation. We are very concerned that countries
that have been partners of Canada in development be not
let down by Canada as soon as they reach some kind of
take-off point but, on the contrary, that we take means to
ensure a transition from the state of a very poor country to
the state of a country able to go on almost by itself as a
full-fledged partner of the international trading commu-
nity. This is what we have in mind when we refer in point
2 of the strategy to new forms of co-operation with de-
veloping countries, enjoying sgnificantly increased export
earnings, and in the text we say not only those countries
but other upper-income developing countries.
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There was a period, let us say two or three years ago,

when we were inclined to take the position that those
countries could go on on their own.

I give you the example of Malaysia, for instance. The
economic situation of Malaysia improved substantially. At
one point it was decided to offer them loans at 3 per cent
interest, which was rather exceptional. We have granted
very few loans with any kind of interest in the past five
years, to my knowledge, and after that loan to Malaysia we
have not had any co-operation of any significance. We are
now taking the position that such countries should contin-
ue to count on Canada as partners in order to have them
really take off fully from the development and trading
point of view.

With such countries there would probably be less money
involved from the CIDA budget point of view and poss-
ibly—although not necessarily—less concessional money,
because if it came to packaging CIDA money with EDC
money and with private banking money in Canada the
CIDA input may be on a no-interest basis, as was the case

[Interpretation]

M. Gérin-Lajoie: Techniquement parlant, au sens étroit
de l'expression, les Etats-Unis ont déja eu des colonies et
des territoires dans le Pacifique notamment.

Le Canada n'a donc jamais fourni ce genre d’aide et n'a
pas l'intention de le faire. Le crédit que nous faisons se
rapproche de ce genre d’aide budgétaire dans la mesure ol
nous permettons aux pays en voie de développement
d’acheter a peu prés n’importe quoi au Canada par le biais
de leur mécanisme d’approvisionnement.

Vous avez parlé de la liquidation de la dette et vous aviez
dit que vous y reviendriez; donc je vais laisser cette ques-
tion de coté.

La question de 'approvisionnement par un tiers pays, a
laquelle vous avez fait allusion, constitue un de nos objec-
tifs a court terme. Cela a trait au point numéro 14 ou il est
question de cesser de restreindre I'approvisionnement des
pays en voie de développement.

Bref, les observations de M. Munro, compte tenu des
réserves que j'ai déja faites au sujet de l'aide budgétaire,
font vraiment partie de la stratégie et de la politique
adoptées par 'ACDI.

M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Et que faites-vous du
tandem aide-réforme structurale? S’agit-il d’'un tandem?
Avez-vous l'intention de laisser tomber un élément pour le
remplacer par un autre dans votre stratégie ou s’agit-il
d'une réorientation de 'aide?

M. Gérin-Lajoie: Oui, cela équivaudrait a une réorienta-
tion de notre coopération. Nous ne voulons pas que des
pays que le Canada a aidés se retrouvent tous fin seuls dés
le moment ou ils ont atteint un certain palier. Au contraire,
nous voulons nous assurer que les mécanismes de transi-
tion sont en place pour qu'un pays puisse passer du stade
trés pauvre au stade ou il peut voler de ses propres ailes, en
tant que membre a part entiére de la Communauté com-
merciale internationale. Voila ce que nous avons a l'esprit
lorsque nous parlons, au point numéro 2, de la stratégie des
nouvelles formes de coopération avec les pays en voie de
développement qui profitent d’'une augmentation considé-
rable de leurs exportations; dans le texte de notre stratégie
nous ne parlons pas uniquement de ces pays, mais d’autres
pays en voie de développement dont le revenu s'accroit.

A un moment, il y a environ deux ou trois ans, nous
avions tendance a croire que ces pays pouvaient voler de
leurs propres ailes.

Je vous ai donné l'exemple de la Malaisie. La situation
économique en Malaisie s’est améliorée considérablement.
A un moment on a décidé de lui offrir des préts a un taux
d’intérét de 3 p. 100, ce qui était assez exceptionnel. Au
cours des cing derniéres années, que je sache, nous n'avons
fait que quelques préts a intérét et aprés ce prét a la
Malaisie nous n’avons pas obtenu de coopération qui en
vaille la peine. Actuellement, nous sommes d’avis que de
tels pays devraient continuer a pouvoir compter sur le
Canada en tant qu’associé, de sorte qu'ils puissent s’enga-
ger vraiment dans la bonne voie du point de vue du
développement et du commerce.

Pour ces pays, on aurait probablement besoin de tirer
moins d’argent du budget de I'ACDI et il est possible, bien
que ce ne soit pas obligatoire, que le montant de l'aide liée
soit moindre; si on réunissait le montant fourni par 'ACDI,
celui du CDE et un montant fourni par des banques au
Canada, le montant fourni par 'ACDI serait sans intérét
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with Algeria and Indonesia in recent years, because the
end result of such a packaging is to provide a substantial
Canadian loan to a developing country with a rate of
interest which is under the commercial one but is still
substantial interest of 6, 8, 9 or 10 per cent.

These are examples of how Canada may proceed in the
future with countries at the take-off point, or countries in
the categories envisaged in point two. Of course, I could
mention aspects of a less financial nature and more of a
technical assistance or technical co-operation aspect; that
is, co-operation in the transfer of technology, co-operation
in industrial development, co-operation in the scientific
field, all aspects of development which are a very real
subject of concern for countries that have reached a level
somewhat higher than the level of the poorest countries of
the world.

The Chairman: One more brief question, Mr. Munro.

Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Yes. This is my
second question. I was a little surprised to hear—and I
think I heard the president correctly—the President say
that he did not think Canada had been one of the contribu-
tors to the creation of debt in the less-developed countries.
I assume what he meant by that was debt that had to be
serviced, unless he was thinking solely of outright grants.
There are interest-free loans which presumably one day
might have to be repaid a long time in the future, but the
encumbrance is still there, if only on the books, and there-
fore I was a little surprised to hear that comment.

I notice that in point 15 one of the objects of the new
strategy is to assist in the relief of Third World debt. I
think we both recognize how heavy that debt can be and it
has, of course, increased immeasurably within the last two
or three years because of certain developments in fields
unrelated, I think, to aid programs.
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I should also mention in passing, of course, the refinanc-
ing that has taken place and two or three write-offs, which
is one way of helping to releive Third World debt, but
there are others, of course, like the conclusion of commodi-
ty agreements. I am wondering whether Mr. Gérin-Lajoie
could give us some kind of a timetable, as he sees it, in the
most general terms as to how the commodity agreements
and other relations, the fulfilment of the UNCTAD general
principles, might be worked out within the three, four, five
and ten years ahead, and what progress we are making
already with this committee, on which I assume he is
represented, at least, and which is chaired by Mr.
Robinson.

Mr. Gérin-Lajoie: On the debt problem, Mr. Chairman,
actually I was more or less quoting from the strategy
document, Point 15, subdivision 3, where we say:

Because of its traditional soft terms Canada is not
among those principally responsible for the burden of
indebtedness faced by many developing countries.

Of course, the fact that Canada offers, and has offered
for a long time, loans on a no-interest basis does not
contribute significantly to the indebtedness of developing
countries. And with regard to capital reimbursement, the
fact that this reimbursement is spread over a period of 40

[Interprétation]

comme ce fut le cas pour I'Algérie et I'Indonésie récem-
ment; cela permettrait de fournir un prét canadien d’im-
portance a un pays en voie de développement & un taux
d’intérét inférieur au taux commercial, mais qui serait
quand méme de 6, 8, 9 ou 10 p. 100.

Voila des exemples de la fagon dont le Canada pourrait
procéder a I'avenir avec les pays qui en sont au point de
départ, ces pays auxquels nous faisons allusion au point N°
2. Bien sOr, je pourrais faire allusion a des aspects qui
n’ont rien a voir avec les finances et qui se rattachent
surtout a I'aide technique, a I'aspect coopération technique.
I1 s’agit de la coopération au niveau de la transmission de
la technologie, au niveau du développement industriel,
dans le secteur scientifique, bref de tous les aspects du
développement qui préoccupent des pays qui ont atteint un
niveau plus élevé que le niveau auquel se trouvent les pays
les plus pauvres.

Le président: Une courte question, monsieur Munro.

M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Oui. Ma deuxiéme
question maintenant. J'ai été étonné d’entendre le prési-
dent dire qu'il ne croyait pas que le Canada avait contribué
a la création de la dette des pays en voie de développement
et je crois avoir bien entendu. Je présume qu’il songeait
aux frais d’administration de la dette, 4 moins qu’il n’ait eu
a l'esprit la subvention directe. Il s’agit de préts sans
intérét qui, c’est a supposer, devront étre remboursés dans
un avenir trés lointain; il n’en demeure pas moins qu’il
s’agit d’'un dette sur papier tout du moins et c’est ce qui m’a
étonné dans son observation.

Je remarque qu’au point N° 15, un des buts de la nouvelle
stratégie est d’aider a la liquidation de la dette du tiers
monde. Nous savons tous combien lourde est cette dette et
elle s’est encore alourdie considérablement au cours des
deux ou tois derniéres années en raison des événements
qui se sont produits dans des secteurs qui n’ont rien a voir
avec les programmes d’aide.

Je devrais également mentionner le refinancement
auquel on a procédé et les deux ou trois dettes qui ont été
liquidées, ce qui d’'une certaine fagcon contribue a amortir
la dette du tiers-monde sans oublier bien sir la conclusion
d’ententes sur les produits de base. M. Gérin-Lajoie pour-
rait-il nous donner une idée de I'échéancier, trés générale,
sur la facon dont les accords sur les produits de base et les
autres ententes, I'application des principes généraux de la
conférence des Nations Unies sur le commerce et le déve-
loppement seront répartis au cours des trois, quatre, cinq a
dix années a venir. Quels sont les progrés déja accomplis
par le comité, présidé par M. Robinson ou il doit étre
représenté?

M. Gérin-Lajoie: Pour ce qui est de la dette, M. le
président, je vous citais quelques phrases du point numéro
15, article 3, du document de stratégie ou il est dit:

A cause des modalités relativement peu sévéres que le
Canada a imposées traditionnellement, il ne compte
pas parmi les principaux responsables de la dette con-
tractée par plusieurs pays en voie de développement.

Bien entendu, du fait que le Canada offre et a offert
depuis longtemps des préts sans intérét, il ne contribue pas
considérablement a la dette des pays en voie de développe-
ment. Le fait que le remboursement du capital se fasse sur
une période de 40 ans, commengant 10 ans aprés la date du
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years, starting after the first 10 years from the date of the
loan, means that the dollars that would be reimbursed to
Canada would be of a lesser value than the dollars . ..

Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): That is a lovely

rationale.

Mr. Gérin-Lajoie: Mr. Chairman, I believe it is recog-
nized in international finance, and even in our whole
problem of inflation in Canada, that investing in real
goods instead of dollars is based on that fact, that our
dollars of yesterday will be worth how much in buying
power a few years from now. So that applies to developing
countries, and spread over 50 years, of course, emphasizes
that aspect so much.

As regards commodity agreements and the preparation
for the next meeting of UNCTAD in the spring, Mr. Robin-
son is in a better position to talk about the details of what
is going on at the present time. But, indeed, many govern-
ment departments, including CIDA, very much so, are
involved within the framework of that committee, with the
acronym ICERDC and I am confident that, following the
last special session of the General Assembly and stimulat-
ed also by the formula adopted by the European commu-
nity within the framework of the Lomé Convention, that
the countries of the world, on a universal basis, will be able
in the months to come to devise new arrangements which
will provide developing countries with a higher and more
constant level of prices for their various commodities,
thereby, enabling them to both plan their development
over a number of years and implement their plans.

If I may just give an illustration of the significance of all
this, Zambia is a country which exports, as we may recall,
a lot of copper, and at one point, about a year or two ago,
Zambia got a lot of foreign exchange from the sales of its
copper but a few months later the market fell down and it
fell back into the same position as it was before.
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Just to give an indication of the significance of any
correction or stabilization of the situation at a satisfactory
level, I would like to mention that the amount of foreign
aid coming from any source from Zambia would have to be
doubled just to compensate for the loss of 5 per cent of its
profits in copper. It shows that an increase of its revenues
from copper by any percentage represents a compensation
or an overwriting for a very large proportion of its foreign
aid. That is only a specific example of what is fairly well
known to members of this Committee by now.

Le président: Merci, merci, monsieur Gérin-Lajoie.

Monsieur Gendron, je regrette de ne pouvoir vous
donner la parole, mais nous devons libérer notre témoin, M.
Gérin-Lajoie, afin qu'il puisse prendre I'avion qui doit le
conduire a Toronto. De toute fagon nous aurons le plaisir
de I'accueillir de nouveau jeudi ...

M. Gendron: Cela peut étre la voix de celui qui crie dans
le désert.

Le president: Jeudi prochain a 11 h.00, alors que le
Comité permanent des Affaires extérieures et de la
Défense nationale étudiera les prévisions budgétaires sup-
plémentaires, particuliérement celles du ministére des
Affaires extérieures et les crédits 30a et 36a portant parti-
culiérement sur 'ACDI.

[Interpretation]

prét, signifie que les dollars remboursés par le Canada
seront de moindre valeur que les dollars . . .

M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Quelle logique?

M. Gérin-Lajoie: Monsieur le président, je crois qu'il est
bien connu en finance internationale et méme face a l'in-
flation que connait le Canada que linvestissement de
sommes pour 'achat de biens est trés sage étant donné que
nos dollars d’hier ne vaudront pas grand chose dans quel-
ques années, le pouvoir d’achat ayant beaucoup diminué.
Cela vaut également pour les pays en voie de développe-
ment et cette période de 50 ans met ce fait encore plus en
lumiére.

Pour ce qui est des accords sur les produits de base et la
préparation pour la prochaine réunion de la Conférence
des Nations Unies sur le commerce et le développement, au
printemps, M. Robinson est mieux & méme que moi de vous
donner les détails sur ce qui se passe actuellement. En
effet, plusieurs ministéres du gouvernement, notamment
I’ACDI, sont actifs au sein de ce comité dont le sigle est
CIREPVD. Aprés la derniére session extraordinaire de
I’assemblée générale, et devant la formule adoptée par la
communauté européenne dans le cadre du congrés de
Lomé, j'ai toute raison de croire que les pays du monde
pourront dans les mois a venir s’entendre pour que les pays
en voie de développement jouissent de prix plus élevés et
plus stables pour leurs divers produits de base, ce qui leur
permettrait de mieux planifier leur développement sur
plusieurs années et de réaliser leurs plans.

Je vous donnerai un exemple; la Zambie est un pays qui
exporte beaucoup de cuivre et il y a un ou deux ans, la
Zambie avait amassé beaucoup de devises étrangéres a la
suite de la vente de son cuivre. Le cours des changes,
quelques mois plus tard, ayant baissé, la Zambie s'est
retrouvée au méme point qu’auparavant.

Pour vous montrer comment une stabilisation de la si-
tuation est souhaitable, je vous dirai qu'il faudra que la
Zambie recoive deux fois plus d’aide étrangére pour com-
penser une perte de 5 p. 100 des profits qu’elle réalise sur le
cuivre. Ce qui prouve qu’'une augmentation des revenus du
cuivre, si petite soit-elle, représente une compensation
équivalant a une grande part de I'aide étrangére. Ce n'est
qu’'un exemple que les membres du Comité connaissent
bien.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Gérin-Lajoie.

Mr. Gendron, I am sorry I cannot give you the floor since
we have to let Mr. Gérin-Lajoie go: he has to take a plane
to go to Toronto. Anyway, we will see him again on
Thursday.

Mr. Gendron: That can be the voice of he who shouts in
the desert.

The Chairman: ... next Thursday at 11 o’clock when the
Standing Committee on External Affairs and National
Defence will examine the supplementary extimates, in
particular the ones for the Department of External Affairs
and amongst them Vote 30a and Vote 36a relating to CIDA.
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The next meeting of the subcommittee will be on Thurs-
day, November 25, at 3.30 p.m. when we will have the
pleasure of welcoming the Under Secretary of State for
External Affairs, Mr. Basil Robinson.

Thank you very much, Mr. Gérin-Lajoie.. . .

Monsieur Gérin-Lajoie, merci infiniment pour votre
amabilité; nous vous reverrons jeudi. Merci

[Interprétation]

La prochaine séance du Sous-comité se tiendra le jeudi
25 novembre a 15 h 30 et c’est le sous-secrétaire d’Etat aux
Affaires extérieures, M. Basil Robinson qui sera notre
témoin.

Merci beaucoup monsieur Gérin-Lajoie . . .

Mr. Gérin-Lajoie, thank you very much for your kind-
ness and we will see you again on Thursday. Thank you.
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[Text] [Traduction]

The Sub-committee on International Development of the
Standing Committee on External Affaires and National
Defence met this day at 3:41 o’clock p.m., the Chairman,
Mr. Dupras, presiding.

Members of the Sub-committee present: Messrs. Anderson,
Brewin, Dupras, Lapointe, Macquarrie, Marceau, Munro
(Esquimalt-Saanich), Philbrook, Prud’homme, Stollery and
Wenman.

Witnesses: From the Interdepartmental Committee on
External Relations: Mr. H. B. Robinson, Chairman and
Under Secretary of State for External Affairs; Miss P.
MacDougall, Director General, Bureau of Economic and
Scientific Affairs, External Affairs; Mr. A. L. Halliday,
Acting General Director, Office of General Relations,
Industry, Trade and Commerce; Mr. E. Bergbusch, Direc-
tor, Aid and Development Division, External Affairs; Mr.
V. Lotto, Director, Policy Institution Division, Canadian
International Development Agency.

The Sub-committee resumed consideration of its Order
of Reference dated July 3, 1975 relating to International
Development. (See Minutes of Proceedings, Tuesday, July 22,
1975, Issue No. 1.)

Mr. Robinson made a statement.
The witnesses answered questions.

At 5:16 o’clock p.m., the Sub-committee adjourned to the
call of the Chair.

Le sous-comité sur le développement international du
Comité permanent des affaires extérieures et de la défense
nationale se réunit aujourd’hui a 15 h 41 sous la présidence
de M. Dupras (président).

Membres du sous-comité présents: MM. Anderson, Brewin,
Dupras, Lapointe, Macquarrie, Marceau, Munro (Esqui-
malt-Saanich), Philbrook, Prud’homme, Stollery et
Wenman.

Témoins: Du Comité interministériel des relations extérieu-
res: M. H. B. Robinson, président et sous-secrétaire d’Etat
aux Affaires extérieures; MU P. MacDougall, directeur
général, Bureau des affaires économiques et scientifiques,
Affaires extérieures; M. A. L. Halliday, directeur général
adjoint, Bureau des relations générales, Industrie et Com-
merce; M. E. Bergbusch, directeur, Division de 'aide et du
développement, Affaires extérieures; M. V. Lotto, direc-
teur, Division de I’établissement des politiques, Agence
canadienne de développement international.

Le sous-comité poursuit 1'étude de son ordre de renvoi
du 3 juillet 1975 portant sur le développement internatio-
nal. (Voir procés-verbal du mardi 22 juillet 1975, fascicule n°
1.)

M. Robinson fait une déclaration.
Les témoins répondent aux questions.

A 17h 16, le sous-comité suspend ses travaux jusqu’'a
nouvelle convocation du président.

Le greffier du Comité
Christine Hamilton
Clerk of the Committee
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[Text]

Le président: A l'ordre, s’il vous plait.

As our witness this afternoon, we are pleased to welcome
Mr. Basil Robinson, Under Secretary of State for External
Affairs and Chairman of the Interdepartmental Committee
on Economic Relations with Developing Countries.

We already had an opportunity to discuss the general
international development situation, Canada’s past
performance and the broad outlines of the new strategy
with the ministers and Mr. Gérin Lajoie. Thanks to three
of our colleagues we are also informed about events at the
recent Seventh Special Session of the United Nations Gen-
eral Assembly. Undoubtedly, members may now wish to
look in more detail at what the new strategy in Stage 3 of
the Seventh Special Session holds for the future of Canadi-
an policy.
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As Chairman of ICERDC, Mr. Robinson was closely
involved in co-ordinating the various departments’ contri-
bution to formulating the strategy over the last year or so.
ICERDC is now hard at work on developing recommenda-
tions for Canadian policy for the Conference on Economic
Co-operation to be held in Paris in December and for
UNCTAD IV, which will be held in Nairobi next May.

Because, as I have suggested, we are now in a position to
begin inquring in depth into the various aspects of Cana-
da’s changing relationship with evolving countries, Mr.
Robinson’s appearance before us today is timely indeed.
He, in turn, has been kind enough to assemble an inter-
departmental team to assist in answering our questions, in
addition to Miss Pamela MacDougall, who is the Director
General of the Bureau of Economic and Scientific Affairs;
Mr. Eric Bergbusch, Director of Aid and Development
Division; Mr. Ed Neufeld, Director General, International
Trade and Finance Branch of the Department of Finance;
Mr. Blum of the International Economic Relations Divi-
sion, Department of Finance; Mr. Halliday, Acting General
Director, Office of General Relations, Department of
Industry, Trade and Commerce and Mr. Vick Lotto, Direc-
tor of Policy Institution Division at CIDA.

No doubt, Mr. Robinson, these people will assist you in
answering some of the questions asked by the members.
Mr. Robinson, I believe you mentioned that you wished to
make some opening remarks.

Mr. H. B. Robinson (Chairman, Interdepartmental
Committee on Economic Relations with Developing
Countries): Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am pleased to
appear before the subcommittee today as Chairman of the
Interdepartmental Committee on Economic Relations with
Developing Countries. I wish to assure you of our desire to
be of assistance to you in your work. I would like to say
that I am sorry I was not able to circulate the statement
which I am about to make in time for members to read it
before the meeting began, but it was still being prepared
this morning. I hope, however, since copies are now before

EVIDENCE

(Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)
Tuesday, November 25, 1975

[Interpretation]
The Chairman: Order, please.

Ce matin nous sommes heureux d’accueillir comme
témoin M. Basil Robinson, sous-secrétaire d’Etat aux Affai-
res extérieures et président du comité interministériel des
relations économiques des pays en voie de développement.

Nous avons déja pu discuter de la situation générale
dans le cadre du développement international, des réalisa-
tions du Canada et des grandes lignes de la nouvelle
stratégie avec le ministre et M. Gérin-Lajoie. Grace a trois
de nos collégues nous sommes également renseignés sur ce
qui s’est passé au cours de la Septiéme session extraordi-
naire de I’Assemblée générale des Nations Unies. Les dépu-
tés souhaiteront sans doute étudier maintenant d’une
maniére plus approfondie ce que signifie pour la politique
canadienne la troisiéme étape de la nouvelle stratégie de la
Septiéme session extraordinaire.

Le président du Comité interministériel des relations
économiques avec les pays en voie de développement, M.
Robinson a joué un réle de coordonnateur entre les diffé-
rents ministéres participant a I’élaboration de la stratégie
depuis un peu plus d’'un an. Le Comité interministériel se
concentre en ce moment sur 1'élaboration de recommanda-
tions en vue de définir la politique canadienne destinée a
la Conférence de coopération économique qui se tiendra a
Paris en décembre et a la CNUCED IV qui doit avoir lieu a
Nairobi en mai prochain.

Etant donné, comme je l'ai dit, que nous sommes mainte-
nant en mesure d’étudier en profondeur les différents
aspects des relations changeantes du Canada avec les pays
en voie de développement, la comparution de M. Robinson
aujourd’hui est tout a fait opportune. De son c6té, il a eu
I’'amabilité de réunir une équipe interministérielle pour
l'aider dans les réponses a4 nos questions. Il s'agit de M
Pamela MacDougall, directrice générale du Bureau des
affaires économiques et scientifiques; M. Eric Bergbusch,
directeur de la Division de 'aide et du développement, M.
Ed. Neufeld, directeur général, commerce et finances inter-
nationales du ministére des Finances, M. Blum de la Divi-
sion des relations économiques internationales, ministére
des Finances, M. Halliday, directeur général suppléant,
bureau des relations générales, ministére de I'Industrie et
du Commerce et M. Vick Lotto, directeur des institutions
d’élaboration de politiques de 'ACDL.

Il ne fait aucun doute, monsieur Robinson, que ces per-
sonnes vous aideront a répondre a certaines des questions
posées par les députés. Monsieur Robinson, vous avez
manifesté le désir de faire une déclaration préliminaire.

M. H. B. Robinson (président, Comité interministériel
des relations économiques avec les pays en voie de déve-
loppement): Je vous remercie, monsieur le président. Je
suis heureux de comparaitre aujourd’hui devant le Comité
en ma qualité de président du Comité interministériel des
relations économiques avec les pays en voie de développe-
ment. Je profite de I'occasion pour vous assurer de notre
entiére collaboration. Je suis désolé de n'avoir pu faire
parvenir un exemplaire de ma déclaration aux députés
avant la réunion afin qu’ils puissent la lire, mais elle était
toujours en cours de préparation ce matin. Les députés en
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[Texte]

the members, that it will be possible for them to follow it
while I am speaking.

When the Minister spoke to you he outlined the evolu-
tion of Canada’s relations with developing countries and
the increasing place such relations have in Canada’s for-
eign policy. He pointed out that Canada, like other wealthy
nations, is at a critical stage in its relations with the
developing world. That we are facing new circumstances
calling for new solutions to new problems and that the
choices we make will have far-reaching consequences, not
only for our foreign policy but for our national life as well.

I wish to speak today about how and in what context the
Canadian government is examining these issues and
making its choices. I shall do this under three headings: the
state of development or development co-operation today;
the Canadian government’s response and the challenges
ahead.

There have been striking events in the dialogue between
developed and developing countries during the past two
years. At the Sixth Special Session in April of 1974 the
more radical members of the third world put forward
extreme demands which were met with a determination on
the part of some industrial countries not to concede their
position on any of the central issues. The stridency on both
sides no doubt reflected concern about how to cope with
the combined disruptive effect of inflation, monetary inst-
ability, the food shortage and the abrupt rise in the price of
oil. The result of that session was a stand-off and an
illusory consensus, a declaration and program of action
adopted without a vote, but also without the political will
to implement it.

The sharp confrontation between developed and de-
veloping countries at the sixth Special Session had serious
effects on internation co-operation in the months that
followed. Four points are worth making here in trying to
explain how and why this collision occurred. First, the
system of economic co-operation inaugurated after the
Second World War was a striking achievement in its time.
The countries involved affirmed their intention to accept
responsibility for one another’s welfare and economic
growth to a degree without precedent. That system, how-
ever, was created by and for the benefit of Western coun-
tries. There were fewer than 20 developing countries at the
time, mostly in Latin America. The architects of the post-
war system could not forsee the scale and complexity of
the development problems of the seventies.

® 1545

That postwar approach was reflected in the initiation of
aid programs which have grown from modest beginnings
to the sophisticated network that exists today. These pro-
grams have had a very great effect on the growth and
welfare of developing countries. Aid made a significant
contribution to this growth, comprising about 10 per cent
of total capital investment in developing countries. But
much more important, the unprecedented growth in devel-
oped countries during the past 25 years has caused the gap
between rich and poor to increase in absolute terms. Recog-

[Interprétation]
possédent maintenant un exemplaire et j'espére qu’il leur
sera possible de suivre le texte pendant que je parle.

Lorsqu’il s’est addressé a vous, le ministre a fait état de
I’évolution des relations du Canada avec les pays en voie
de développement et de 'importance sans cesse croissante
que prennent ces relations dans notre politique extérieure.
Il a fait remarquer que le Canada, a l'instar d’autres
nations riches, est parvenu a une charniére critique dans
ses relations avec le Tiers Monde, qu'il fait face a une
nouvelle conjoncture appelant des solutions nouvelles a
des problémes nouveaux et que ces choix seront lourds de
conséquences, non seulement au niveau de sa politique
extérieure, mais aussi sur le plan intérieur.

Je voudrais aujourd’hui vous exposer le cadre dans
lequel le gouvernement du Canada étudie ces questions et
opeére ses choix. Je traiterai de ce sujet en 3 temps: d’abord
I’état actuel du «développement» ou, si vous préférez de la
coopération visant au développement; ensuite, la réaction
du gouvernement, et enfin, les défits a relever.

Au cours des 2 derniéres années des événements mar-
quants ont jalonné le dialogue entre pays industrialisés et
pays en voie de développement. Lors de la Sixiéme session
extraordinaire des Nations Unies tenue en avril 1974, les
demandes excessives des nations plus radicales du Tiers
monde ont bruté contre la volonté tout aussi intransi-
geante de certains pays industrialisés a n’infléchir en rien
leur position sur les questions clés. Cette exacerbation
dans les deux camps traduisait sans aucun doute I'appré-
hension provoquée par l'inflation, 'instabilité monétaire,
la pénurie alimentaire et la montée en fléche du prix du
pétrole, problemes auxquels il fallait trouver des solutions.
De cette session ol tous sont restés sur leur position, il est
résulté un consensus illusoire sous la forme d’une déclara-
tion et d’'un programme d’action adoptés sans vote, mais
aussi sans la volonté politique de les appliquer.

Cette apre confrontation entre pays industrialisés et
pays en voie de développement durant la Sixiéme session
extraordinaire a eu des répercussions graves sur la coopé-
ration internationale au cours des mois suivants. Il est
assez facile de concevoir les raisons qui ont mené a cet
affrontement si I'on considére les quatre points suivants.
Premiérement le systéme de coopération économique mis
sur pied apres la Seconde Guerre mondiale a constitué une
magnifique réalisation. Les pays en cause ont alors
assumé, a un degré sans précédent, la responsabilité collec-
tive de leur bien-étre et de leur croissance économique.
Toutefois, ce systéme était créé par et pour les pays du
monde occidental. A ce moment, on comptait un peu moins
de vingt pays en voie de développement, la plupart situés
en Ameérique latine. Les architectes de cette entente ne
pouvaient prévoir I'étendue et la complexité des problémes
de développement des années 70.

Les programmes d'aide ont vu le jour & ce moment;
modestes a l'origine, ils sont progressivement devenus le
réseau complexe que nous connaissons aujourd'hui. Ces
programmes ont eu un impact trés grand sur l'essor et le
bien-étre des pays en voie de développement. L’aide a
contribué de facon significative a cette croissance, repré-
sentant environ 10 p. 100 du total des investissements de
capitaux dans ces pays. Fait encore beaucoup plus impor-
tant, toutefois, la croissance économique inégalée des pays
industrialisés au cours des 25 derniéres années a élargi, en
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nition of that widening gap precipitated the crisis of confi-
dence in 1973 and 1974.

Since the early sixties the developing countries have by
their numbers and solidarity progressively dominated the
United Nations and greatly influenced the other organiza-
tions of economic co-operation. For 15 years they have
presented and pursued their demands for changes in the
structure of international trade and finance. There is
hardly a proposition in the new economic order which
cannot be found in the Prevish Report which led to the
creation of UNCTAD in 1964.

The developed countries have responded to these
demands and needs by a variety or measures during this
period, but from the standpoint of developing countries the
pace was always too slow and the response too fragmented.
Faced with the crisis which confronted them in the mid-
1970’s, it is not surprising that developing countries
addressed their demands for faster progress and a more
flexible response to their needs in a united and determined
way. With the volume of aid flows nullified by the rise in
energy and food costs, with fluctuations in the major
reserve currencies which reduced the value of their foreign
exchange reserves, with enormous balance of payments
deficits in particular cases, the developing countries in
effect demanded assurances that measures would be taken
to enable them to match the expectations of their people,
that they should not have to bear so much of the brunt for
dislocations in the international economic system.

At the Seventh Special Session last September the de-
veloping countries put forward their demands in a some-
what more moderate way. They were met by a much more
responsive attitude on the part of the developed countries.
The leadership exercised by some of the developing coun-
tries was a notable feature of the session, as was the
significant advance in the position of the United States
and the greater flexibility shown by members of the Euro-
pean community. A genuine will to reach agreement was
evident at the session and facilitated its successful
conclusion.

Why did this change of attitude take place over 18
months? The Sixth Special Session did have no positive
effect. It brought the economic issues between developed
and developing countries to the centre of the political
stage. The concept of the new economic order gave some
conceptual coherence to the many demands which develop-
ing countries had been making for years. Political leaders
called for a thorough review of policy. Concerted efforts
were made by a number of countries to resume the dia-
logue. In this way the Seventh Special Session became a
target occasion for the resolution of some of the outstand-
ing problems.

The change in the situation in the Middle East was
another factor. While the Sixth Special Session was called
in the aftermath of the October 1973 war and the subse-
quent oil embargo and oil price increases, the Seventh was
convened shortly after the disengagement agreement be-
tween Israel and Egypt and a period of relative calm in the

[Interpretation]

termes absolus, le fossé entre pays riches et pays pauvres.
Ce phénomeéne a d’ailleurs précipité la crise de confiance
de 1973-1974.

Depuis le début des années 60, les pays en voie de
développement ont mis a profit leur nombre et leur solida-
rité pour dominer progressivement les Nations Unies et
influer dans une large mesure sur les autres institutions de
coopération économique. Pendant 15 ans, ils ont présenté et
défendu leurs revendications en vue d'une transformation
de la structure internationale des échanges commerciaux
et financiers. Presque toutes les propositions contenues
dans le Nouvel ordre économique se retrouvent dans le
Rapport Prebish, qui a mené a la création de la CNUCED
en 1964.

Durant ces 15 ans, les pays industrialisés ont répondu
aux demandes et aux besoins des pays en voie de dévelop-
pement de diverses facons, mais pour ces derniers les
réponses étaient fragmentaires et toujours trop lentes a
venir. Face a la crise du milieu des années 70, il n'est pas
étonnant de constater que les pays en voie de développe-
ment ont résolument uni leurs efforts pour exiger des
progrés plus rapides et une réponse plus souple a leurs
demandes. Les apports d’aide ont été réduits a néant par la
hausse du colt de I'énergie et du prix des denrées; les
fluctuations des principales monnaies de réserve ont réduit
la valeur des réserves de change des pays en voie de
développement, entrainant dans certains cas des déficits
énormes au chapitre de la balance des paiements. Ainsi, les
pays en voie de développement ont exigé 'assurance qu'ils
ne seraient pas abandonnés a leur sort et que des mesures
seraient prises pour leur permettre de répondre aux atten-
tes de leurs peuples et pour qu'ils n’aient pas a soutenir
seuls le poids de la désarticulation du systéme économique
international.

A la septiéme session extraordinaire tenue en septembre
dernier, les pays en voie de développement ont exprimé
leurs demandes en termes un peu plus modérés, et celles-ci
ont recu un accueil beaucoup plus favorable de la part des
pays développés. L'initiative exercée par certains pays
modérés du tiers monde, l'attitude plus ouverte des Etats-
Unis ainsi que la plus grande souplesse des membres de la
Communauté européenne ont été les faits marquants de la
session. Une volonté authentique de s’entendre et d’éviter
la rhétorique a inspiré la session et en a facilité 'heureuse
conclusion.

Pourquoi ce changement d’attitude s’est-il produit en 18
mois? La sixiéme session extraordinaire a eu tout au moins
un effet positif. Elle a placé au centre de l'aréne politique
les questions économiques qui opposent pays développés et
pays en voie de développement. La notion de Nouvel ordre
économique a donné une certaine cohésion conceptuelle
aux nombreuses demandes que les pays en voie de dévelop-
pement formulaient depuis plusieurs années. Les responsa-
bles politiques ont réclamé un examen complet de la politi-
que relative au «Nouvel ordre économique». Maints pays
ont déployé des efforts concertés pour renouer le dialogue.
Dans ce processus d’examen et de débat, la septiéme ses-
sion extraordinaire est devenue l'occasion privilégiée de
résoudre certains des problémes en suspens.

L’évolution de la situation au Moyen-Orient a été un
autre facteur. Alors que la sixiéme session extraordinaire
avait été convoquée a la suite de la guerre d'octobre 1973,
de 'embargo sur le pétrole et du renchérissement de ce
produit, la septiéme session s’est réunie peu apres l'accord
de désengagement conclu entre Israél et I'Egypte et une
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area. Between the two special sessions the United Nations
as an institution had been severely tested. By September
1975 the political climate had cooled, permitting calmer
discussion of economic issues.

A third and very important reason for the change in
atmosphere was the world economic situation and the
perception by developing countries that continued infla-
tion and recession in the Western industrialized world
would have a damaging impact on them.
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Many of them considered that a general deterioration of
the international trade and payments system was too great
a price to pay for the wholesale reform of that system, even
if reform was badly needed. The more radical among them
might still press forward, but the moderates saw the
danger of straining the system too much in its fragile state.
Developing countries also perceived more clearly their own
divergent interests with respect to certain elements of the
New Economic Order.

Analysis of the results of the Sixth Special Session
indicated that the benefits of the New Economic Order
would accrue largely to the middle-income developing
countries and would do little in the short run for the
countries of the fourth world. Many of the poorer develop-
ing countries may also have concluded that excessive con-
centration on structural changes might inhibit the flow of
assistance to them from traditional donor countries.

But if there was greater moderation among developing
countries, there was also greater moderation and a greater
readiness to accept new approaches among western coun-
tries. Eighteen months of analysis and reflection had
brought home to them that the real changes in the interna-
tional world required a greater degree of accommodation
than they had earlier envisaged. That, too, was an impor-
tant factor in the success achieved at the Seventh Special
Session.

May I now turn to the manner in which the Canadian
government has organized its response to this new
situation.

After the Sixth Special Session, it became apparent that
a special effort was needed to resume the dialogue and to
find a better basis for understanding.

In the Throne Speech of October, 1974 the government
indicated that Canada's contribution to international
measures to aid less developed countries would require an
increase in the flow of development assistance and a re-
examination of other policies affecting our economic rela-
tions with developing countries. Subsequently, ministers
agreed to set up a Senior Interdepartmental Committee on
Economic Relations with Developing Countries, chaired by
the Under-Secretary of State for External Affairs, in order
to prepare and co-ordinate the Canadian government’s
response to the “New International Economic Order.”

[Interprétation]

période de calme relatif dans la région. Entre les deux
sessions extraordinaires, 'ONU avait été mise a rude
épreuve. En septembre 1975, le climat politique s'était
détendu et il était possible d’étudier les questions économi-
ques avec plus de sérénité.

La situation économique mondiale explique également ie
changement d’atmosphére, car les pays en voie de dévelop-
pement ont percu qu'ils subiraient les contrecoups d’une
poursuite de l'inflation et de la récession dans le monde
industrialisé.

Nombre d’entre eux ont jugé que la dégradation généra-
lisée du systéme commercial et financier était un prix trop
élevé a payer pour la réforme globale de 'ordre économi-
que mondial, méme si la nécessité de cette réforme se
faisait cruellement sentir. Les plus radicaux n’ont pas
abandonné pour autant leurs revendications, mais les
modérés ont vu le danger qu’il y avait a trop exiger d'un
systéme fragile. Les pays en voie de développement ont
également percu plus clairement qu’a la sixiéme session
leurs propres intéréts divergents a 1’égard de certains élé-
ments du Nouvel ordre économique.

En effet, 'analyse des résultats de la sixiéme session
extraordinaire a révélé que les bienfaits du Nouvel ordre
économique profiteraient surtout aux pays en voie de déve-
loppement moyennement nantis et n’apporteraient pas
grand-chose aux pays du quart monde. Quantité des pays
les plus démunis en sont peut-étre venus a la conclusion
qu'une trop grande concentration sur les changements
structurels pourrait avoir une incidence néfaste sur l'aide
que leur consentent les pays donateurs traditionnels.

Mais si les pays en voie de développement ont manifesté
une plus grande modération, les pays occidentaux en ont
fait autant et se sont montrés plus disposés a accepter de
nouvelles approches. Dix-huit mois d’analyse et de
réflexion leur ont fait prendre conscience que les change-
ments véritables survenus dans le systéme international
requéraient plus d’accomodements qu’ils ne l'avaient envi-
sagés auparavant. Cela a également été pour beaucoup
dans la réussite de la septiéme session extraordinaire.

Comment le gouvernement a-t-il réagi face a cette nou-
velle situation?

Aprés la sixiéme session extraordinaire, il est apparu
évident a tous qu'un effort spécial était nécessaire pour
renouer le dialogue et trouver un meilleur terrain
d’entente.

Dans le discours du Tréne d'octobre 1974, le gouverne-
ment canadien a déclaré que la contribution du Canada
aux mesures internationales d’aide aux pays moins déve-
loppés exigerait un accroissement de I'aide au développe-
ment et un réexamen des autres politiques qui touchent
nos relations économique avec les pays en voie de dévelop-
pement. Par la suite, les ministres ont convenus de consti-
tuer un Comité interministériel supérieur sur les relations
économiques avec les pays en voie de développement, sous
la présidence du Sous-secrétaire d'Etat aux Affaires exté-
rieures. Ce comité devait préparer et coordonner la réponse
du gouvernement canadien au «Nouvel ordre économiques.
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It was clear from the start that the issues in play fell
within the responsibility of several government depart-
ments and would need to be approached on an interdepart-
mental basis. In its operations the Committee facilitates
the co-ordinating role of the Department of External
Affairs with respect to Canada’s relations with developing
countries. It also provides the vehicle for a multi-dimen-
sional approach. Its mandate is, first, to direct a continuing
review of policies as they affect Canada’s economic and
other relations with developing countries; second, to con-
sider the consistency of Canada’s international economic
and other policies with Canada’s development policies, and
third, to ensure the preparation of policy positions for
major international meetings affecting Canada’s economic
and other relations with developing countries.

The departments and agencies which participate in its
work are, the Prime Minister’s Office; the Privy Council
Office; the Departments of Finance; Industry; Trade and
Commerce; Consumer and Corporate Affairs; Agriculture;
Energy, Mines and Resources; Ministry of Transport; Min-
istry of State for Science and Technology; CIDA; the Trea-
sury Board, as well as the Department of External Affairs.

The Committee first met late in 1974 and has held four
sessions at the senior level during 1975. I Chair the Com-
mittee, but if I am not able to go, it is chaired by an
Assistant Under-Secretary responsible for this area in my
Department.

Between sessions of the Committee, work is carried
forward under a task force chaired by the Director General
of the Bureau of Economic and Scientific Affairs in Exter-
nal Affairs, Miss McDougall. In addition, individual work-
ing groups are set up from time to time to pursue work on
specific matters.

The Committee does not work in isolation, but draws on
the work of other interdepartmental committees with
responsibilities in related areas.

In the normal course of events, the Committee’s analysis
and recommendations are presented to Cabinet by the
Secretary of State for External Affairs. These may relate
to a major international meeting or to ongoing work
within the government related to the regular round of
consultations with developing and developed countries
bilaterally or in international organizations. Up to now
there are four central areas on which the Committee and
the task force have concentrated their attention: commodi-
ties, trade liberalization, industrial co-operation; including
investment and the transfer of technology, and financial
and monetary issues.
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In considering the four key areas I have just mentioned,
it is necessary to bear in mind that the resolution passed at
the Seventh Special Session, important though it is, repre-
sents a point in time, and that the response to the needs of
developing countries is a continuing process. The Canadi-
an government did not wait for the Seventh Special Ses-
sion to initiate measures which respond to the needs iden-
tified at the earlier special session, but undertook that
work immediately. It is now pursuing it in the light of
Resolution 3362 which, as you will recall, is the resolution

[Interpretation]

Dés le départ, il était manifeste que les questions consi-
dérées relevaient de plusieurs ministéres de I'Etat et néces-
siteraient une approche interministérielle. Dans le cadre de
ses activités, le Comité facilite le réle de coordination du
ministére des Affaires extérieures a 'égard des relations
du Canada avec les pays en voie de développement. Ainsi,
il assure une approche multidimensionnelle. Son mandat
consiste donc; premiérement, a diriger un examen perma-
nent des politiques qui touchent les relations économiques
et autres du Canada avec les pays en voie de développe-
ment; deuxiément, a déterminer si les politiques économi-
ques et autres du Canada dans le domaine international
cadrent avec ses politiques de développement; et troisiéme-
ment, a veiller a ’élaboration d’énoncés de politique en vue
des principales rencontres internationales qui ont une inci-
dence sur les relations économiques et autres du Canada
avec les pays en voie de développement.

Participent a ses travaux le Cabinet du Premier minis-
tre, le Bureau du Conseil privé, les ministéres des Finan-
ces, de I'industrie et du Commerce, de la Consommation et
des Corporations, de I’Agriculture, de 'Energie, des Mines
et des Ressources, Transports CANADA, le ministére
d’Etat aux Sciences et a la Technologie, ’ACDI, le Conseil
du Trésor ainsi que le ministére des Affaires extérieures.

Le Comité s’est réuni pour la premiére fois vers la fin de
1974 et, cette année, a tenu quatre séances au niveau
sous-ministériel. Lorsqu’il m'est impossible de présider le
Comité, le sous-secrétaire d’Etat adjoint responsable de ce
secteur aux Affaires extérieures me remplace.

Entre les séances du Comité, le travail se poursuit au
sein d’'un Groupe d’étude présidé par M" McDougall, direc-
trice générale du Bureau des affaires économiques et scien-
tifiques. En outre, divers groupes de travail sont mis sur
pied a loccasion pour approfondir des questins
particuliéres.

Le Comité ne travaille pas en vase clos, mais s'inspire
des travaux d’autres comités interministériels ceuvrant
dans des domaines connexes.

Habituellement, les analyses et recommandations du
Comité sont soumises au Cabinet par le secrétaire d'Etat
aux Affaires extérieures. Ses travaux peuvent étre liés a
une importante rencontre internationale comme la Réu-
nion des chefs de Gouvernement a Kingston ou la septiéme
session extraordinaire, ou encore aux préparatifs en cours
au sein du Gouvernement en vue des consultations régulie-
res tenues avec les pays industrialisés et les pays en voie
de développement, tant sur le plan bilatéral qu’au sein
d’organisations internationales. Jusqu'a maintenant, le
Comité et le Groupe d’étude ont concentré leur attention
sur quatre secteurs principaux: les produits de base; la
libéralisation des échanges; la coopération industrielle,
notamment les investissements et le transfert de la techno-
logie; et les questions financiéres et monétaires.

Pour placer dans une juste perspective les quatre sec-
teurs clés que je viens de mentionner, il ne faut pas oublier
que la résolution 3362, si importante soit-elle, ne constitue
qu’un élément de ’ensemble et que les mesures prises pour
satisfaire les besoins des pays en voie de développement
s'inscrivent dans un processus continu. Le Gouvernement
canadien n'a pas attendu la septiéme session extraordi-
naire pour adopter de telles mesures mais, dés la fin de la
sixiéme session, il a commencé a étudier les moyens de
répondre aux besoins identifiés a cette occasion. Il poursuit
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passed by the Seventh Special Session of the General
Assembly.

The initiatives we took at the World Food Conference
and are still pursuing in terms of its results and those of
the Seventh Session are relevant here. We made a volume
commitment for the provision of grain through our aid
program against the international target. We have sub-
scribed to the Undertaking on World Food Security. We
have placed new emphasis on agricultural development in
the context of our own aid program. Over one-third of our
current aid expenditures are devoted to the provision of
food aid to meet urgent needs, and to support for agricul-
tural development. We are at present negotiating the es-
tablishment of an international fund for agricultural
development.

As for commodities, co-operation in this area involved
many other measures as well. We have in the past months
actively contributed to the negotiation of new commodity
agreements on tin and cocoa. In the tin negotiations,
Canada pressed for mandatory consumer contributions to
the financing of the tin buffer stock. That proposal was not
included in the new agreement, owing to the opposition of
other consuming countries. We are now examining the
possibility of making a voluntary contribution to the
buffer stock. The new cocoa agreement, concluded after
the Seventh Session, provides for a significant increase in
the price range. It used to be 29.5 to 38.5 cents per pound,
after an interim adjustment, and will now be from 39 to 55
cents a pound.

We are at present engaged in negotiations on coffee and
are preparing for negotiations on sugar. All of these com-
modities are included in UNCTAD's integrated approcah.
Our support for these agreements is one means of giving
effect to that approach. We are examining the other com-
modities covered by the integrated approach. We have
affirmed that we are prepared to seek appropriate consum-
er-producer solutions on a wide range of commodities,
including buffer stocks where these can be useful. This
approach is not limited to the commodities included on the
UNCTAD list. The nature of the commitments would vary
according to the trading characteristics of each commodity.
We shall be pursuing this work, in consultation with other
interested countries, at the UNCTAD committee on com-
modities in December. There have recently been proposals
for early action on tea and copper and, if such negotiations
take place, we shall wish to participate in them.

Turning to trade liberalization, we are at present review-
ing our system of tariff preferences in favour of developing
countries to see what further advantages may be accorded
to them without undue burdens for Canada. We are for-
mulating our tariff offer on tropical products for consider-
ation in the multilateral trade negotiations, as requested
by developing countries. We are also discussing with de-
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[Interprétation]

son travail dans l'esprit de la résolution 3362, résolution
adoptée lors de la septiéme session extraordinaire de I'As-
semblée générale.

Les initiatives que nous avons prises a la Conférence
mondiale de l'alimentation et l'action que nous poursui-
vons pour mener a bonne fin cette entreprise et les initiati-
ves amorcées lors de la septiéme session gardent toute leur
pertinence. Nous nous sommes engagés, en regard de 1'ob-
jectif international, a fournir une certaine quantité de
céréales par la voie de notre programme d’aide. Nous avons
souscrit a I'Engagement au titre de la sécurité alimentaire
mondiale. Nous avons mis un accent nouveau sur le déve-
loppement agricole dans le cadre de notre propre pro-
gramme d’aide. Plus du tiers de nos dépenses actuelles au
titre de l'aide est consacré a la fourniture d’une aide ali-
mentaire pour répondre aux besoins urgents et appuyer le
développement agricole. Nous participons actuellement
aux négociations en vue de I’établissement du Fonds de
développement agricole.

La coopération dans le domaine des produits de base
comprend nombre d’autres mesures. Nous avons, au cours
des derniers mois, activement contribué a la négociation de
nouveaux accords sur le cacao et ’étain. Dans les négocia-
tions sur l'étain, le Canada a insisté pour que les pays
consommateurs contribuent obligatoirement au stock régu-
lateur de I'étain. Cette proposition n’a cependant pas été
incluse dans le nouvel accord étant donné I'opposition
d’autres pays consommateurs. Nous envisageons donc
maintenant la possibilité de faire une contribution volon-
taire au stock régulateur, comme 'on déja fait certains de
ces pays. Le nouvel accord sur le cacao, conclu aprés la
septiéme session extraordinaire, prévoit une augmentation
importante de I'éventail des prix. L’échelle, qui variait de
29.5 a 38.5 cents la livre (aprés un ajustement provisoire),
s'étendra maintenant de 39 & 55 cents la livre. Le prix
moyen que cherche a stabiliser 'accord est donc passé de
34 4 47 cents la livre.

Nous sommes actuellement engagés dans des négocia-
tions sur le café et nous nous préparons a des négociations
sur le sucre. Tous ces produits de base sont inclus dans
I’Approche intégrée de la CNUCED, que nous aidons a
mettre en ceuvre par notre appui a ces accords. Nous
étudions le cas des autres produits mentionnés dans I’Ap-
proche intégrée. Nous avons affirmé que nous étions dispo-
sés a rechercher, pour un vaste choix de produits, des
solutions qui conviennent aux consommateurs et aux pro-
ducteurs, y compris les stocks régulateurs lorsqu’ils peu-
vent étre utiles. Et nous ne pensons pas alors uniquement
aux produits que renferme la liste de la CNUCED. Dans
chaque cas, la nature des engagements variera en fonction
des particularités commerciales du produit en cause. Nous
poursuivrons cette entreprise, en consultation avec les
autres pays intéressés, lors de la réunion que tiendra en
décembre le Comité des produits de base de la CNUCED.
On a proposé récemment que des mesures soient prises le
plus tot possible au sujet du thé et du cuivre. Si des
négociations ont lieu a cet effet, nous serons heureux d'y
participer.

En ce qui concerne la libéralisation des échanges com-
merciaux, nous révisons actuellement notre systéme de
préférences tarifaires en faveur des pays en voie de déve-
loppement. Nous essayons de la sorte de déterminer quels
autres avantages peuvent étre accordés a ces derniers sans
que le Canada en soit indiment affecté. Nous formulons
notre offre tarifaire sur les produits tropicaux, laquelle
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veloping countries how the problem of tariff escalation
may be handled through the sector approach, in order to
give the producers of raw materials greater opportunities
for processing them. The developed countries generally are
pledged to seek additional benefits for developing coun-
tries in the trade negotiations.

On industrial co-operation, we are exploring several new
approaches. We are considering the utility of bilateral
co-operation agreements as a means of giving greater focus
to our efforts in this area. The idea behind this approach is
to facilitate investment and the transfer of technology by
the private sector which has the greatest resources in this
area. Such agreements might encompass development
assistance for capital projects, for technical training, and
for managerial training; support for the development of
infrastructure related to industrial development; provi-
sions related to investment; co-operation with the private
sector to ensure that these various elements complement
one another in a systematic way. We have reached no final
conclusions regarding this approach, but the studies under
way are based on the assumption that if these various
elements of co-operation are more closely related the whole
may be greater than the sum of the parts.
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We have suggested that the possibility of evolving a
model bilateral industrial co-operation agreement might be
examined by UNIDO, and possibly by the Commonwealth
Secretariat. The purpose of such a model agreement would
be to advance international consideration of industrial
co-operation, and to serve as a checklist of issues for
developed and developing countries that are considering
industrial co-operation arrangements.

In addition to this approach, we are taking an active part
in international consideration of transnational corpora-
tions, restrictive business practices, and the transfer of
technology. There is much that can be gained by analysis
and the exchange of information in these areas, and we
have been in the forefront of those contributing to this
process.

We have stated that we are ready to share our own
experience with respect to screening mechanisms, the anal-
ysis of tax laws, and the analysis of the costs and benefits
of technology transfers. We see a parallel role for the
United Nations in such matters. From our perspective, it is
essential that developing countries acquire the capacity to
make their own judgments on these issues, because the
evolution of any international code promises to be long,
difficult and of doubtful benefit to developing countries.

So far as financial and monetary issues are concerned,
we are actively involved in a number of fields. We have
strongly supported the establishment of special drawing
rights as the central reserve asset of the international
monetary system, and the phasing out of gold, as desired
by developing countries.

[Interpretation]

sera étudiée lors des négociations commerciales multilaté-
rales, tel que demandé par les pays en voie de développe-
ment. Nous rechercons également avec les pays en dévelop-
pement une facon de traiter le probléme de l'escalade
tarifaire en utilisant la méthode sectorielle, de facon a
donner aux pays producteurs de matiéres premiéres plus
de possibilités de transformer ces derniéres. Les pays déve-
loppés ont, dans I'’ensemble, pris 'engagement de chercher,
au cours des négociations commerciales, a faire profiter les
pays en voie de développement d’autres avantages.

Au chapitre de la coopération industrielle, nous envisa-
geons plusieurs nouvelles démarches: Nous étudions la
possibilité de conclure des accords de coopération bilaté-
rale afin de mieux concentrer les efforts que nous
déployons dans ce domaine. L’idée est d’encourager 'inves-
tissement et le transfert de technologie par le secteur
privé, qui dispose de plus de moyens dans ce domaine. De
tels accords pourraient couvrir; I'aide au développement
pour les projets d’investissement, la formation technique
et la formation des cadres; l'aide au développement de
I'infrastructure nécessaire a 'expansion industrielle; des
dispositions relatives a l'investissement; la coopération
avec le secteur privé pour assurer une complémentarité
systématique de ces divers éléments. Nou ne sommes pas
encore arrivés a des conclusions finales en ce qui concerne
cette démarche, mais les études en cours sont fondées sur
I’hypothése qu’une meilleure interrelation des divers élé-
ments de coopération assurera, au total, un résultat supé-
rieur a la somme des efforts isolés.

Nous avons proposé que 'ONUDI, et peut-étre aussi le
Secrétariat du Commonwealth, étudie la possibilité d’éla-
borer un accord bilatéral de coopération industrielle
«modéle». Un tel accord aurait une double utilité: il favori-
serait I’examen de la coopération industrielle a 1’échelle
internationale et servirait de référence de tels accords.

Outre cette démarche, nous prenons une part active a
I’étude internationale des sociétés transnationales, des pra-
tiques commerciales restrictives et des transferts de tech-
nologie Il y a beaucoup a gagner dans 'analyse et I'échange
des renseignements dont on dispose sur ces sujets, et nous
avons été au premier plan de ceux qui contribuent a cette
entreprise.

Nous avons déclaré étre préts a partager notre propre
expérience en ce qui concerne les mécanismes de tamisage,
I’analyse des lois fiscales et le calcul des coflits et des
avantages des transferts de technologie. Nous considérons
que les Nations Unies ont un role paralléle & jouer dans ces
domaines. A notre point de vue, il est essentiel que les pays
en voie de développement acquiérent la capacité d’exercer
leurs propres jugements sur ces questions, parce que I'éla-
boration de tout régime international promet d'étre longue
et difficile et sans doute pas a leur avantage.

Quant a notre intérét pour les incidences financiéres et
monétaires de la résolution 3362, il se traduit par une
participation active dans divers domaines: Nous avons
appuyé énergiquement l'utilisation des DTS a titre de
principal avoir de réserve du systéme monétaire interna-
tional, et a la réduction graduelle du réle de I'or, conformé-
ment au désir des pays industrialisés.
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We have supported a readjustment of quotas in the
International Monetary Fund, which has resulted in a
doubling of the share held by OPEC countries. In making
this read justment, we have held that the share of develop-
ing countries should not be reduced, as it would have been
by the application of objective criteria such as their par-
ticipation in world trade, and that the developed countries
instead should absorb the reduction in their voting rights.

We have supported the creation of the IMF’s oil facility
and subsidy account, the inauguration of a trust fund
based on the sale of IMF gold to deal with balance-of-pay-
ments problems, and the establishment of a third window
in the World Bank to assist middle-income developing
countries.

We are at present involved in the negotiations for a fifth
replenishment of the IDA, which provides concessional
financing for the poorer developing countries.

We are increasing our contributions to the regional de-
velopment banks. It will be our objective to bring the
replenishment negotiations in the World Bank, and in
several of the regional development banks to a successful
conclusion.

We support the liberalization of the IMF’s buffer stock
financing, and compensatory financing facilities, as a
means of protecting developing countries against abrupt
declines in their export earnings. This was a major issue in
New York. If there is a substantial improvement in the
compensatory financing facility, it might well serve the
purpose of proposals put forward by Sweden and the
United States at the Seventh Special Session.

This is not the sum of our endeavour to follow-up Reso-
lutions 3362, but it is a survey of the work under way to
give effect to the Minister’s statement in New York that
there must be adjustments in the international economic
system that will lead to a more rapid reduction in the
disparities between developed and developing countries.
This is work that proceeds on a day-to-day basis, with
analysis and recommendations to Ministers.

We cannot predict the pace of progress in each of these
areas, but we expect that the political impact of the resolu-
tion will exert a continuing influence in the detailed dis-
cussions and negotiations. The session itself will be a
landmark in the relations between developed and develop-
ing countries, if the co-operative atmosphere it created
hastens that process.

There are two elements in hastening the process. The
first is maintaining the political momentum. Here the
Conference on International Economic Co-operation,
which the Minister discussed with you and which is sched-
uled to take place next month, will be of major importance,
and so will the fourth conference of UNCTAD in Nairobi
next year. The interdepartmental committee is now work-
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[Interprétation]

Nous avons donné notre appui & un réajustement des
quotes-parts au sein du FMI, ce qui a eu pour effet de
doubler le nombre de parts détenues par les pays membres
de 'OPEP. Nous avons soutenu que le réajustement ne
devait pas entrainer une diminution des parts allouées aux
pays en voie de développement (comme c’elt été le cas si
on avait appliqué des critéres objectifs tels que leur parti-
cipation au commerce mondial) et que les pays développés
devaient au contraire en absorber les contrecoups, c'est-a-
dire accepter la réduction de leurs droits de vote.

Nous avons donné notre appui a la création d’un méca-
nisme pétrolier et d'un compte de subvention au sein du
FMI, a l'instauration d’'un Fonds fiduciaire spécial qui
permette de régler les problémes de balance des paiements
suscités par la vente de l'or du FMI, et a 'institution d’'un
troisiéme guichet au sein de la Banque mondiale qu ait
pour but d’aider les pays en développement & revenu
moyen.

Nous sommes présentement engagés dans des négocia-
tions en vue d’une cinquiéme reconstitution des ressources
de 'IDA, qui offre aux pays pauvres en voie de développe-
ment des sources de financement & des conditions de
faveur. Nous étudions parallément des propositions visant
a4 une augmentation du capital de la Société financiére
internationale, autre organisme subsidiaire de la Banque
mondiale.

Nous augmentons nos contributions aux banques régio-
nales de développement. Nous chercherons & assurer la
conclusion heureuse des négociations au sein de la Banque
mondiale et de plusieurs des banques régionales de
développement.

Nous appuyons la libéralisation des mécanismes de
financement des stocks régulateurs et de financement com-
pensatoire du FMI, parce qu'ils peuvent préserver les pays
en voie de développement d’'un déclin rapide de leurs
recettes d’exportation. Cette question a d’ailleurs été d’'une
grande importance a8 New York. Si la situation du méca-
nisme de financement compensatoire s’améliore sensible-
ment, elle pourrait bien servir les fins des propositions
présentées & New York par la Suéde et les Etats-Unis.

Je n’ai pas voulu faire la somme des efforts que nous
avons déployés dans le cadre de la Résolution 3362, mais
vous donner un apercu des travaux en cours pour mettre a
exécution la déclaration du Ministre 4 New York selon
laquelle «on doit procéder a des rajustements du systéme
économique international en vue d'une réduction plus
rapide des disparités entre nations industrialisées et pays
en voie de développement». Le travail se poursuit & chaque
jour; des études sont faites et des recommandations sont
présentées aux ministres.

Nous ne pouvons prévoir le rythme auquel les progrés
seront réalisés dans chacun des domaines, mais nous nous
attendons a ce que l'incidence politique de la résolution
continue a se faire sentir sur les discussions et les négocia-
tions. La session méme sera vue comme la charniére des
relations entre pays industrialisés et pays en voie de déve-
loppement si I'atmosphére de coopération qu'elle a créée
accélére cette évolution.

Cette accélération tient a deux facteurs. Premiérement,
il ne faut pas que se ralentisse le processus politique. La
Conférence sur la coopération économique internationale,
dont le Ministre a discuté avec vous, ainsi que la quatriéme
Conférence de la CNUCED qui doit avoir lieu a Nairobi
'an prochain, seront d'une importance considérable a cet
égard. Le CIREPD, comité interministériel, est & mettre la
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ing on the preparations for these meetings, and is basing
itself on Resolution 3362.
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The second element is the series of negotiations and
discussions taking place in specialized bodies. The results
of the Seventh Special Session, the commitments made
there, must have their substantive impact in these special-
ized bodies. What this means for the Canadian government
is that we must examine, in a systematic way, the various
elements of that resolution as we engage in international
consideration of them. Such an examination involves an
assessment of the costs and benefits to the Canadian
economy. What will particular measures mean in terms of
Canada’s competitiveness, costs or advantages for the
Canadian consumer, or employment in Canada? What are
the financial implications for the Canadian government?
While it is impossible to “cost” the whole range of proposi-
tions in Resolution 3362, some estimates can normally be
made of the costs and benefits of the particular steps
which are contemplated. If the demand is for liberalization
of trade in a sensitive area such as textiles, we can and
must estimate the impact it would have on Canadian
industry, and we must consider to what degree other
industrialized countries are affording equivalent access to
their markets.

Thus, the process also involves consultations with our
major trading partners in the industrialized world. The
policies we pursue on trade, commodity or financial mat-
ters affect very deeply our relations with them. Our
actions affect them just as their initiatives have an impor-
tant effect on us. We must work with them if we wish to
obtain results. In many areas, we cannot hope to give effect
to policies unless they have the consent and support of
other developed countries. The dialogue is thus with both
developed and developing countries.

It is no easy task to comprehend or pursue the variety of
issues included in this multidimensional approach to de-
velopment, particularly as it includes energy, as well as
trade, aid and finance in the context of the forthcoming
Paris Conference. These issues and their interrelationships
are not well understood by all Canadians interested in
them. Realizing that, we have thought it important to
organize consultations with interested representatives of
the private sector, including representatives of labour,
agriculture, industry, the churches and voluntary associa-
tions. Two such consultations have now been held and we
expect to continue this practice.

A number of the organizations involved receive financial
support from CIDA which assists them in holding semi-
nars and meetings across the country. We seek by this
means to engage the interest and support of Canadians in
all walks of life, recognizing that in times of inflation and
unemployment this may not be an easy task.

Mr. Chairman, I have outlined the situation and what is
being done to respond to it at some length. It is obviously
not possible to cover all the points of interest at one time. I
believe you will wish to examine the various particular
areas with representatives of the several departments

[Interpretation]
derniére main aux préparatifs en vue de ces réunions. Il
s’est servi de la Résolution 3362 comme point de départ.

Le second élément est la série de discussions et de
négociations entreprise au sein des institutions spéciali-
sées. Les conclusions de la Septiéme session extraordi-
naire, ainsi que les engagements pris a cette occasion,
auront sans doute des répercussions considérables a ce
niveau. Le gouvernement canadien doit donc étudier de
facon systématique les divers éléments de la Résolution
3362 avant de participer a leur examen au sein des instan-
ces internationales. Une telle étude comprend I'évaluation
des couts et des avantages pour l'’économie canadienne.
Que représenteront des mesures particuliéres par rapport a
la position concurrentielle du Canada, aux colts ou aux
avantages aux consommateurs canadiens, ou au travail au
Canada? Bien qu'il soit impossible de déterminer le «cout»
de la gamme de propositions formulées dans la Résolution
3362, on peut évaluer les colits et les avantages des mesures
particuliéres qui sont envisagées. Si une demande se fait
sentir pour la libéralisation des échanges dans un domaine
trés sensible comme le textile, nous pouvons et devons
évaluer ses répercussions sur I'industrie canadienne. Nous
devons aussi déterminer dans quelle mesure les autres
pays industrialisés permettent un accés équivalent a leur
marché.

Voila pourquoi il nous faut consulter nos principaux
partenaires commerciaux du monde industrialisé. Les poli-
tiques que nous poursuivons dans les secteurs du com-
merce, des produits de base et de la finance marquent trés
profondément les rapports que nous entretenons avec eux.
Notre conduite dicte leur comportement, comme leurs ini-
tiatives exercent un effet important sur nous. Nous devons
travailler avec eux si nous voulons obtenir des résultats
tangibles. En effet, nous ne pouvons espérer appliquer
tangibles. En effet, nous ne pouvons espérer appliquer nos
politiques dans bon nombre de secteurs sans le consente-
ment et 'appui des autres pays industrialisés. Le dialogue
doit donc s’établir a la fois avec les pays industrialisés et
avec les pays en voie de développement.

Il n’est pas facile de cerner ou de traiter la diversité des
questions qui suscitent cette approche multidimension-
nelle du développement, surtout en ce qui concerne I'éner-
gie, le commerce, I'aide et les ressources financiéres, dans
le cadre de la Conférence qui se tiendra prochainement a
Paris. Ces questions, tout comme le lien qui les unit, ne
sont pas bien comprises de tous les Canadiens qui s'y
intéressent. C’est pourquoi nous avons jugé important
d’organiser des rencontres avec certains représentants du
secteur privé—représentants des travailleurs—des agricul-
teurs de 'industrie, des églises et des associations bénévo-
les. Deux de ces rencontres ont déja eu lieu et nous souhai-
tons continuer cette pratique.

Certains de ces organismes recoivent de '’ACDI une aide
financiére qui leur permet de tenir des colloques et des
réunions au pays. Nous cherchons par ce moyen a susciter
I'intérét et I'appui de tous les Canadiens, mais nous recon-
naissons qu’en ces temps d’'inflation et de chomage, ce n’est
pas facile.

Monsieur le président, j'ai brossé un tableau assez
détaillé de la situation et des mesures que nous avons
prises pour y répondre. Il n’est évidemment pas possible de
traiter toutes les questions importantes a la fois. Vous
voudrez probablement discuter des diverses questions avec
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which have special responsibility for them. I am happy to
have with me here today members of the interested depart-
ments, who were identified at the outset, and I am sure
that they will be happy to join me in responding to your
questions and to provide further information at subse-
quent hearings.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Robinson. Before I
recognize Mr. Roche, I would like to have agreement as to
the time of adjournment. Do we adjourn at five o’clock? Do
we have an agreement on five o’clock, or do we wish to go
beyond five o’clock?

Some hon. Members: Five o’clock.

The Chairman: Five o’clock. Agreed. Thank you. Mr.
Roche.

Mr. Roche: Mr. Chairman, I would like to thank Mr.
Robinson for a very comprehensive statement which con-
tinues the positive thrust of the five-year strategy to which
he and the Committee that he Chairs are advancing.

Your statement gives me some concern, however,
because it seems, Mr. Chairman, that the Interdepartmen-
tal Committee that Mr. Robinson heads and our own Par-
liamentary Committee are on the same track. Mr. Robin-
son, you are advancing ideas, policies, for the Canadian
government to consider in implementing the five-year
strategy and you have to back you up a wide-ranging
group of experts.

® 1610
I am wondering to what extent the recommendations,
which this Parliamentary Committee will ultimately
make, will be of value to you if you are considerably ahead
of us. This may be more our problem than yours and I
recognize this, but it is a source of concern to me inasmuch
as I would like the Parliamentary Committee to be as fully
informed on the issues as you and your associates are.
Therefore I am wondering in what way there can be a
continued liaison or link between our two groups so that
we can truely find the fastest way toward implementation.
I have in mind not only page 20 of your statement but
point 19 of point 1 on page 19 of the Five Year Strategy in
which the point is made very clearly there that it is going
to take several years for the multidimensional approach—
which I am fully subscribing to—to be felt, to be under-
stood in order to make some meaningful moves ahead.

So I would just like to begin by asking you to what
extent do you think we can get on the same track since we
want the same goal.

The Chairman: Mr. Robinson.

M. H. B. Robinson: Mr. Chairman, I do not know that
there is very much that I can say. I would like to make two
points in response to Mr. Roche's remarks.

First, I want to assure you that we value very much the
opportunity to meet with the Sub-committee and we will
be happy to do that at any time in its proceedings and
provide any assistance we can. I think we in turn will
benefit from the opportunity for exchanges of views.

Second, I think the process on which we are embarked is
a long-term process, as you pointed out, Mr. Roche. So that
the fact that your hearings will go on until early next year
does not mean, it seems to me, that the results will not be
valuable to the different departments and to the inter-
departmental committee when they are available. After all

[Interprétation]

les représentants des ministéres qui en sont chargés au
premier chef. Ceux qui m’accompagnent aujourd’hui et que
je vous ai présentés voudront bien me préter main forte
pour répondre a vos questions et vous fournir de plus
amples renseignements lors des prochaines séances.

Le président: Je vous remercie, monsieur Robinson.
Avant de donner la parole & M. Roche, j’aimerais que nous
nous mettions d’accord sur ’heure d’ajournement. Voulez-
vous que nous levions la séance a 5h00? Sommes-nous
d’accord pour 5h00 ou voulez-vous continuer plus tard?

Des voix: Cing heures.

Le président: Cing heures. D’accord. Je vous remercie.
Monsieur Roche.

M. Roche: Monsieur le président, j’aimerais remercier M.
Robinson de nous avoir fait un exposé aussi exhaustif,
reflet de la stratégie de 5 années que lui-méme et le comité
qu'’il préside coordonnent.

Néanmoins, votre exposé m’a causé quelque souci, car il
semble, monsieur le président, que le Comité interministé-
riel dirigé par M. Robinson et notre propre Comité parle-
mentaire font le méme travail. Monsieur Robinson, vous
proposez a la considération du gouvernement canadien des
idées, des politiques pouvant entrer dans la stratégie quin-
quennale et pour ce faire vous avez l'assistance d’un fort
groupe de spécialistes.

Je me demande dans quelle mesure les recommandations
du Comité parlementaire vous seront utiles si vous avez
beaucoup d’avance sur nous. Je sais que cela est notre
probléme et non pas le votre, mais je m’inquiéte d’autant
plus que je voudrais que le comité parlementaire soit aussi
bien renseigné sur les problémes que vous I'étes, vous et
vos collegues. Pourquoi donc ne pas constituer une sorte de
liaison entre nos deux groupes afin que nous puissions
trouver le plus rapidement possible la facon depasser a
I'application. Je ne songe pas seulement a ce que vous dites
a la page 20 de votre exposé, mais également a ce qu’on dit
a la page 19 de la brochure sur I'élaboration de la stratégie
quinquennale, a savoir que cela prendra plusieurs années
d’'un apport multi-dimensionnel—auquel je ne trouve rien
a reduire—pour que I'on comprenne et que l'on progresse
sérieusement.

Comment donc pouvons-nous nous engager dans la
méme voie pour viser le méme but?

Le président: Monsieur Robinson.

M. H. B. Robinson: Monsieur le président, j'ai deux
choses a dire en réponse aux remarques de M. Roche.

Tout d’abord j'aimerais que vous compreniez bien qu’il
est pour nous précieux de rencontrer les membres du sous-
comité et nous serons heureux, n'importe quand, de vous
venir en aide dans la mesure ol nous le pouvons. Nous

croyons qu’'a notre tour, nous profiterons de ces échanges
de vues.

‘ Deuxiémement, nous sommes engagés dans un processus
a long terme comme vous l'avez fait remarquer, monsieur
Roche, méme si vos audiences en dureront que jusqu'au
début de l'année prochaine, & mon avis, ce que nous en
retirerons sera précieux pour les divers ministéres et pour
le comité interministériel. N'oublions pas que la Confée-
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UNCTAD does not take place until, I think it is, next May
or June, and there will be conferences which go on beyond
that.

Mr. Roche: Well on the matter of UNCTAD, before I
move to my second question, I would like very much for
the Committee to be in a position to make intelligent
recommendations to both your Committee and the govern-
ment with respect to our position and UNCTAD's since I
think that is going to be absolutely crucial toward the
whole implementation of commodity agreements.

v

Let me move now to the matter of communication. I was
very interested to note your emphasis on continuing dia-
logue with developed and developing countries, developed
among themselves. There is a whole interplay. There are a
whole lot of things which are all interlocked here, as we
know. But high on my priority list is communication with
the Canadian people. I find, in my travels, that every
single Canadian knows about the resolution of the United
Nations on Zionism—the substance of which I do not
intend to discuss now—but if you can find one Canadian in
100 who can tell you anything about the new economic
order or about Canada’s five-year approach, Five Year
Strategy, you are doing well.

So on page 21 I was interested to note that you are
planning to organize consultations with interested repre-
sentatives of the private sector. Would you spell that out a
bit and tell us about the two consultations that you refer to
in the second sentence?

Mr. H. B. Robinson: Could Miss MacDougall answer
that as she has been involved in it?

Mr. Roche: Yes.

Miss Pamela MacDougall (Director General, Bureau
Economic and Scientific Affairs, Department of Exter-
nal Affairs): I am sorry, I missed the end of your question.

Mr. Roche: The thrust of my question was the kind of
consultations that you referred to in general terms at the
top of page 21:

in an effort to communicate to the Canadian people
what is going on

And then you mention two such consultations. Perhaps
you could . ..
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Miss MacDougall: Perhaps I could enlarge a little bit on
what has taken place. We have met a group of public
servants pretty well equal to what you see here, or repre-
sentatives of the same or of other departments. We met
again with pretty well the same people. I would be glad to
produce a list. It is essentially the NGOs, but it is the
Canadian Manufacturers’ Association, the Chamber of
Commerce, the Canadian Export Association, some of the
labour organizations, and then the church groups. It is a
fairly wide range of NGOs.

I would be, I think, the last to claim that we are covering
the public in depth. It is an extremely difficult thing to do.

[Interpretation]

rence des Nations-unies sur le commerce et le développe-
ment n'aura pas lieu avant mai ou juin et qu'elle sera
suivie d’autres conférences.

M. Roche: Pour ce qui est de la CNUCED, avant de
passer a ma deuxiéme question, jaimerais dire que les
membres de notre comité aimeraient pouvoir faire des
recommandations opportunes a votre comité et au gouver-
nement pour ce qui est de la position du Canada par
rapport a celle de la CNUCED, étant donné que ce sera
fondamental dans toute 'application des accords sur les
produits de base.

Passons maintenant a la communication. J'ai remarqué
avec intérét l'accent que vous mettez sur un dialogue
permanent entre pays industrialisés et pays en voie de
développement de méme que d'un pays industrialisé a
I'autre. Tout s’imbrique. Nous savons tous qu'ici beaucoup
d’éléments sont interdépendants les uns des autres. Mais
au sommet de mon échelle prioritaire je place les communi-
cations avec les Canadiens. J'ai remarqué que tous les
Canadiens connaissent la résolution des Nations-unies sur
le sionisme—dont je ne discuterai pas ici—mais moins d’un
pour cent des Canadiens peuvent vous parler du nouvel
ordre économique ou de la stratégie quinquennale.

J’ai donc été intéressé de lire a la page 21 que vous
envisagez des rencontres avec les intéressés dans le secteur
privé. Pouvez-vous nous dire de quoi il s’agit et nous parler
davantage des deux rencontres auxquelles vous faites allu-
sion dans la deuxiéme phrase.

M. H. B. Robinson: M MacDougall pourrait-elle répon-
dre a cette question, puisqu’elle s’en est occupée?

M. Roche: Oui.

Mlle Pamela MacDougall (directrice générale, Bureau
des affaires économiques et scientifiques, ministére des
Affaires extérieures): Excusez-moi, je n'ai pas entendu la
derniére partie de votre question.

M. Roche: J'aimerais savoir de quel genre de rencontre il
s’agit. Vous parlez en termes généraux au haut dela page
21:

En visant & faire part aux Canadiens de ce qui se
passe.

Aprés quoi vous parlez de deux rencontres. Peut-étre
pourriez-vous. ..

Mlle MacDougall: Je pourrais vous donner quelques
précisions sur ce qui s'est passé. Nous avons rencontré un
groupe de fonctionnaires, ceux qui sont présents ici ou
leurs représentants ou des représentants d’'autres ministe-
res. Nous avons rencontré & peu prés les mémes gens. Je
pourrais vous en donner une liste. Il s’agit d’organismes
non gouvernementaux pour la plupart, I’Association des
manufacturiers canadiens, la Chambre de commerce, I'As-
sociation canadienne d’exportation, certains syndicats et
certains groupes religieux. Il s’agit d'une gamme assez
étendue d’organismes non gouvernementaux.

Nous ne prétendons nullement que cela constitue une
représentation exhaustive du public en général, ce qui est
trés difficile a réaliser.
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Of course, as you know, Mr. Roche, during the Seventh
Special Session, we had the opportunity of talking to a
number of NGO representatives. That was a slightly dif-
ferent group of NGOs. Since then, we have met again with
this broader group and we would hope to continue every
few months to meet with them and in the interval to
provide them with documentation and to answer
questions.

Mr. Roche: This brings me to my final point, Mr. Chair-
man. I sense a certain hesitation in active planning of
consultations with a wide range of Canadians on a definite
scheduled basis.

I wrote to the Minister following the Seventh Special
Session and made some recommendations along these lines
to him. He responded in a positive way, but said it would
be up to CIDA.

The thrust of this statement Mr. Robinson has just read
makes it very clear to me that the Interdepartmental Com-
mittee supersedes CIDA in the projection out to the
Canadian people of what is going on in international de-
velopment today, since the multidimensional approach is
obviously far more important than the direct aid approach.

I think I would like to get straight who is really going to
take the responsibility for organizing consultations and
seminars with the Canadian people for the multidimen-
sional approach, so that we can gradually get across to the
Canadian people that while aid is still necessary—and I
wish there were more time; if we were on a second round, I
would like to go on to the whole question of aid, Mr.
Chairman—but while aid is still necessary, we must be
able to communicate in direct terms of what the multidi-
mensional approach means to manufacturers, to textiles,
and get across to the Canadian people.

So who is actually going to set up a series of public
sessions with the Canadian public to inform them? Other-
wise, we will never be able to implement the five-year
strategy and we are going to be hung up on Point 19, I
think, for years.

The Chairman: Mr. Robinson.

Mr. H. B. Robinson: Mr. Chairman, I think it is clear
that greater effort has to be made. I believe when the
Minister was before the Subcommittee, he indicated that
he intended himself to make every effort to inform the
public of different aspects of the multidimensional
approach. I think it is a point that you have raised, how-
ever, to which we will have to give greater consideration.
Thank you very much.

Mr. Roche: Thank you.
The Chairman: Thank you.
Mr. Brewin.

Mr. Brewin: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Roche has raised the
very subject that I wanted to raise. I want to identify
myself with what he has said. I too have a feeling that
what is described here, page 21, does not indicate that
sense of urgency about communicating with the Canadian
people. It seems to me at this particular stage to be very
important.

Is it a mere case of unintentional omission, for example,
that the sectors we get in touch with do not include any
reference to universities and schools? If we are going to do
an educational job on the people of Canada, I would have
hoped for substantial co-operation from universities and
schools. It is my experience that that sector of the public is

[Interprétation]

Monsieur Roche, vous savez siirement qu’au cours de la
Septiéme session extraordinaire, nous avons eu l'occasion
de parler a des représentants d’organismes non gouverne-
mentaux. Mais il s’agissait 14 d’organismes assez différents.
Depuis lors, nous avons rencontré des groupes plus vastes
et nous espérons pouvoir continuer au cours des mois a
venir. En attendant nous leur donnons de la documenta-
tion et nous répondons a leurs questions.

M. Roche: Monsieur le président, j'en arrive & ma der-
niére question. J'ai I'impression qu’'on hésite a prévoir des
rencontres avec un groupe de Canadiens plus vaste, a des
dates fixes.

J'ai écrit au ministre aprés la Septiéme session extraor-
dinaire et je lui ai recommandé certaines mesures a pren-
dre a cet effet. Sa réponse fut trés positive, mais il s’en
remettait a ’ACDI.

I1 est trés clair, M. Robinson, d’aprés I’exposé que vous
venez de nous lire, que le Comité interministériel remplace
I’ACDI dans la fonction de renseigner les Canadiens sur ce
qui se passe en matiére de développement international
aujourd’hui, puisque 'optique multidimensionnelle est de
toute évidence préférée a une aide directe.

J’aimerais savoir qui aura la charge d’organiser ces ren-
contres et ces séminars avec les Canadiens pour faire
connaitre cette optique multidimensionnelle de sorte que
les Canadiens puissent comprendre progressivement que
méme si 'aide est nécessaire, les manufacturiers, les repré-
sentants de 'industrie textile et les Canadiens en général
doivent comprendre ce que signifie cette optique multidi-
mensionnelle; je déplore ne pas avoir plus de temps ou que
nous puissions avoir un second tour car j'aimerais discuter
de toute la question de l'aide.

Qui donc va se charger de prévoir une série de rencontres
publiques pour renseigner les Canadiens? A défaut de cela,
nous ne pourrons jamais mettre en application la stratégie
quinquennale et le point n° 19 sera un échec.

Le président: Monsieur Robinson.

M. H. B. Robinson: Monsieur le président, il est entendu
que nous devons intensifier nos efforts. Je crois que le
ministre a témoigné devant le sous-comité et qu'il a indi-
qué qu'’il entendait tenter lui-méme de renseigner le public
sur les différents aspects de cette optique multidimension-
nelle. Mais la question que vous avez soulevée mérite qu’on
s’y attarde plus longuement. Merci beaucoup.

M. Roche: Mereci.
Le président: Merci.
Monsieur Brewin.

M. Brewin: Monsieur le président, M. Roche a abordé
tous les sujets que je voulais aborder. Je voudrais m’asso-
cier a ce qu'il vient de dire et faire remarquer que jai
également l'impression que ce dont on parle a la page 21
n’indique pas qu’on ressent l'urgence de cette communica-
tion avec le peuple canadien. A mon avais, au stade ol nous
en sommes présentement, c’est fondamental.

Est-ce sans le vouloir qu'on a omis, par exemple des
institutions comme les écoles et les universités? Si nous
devons accomplir une mission éducative auprés des Cana-
diens, nous devons nous assurer de la collaboration des
universités et des écoles. Je sais d'expérience que certaines
couches du public sont plus intéressées et plus éclairées
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more interested and more enlightened than their elders,
and I think we could get a lot of help from them. As I say,
it may just be one of those things that when you are
preparing a document, you cannot think of everything at
the same time; but is any effort being made in regard to the
unversities and schools.
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Mr. H. B. Robinson: I would simply like to say that
perhaps the people who have been working in this inter-
departmental committee have been preoccupied with the
work of trying to co-ordinate the interdepartmental effort
and have yet to crystallize recommendations to put before
the government. I must say that I accept and welcome the
emphasis which has been placed by the members of the
subcommittee on the importance of communication with
the various groups, including the universities and schools.
As I said in reply to Mr. Roche’s question, we shall simply
have to give more active consideration to spreading the
story, the multidimensional story.

Mr. Brewin: I can well understand with the vast number
of technical problems that come under the jurisdiction of
the interdepartmental committee that they just might
easily not have time to do this job. If they do not have
time, is there somebody else that will not be as well
informed, but they can be informed and they may be very
good at stirring up interested people. Therefore, I would
suggest that the whole machinery of the relationship be-
tween this work as comprised here and the public general-
ly, be reviewed.

Mr. H. B. Robinson: I would simply like to say thank
you again and say that at the next meeting of the inter-
departmental committee, we will have this as an item on
our agenda and see what we can do to improve our
performance in this regard.

The Chairman: Any further questions, Mr. Brewin?

Mr. Brewin: No more questions.

M. Lapointe: Merci, monsieur le président. Monsieur le
sous-secrétaire, j'aimerais, a mon tour confirmer les
inquiétudes de mes deux collégues précédents en ce qui
concerne le programme d’information vis-a-vis le public
canadien, d’autant plus, que j'aimerais m’arréter plus par-
ticuliérement sur la libéralisation des échanges commer-
ciaux. A mon avis, cette libéralisation des échanges com-
merciaux ne pourra pas se faire sans certains rajustements
a l'intérieur méme de notre économie canadienne, sans
abandon de secteurs de notre économie qui ne sont plus ou
qui ne pourront plus étre, dans les années a venir, compéti-
tifs avec des produits nous venant des pays en voie de
développement.

Alors, il va falloir vraiment faire un effort national pour
faire comprendre a la population canadienne que nous
devons nous priver de certaines productions pour nous
«embarquer» dans des champs de production plus rentables
pour nous et, en méme temps, permettre aux pays en voie
de développement de nous apporter des produits qu'ils
peuvent produire a meilleur prix et qui rapportent plus a
eux que les subventions des industries qui ne peuvent plus
continuer a vivre par elles-mémes.

[Interpretation]

que certaines autres, plus agées, et nous pourrions obtenir
beaucoup plus d’aide de leur part. Comme je l'ai dit, c'est
peut-étre tout simplement une omission. J'aimerais cepen-
dant savoir si I'on pense aux écoles et aux universités.

M. H. B. Robinson: Les gens qui ont travaillé au sein de
ce comité interministériel se sont surtout attardés a coor-
donner les efforts des ministéres et doivent formuler des
recommandations qu’ils présenteront au gouvernement. Je
dois dire que je vois d’'un bon ceil 'accent que les membres
du sous-comité ont mis sur la communication entre les
divers groupes, y compris les universités et les écoles.
Comme je I'ai dit a M. Roche, il faudra répandre la bonne
parole plus activement, c’est-a-dire faire connaitre le con-
cept multidimensionnel.

M. Brewin: Je peux comprendre qu’en raison des nom-
breux problémes d’ordre technique dont le comité intermi-
nistériel doit s’occuper, il n’a probablement pas le temps de
s'occuper de cette question. Si c’était le cas, y aurait-il
quelqu’un qui pourrait se renseigner adéquatement et tra-
vailler a susciter 'intérét des Canadiens. Voila pourquoi je
propose que l'on repense la facon d’'informer le public du
travail qui s’accomplit ici.

M. H. B. Robinson: Je vous remercie encore une fois, et
je puis vous assurer que nous inscrivons cette question a
I'ordre du jour de la prochaine réunion du Comité intermi-
nistériel, afin de voir si nous pouvons améliorer la situa-
tion & cet égard.

Le président: Avez-vous d’autres questions, monsieur
Brewin?

M. Brewin: Non.

Mr. Lapointe: Thank you Mr. Chairman. Mr. Under
secretary, I would like to impress upon you my concerns
with respect to the information program directed to the
Canadian public and I would like to take a little more time
to talk about Trade liberalization. It seems to me that this
cannot be done without certain adjustments within the
Canadian economy, without giving up certain aspects of
our economy which could not in the future be competetive
with the products coming from developing countries.

We will then have to make a national effort so that the
Canadian people can understand that we have to give up
producing certain goods in order to specialise in more
profitable areas, thus allowing developing countries to
export to us what they can produce more economically.
The benefits would be far greater than subsidizing indus-
tries that are not competitive.
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Alors, en ce qui concerne la libéralisation des échanges
commerciaux, le Ministre a indiqué, lors de sa présentation
a New York, a la septiéme Conférence spéciale sur le
GATT que, selon le Canada, cette Conférence demeure la
tribune appropriée pour parler de cette libéralisation du
commerce. On constate en méme temps que le pays en voie
de développement ont un certain scepticisme a savoir que
cela puisse étre la bonne tribune pour discuter de ces
nouveaux tarifs.

Alors, est-ce que, depuis le mois de septembre les repré-
sentants canadiens a la conférence du GATT ont com-
mencé a faire jouer leur influence pour amener leurs collé-
gues a accorder une oreille plus attentive aux demandes
des pays en voie de développement? Et est-ce que la réac-
tion de nos collégues, disons, a cette décision d’'industriali-
ser a été favorable et est-ce que nous avons également
certains appuis du c6té des pays en voie de développement
en ce qui concerne notre approche envers le GATT?

Mr. H. B. Robinson: I will get Mr. Halliday to answer
that question.

The Chairman: Mr. Halliday, would you approach one
of the microphones, please?

Mr. A. L. Halliday (Acting General Director, Office of
General Relations, Department of Industry, Trade and
Commerce): Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Would you identify yourself before you
speak.
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Mr. Halliday: Tony Halliday from the Department of
Industry, Trade and Commerce.

In response to your question, the specific question about
the GATT, what is happening there at the moment is that
industrialized countries are considering request lists put in
from the developing countries. These request lists are
termed to cover tropical products but in fact cover a much
wider range than you and I would call tropical products.

There will be a meeting fairly shortly, I think on Decem-
ber 9, at which time industrialized countries are supposed
to be in a position to respond to these request lists. We feel
fairly confident that we will be able to make a fairly
substantive response at that time. We will be able to
indicate at least in broad terms the nature of our response
to these requests. Without wanting to seem that we are
ahead of the field too far in this regard I must say that
there seems to be some doubt whether other industrialized
countries will be in such a position. The procedures in the
United States for making responses of this type are very
complex and it may well turn out that it will not be until
March that the industrialized countries generally will be in
a position to respond to these concrete request lists.

On the more general point you raised about the develop-
ing countries views of the GATT, it is quite true I think
that some of them have evinced some disillusion but when
it comes down to it I think they are prepared to recognize
that the trade liberalization is best effective to the mul-
tilateral trade negotiations which are being conducted in
the GATT.

M. Lapointe: Merci, monsieur le président. Une
deuxiéme question, si vous me permettez, plus spécifique
celle-1a, au sujet des produits tropicaux.

[Interprétation]

As far as this trade liberalisation the Minister indicated
in New York, during the Seventh Special Conference on
GATT, that according to us the conference remains the
proper forum to discuss such freedom. At the same time
however the developing countries are a little bit hesitant to
see this as the right forum to discuss new tarrifs.

I would like to know if since September the Canadian
delegation at the GATT conference has started to make
presentations so that their counterparts start to listen to
the requests coming from the developing countries? Did
our counterparts react favourably to this decision to indus-
trialize and did the developiag countries back up our
approach towards GATT in any way?

M. H. B. Robinson: Monsieur Halliday, voulez-vous s’il
vous plait répondre a cette question?

Le président: Monsieur Halliday, voulez-vous s’il vous
plait vous approcher d’'un micro?

M. A. L. Halliday (directeur général interimaire, Rela-
tions générales, ministére de l'Industrie et du Com-
merce): Merci, monsieur le président.

Le président: Voulez-vous, s’il vous plait, vous présenter
avant de commencer a parler.

M. Halliday: Je suis Tony Halliday du Ministére de
I'Industrie et du Commerce.

Pour ce qui est du GATT, pour l'instant, les pays indus-
trialisés examinent une liste des demandes que leur pré-
sentent les pays en voie de développement. Ces listes
visent des produits tropicaux mais en fait on pourrait les
étendre a beaucoup d’autres produits qui ne sont pas néces-
sairement tropicaux au sens ol nous I'’entendons.

Nous tiendrons sous peu une réunion, le 9 décembre je
crois ou les pays industrialisés pourront tenter de répondre
aux demandes inscrites sur cette liste. Nous croyons que
nous pourrons satisfaire dans une large mesure aux
demandes qui y sont inscrites. En tout cas, & ce moment-1a,
nous pourrons certainement donner une idée de ce que sera
en général notre réponse a ces demandes. Sans vouloir
faire croire que nous devangons tout le monde dans ce
domaine, je me dois cependant de dire que certains pays
industrialisés ne pourront pas faire autant que nous. Les
Etats-Unis doivent passer par une procédure trés complexe
pour répondre a de telles demandes et il se peut que ce ne
soit pas avant mars prochain que les pays industrialisés
puissent dans I'ensemble répondre aux demandes inscrites
sur cette liste.

Pour revenir & une question d'ordre plus général que
vous avez soulevée, il est vrai que les pays en voie de
développement ont indiqué un certain désappointement a
I'égard du GATT, mais je crois que tout compte fait ils sont
préts a admettre que la libéralisation du commerce ne peut
étre que bénéfique aux négociations de commerce multila-
térales qui occupent le GATT présentement.

. Mr. Lapointe: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. A second ques-
tion, with your permission, and I shall be more specific
regarding tropical products.
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M. MacEachen I'a souligné lors de son passage & New
York. Toutes nos importations en provenance des pays en
voie de développement, semble-t-il, entrent au Canada en
franchise a 75 p. 100. La suppression totale des droits sur
les produits tropicaux est-elle vraiment un pas en avant
dans le domaine de l'aide aux pays en voie de
développement?

The Chairman: Go ahead, Mr. Halliday.

Mr. Halliday: I think one has to respond here in terms of
what we mean by tropical products. In the real tropical
products, if you are talking about bananas or coffee or tea,
one could well envisage going to duty free and it would be
a significant addition.

The problem perhaps though is one of removing prefer-
ences currently enjoyed by certain developing countries
vis-a-vis others; these obviously are the Commonwealth
countries. If one went into the other areas which are not
really tropical products but manufactured goods, we could
obviously increase the proportion of goods that come in
duty free but you start to get into the area of sensitivity.
This is something which one does not go into too lightly.

Another problem one has to recognize is that at this
stage in negotiations one would probably not want to be
giving concessions on a most-favoured-nation basis which
would benefit industrialized countries when your inten-
tion is really to help the developing countries at this
particular time.

M. Lapointe: Ai-je le droit de poser une autre question,
monsieur le président?

Le président: Oui monsieur Lapointe.

M. Lapointe: Une question un peu plus vaste mainte-
nant! On parle d’'un nouvel ordre économique mondial.
Monsieur Robinson, comme je le disais au début, cela ne
peut qu’affecter certaines productions canadiennes.

Votre comité s’est-il déja penché sur la question de
rajustements au sein de notre propre économie afin de
permettre, une entrée plus importante de produits en pro-
venance des pays en voie de développement? Par exemple,
vous étes-vous intéressés davantage au dernier rapport du
président du Conseil économique du Canada qui proposait
toute une nouvelle philosophie du commerce international
canadien, sans tenir compte, ou a peu prés pas, de l'aide
aux pays en voie de développement? Votre comité s’est-il
penché sur ce probléme? Vous parliez du danger concer-
nant le textile; c’est un des domaines sensibles et je pense
que nous sommes d’accord pour dire que l'industrie du
textile est un domaine ou il faudra agir un jour ou l'autre.
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Mr. Halliday: Mr. Chairman, I think this is a very much
more difficult question to answer than the earlier ones
where we are dealing with small technical issues. In
response to this question, the report of the Economic Coun-
cil noted, I think, that there were certain areas of produc-
tion where one would expect that in the future supplies
would come from the developing countries. Of course, one
has the same observation: that one can see trends in the
international economy which means that at a certain time
in the future it is going to be more and more difficult to be
competitive with developing countries in such and such a
product. I think what we are prepared to do, and this will
be done in the contest of multilateral trade negotiations, is
to examine our own programs for adjustment assistance—
we have some already as you are well aware—to see if they

[Interpretation]

Mr. MacEachen said in New York, that all our imports
coming from developing countries come into Canada tariff
free up to 75 per cent. Would not a total elimination of
those tariffs on tropical products be a step forward in
assisting developing countries?

Le président: Monsieur Halliday.

M. Halliday: Je crois qu'une redéfinition des produits
tropicaux s’impose ici. Si vous songez aux bananes, au café
et au thé on pourrait trés bien songer a une franchise totale
et cela représenterait une amélioration.

Le probléeme serait peut-étre de retirer aux pays du
Commonwealth certains tarifs préférenciels dont ils jouis-
sent présentement. Si nous devions englober parmi les
produits qui entrent au pays en franchise, des produits qui
ne sont pas vraiment des produits tropicaux, mais qui sont
des produits manufacturiers, nous nous aventurerions dans
une zone dangereuse. C’est 14 un domaine qu'il ne faut pas
traiter a la légére.

A ce stade-ci des négociations, on ne veut pas non plus
accorder de concessions aux pays qui jouissent du traite-
ment préférentiel et du méme coup en faire profiter les
pays industrialisés, alors que l'intention au départ était
d’aider les pays en voie de développement.

Mr. Lapointe:
Chairman?

The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Lapointe.

Mr. Lapointe: My question is of a broader scope now. We
are talking of a new international economic order. Mr.
Robinson, as I said at the beginning, said that can affect
certain Canadian products.

Has your committee considered the question of adjusting
our own economy so that we can absorb a larger quantity
of products from developing countries? For instance, have
you looked at the last report of the President of the
Canadian Economic Council which outlines a new philoso-
phy for the Canadian international trade which would not
take into consideration our aid to developing countries.
Did your committee study that problem? You have talked
about the danger in the textile industry. I think it is a
sensitive area and that we will agree to say that the textile
industry is an area where we will have to do something
some day.

Can I ask another question, Mr.

M. Halliday: Monsieur le président, je crois que cette
question est beaucoup plus difficile que les questions pré-
cédentes ou il ne s’agissait que de détails techniques. Pour
répondre a votre question au sujet du Conseil économique,
je vous dirais qu’il y a certains domaines de production ol
I'on peut s’attendre a ce que les matiéres premiéres vien-
nent des pays en voie de développement. Bien sir, on
observe les mémes tendances: certaines caractéristiques de
I’économie internationale démontrent qu'a I'avenir il
deviendra de plus en plus difficile de concurrencer les pays
en voie de développement pour tel et tel produit. Dans le
contexte des négociations commerciales multilatérales,
nous sommes tous disposés a revoir nos propres program-
mes pour nous assurer qu'ils puissent s'adapter & une
situation de meilleure péréquation commerciale; comme
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are adequate to deal with a situation of greater trade
equalization.

What I think the government may find difficult to do—
and this is perhaps saying it with some modesty here—is to
say “well we feel that a particular product should be sent
to us from a developing country and should not be pro-
duced in Canada.” That is a very difficult judgement to
make; one on which one would hesitate to pretend that one
knows better than the business community or the people
who are actively involved in the production. So I think our
approach will be more passive than active. There will be
change but we are not too sure of the direction of that
change. We know the board lines, but the marketplace will
have to sort it out and we help to provide, through pro-
grams like GAAP, the adjustment assistance to facilitate
the adjustment to these changes.

M. Lapointe: Ce comité pourra-t-il aller jusqu’a recom-
mander au gouvernement un nouvel ordre économique
national?

The Chairman: Mr. Robinson.

Mr. Robinson: I did not hear the question.

The Chairman: Mr. Halliday.

Mr. Halliday: Perhaps I did not hear the question.
Miss MacDougall: Would you like me to try this one?

The Chairman: Yes.

Miss MacDougall: I wonder if I could make one point,
Mr. Lapointe. Essentially, at the moment, there is no inter-
national forum which is negotiating the question of indus-
trial adjustment. Certainly it is an aspect of the new
international economic order that has been put forward by
the developing countries which is the subject of discussion.
It has, as a result of what was agreed to at the Seventh
Special Session, for instance, already been touched on in
discussions within the OECD amongst the industrialized
countries, but only touched on so far.

I certainly would agree that in the context of what Mr.
Roche and Mr. Brewin were saying about the need to
communicate not only the problems that are on the table at
the moment for negotiation, but also the issues which will
be coming up. The question of adjustment assistance and
of industrial adjustment, generally, is a very important
area and we should be looking at the means of talking in
Canada about what this means in practical terms.

At the moment there are no proposals on the table. There
are sort of general rhetorical statements about the need to
increase the industrial capacity of the developing countries
in certain areas and hence to move production from devel-
oped to developing, but no one has focussed in and said,
“now let us start looking at the textiles area or the foot-
wear area’’. We are not at that stage.

The Chairman: Mr. Whiteway.
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Mr. Whiteway: Just commenting briefly on the concept
of letting the Canadian public know what you as an
agency are doing, I think as we sit here as Parliamentari-
ans making suggestions to you—and we make a suggestion
like this—you must wince at the thought of the immensity
of the problem. It is not only the immensity of the problem,
but it is also the absolute impossibility of accomplishing a
satisfactory educational goal of what is, let alone what
ought to be, as far as the aid program goes.

[Interprétation]
vous le avez, nous avons déja commencé dans une certaine
mesure.

Le gouvernement aura peut-étre du mal—c’est peut-étre
la mesure de notre modestie,—a déclarer qu'il est inutile de
produire certaines choses au Canada, qu'il vaut mieux les
importer d’'un pays en voie de développement. C’est une
décision difficile a prendre, surtout si I'on considére que la
communauté des affaires qui participe directement a la
production est mieux a méme d’en juger. Notre role devra
donc étre plus passif qu’actif. Il y aura des changements,
mais je ne sais pas encore trés bien dans quel sens. Nous
connaissons les lignes générales, mais il appartiendra au
marché de débrouiller la situation, nous interviendrons
ensuite pour faciliter I'adaptation & ces changements grace
a des programmes comme le GAAP.

Mr. Lapointe: Should this Committee go as far as recom-
mending to government a new national economic order?

Le président: Monsieur Robinson.

M. Robinson: Je n’ai pas entendu la question.

Le président: Monsieur Halliday.

M. Halliday: Je n’ai peut-étre pas entendu la question.

Mlle MacDougall: Vous voulez que jessaye d'y
répondre?

Le président: Oui.

Mlle MacDougall: Monsieur Lapointe, pour l'instant il
n'existe pas en fait de tribune internationale qui permette
de négocier les questions de rajustement industriel. Bien
str, les pays en voie de développement ont proposé la
discussion d’un nouvel ordre économique international. A
la suite des accords de la septiéme session extraordinaire,
les pays industrialisés ont déja discuté de cette question au
sein de 'OCDE mais c’est un simple début.

M. Roche et M. Brewin parlaient du besoin de communi-
quer et de discuter non seulement des problémes qui font
déja 'objet de négociations, mais également de ceux qui se
poseront a nous et je suis d’accord. La question du rajuste-
ment industriel est primordiale et nous devons envisager
de discuter au Canada de ce que cela signifie en termes
concrets.

Pour l'instant, il n'y a pas encore de propositions. On
entend, bien sir, des généralités quant a la nécessité d’aug-
menter la capacité industrielle des pays en voie de dévelop-
pement dans certaines régions, c’est-a-dire de déplacer la
production des pays développés aux pays en voie de déve-
loppement, mais personne n'a encore été jusqu’'a dire:
«attaquons-nous aux problémes des textiles ou de la chaus-
sure.» Nous n’en sommes pas encore la.

Le président: Monsieur Whiteway.

M. Whiteway: Vous avez parlé de la nécessité d’informer
le public canadien de ce que votre organisme accomplit.
Nous, parlementaires, sommes ici en train de vous faire des
suggestions et nous pourrions aussi bien vous dire: «vous
devez frisonner a la pensée de I'ampleur du probléme». Il
ne s'agit d’ailleurs pas uniquement de 'ampleur du problé-
me, mais également de I'impossibilité absolue de parvenir a
des objectifs satisfaisants—ne parlons pas de ce qu'ils
devraient étre—dans le cadre du programme d’aide.
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My colleague, a very studied colleague, Mr. Roche, says
that of 100 Canadians could not tell you about the 5-year-
program or the multidimensional aid concept. I would
suggest that is a very modest estimate and you might make
a broader, more accurate estimate if you were to say 1 in
100,000. I think you might be a little more in the ball park
if you were to say that 1 in 100 M.P.s., even, are thoroughly
understanding of the problem. That is maybe stretching it
a little far but I would say, as a new member of this
Committee, that I happen to be one of the 99 and I would
look forward to an educational program. If you were to
just limit your scope to educating M.P.s and accomplish
that at even a 20 per cent success rate, you would have
done a great deal of service. So having said that. ..

The Chairman: Mr. Wenman, Mr. Robinson tells me that
this is why he is here.

Mr. Wenman: Right, and I am speaking for the majority
of Canadians as I see it. At any rate, I do wish you luck in
this program and I think it is absolutely essential that you
do initiate such a program. It is essential that you do have
public opinion in Canada on your side in order to imple-
ment your program because if you fail to gain it, you will
find that, through your elected representatives, in the
longer term the funds are going to be drying up despite the
great need that is found in the world. So I would like to
say thank you for the brief. I agree with a lot of the things
you have said, that the evolution of any international code
promises to be long, difficult and of doubtful benefit to
developing countries. The acceptance of that principle in
itself in its pessimistic statement is probably an acceptance
of reality.

Also, I like the suggestion on page 15 that you are being
a little bit pragmatic and while you continue towards those
longer-term goals, you also are saying, we are going to try
and do some specific things along the way. And I liked on
page 15 your having suggested the possibility of evolving a
“model” bilateral international co-operation agreement.
Are you beyond the stage of suggesting this? Are you at a
stage where you might be choosing a country or a series of
countries where such agreement might be made? Are you
at the basis of drawing up the premises, the objectives of
the agreement? How far are you on this specific, choosing
one small model program to be established?

The Chairman: I believe Mr. Halliday will answer this
question.

Mr. Halliday: Mr. Chairman, I think in that regard we
are perhaps rather further behind than we are on some of
the other points we have just been discussing. I think we
have identified the elements that we see would be in these
industrial co-operation agreements. They are pretty obvi-
ous, I think. They are in terms of how the developing
country would want to deal with private investment when
it came in. The other element would be the way that
Canada would perhaps encourage this private investment
outlay. I think primarily it would be on the basis of going
out and advertising, and again it is a question of communi-
cation, of advertising the opportunities which are available
to private investors in specific developing countries.

I think in fairness that we have not really seen yet
which countries we would be interested in. We have not
given it that degree of consideration. But, at least intellec-
tually, I think we have come to view that this would be
suitable for those countries which are obviously on the
point of industrialization, and without mentioning names

[Interpretation]

Mon collégue, mon trés éminent collégue, M. Roche, pré-
tend qu'’il n’y a pas un Canadien sur 100 qui pourrait vous
parler du programme quinquennal ou du principe de 'aide
multidimensionnelle. Je pense qu'il est en dega de la vérité
et qu’il s’agit plutot d’'un sur 100,000. Vous approcheriez
encore un peu plus de la vérité en vous demandant si un
député sur 100 comprend parfaitement le probléme. Je vais
peut-étre un peu loin et j’ajoute que moi, qui suis nouveau
venu a ce Comité, je me compte parmi les 99 autres et
j’aimerais pouvoir bénéficier d'un programme éducatif. Si
vous vous contentiez simplement d’éduquer les députés,
méme avec 120 p. 100 de succeés, vous feriez déja beaucoup.
Ceci étant dit. ..

Le président: Monsieur Wenman, M. Robinson me dit
que c’est la raison pour laquelle il se trouve ici.

M. Wenman: Parfait, et je parle au nom de la majorité
des Canadiens. Quoi qu'il en soit, je vous souhaite tout le
succés possible pour votre programme que j'estime absolu-
ment indispensable. Il est indispensable que vous gagniez
I'opinion publique canadienne a votre cause pour pouvoir
appliquer votre programme car, dans le cas contraire, les
représentants élus finiront un jour ou l'autre par bloquer
les fonds en dépit du besoin qui se fait sentir dans le
monde. Je vous remercie donc de votre mémoire. Pour
beaucoup de choses, je suis d’accord avec vous; vous dites
que la mise au point d’'un code international sera longue et
difficile mais qu’elle ne saurait manquer de profiter aux
pays en voie de développement. Quelque pessimiste que
soit ce principe, en le reconnaissant, vous reconnaissez
probablement la réalité.

J’aime aussi vous entendre dire, & la page 15, que vous
faites preuve d'un certain pragmatisme et que tout en
continuant la poursuite de ces objectifs a long terme vous
essaierez d’arriver a des résultats concrets et précis en
cours de route. J'aime également vous entendre parler, a la
nage 15 toujours, de la possibilité de parvenir a un accord
de coopération bilatérale international «type». Cela va-t-il
au-dela d’une simple suggestion? Avez-vous déja pensé a
choisir un pays ou plusieurs pays susceptibles de conclure
de tels accords avec nous? Avez-vous commencé a rédiger
un projet, une liste des objectifs pour cet accord? Ce projet
d’'un programme type d’'importance est-il prét a devenir
réalité?

Le président: Je crois que M. Halliday va vous répondre.

M. Halliday: Monsieur le président, ce projet est peut-
étre plus en retard que les autres dont nous avons discuté.
Nous avons déja convenu des éléments de ces accords de
coopération industrielle. Ils sont d’ailleurs assez évidents.
Il s’agit de savoir dans quels termes les pays en voie de
développement accepteront d’accueillir les investissements
privés lorsque le moment sera venu. D'autre part, nous
devons nous demander comment le Canada pourrait encou-
rager ces investissements privés. Notre role principal serait
dans le domaine de la publicité, et c’est encore une ques-
tion de communication; nous ferions connaitre les possibi-
lités qui s'offrent aux investisseurs privés dans certains
pays en voie de développement.

Je dois reconnaitre que nous ne nous sommes pas encore
demandés quels pays nous intéresseraient. Nous n'en
sommes pas encore la. Mais, en principe du moins, nous
sommes parvenus a la conclusion que cela serait utile aux
pays qui sont a la veille de devenir des pays industrialisés
et, sans vouloir vous les citer, certains d'entre eux entrent
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around here, I think there are some that more clearly fall
into that category than do others. This is an idea which we
think should be discussed internationally as well and is, I
think, being discussed in the OECD panel.

Mr. Wenman: Are you referring to it then on two levels,
that there should be a group bilateral thing like Canada
and several other countries having a bilateral agreement in
one developing country? Could you not carry this concept
further to saying Canada might establish this mini-bilater-
al agreement with an individual country and set up exam-
ples of trade agreements and commodity agreements and
so forth—industrial agreements? Have you thought of that
concept? Is that part of it?

Mr. Halliday: I am sorry. I thought you were actually
saying much the same thing between the two. We certainly
envisage this concept being carried into bilateral agree-
ments with the individual developing countries. But you
posed another issue there. Was it within a group of devel-
oped countries?

Mr. Wenman: I thought of a joint venture among several
countries. You are suggesting that several different agen-
cies, world organizations, discuss this and establish
through the world organizations bilateral agreements—or
are you referring specifically to Canada and another coun-
try? Does it mean bilateral between Canada and one other
country? Is that what you referred to?

Mr. Halliday: Yes.
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Mr. Wenman: All right. That is what I hoped it meant.

Miss MacDougall: If I might, Mr. Chairman, I think this
concept is essentially one which would have to be bilateral
or conceivably trilateral. You can imagine a joint venture
type of approach. We were thinking of involving the vari-
ous multilateral fora where these sorts of issues are being
discussed as fora where you could talk about the nature of
the content and the thrust of a bilateral agreement. One of
our concerns has been that there are many attempts to
reach international multilateral agreement about how
transnational corporations will be treated and will act
themselves. It is a very difficult thing to come to a total
multilateral agreement, but it might easily be possible to
come to a bilateral approach to the problem.

Mr. Wenman: As we discussed this, here is one specific
pragmatic suggestion of something positive we as Canadi-
ans, with our very small amount of foreign aid, might
accomplish. I wonder if the Committee, since this is such a
broad, big thing, might not take a few items like this and
look at them more closely, and at their development more
closely, all the while participating in a broader interna-
tional scene and taking these to international conferences
and so forth? It was just one of the suggestions I thought
was worthy of noting and encouraging you to seek further.

Another area that I was particularly interested in was
this. We have stated that we are ready to share our own
experience with respect to screening mechanisms. What
screening mechanisms are you referring to there? For
example, are you developing screening mechanisms with
India now? Is this what the review in about? What is the
screening machanism? What do you mean?

[Interprétation]

beaucoup mieux que certains autres dans cette catégorie.
C’est une idée dont il faudrait discuter au niveau interna-
tional, et dont on parle déja, je pense, 8 'OCDE.

M. Wenman: Pensez-vous & deux niveaux, pensez-vous
qu’il faudrait envisager un accord entre un groupe bilatéral
comme le Canada et d’autres pays et un pays en voie de
développement. Ne pourrait-on aller plus loin et envisager
la possibilité pour le Canada de signer un mini-accord
bilatéral avec un pays, ouvrant ainsi la voie a des accords
commerciaux, des accords sur les produits de base, des
accords industriels enfin? Avez-vous pensé a cette idée?
Cela en fait-il partie?

M. Halliday: Excusez-moi, je pensais que nous parlions
déja de cela. Nous envisageons certainement de
transposer cette idée dans les accords bilatéraux avec les
pays en voie de développement, mais vous avez posé un
autre probléme ici. Vouliez-vous parler d’'un groupe de
pays industrialisés?

M. Wenman: Je pensais & un accord commercial entre
plusieurs pays. Vous proposez que plusieurs institutions
différentes, organisations mondiales, en parlent et mettent
en place des accords bilatéraux ou pensez-vous plus parti-
culiérement au Canada et & un autre pays? Cela suffit-il a
un accord bilatéral entre le Canada et un autre pays?

M. Halliday: Oui.

M. Wenman: Treés bien. C’est ce & quoi je m’attendais.

Mlle MacDougall: Je pense que ce concept devrait étre
essentiellement bilatéral ou peut-étre trilatéral. On peut
songer a chaque chose du genre d’accords commerciaux.
Nous pensions qu'il faudrait discuter du contenu et de la
portée des ententes bilatérales avec les différents organis-
mes qui discutent déja de ces questions. Car les pays ont
beaucoup de difficultés a conclure des accords internatio-
naux multilatéraux concernant le traitement des sociétés
transnationales et leur comportement. Il est trés difficile
de parvenir a un accord multilatéral global, mais il serait
peut-étre possible d’en venir & envisager le probléme dans
une optique bilatérale.

M. Wenman: En en parlant, nous en sommes arrivés a
cette proposition pragmatique précise et positive que nous,
Canadiens, pouvons soutenir, malgré le montant peu
important de l'aide extérieure. Je me demande si le Comité,
étant donné l'importance grandissante de cette question,
ne devrait pas choisir des sujets semblables pour les étu-
dier plus profondément, suivre leur évolution, tout en
participant & une activité internationale plus large et en
portant ces problémes devant les conférences internationa-
les. Cela en vaudrait peut-étre la peine.

Mon attention s’'est portée également sur un autre
domaine: nous avons dit que nous étions préts a partager
notre propre expérience quant aux mécanismes de sélec-
tion. De quels mécanismes parlez-vous ici? Par exemple,
voulez-vous mettre au point des mécanismes de sélection
avec I'Inde maintenant? S’agit-il de cela?
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[Text] [Interpretation]
The Chairman: Miss MacDougall. Le président: Mademoiselle MacDougall.

Miss MacDougall: Mr. Chairman, Foreign Investment
Review Act. This was in the section referring to foreign
investment transnational corporations. I cannot remember
exactly where this comes in.

Mr. Wenman: You are talking about exporting an act of
the Canadina Parliament to other countries, teaching them
about what we are doing?

Miss MacDougall: Yes. We are members of the Transna-
tional commission. Perhaps Mr. Bergbusch could be more
specific on this, but the Transnational commission of the
United Nations is a body which was set up as a result of a
report of a group of experts on the role of transnational
corporations. It is in that context that we have offered to
give technical assistance to developing countries on how to
deal with transnational corporations.

Mr. Wenman: As successfully as Canada has.
Miss MacDougall: As successfuly as Canada.

Mr. Wenman: While I would agree that this is a long-
term approach that you are talking about, working towards
commodity agreements and a new international economic
order and so forth at the same time we will still spend our
billion dollars this year and next year and the year after.
In so doing, as we see this very complicated brief, indicat-
ing all of the thrusts that we are making into the interna-
tional world, does this indicate some new kind of maturity
for Canada?

Are we participating in a different way? In other words,
up to now, I have always had the general concept that
Canadians were great aid givers on a per capita basis and
that the aid that we gave was given on the basis of
humanitarian need and few other tied criteria.

Are we developing new tied criteria or new cornerstones
of foreign policy as it is tied in with economic aid? For
example, the Indian review. Is it a cornerstone about
policy that we would not help industrially a country that
would exploit nuclear technology? Are we developing a
series of cornerstones like that?
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The Chairman: Mr. Robinson.

Mr. H. B. Robinson: Just as a general response to that
question, Mr. Chairman, we have to face the fact that
through negotiations in various international bodies, a new
trade and payment system is evolving in the world. The
LDC’s want a hand in shaping this new system. If we
co-operate with them to strengthen their economy, we
develop the fabric of international economic co-operation
which is important to us as a trading nation. We increase
the capacity of the developing countries to trade with us
and to import our processed and manufactured goods.

If we do not co-operate with them, I guess we will harm
our own long-term trading prospects. We will certainly
encourage confrontation with the less developed countries
and move back towards a situation of conflict and conten-
tion. I think probably we would be moving at variance
with the impulse in Canada towards helping these coun-
tries which are still in a state of development.

Mlle MacDougall: 11 s’agit de la Loi sur les investisse-
ments étrangers, monsieur le président. Cela figurait a la
section des corporations transnationales investissant a
I’étranger.

M. Wenman: Vous parlez d’une loi canadienne qui pour-
rait s’appliquer a d’autres pays, leur enseignant ce que
nous faisons?

Mille MacDougall: Oui, nous faisons partie de la commis-
sion transnationale. M. Bergbusch pourrait peut-étre
donner plus de précisions, mais la commission transnatio-
nale des Nations Unies est une institution qui a été mise en
place a la suite des recommandations d’un rapport d’un
groupe d’experts sur le role des corporations transnationa-
les. C’est dans ce contexte que nous avons proposé de
fournir une assistance technique aux pays en voie de déve-
loppement sur la facon de traiter avec les corporations
transnationales.

M. Wenman: Avec autant de succés que le Canada.
Mlle MacDougall: C’est cela.

M. Wenman: Alors que je serais d’accord avec cette
approche a long terme dont vous parlez, visant a des
accords sur les produits et, sur un nouvel ordre économi-
que international, nous allons continuer & dépenser notre
milliard de dollars cette année, I'année prochaine et I'année
suivante. Comme semble l'indiquer ce mémoire trés com-
plexe, montrant tous les efforts que nous avons faits sur la
scéne internationale, ceci signifie-t-il une maturité nou-
velle pour le Canada?

Notre participation revét-elle d’autres aspects? En d’au-
tres mots, jusqu'a présent, j'ai toujours eu l'impression que
les Canadiens prodiguaient une aide importante per capita
et que l'aide que nous avons donnés I’était sur la base de
besoins humanitaires et de quelques autres critéres.

Voulons-nous élaborer de nouveaux critéres en politique
étrangére, domaine si étroitement relié a l'aide économi-
que? Dans le cas de I'Inde par exemple? Le fait que nous
n’aiderions pas du point de vue industriel un pays exploi-
tant la technologie nucléaire est-il une pierre angulaire de
notre politique? Voulons-nous mettre en place de tels
fondements?

Le président: Monsieur Robinson.

M. H. B. Robinson: En réponse a cette question, mon-
sieur le président, il faut dire que dans les négociations au
sein des différentes institutions internationales, un nou-
veau systéme de commerce et de paiements est en train
d’apparaitre. Les pays en voie de développement désirent
participer a I’élaboration de ce nouveau systéme. Si nous
coopérons avec eux pour renforcer leur économie, nous
améliorons le tissu de la coopération économique interna-
tionale, ce qui est important pour nous en tant que nation
commerc¢ante. Nous améliorons l'aptitude des pays en voie
de développement & commercer avec nous, a importer nos
produits transformés, nos articles fabriqués.

Si nous ne collaborons pas avec eux, il est a craindre que
nos perspectives commerciales a long terme en souffriront.
Alors, nous encouragerions certainement les confronta-
tions avec les pays moins développés et nous reviendrions
a une situation de conflit et de mépris. Nous irions proba-
blement a 'encontre des efforts faits au Canada pour aider
ces pays qui se trouvent encore a un certain stade de
développement.
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[Texte]

Even though co-operation may involve problems in the
short run and even though the financial costs may be
difficult in a period like the present time, it seems like a
sensible thing to be doing as a long-run proposition.

Mr. Wenman: To be expanding the cornerstones of our
aid program considerations beyond humanitarian need.

Mr. H. B. Robinson: That is what I mean.

Mr. Wenman: Would you extend them? To take a specif-
ic example, just as an example of course. ..

The Chairman: This will have to be a brief question, Mr.
Wenman.

Mr. Wenman: I will wait and come back then. I will
come back later if you wish on a specific question.

The Chairman: Fine. Mr. Robinson.

Mr. Robinson (Toronto-Lakeshore): Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. First of all we have had several discussions
about this in the last several weeks. The Minister stated,
quite correctly in my opinion, that our shifting aid pro-
grams and our shifting emphasis will be with the fourth
world, the least developed countries, those countries that
are least able to provide goods and resources, those that are
absolutely, as far as I know, below the $100 per capita
income level.

As I say, I agree with this concept, but I just wondered
as of November, 1975, are we in a position yet to make a list
of countries with which we actually will be putting pro-
grams into effect? Have we reached that stage at this
point?

The Chairman: Mr. Bergbusch, would you approach the
microphone please.

Mr. E. Bergbusch (Director, Aid and Development
Division, Department of External Affairs): Thank you.
Within the strategy there are two concepts. One concept is
that of eligible countries and the other concept is that of
program countries.

The eligible countries are considered to be those coun-
tries which may get certain particular programs at a par-
ticular time but will not be the subject of major efforts.
About 20 per cent of the program will be directed towards
those eligible countries which are not program countries.

® 1650
Now, within that large category we have a concept of
about roughly 60-odd countries which would be eligible,
some of them on the basis of being nonprogram countries
and the other part of them being program countries, coun-
tries in which we would envisage carrying out concentrat-
ed programs of development. The numbers involved are
roughly about 30-30. These are orders of magnitude.

The concept of the strategy is, of course, that there will
be some adjustments in terms of the countries of concen-
tration, that some may be phased in over time and that
others may be phased out. These are the program countries,
and hence, we do have ideas of what that list of 30 coun-
tries should be but the process of consulting with those
countries about their status and how we are going to
co-operate with them in the future is still going on. So I do
not think it would be appropriate to provide a list at this
time while that process is still under way.

[Interprétation]

Méme si la coopération rencontre des difficultés a court
terme et si les colts financiers sont particuliérement
pesants a I'heure actuelle, c’est une proposition sérieuse a
long terme.

M. Wenman: Et qui élargirait les fondements de notre
programme d’assistance, a des considérations autres que
les besoins humanitaires.

M. H. B. Robinson: C’est cela.

M. Wenman: Voulez-vous élargir ces fondements? Pour
prendre un exemple précis, simplement un exemple bien
sar.

Le président: Ce sera une question trés rapide, monsieur
Wenman.

M. Wenman: J'attendrai et je reviendrai par la suite sur
cette question.

Le président: Trés bien. Monsieur Robinson.

M. Robinson (Toronto-Lakeshore): Merci, monsieur le
président. Tout d’abord, nous avons eu différentes discus-
sions a ce sujet les semaines précédentes. Le ministre
disait, tout a fait avec raison, & mon avis, que nos program-
mes d’assistance et nos efforts dans ce sens, iront plutét au
Quart-monde, les pays les moins développés, pays qui sont
le moins en mesure de fournir des biens et des ressources,
ceux qui sont, pour autant que je le sache, tout a fait
au-dessous de la tranche de $100 de revenu par habitant.

Comme je le disais, je suis d’accord avec cette idée, mais
je me demande si, en novembre 1975, nous serions en
mesure d’établir une liste des pays ol nous essayons
actuellement d’appliquer ces programmes? Sommes-nous
parvenus a ce stade?

Le président: Monsieur Bergbusch, pouvez-vous appro-
cher le micro, s’il vous plait.

M. E. Bergbusch (directeur du bureau de l'assistance
et de développement, ministére des Affaires extérieures):
Merci. Cette stratégie comporte deux idées. La premiére
est celle des pays éligibles et l'autre celle des pays conte-
nus dans le programme.

Les pays éligibles sont ceux qui pourront obtenir cer-
tains programmes précis & un moment déterminé, mais ne
bénéficieront pas d’efforts importants. Environ 20 p. 100 du
programme sera dirigé vers ces pays éligibles qui ne font
pas l'objet d’'un programme particulier.

Dans cette vaste catégorie, nous avions pensé a environ
60 pays éligibles, certains parce que ce sont des pays ne
bénéficiant pas de programme, les autres parce qu'ils béné-
ficient de programmes, pays dans lesquels nous envisage-
rons d’exécuter des programmes de développement précis.
Les chiffres en question sont d’environ 30 pour chacun. Ce
sont des ordres de grandeur.

L’idée de la stratégie est, bien sir, qu'il y aura certaines
adaptations pour les pays bénéficiaires, quecertains pro-
grammes seront adoptés et d’autres supprimés. Nous avons
des idées de ce que serait cette liste des 30 pays, mais les
consultations avec ces pays concernant leur statut et notre
mode de coopération se poursuivent. Ainsi je ne pense pas
qu'il serait approprié de fournir une liste pour le moment.
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[Text]

I should add that I am answering this from the stand-
point of External Affairs, but I have a CIDA colleague here
who might wish to add a word in that part.

Mr. Robinson (Toronto-Lakeshore): Well, that is all
right, Mr. Chairman.

The second question, of course, would be a follow-up on
number one. At what point, Mr. Chairman, could we
expect, as a Committee, to know what countries we are
actually going to be involved with, in this new five-year
program? The program is for 1975-80 and we are almost at
the end of 1975 and going into 1976. I would hope that at
some fairly short point in the future we would have some
idea of what countries our programs are going to be going
into so that we can also have a chance to comment; because
I think this, itself, is a very important point as to what you
perceive as the least developed countries, and taking into
consideration the co-operation we can hope to achieve with
them—and many factors.

I think we should be looking at these countries with our
new program. At what point in time do you foresee that
you will be able to tell us what countries these will be?

The Chairman: Perhaps Mr. Lotto could approach the
microphone and address himself to this question.

Mr. V. Lotto (Director, Policy Institution Division,
CIDA): Well, as Mr. Bergbusch indicated, the consultative
process can be sometimes lengthy and I would hope that
we are now making some considerable progress. I would
expect that within the next six to eight months we will be
in a better position to address the question that you have
raised.

I might also mention that, in the context of the strategy,
we indicate that we are exploring new forms of co-opera-
tion with the developing countries. I would expect that
these new forms will be geared mainly toward the middle-
income developing countries—those countries which are
now in a position of, say, relative prosperity compared to
the countries that are in the poorest categories. We have
had several task forces looking at this and shortly we will
be coming out with positive programs of co-operation with
the countries that eventually may reach a certain phase-
out stage from our direct-aid involvement.

Mr. Robinson (Toronto-Lakeshore): Thank you very
much, Mr. Chairman; and I do not wish to appear facetious
but I hope that we do not reach the end of the five-year
plan before we decide what countries we will be dealing
with.

However, my second question was with regard to the
statement on page 14:

With respect to industrial co-operation, we are explor-
ing several new approaches.

And further down there is:

The idea behind this approach is to facilitate invest-
ment and the transfer of technology by the private
sector which has the greatest resources in this area.

Now, I agree with that concept 100 per cent; but being
pragmatic, one thing that concerns me is that in our five-
year program we say that we are going to be dealing with
the least developed countries. These, though, are generally
also the most unstable countries in the sense of political
stability and various other sorts of stability.

[Interpretation]

J'ajouterai que je donne cette réponse du point de vue
des Affaires extérieures, mais un de mes collégues de
I’ACDI désirera peut-étre ajouter un mot a cet égard.

M. Robinson (Toronto-Lakeshore): Trés bien, monsieur
le président.

La deuxiéme question, bien sir, découle de la premiére.
Dans quelle mesure, monsieur le président, pouvons-nous
nous attendre au comité a connaitre les pays avec lesquels
nous sommes sur le point de nous engager, dans un nou-
veau programme quinquennal? Nous sommes presqu’'a la
fin de 1975 et nous allons sur 1976. J'espére, que trés
bientdt nous aurons une certaine idée des pays auxquels
nos programmes s’adresseront pour que nous puissions en
débattre; je pense que c’est en soi une question importante
pour ce que vous appelez les pays les moins développés,
tout en gardant a l'esprit la coopération désirée avec eux et
d’autres facteurs.

Je pense que nous devrions regarder vers ces pays pour
de nouveauc programmes. Quand serez-vous en mesure
selon vos prévisions, de nous dire quels seront ces pays?

Le président: M. Lotto pourrait peut-étre s’approcher du
microphone et répondre lui-méme a cette question.

M. V. Lotto (Directeur des Institutions d’élaboration
de politique, ACDI): Comme M. Bergbush I'a indiqué, les
processus de consultation peuvent parfois étre assez longs
et j'ose espérer que nous faisons maintenant des progres
importants. J'espére que dans les six ou huit prochains
mois nous serons en meilleure position pour répondre a
votre question.

Je dirais aussi, dans le contexte de la stratégie, que nous
explorons de nouvelles formes de coopération avec les pays
en voie de développement. J'aimerais que ces nouvelles
formes de coopération s’adressent essentiellement aux
pays en voie de développement aux revenus moyens, pays
qui sont en position de prospérité active en comparaison
des pays qui sont dans les catégories plus pauvres. Diffé-
rentes équipes de travail ont étudié la question et, en bref,
nous devrions parvenir a des programmes positifs de coo-
pération avec les pays qui seront en mesure d'atteindre un
certain stade de désengagement par rapport & notre assis-
tance directe.

M. Robinson (Toronto-Lakeshore): Merci beaucoup,
monsieur le président, je ne veux pas étre facétieux, mais
j’espére que nous ne parviendrons pas a la fin du plan
quinquennal avant d’avoir décidé avec quels pays nous
devons traiter.

Cependant, ma deuxiéme question se reportait a la décla-
ration page 14:

En ce qui concerne la coopération industrielle, nous
cherchons de nouvelles approches différentes.

Et plus loin il est écrit:

L’idée de cette approche est de faciliter l'investisse-
ment et les transferts de technologie en provenance du
secteur privé qui posséde les ressources les plus gran-
des dans ce domaine.

Alors, je suis d’'accord avec cette idée de 100 p. 100; mais
pour étre pratique, il y a une chose qui me préoccupe. Dans
notre programme quinquennal nous disons devoir traiter
avec les pays les moins dévéloppés. Ceux-ci, cependant,
sont aussi en général les pays les plus instables des points
de vue politique et autre?
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[Texte]

I just would like to hear from Mr. Robinson or from
somebody else in his group of experts whether he really
thinks that we are going to achieve anything in this line,
knowing first of all that Canadian business appears to be
very reluctant to invest in very good climates.

Are we really being realistic in expecting that Canadian
business will actually go into places such as Bangladesh—I
could name a number of countries—and actually put in a
sincere effort when we find it very difficult for them going
into some of the very stable countries with excellent
chances of making a profit and recovering their
investment?
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Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Or even staying at
home.

Mr. Robinson (Toronto-Liakeshore): Would you com-
ment on this? I agree that this is a very desirable situation,
but after watching industry for some years, I am losing a
bit of my optimism. To say that they are going to go into
the least-developed countries which have the least chance
of profit rather makes me wonder about your approach. Do
you believe this will work?

The Chairman: Miss MacDougall.

Miss MacDougall: Mr. Chairman, there may have been a
bit of a misunderstanding here. Mr. Lotto was just talking
about the focusing of aid in terms of the MSA'’s, the poorest
countries. We also have been talking today about the mul-
ti-dimensional approach to development and I must say I
think I see a great deal of the multi-dimensional aspect of
our work as being directed not towards the MSA’s but
towards the middle- and higher-income developing coun-
tries. I would say that was particularly true about the
proposals for industrial co-operation.

I would entirely agree with your remarks about the
difficulties of the private sector moving into countries
where the situation simply is not ripe for private invest-
ment. It may not even be ripe for direct aid. I think the
short answer to your point is that this is not intended in
any way to be an instrument to be used for the poorest
countries.

Mr. Halliday mentioned that it should be thought essen-
tially as an instrument for greater development co-opera-
tion between Canada, or between any industrialized coun-
try, and a developing country that has industrialization
potential. It has reached the stage where it needs this kind
of investment and this kind of technology and expertise. It
could possibly benefit from some sort of government-to-
government encouragement which would enable private
investment to take place more easily.

Mr. Robinson (Toronto-Lakeshore): Mr. Chairman, per-
haps this reflects back on my own lack of knowledge but
when I examined the program I noticed agriculture, health,
various things that referred -to the least-developed coun-
tries. Is that correct? We were talking about health,
agricultural reform, water sanitation, all these basic things
which we were talking about on the LDC'’s. But I was not
aware that we were only talking about that one aspect
which is the very basics. We are not discussing, from what
I gather from your comments, investments or industriali-
zation in any form. Is that what I gather from your com-
ments on these LDC's?

[Interprétation]

J'aimerais simplement que M. Robinson ou quelqu'un
d’autres parmi ces experts, nous disent s'il pense vraiment
que nous allons faire quelque chose dans ce sens, sachant
avant tout que le monde des affaires au Canada est tres
réticent a investir dans de trés bonnes conditios.

Est-il vraiment réaliste de s’attendre a ce que les entre-
prises canadiennes s'établissent dans des pays comme le
Bangladesh? Je pourrais citer un certain nombre de pays.
Comment pourraient-ils faire, méme en faisant tout en leur
pouvoir, alors qu'il leur est trés difficile de s’établir dans
certaines pays trés stables ou il est fort probable qu'ils
feront un profit et récupéreront leur investissement?

M. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): Ou méme lorsqu’ils
restent chez eux.

M. Robinson (Toronto-Lakeshore): Voudriez-vous faire
des observations la-dessus? Je conviens que c’est 1la une
situation trés souhaitable, mais aprés avoir étudié la situa-
tion de l'industrie pendant quelques années, je suis de
moins en moins optimiste. Je me demande vraiment s’il est
juste de dire qu’ils vont s’établir dans les pays les moins
développés ot ils ont le moins de chance de faire du profit.
Croyez-vous vraiment que cela va fonctionner?

Le president: Mademoiselle MacDougall.

Mlle MacDougall: Monsieur le président, il se peut qu’il
y ait eu un léger malentendu. M. Lotta vient de parler
d’organiser 'aide en fonction des pays du Quart-monde, les
pays les plus pauvres. Nous avons aussi parlé aujourd’hui
de notre facon d’aborder le développement sous plusieurs
aspects, mais je dois dire que nous avons plutdt envisagé
notre tache de cette facon pour ce qui est des pays en voie
de développement ayant un revenu moyen et élévé que
dans le cas des pays du Quart-monde. Je dirais que c’est
particuliérement vrai quant aux propositions en vue d’une
collaboration industrielle.

Je suis entiérement d’accord avec vous lorsque vous
dites qu'ils est difficile pour le secteur privé d’établir dans
des pays qui ne sont tout simplement pas préts a recevoir
des investissements privés. Il se peut méme qu’ils ne soient
pas préts a recevoir une aide directe. Je puis répondre
briéevement a votre réponse en vous disant que nous
n’avons pas du tout 'intention de nous servir de ce disposi-
tif pour les pays les plus pauvres.

M. Halliday a mentionné qu’on devrait '’envisager essen-
tiellement comme étant un dispositif pour arriver a une
collaboration plus grande entre le Canada, ou entre tout
pays industrialisé, et un pays en voie de développement
qui peut s'industrialiser. Un pays qui a atteint le niveau ou
il a besoin de ce genre de technologie et de savoir-faire. Il
pourrait peut-étre profiter d’'un genre d’encouragement
entre les gouvernements qui favoriseraient les investisse-
ments privés.

M. Robinson (Toronto-Lakeshore): Monsieur le prési-
dent, peut-étre que cela réveéle mon propre manque de
connaissances, mais lorsque j'ai étudié le programme j'ai
remarqué que divers aspects comme l'agriculture et la
santé concernaient les pays les moins développés. Est-ce
exact? Nous parlons de la santé, des réformes agricoles, de
I'assainissement des eaux, toutes ces choses fondamentales
dont nous parlions quant aux pays les moins développés.
Mais je ne me rendais pas compte que nous parlions seule-
ment de cet aspect qui en fait l'essentiel. D'aprés vos
commentaires, nous ne parlons pas des investissements ou
de l'industrialisation sous quelle que forme que ce soit.
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Somewhere I got off the track. I am trying to pinpoint
our five-year policy, which was to go into the least-
developed countries. That was our emphasis. I understand
what has been said about what our basic terms of reference
are with those LDC’s, but I was not aware that there was
an exclusion of investment or industrialization.

® 1700
Miss MacDougall: I do not think there is any exclusion
of investment. This particular proposal for what we loosely
call “industrial co-operation” is a specific set of ideas that
Canadian officials have been looking at as a means of
encouraging private investment in developing countries
ready for that kind of investment—not necessarily and not
very likely the poorest countries. I am referring here
essentially to the multi-dimensional approach. I am not
talking about the aid program as such. These things. ..

Mr. Robinson (Toronto-Lakeshore): That is fine. That
is fine.

Miss MacDougall: ... stack on top of each other and
they will have an influence in different areas and on
different developing countries.

The Chairman: I believe Mr. Bergbusch wants to add
something to this.

Mr. Bergbusch: I might just comment that this invest-
ment, of course, is devoted to two different ends. One is the
development, let us say, of extractive industries—mining
industries—which is a very early stage in development and
which may be appropriate in certain of the least-developed
countries because they have adequate mineral resources to
receive such investment.

Obviously, anything we do to encourage such investment
through investment insurance agreements would be help-
ful to them in attracting such investment. I might just
comment that since the Export Development Corporation’s
investment insurance facility was established, the rate of
investment by Canadian companies abroad has risen very
substantially. I am not certain there is a cause-and-effect
relationship but, at least, there is a coherence in the statis-
tics which would lead one to believe that there may be.

Now, there is a second kind of investment which is dealt
with particularly in the section that is aimed at industrial
co-operation. As Miss Macdougall suggested, this is aimed
mainly at those countries which are not program coun-
tries—not countries to which we devote 80 per cent of our
aid resources because that goes to the poor countries—but
is a complement to the aid program as it is a means of
co-operating with those countries that will not benefit in a
very significant way from the aid program as a whole.

The Chairman: Thank you. We already agreed that we
would adjourn at 5 o’clock. I understand there is an inten-
tion of having Mr. Munro for five minutes.

Mr. Munro (Esquimalt-Saanich): No. I think I said I
would be prepared to call it 5 o’clock, provided you stay
with the list in the order. Having been misplaced from the
order on this particular occasion, I would insist that I be
placed first the next time round.

[Interpretation]

Est-ce la fagon d’interpréter vos observations sur les pays
les moins développés?

J’ai perdu le fil de la discussion & un moment donné. Je
tente de préciser notre politique quinquennale, qui devait
viser les pays les moins développés. C'est la-dessus que
nous avons insisté. Je comprends ce qui a été dit au sujet
de notre engagement envers les pays les moins développés,
mais je ne savais pas qu'on excluait l'investissement ou
I'industrialisation.

Mlle MacDougall: Je ne crois pas qu’on exclut les inves-
tissements. La proposition que nous appelons vaguement
«collaboration industrielle» représente une série d’idées
qu’ont étudié les fonctionnaires canadiens en vue d’encou-
rager les investissements privés dans les pays en voie de
développement préts pour ce genre d’investisement. Il n’est
pas nécessaire que ce soit les pays les plus pauvres et il est
fort probable que ce ne sera pas eux. Je me reporte ici
essentiellement a notre attitude qui consiste & considérer
plusieurs aspects. Je ne parle pas du programme d’aide en
tant que tel. Ces choses . ..

M. Robinson (Toronto-Lakeshore): Trés bien. Trés bien.

Mille MacDougall: ... s’empilent les unes sur les autres
et elles auront une influence sur différents domaines et sur
différents pays en voie de développement.

Le président: Je crois que M. Bergbusch veut ajouter
quelque chose.

M. Bergbusch: Je pourrais seulement signaler que bien
entendu on cherche a atteindre deux objectifs différents au
moyen de ces investissements. Tout d’abord, ’expansion
des industries d’extraction disons des industries miniéres
qui peut se produire au